
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

February 9, 2021

ADDISON TREEHOUSE

14681 MIDWAY RD. SUITE 200, ADDISON, TX 75001
6:00 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION, WORK SESSION & REGULAR

MEETING
 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council will conduct its REGULARLY
SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, February 9, 2021 at the Addison TreeHouse
with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating for members
of the public will be available using CDC recommended social distancing
measures. The Town will utilize telephone or videoconference public meetings to
facilitate public participation to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by avoiding
meetings that bring people into a group setting. Telephonic or videoconferencing
capabilities will be utilized to allow individuals to address the Council. Email
comments may also be submitted to: iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm the day
of the meeting. Members of the public are entitled to participate remotely via
Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant
ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to participate in this meeting visit our
Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on Addison's website
at:www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION



EXECUTIVE SESSION

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee, pertaining to:
  

Conclude the City Manager's Annual Evaluation 
 

Reconvene in to Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to
consider action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session.
 

WORK SESSION
 

1. Present and Discuss Naming Standards for Parks and Trail Facilities.
 

2. Present and Discuss Public Nuisance Concerns Along the White
Rock Creek Park Trail.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Meetings / Events 

Public Comment The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council
on any matter, including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are
included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard
when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3)
minutes, unless otherwise required by law. To address the Council, please fill
out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior to the
Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any
action or discuss any item not listed on the agenda.  The Council may choose to
place the item on a future agenda.
 

3. Present a Proclamation Honoring Retiring Dallas Area Rapid Transit
President / Executive Director Gary C. Thomas.   



 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

4. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes of the January 26, 2021,
Regular Meeting.   

 

5. Consider Action to Approve the Purchase of Belt Line Road Street
Light Poles and Accessories and Authorize the City Manager to
Execute the Purchase  in an Amount Not to Exceed $108,730.

 

6. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a Contract Between the
Town of Addison and DN Tanks, LLC. for the Rehabilitation of the 6
Million Gallon Celestial Ground Storage Tank and Authorizing the
City Manager to Execute a Contract  in an Amount Not to Exceed
$1,239,510.

 

7. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of an
Untitled Public Art Piece by Artist Russ Connell to be Located at the
Surveyor Water Tower Site Near the Intersection of Arapaho Road
and Surveyor Boulevard.

 

8. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of the
Public Art Piece by Artist Russ Connell Known as Rocko Within One
of Three Parks Spaces Located in the Addison Grove Development.

 

9. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of the
Public Art Piece Created by Artist David B. Hickman Known as
"Aikido" at 15601 Addison Road.  

 

10. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between
the Town of Addison and Casteel & Associates, Inc. for the Belt Line
Road Digital Street Signs Project and Authorizing the City Manager
to Execute the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $455,006.04.

 

Regular Items
 



11. Present, Discuss, and Consideration Action on a Staff Recommendation
to Implement Compensation Changes for Fiscal Year 2021 Based on
a Market Analysis of the Town’s Comparator Cities.

 

12. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a CARES Act Update and
Potential Uses of Remaining Funds.   

 

13. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Acceptance of the Fiscal
Year 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).       

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any
decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.  

 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7017 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: Thursday, February 4, 2021
TIME POSTED:  5:00 pm
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  ______________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________
 



   
Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Gold Standard in Customer Service

Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Promote and protect the Addison Way

Define and promote Addison Identity

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Naming Standards for Parks and Trail Facilities.

BACKGROUND:
The Parks Master Plan was adopted by Council on April 25, 2019.  A
recommendation in this plan was to hold a park and trail naming discussion with
Council.  This agenda item is to hold that discussion and:
  

Consider if descriptors used in park names best reflect industry standards;
Clarify names and boundaries of trail systems and parks that have
expanded over time; and, 
Utilize park signage to improve way finding.

Specific to the above talking points, the Parks Master Plan recommended
consideration of the following items:
  

Should Les Lacs Linear Park, Les Lacs Pond, the Community Garden and
the greenscape south of the Addison Grove Development be considered as
part of a larger linear park system or should they be considered as individual
parks?
How should extensions to the Redding Trail, that were constructed in
various phases, be referred to and what are the boundaries of the Redding
Trail?
Should Arapaho Park be considered an Urban Park instead of the Arapaho
Greenbelt once the Cotton Belt Trail is constructed?
Is the name White Rock Creek Park the best descriptor to use?

Staff will make a presentation to Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.

Attachments



Attachments
Presentation - Park and Trail Facilities Naming Discussion 



Naming Standards 
for Parks and Trail 

Facilities

1

February 9, 2021



Background

2

The Parks Master Plan was Adopted by Council April 25, 2019
The plan recommended that Council discuss the following:

• Park naming standards 

• Naming of connected trail facilities

• Improve park signage



Purpose

3

Park Naming Standards
Using industry standard terminology to name parks helps park users 
understand the park system better.

Naming of Connected Trails and Park Facilities
As trails and parks in Addison have grown and expanded there may be 
some confusion amongst residents regarding where the boundaries of a 
system are and what the area is called.

Improve Park Signage
Park signage is important for identifying an area for park users.  It is 
important to use agreed upon names for the signage.



Park Naming Standards

The Parks Master Plan uses the following naming standards to categorize 
Addison Parks Systems:
• Destination Parks
• Neighborhood Parks
• Urban Parks
• Community Facility
• Greenbelt

The Parks Master Plan recommended:
• Council discuss how these standards apply to specific park names.
• Consider using the naming standards to better describe and differentiate 

neighborhood parks and greenbelts.

4



Park Naming Standards

5



Park Naming Standards

6

Park Master Plan Classifications
Neighborhood Park
A smaller park intended to meet the needs of nearby neighbors.  They typically attract residents 
who live within walking or biking distance (1/4 or up to 1/2 mile of the park).  They provide open 
space and greenspace as well as essential amenities and facilities to support play for all ages and 
small group gatherings. They may include elements such as open turf, landscaped greenspace, 
play areas, dog parks, game tables and small sport courts as well as seating and picnic tables.  

Greenbelt
Facilitate pedestrian and bicycle movement via trails in an attractive open space corridor.  Play an 
important role in connecting to parks.  Although they may include park like elements their role 
connecting the Town and serving as a transportation corridor is the main role of a greenbelt.  They 
may also be referred to as Linear Parks or Trails.

Urban Park
Special use sites that provide gathering space and greenspace for residents, employees and 
visitors.



Park Naming Standards

7

White Rock 
Creek Park

* Green shaded area 
represents approximate 
boundary of White Rock 
Creek Park

• This area is named White Rock Creek Park.  
• Descriptive standards, established in the Master Plan, indicate this should be named White 

Rock Creek Trail to better describe the use of the area.
• Should this change in terminology be considered?



8

Park Naming Standards

*Green shaded area 
represents approximate 
boundary of Park 
Properties. 

*Magenta line represents 
proposed trail connection 
identified in the Draft 
Trails Master Plan. 

Les Lacs Linear Park

Community Garden

Les Lacs Pond

Greenspace

• This area includes Les Lacs Linear Park, the Community Garden, Beltway Greenspace (south of Addison Grove 
Development), Les Lacs Pond, walking paths and art installations.

• The Parks Master Plan indicated everything North of Beltway Drive should be referred to as Les Lacs Linear Park and 
would include Les Lacs Park, trails, the green space area South of Addison Grove and future trail connections.

• The  Parks Master Plan also indicated the walking paths, art and community garden south of Beltway could be 
considered a secondary greenbelt referred to Les Lacs Linear Park South. 

• Should this change in terminology be considered?



Naming of Connected Trail Systems

9

*Green shaded area 
represents approximate 
location of original section 
of the Redding Trail.

*Yellow shaded areas 
represent approximate 
location of trail extensions.

* Magenta shaded area 
represents approximate 
location of future trail 
extension.

• Staff has identified a need to formalize how extensions of Redding Trail be referred to when residents turn in requests or 
have questions regarding the area.  Terminology such as Loos Trail, DISD Trail, Dog Park Trail, George Bush Extension, 
Arapaho Extension are often used.  

• Staff recommends calling the entire system the Redding Trail and referring to the extensions using either the street they 
extend to or the direction they extent as the descriptor.   For example; Belt Line Extension (North), Midway Extension 
(East), Marsh Lane Extension (West) and the Spring Valley Extension (South)

• Should this change in terminology be considered?



10

*Green shaded area 
represents approximate 
location of Arapaho Road 
Project which includes 
Park Space and a Trail 
along Arapaho Road.

*Magenta Line represents 
conceptual alignment of 
the Cotton Belt Trail.  
Design of the Trail Kicked 
off 1/27/2021.  Alignment 
Changes Should be 
Anticipated.

• The green space and trail along Arapaho Road is referred to as the Arapaho Greenbelt in the Parks Master Plan.
• Signage adjacent to the project refers to the area as Arapaho Road Phase III.
• A portion of the Cotton Belt Trail will use a portion of the Arapaho Trail Alignment.  
• Staff recommends the following:

• Reclassify the triangle shaped green space as an Urban Park, referred to as Arapaho Park.
• When constructed the Cotton Belt Trail would replace Arapaho Greenbelt and
• The Trail extension from Belt Line to Surveyor would be referred to as the Redding Trail – Arapaho Extension



Next Steps

11

Based on Council direction staff will bring back action items to Council for 
further discussion and consideration so that:  
• Existing park signage can be updated with current terminology as 

required.
• Trail names and extension descriptors can be used to develop 911 trail 

location markers funded in the bond election.
• Future wayfinding and trailhead signage can utilize current terminology.



   
Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Gold Standard in Public Safety

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Public Nuisance Concerns Along the White Rock Creek
Park Trail.

BACKGROUND:
On July 14, 2020, Staff made a presentation to Council, at the request of Council
Members Paul Walden and Marlin Willesen, regarding public nuisance concerns
along White Rock Creek Park Trail.  These concerns include resident
observations of homeless persons utilizing the area under the Belt Line Road
bridge.  The area under Belt Line Road is within the Dallas city limits which
precludes the Town's enforcement of Addison's public nuisance ordinances in
that location. 

Staff's presentation to Council provided an overview of the issues and potential
options to address concerns along the White Rock Creek Park Trail.  Following
the presentation, Council requested Staff identify costs associated with Option 1
which included increasing visibility, lighting and adding a security camera.  Staff
was also directed to look into the potential for construction of a concrete rip rap
deterrent.  Staff will present this information to Council.  

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - White Rock Creek Park Trail Public Nuisance Concern Discussion 



White Rock Creek  
Park Trail

Public Nuisance Concerns Along White Rock Creek Trail  
Presented by Janna Tidwell

Director of Parks & Recreation,
Paul Spencer Chief of Police & Shannon Hicks,  

Director of Public Works
February 9, 2021

1



Council Direction

This is a follow up discussion to a presentation staff made to  
Council during the July 14, 2020 work session concerning  
public nuisance concerns along the White Rock Creek Park  
Trail. As a result of that discussion Council directed staff to  
gather additional information regarding the following items:
1. Provide cost information for Increased Visibility Option  

(Referred to as Option 1 in the presentation.)
2. Consider a Concrete Rip Rap Deterrent

2



Safety & Visibility Concerns
Beneath Belt Line Bridge:
• Perceived Safety Concerns
• Unsightly
• Unsanitary
• Nuisance
• Within City of Dallas Jurisdiction

Photo Taken January 2021 Photo Taken June 2020 3



Staff Efforts Since June

• Improved Visibility – Staff has selectively  
cleared understory brush to improve  
visibility under the bridge for increased  
safety and will continue these efforts on an  
ongoing basis.

• Increased Cleaning- Staff has conducted  
regular clean ups of the area.

• Add Future Trash Receptacle – Staff is  
requesting bids for trash receptacles and  
has included one receptacle to be placed in  
this area in the request for bids.

• Monitor Reports to Police – There have  
been no calls reporting suspicious activity  
since the July 2020 presentation to Council.

Photo Taken January 2021 4



Staff Efforts Since June
• Through the City of Dallas 311 Mobile App Parks Staff created a service  

request to address the nuisance under the bridge. The following response  
was provided to the request:

Following CDC protocols, Office of Homeless Solutions (OHS) has decided to  
temporarily suspend encampment resolution efforts for the next few weeks due to the  
increase in Covid-19 cases. As per management, OHS will continue to monitor,  
assess, and provide sanitary products to known encampment locations to limit the  
potential spread of Covid-19, while providing connections to resources and shelter.
OHS will continue to recommend debris removal but will wait to schedule debris
removals as soon as given the official all-clear. Please contact Raven with OHS at  
469-792-5141 for any questions or concerns.

• Staff also submitted a report requesting the graffiti to be addressed and is  
awaiting a response.

• Staff will continue to report the issues to 311.

5



Other Ongoing Efforts
• Metrocrest Social Services is currently heading up Community Roundtable  

meetings attempting to address many societal issues within the four-city area of  
Addison, Carrollton, Coppell and Farmers Branch.

Topics Include:

1. Affordable Housing

2. Homelessness
3. Quality Jobs

4. Healthcare

6



Increased Visibility Option
Objective – Increase visibility and make  
the area less desirable to inhabit:
• Add pedestrian lighting to increase  

visibility

• Direct lighting under the bridge to help  
illuminate the area

• Add a security camera

• Remove understory vegetation to  
improve visibility and reduce seclusion of  
the space

PROS
• Increase visibility at night
• Discourage night time use
• Allow staff to monitor remotely
CONS
• Lights and cameras are subject to being  

tampered with
• May not fully eliminate the issue

Estimated Costs  
Oncor Service  
Electrical Enclosure  
Light Pole
Misc. Electrical  
Footing

Security Camera

Contingency
Total Costs

No Cost*
$ 2,200
$ 3,600
$ 1,200
$ 1,200
$ 13,600 –

36,000**
$ 4,400
$ $26,200 –

$48,600
* Oncor will provide power service up to $7,000 in costs.  
Oncor reps estimate the amount will be below this  
threshold.

**The IT Department issued a bid for Security Cameras  
to be located throughout the town between 10-17 and  
12-17. The White Rock Creek Trail location was  
included in the bid. Three bids were received but each  
bidder included different amounts of cameras at this  
location to achieve the objectives presented in the bid.
Bids at this location ranged from $13,600 – 76,000. IT is  
still reviewing the bids has not awarded the contract. A  
bid for a single camera was included in the estimate.

7



Concrete Rip Rap Deterrent
Objective – Create an unwalkable surface  
under the bridge.
• Add triangular concrete domes

PROS
• Could create an unwalkable surface
CONS
• Cost and permitting
• Land under bridge is in Dallas and would  

require an agreement with Dallas
• Examples of this type of obstacle being  

overcome by homeless seeking shelter
• Ongoing maintenance and budgeting for  

replacement would be required

Estimated Costs  

Mobilization  

Demolition  

Excavation  

Concrete Work  

Traffic Control  

Restoration

Design & Permitting $  

Contingency $

$ 66,200

$ 55,000

$ 75,000

$ 278,000*

$ 15,000

$ 60,000

57,450

121,362

Total Cost $ 728,012

* Estimates looked at forming concrete pyramids or  
utilizing a pre-manufactured concrete mat system made  
for erosion. Both systems were similar in price.

8



Elevation Differences

9



Flood Zone

10



   
Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present a Proclamation Honoring Retiring Dallas Area Rapid Transit
President / Executive Director Gary C. Thomas.   

BACKGROUND:
The Mayor and Council will recognize retiring Dallas Area Rapid Transit
President / Executive Director Gary C. Thomas with a proclamation.

RECOMMENDATION:
Proclamation to be read.  

Attachments
Proclamation - Gary C. Thomas 



,ilroclamation 
be it proclaimed by the Mayor 

�ob.ln of �bbison 

Whereas, Gary C. Thomas joined DART in 1998 as the senior vice president of project management with 
nearly 20 years of experience as an engineer and architect, consulting on national and international 
projects, including DART projects dating to 1986; and 

Whereas, Gary was appointed President/Executive Director in 2001 when DART's rail system was only 
20-miles long and led the agency to provide North Texas residents with the longest light rail network in 
the country at 93-miles; and

Whereas, under his steadfast leadership, Gary forged the agency into an award-winning transit model, 
providing residents across DART' s 700-square mile service area with a world-class public transit 
network; and 

Whereas, with a focus on ensuring that DART continue to serve as a mobility and economic engine for 
the long-term benefit of the entire region, Gary developed polices that engaged development projects near 
DART light rail stations, generating billions of dollars in enhanced value and jobs for the local economy 
while providing increased mobility opportunities that improved the quality oflife of North Texas 
residents; and 

Whereas, as a champion of the Mobility as a Service (MaaS) service model, Gary led the effort to make 
DART's multimodal transit system flexible, reliable, affordable; and

Whereas, through determination and a focus on the long-term benefit to the North Texas region, Gary 
built DART into the model of a modern 21st century transit system. 

Now, therefore, I, Joe Chow, Mayor of the Town of Addison and on behalf of the 
City Council, do hereby recognize: 

Gary C. Thomas Day 

Dutifully executed this day February 9, 2021 

Mayor, Town of Addison, State of Texas 



   
Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve the Minutes of the January 26, 2021, Regular
Meeting.   

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the January 26, 2021, Regular Meeting have been prepared for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - January 26, 2021 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 1 of 9 
 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE  

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 
 

January 26, 2021 
 

Work Session & Regular Meeting 
6:00 p.m. 

 
Addison TreeHouse 

14681 Midway Rd., Addison, TX 75001 
 

The Addison City Council conducted its Regular Council Meeting on Tuesday, January 26, 2021 
at the Addison TreeHouse with a quorum of the City Council physically present. Limited seating 
for members of the public was available using CDC recommended social distancing measures. 
The Town utilized telephone and videoconferencing to facilitate participation in the meeting. 
Interested parties were able to make public comments and address the Council via emailed 
comments submitted to the City Secretary at iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm on the meeting 
day. Members of the public were also entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in 
Number: 877.853.5247; Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. Detailed instructions on how 
to participate in this meeting were available on the Town’s website on the Agenda Page. The 
meeting was live streamed on Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net 
 
Present:   Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore 

Guillermo Quintanilla; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Ivan 
Hughes; Council Member Paul Walden; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 

 
Call Meeting to Order:  Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance:  Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
WORK SESSION 

 
1. Present and Discuss the Compensation Market Study Results and Recommendations. 
 
Passion Hayes, Director of Human Resources presented this item.  She reviewed that during the 
August 6, 2020 Special Meeting and Budget Work Session, Council directed staff to conduct a 
Compensation Market Study and to develop recommendations based on the Study findings.  She 
advised that staff worked with consultant Matt Weatherly with Public Sector Personnel 
Consultants to complete the Study.   

http://www.addisontexas.net/


Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 9 
 

 
Mr. Weatherly reviewed the Town’s compensation philosophy adopted by Resolution R17-38 in 
2017 that included the purpose of the merit and market pay plan as follows: 

• To encourage excellence in service by tying salary increases to job performance; 
• To reward employees for their efforts and job performance; and 
• To remain competitive with other metroplex cities regarding the Town's compensation 

program by paying employees better than the average of our comparison cities 
 
Mr. Weatherly added that he utilized the Town’s 13 comparison cities of Allen, Carrollton, 
Coppell, Farmers Branch, Flower Mound, Frisco, Grapevine, Irving, Lewisville, McKinney, 
Plano, Richardson, and University Park to prepare the Study. 
   
Mr. Weatherly reviewed the Market Study process and provided comparison surveys for police 
officers, firefighter/paramedics, utility supervisors, and building inspectors.  The comparison 
showed that Addison’s average salaries for these positions are below the average for the 
comparison cities.  Mr. Weatherly then provided details of the current and proposed salaries for 
Addison.  It was recommended that the salaries and ranges for employees be adjusted, and a 2 
percent merit increase be applied.   It was noted that the last market update done for Addison was 
in 2017-18 however currently, on average Addison is behind its comparison cities.   
 
Ms. Hayes advised that staff has developed recommendations in response to the Study's findings, 
projected the long-term financial impact of the recommendations, and identified funding sources 
to cover the cost of the recommendations.   Steven Glickman, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed 
the financial impact of the market study that includes increasing the sales tax budget by $550,000 
to cover this year’s added expense.  He also reviewed the long-term planning model for revenues 
and expenditures and how the cost of the salary increases would be accomplished going forward.   
 
Considerable discussion among Council followed.  Council Member Hughes asked about the 
average salaries of employees across comparison cities and would like to know how Addison fell 
behind in three years. Council Member Walden suggested that market studies might be done 
perhaps annually to stay abreast of changes in the market.  City Manager Wes Pierson advised that 
staff look at the market as often as needed.  Council Member Willesen inquired when the 
comparison cities were determined.  Ms. Hayes replied that it was in 2014 and there are notes 
regarding those meeting discussions. 
 
City Manager Pierson advised that for future discussion, the Council needs to evaluate who 
Addison is competing with.  He expressed that Addison needs to be fair to its employees in a 
sustainable way, and still accomplish all the other tasks that a city has.  He reminded the Council 
to look at total compensation and not just salaries. 
 
City Manager Pierson asked the Council if he should bring back an approval item with Staff’s 
recommendation of changing the ranges and salaries.  Council Member Hughes expressed that he 
would like more data and analysis regarding what employees make, and what were the comparison 
cities’ percent increases compared to Addison.  He expressed that the structure of how increases 
were applied may reveal needed information.  Mr. Weatherly advised he will gather more 
information on this matter.  Council Member Braun stated that philosophical questions should be 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 9 
 

addressed a future date and that Council should focus on the Staff’s current recommendation.  City 
Manager Pierson advised this can be discussed at a future Council meeting if desired.   
 
Mayor Chow expressed that some of the cities Addison compares itself with are no longer 
appropriate.  There was a consensus among Council to move forward with the salary and range 
recommendations.  City Manager Pierson advised that this will be brought back at a future Council 
meeting for approval and will be effective for the first full pay period following approval.  He also 
advised that a discussion regarding the compensation philosophy and the comparison cities will be 
scheduled prior to the start of Fiscal Year 2022 budget discussions. 
 

2. Present and Discuss the Preliminary Design of an Electronic Sign Over Belt Line 
Road. 

 
Hamid Khaleghipour, Executive Director of Business Performance and Innovation, presented this 
item.  He reviewed that in May 2012, Addison voters approved $500,000 in General Obligation 
bonds for the installation of an electronic sign over Belt Line Road to replace the static banner 
located just East of Quorum Drive.  On March 20, 2020, staff released a request for proposal (RFP) 
for the design and installation of the sign, but no proposals were received.  Staff then sought 
qualified vendors through two (2) cooperative purchasing hubs.  Fourteen (14) potential vendors 
were initially identified.  Upon further review, staff determined that two of the vendors were 
qualified for the project.  Of these two vendors, Casteel Sign was selected based on proven 
capability and the know-how to design and build this platform within the available budget.   
 
Mr. Khaleghipour advised that in November 2018, the Town retained the services of Othon Inc. 
to conduct a safety and location assessment associated with the placement of an electronic display 
Changeable Message Sign (CMS.)  Their services included a preliminary engineering review, a 
literature review of guidelines for a CMS, structure types and final recommendations.  The 
recommendations were for an Overhead Sign Bridge Sign Structure or a Changeable Message Sign 
with Balanced T-Structure.   
 
Mr. Khaleghipour advised that staff is recommending a 10' x 20' electronic display sign and a 
10mm resolution with a Steel Support in the center median.  He expressed his appreciation to 
Shannon Hicks, Public Works and Engineering Services Director, and Jana Tidwell, Parks and 
Recreation Director, for their collaboration on this project.  He added that the total expense for this 
projected is $489,817 and includes the sign, relocation of utilities if needed, landscape changes 
and remediation, and the safety assessment.  City Manager Pierson added that two and possibly 
four trees will need to be removed for the installation.   
 
There was discussion regarding the changing of the messages on the board and it was noted that 
they will stay for a fixed time so as to reduce the possibly of driver inattention.  City Manager 
Pierson added that the brightness of the sign can be adjusted for nighttime hours.   
 
Representatives of the contractor and the manufacturer were present and advised that there is a 
one-year warranty on the sign and labor however that warranty may be extended.  It was noted that 
installation should take four to six months after final Council approval. 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 9 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities  
 

Discussion of Events/Meetings 
 

Public Comment: The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items on 
the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 
heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 
by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 
to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 
 
City Secretary Parker advised that no citizens had requested to address the City Council via 
telephonic means.     

 
Consent Agenda: All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 
be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 
 
3. Consider Action on the Minutes from the January 12, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
 
4. Consider Action on the First Quarter Update from the Finance Committee to the City 

Council for the Period from October 2020 to December 2020.    
 
5. Consider Action on a Resolution Amending the Community Partners Bureau Policy.   
 
6. Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the Town of 

Addison and Epicenter Productions, LLC for Stage, Sound, & Lighting Production 
for Addison Special Events and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the 
Agreement in an Amount not to Exceed $289,500. 

 
Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 
separate discussion.   Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Quintanilla requested to remove Item 6.  
 
MOTION:   Council Member Braun moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 3, 4, and 5 as 
submitted.  Council Member Walden seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
****** Consent Item 6 ****** 

 
Council Member Quintanilla advised that some information was sent to the Town today and 
requested staff provide a response.  City Manager Pierson stated that an email was received at 3 
p.m. today from one of the unsuccessful proposers and that Special Events Director Jasmine Lee 
would provide a response.  Ms. Lee explained that in the email the proposer questioned how the 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 9 
 

qualifications and experience are factored into the selection process.  She advised that a selection 
committee reviewed all the submittals.  Ms. Lee explained that the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
required that an invoice detailing the equipment that would be used be included in the submittal.  
This proposer submitted an incomplete bid which did not include a roof over the stage for 
Octoberfest.  She advised that if that item had been included in the proposal it would have exceeded 
the Not to Exceed amount by more than $20,000.  All other proposals received included the stage 
roof for Octoberfest.  Ms. Lee also reviewed who the members of the review committee are and 
the contract cancellation policy. 
 
MOTION: Council Member Hughes moved to approve Item 6 as presented.  Deputy Mayor Pro 
Tempore Quintanilla seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Resolution No. R21-005: Amend Community Partners Bureau Policy 
Resolution No. R21-006: Epicenter Productions, LLC for Special Events Stage, Sound and 
Lighting Productions   

 
 
Regular Items 
 
7.     Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Amending Chapter 78 Traffic 

and Vehicles, Section 78-165 (b) Designation of No Parking and Permitted Parking 
Areas of the Code of Ordinances by Amending Locations Related to Permitted 
Parking Areas on Spectrum Drive and Surveyor Boulevard. 

 
Chief of Police Paul Spencer presented this item.  He advised that the Code of Ordinances Chapter 
78 ‘Traffic and Vehicles’ Section 78-165 (b) ‘Designation of No Parking and Permitted Parking 
Areas’ lists residential streets where on-street parking is allowed except between the hours of 2:00 
AM and 6:00 AM.  Chief Spencer advised that two street sections have been identified that are not 
listed within the current statute, and staff is recommending their addition.  These sections are 
14812 - 14827 Surveyor Boulevard and the 15400 and 15500 blocks of Spectrum Drive.  
 
Chief Spencer advised that Spectrum Drive has two unlisted blocks that need to be added.  The 
first is the 15400 block which consists of the area between Arapaho and the railroad right-of-way.  
This area includes the 'head-in" parking areas along the street.  While the 15500 block of Spectrum 
is currently posted with signage prohibiting parking between 2:00 AM - 6:00 AM, this is not 
currently reflected in the ordinance.   
 
Chief Spencer said that the unlisted portion of Surveyor Boulevard consists of the residential area 
between Beltway Drive and Mormon Lane.  This is the only residential area in this neighborhood 
where on-street parking is currently not allowed at any time.  Staff is recommending that parking 
in this unlisted portion be made consistent with the neighborhood so that parking will be allowed. 
 
Chief Spencer provided location maps for the areas and advised that complaints have been 
received. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 9 
 

MOTION:  Council Member Braun made a motion to approve as presented.  Mayor Pro Tempore 
Ward seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ordinance No. O21-06:   Amending the Code of Ordinances Chapter 78 ‘Traffic and Vehicles’ 
Section 78-165 (b) 

   

8.       Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution Appointing Individuals to the 
Community Partners Bureau. 

 
Mayor Chow called for nominations for appointment of the Community Partners Bureau.  
Nominations are listed as follows: 
 

Place # First Name Last Name Expiration Other Appointed By: 
2  Ana-Maria Frampton 12/31/2022 The Family Place Council Member Willesen 
3  Fran Powell 12/31/2022 Metrocrest Services Council Member Hughes 
4  Karen Perry 12/31/2021 Dallas Cat Lady Council Member Willesen 
5  Stephanie Baim 12/31/2022 Metrocare Services Council Member Walden 

 
City Secretary Parker added that Suzie Oliver is currently serving in Place 1 and will expire on 
December 31, 2021. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Hughes made a motion to approve the nominations.  Council 
Member Braun seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Resolution No. R21-007:  Appoint Members to the Community Partners Bureau. 
 
9.       Present, Discuss, and Consider Action  to Amend the Public Art Policy. 
 
[Item 9. was discussed following Item 12.] 
 
This item was requested by Council Members Marlin Willesen and Ivan Hughes.  Jana Tidwell 
advised that the Public Art Policy was last updated by Council on August 25, 2020 to better align 
with updates made to the Naming and Recognition Policy. 
 
Council Member Willesen advised that in March 2020 Chef Antonio of Antonio Ristorante passed 
away.  Members of the community wanted to honor Chef Antonio, so they contacted the Addison 
Arbor Foundation to donate funds towards artwork and include a plaque in the Chef’s honor.  
Council Member Willesen stated that the donors wished to include specific language on the plaque 
but were advised that the Public Art Policy restricts the requested language.  Photos of memorial 
type plaques located in the Town were displayed.   
 
Public Comments were received from citizens Trisha Stewart, 15755 Seabolt, and Jeff Pierson, 
15630 Quorum #4523, who voiced their desire to allow the words “In Memory of” to be included 
on the plaque.   City Secretary Parker read the email from Antonio Ristorante Owners Sean and 
Stephanie Moore in support of the plaque language.   
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 9 
 

Addison Arbor Foundation (AAF) representatives Dr. Jay Ihrig and Barbara Papas advised there 
was no agreement to allow the language requested by the donors and family members for the 
plaque.  Pursuant to the AAF Policy which was adopted by the City Council in August 2020 the 
allowable language would be, “supported by the Friends and Family of Chef Antonio.”   
 
There was considerable discussion among Council Members regarding this matter.  City Manager 
Pierson reminded Council that the agenda language addresses a possible policy change and not 
whether to allow different language on a plaque.  Several Council Members expressed that the 
policy should not be changed, and no motion was made to do so.  Mayor Chow expressed that this 
request was submitted March 24, 2020 and the policy was not changed until August 2020.  He 
requested that the Addison Arbor Foundation allow the “In Memory Of” language be used under 
this circumstance and as a good-will gesture from the AFF to the Citizens, family and donors of 
this artwork honoring Chef Antonio.   
 

10.        Present, Discuss and Consider Action on the Location for One (1) Bronze and Glass 
Kinetic Sculpture at 15601 Addison Road. 

 
[Item 10 -12 were addressed following Item 8 and before item 9.] 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Jana Tidwell presented this item on behalf of the Addison Arbor 
Foundation (AAF.)  The AAF is proposing to locate a bronze, steel and glass kinetic sculpture at 
15601 Addison Road on airport property which is leased by Black Forest Aviation.  Dr. Jay Ihrig 
with the AAF explained that the piece named Aikido and was created by artist David B. Hickman.  
The sculpture consists of two wind-activated kinetic forms that represent Aikido Marshal Arts.  
The sculpture was previously located in the courtyard outside of the Mucky Duck in the Addison 
Circle District and was in disrepair.  In June 2018, the AAF purchased the sculpture for $1,000 
and had it restored. 
 
Ms. Tidwell provided a location map where the sculpture will be located, noting that it will be 
visible from North Addison Road and Addison Circle Park.  She advised that Black Forest 
Aviation has agreed to construct a platform for the piece. 
 
MOTION:   Mayor Pro Tempore Ward moved to approve as presented.  Council Member Walden 
seconded the motion.   Motion passed unanimously. 
 
City Manager Pierson advised that in the future a Resolution will be presented on a Consent 
Agenda for this item. 
 
11.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on the Location for One (1) Steel Sculpture at 

the Surveyor Water Tower. 
 
This item was presented by Jana Tidwell and Dr. Jay Ihrig.  Dr. Ihrig advised that the Addison 
Arbor Foundation (AAF) is proposing to locate a painted steel sculpture fabricated by Carrollton 
artist Russ Connell.  The piece will be approximately 16 feet tall, including a 3-foot-tall base.  The 
sculpture will be painted in a metallic gold color.  The sculpture is currently untitled but will be 
named by the artist at a later date.  The AAF is purchasing the sculpture for $28,500.  Ms. Tidwell 



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 9 
 

provided a photographic depiction of the installation location at the Surveyor Water Tower.  She 
noted this item will be brought back as well with a Resolution for approval. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Walden moved to approve as presented.  Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed 6 to 1 with Council Member Willesen voting against. 
 
12.    Present, Discuss and Consider Action on the Location for One (1) Painted Steel 

Sculpture on Park Property in the Addison Grove Development. 
 
Dr. Jay Ihrig, Addison Arbor Foundation, advised that in addition to the piece in Item 11., the AAF 
is proposing to purchase a piece from the same artist Russ Connell titled Rocko.  Mr. Connell 
offered the piece at a discount if both pieces are purchased.  Ms. Tidwell advised that the AAF is 
requesting general approval of the piece and locating this piece in one of the three parks that are 
currently under construction at Addison Grove.  The AAF would like to make the final location 
selection once the parks are further along in the construction process.  Ms. Tidwell noted this item 
will be brought back as well with a Resolution for approval. 
 
Council Member Willesen stated he liked the proposed site and really likes the artist but is not a 
fan of this particular artwork in this location.   
 
MOTION:  Council Member Walden moved to approve as presented.  Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
[Item 9. was discussed following Item 12.] 
 
13.    Present and Discuss the 2021 Special Event Preview.  
 
Special Events Director Jasmine Lee presented this item.  She reviewed that all of Addison’s major 
festivals were cancelled in 2020 due to COVID-19.  The Addison Kaboom Town! fireworks were 
displayed virtually and the Addison After Dark event series was transformed into the Addison 
Weekend Drive-in. 
 
Ms. Lee advised that for 2021 staff is adapting the festivals and events to the current environment.  
This includes social distancing, limiting capacities, enhanced sanitation, limiting touch points, 
limiting interactive ticket sales, reduced use of indoor spaces, and changes to food service 
operations. Noticeable changes will be implemented as the Town prepares to host the following 
events: 

• Addison After Dark- 3rd Saturday of the month, April – November (except for September), 
a free event; 

• Taste Addison- 2-day festival on June 4-5;  
• Kaboom Town! - July 3; and 
• Octoberfest- September 16-19. 

 
Ticket sales for these events as well as logistics were discussed.  Details for Taste Addison 
included changes for the restaurants that will require less staff and options for mobile ordering.  



Town of Addison, Texas 
January 26, 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 9 
 

Ms. Lee advised that carnival activities will not be included in Kaboom Town! and the air show 
will be conducted so as not to encourage group viewing.  Carnival activities for Taste Addison and 
Oktoberfest have gone out to bid, but no vendor has been secured for either event at this time.  She 
also advised that the musical entertainment contracted with in 2020 will appear at events in 2021, 
honoring the deposits paid by the Town previously. 
 
City Manager Pierson advised Council that Town staff members are doing their best to prepare for 
the events this year under difficult conditions and will continue to evaluate pandemic conditions 
and adjust plans as needed.  He also commended Jasmine Lee and her team for their efforts. 

 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 
      
   TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
          
      
   __________________________________ 
   Joe Chow, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



   
Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems
Milestones: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an

acceptable condition and well maintained

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve the Purchase of Belt Line Road Street Light
Poles and Accessories and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the
Purchase in an Amount Not to Exceed $108,730.

BACKGROUND:
The street light poles on Belt Line Road are owned and maintained by the Town. 
Each year, the Town purchases new poles and accessories to replace those
damaged or destroyed by vehicles. In the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Streets Division
budget, Council budgeted $125,000 to purchase eight (8) replacement street
light poles and fixtures for Belt Line Road.  

Bid #21-37 was posted on BidSync on January 6, 2021, and it closed on January
21, 2021.  Two vendors, Moreno Supply Inc. and Technology International
submitted bids.  Technology International, however, did not submit prices for
luminaires, lamps, or breakaway support systems.  Moreno Supply, Inc.
submitted the lowest complete bid in the amount of $108,730.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Bid Tabulation for Solicitation 21-37 



Bid Tabulation Packet
for

Solicitation 21-37

Street Light Assemblies

Bid Designation: Regional

Town of Addison

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 1



Bid #21-37 - Street Light Assemblies
 
Creation Date   Dec 1, 2020 End Date Jan 21, 2021 2:00:00 PM CST

Start Date Jan 6, 2021 11:17:34 AM CST Awarded Date   Not Yet Awarded

 21-37--01-01   Radius Light Street Poles, 40 Feet
 Supplier Unit Price    Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs
Moreno Supply, Inc.   First Offer -  $10,400.00     8 / each $83,200.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 21-37-01-01
Supplier Notes: Sheridan poles 

 
Technology International, Inc.   First Offer -  $10,780.00     8 / each $86,240.00   Y  
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes:  

 21-37--01-02   Base Covers
 Supplier Unit Price    Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs
Technology International, Inc.   First Offer -  $0.00     8 / each $0.00   Y  
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: 
base covers included in line item 1 

 
Moreno Supply, Inc.   First Offer -  $12.50     8 / each $100.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 21-37-01-02
Supplier Notes: base covers 

 

 21-37--01-03   Luminares
 Supplier Unit Price    Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs
Technology International, Inc.   First Offer -  $0.00     16 / each $0.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: no quote 

 
Moreno Supply, Inc.   First Offer -  $1,580.00     16 / each $25,280.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 21-37-01-03
Supplier Notes: 
luminaires 
 

 21-37--01-04   Pulse Start Lamps
 Supplier Unit Price    Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs
Technology International, Inc.   First Offer -  $0.00     16 / each $0.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: no quote 

 
Moreno Supply, Inc.   First Offer -  $6.25     16 / each $100.00      
Product Code: Supplier Product Code: 21-37-01-04

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 2



Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: pulse start lamps 

 

 21-37--01-05   Break Away Support Systems
 Supplier Unit Price    Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs
Technology International, Inc.   First Offer -  $0.00     8 / package $0.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: no quote 

 
Moreno Supply, Inc.   First Offer -  $6.25     8 / package $50.00      
Product Code: 
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 21-37-01-05
Supplier Notes: 
breakaway bolts 
 

Supplier Totals

f   Technology International, Inc. $86,240.00    (5/5 items)

 Bid Contact  Shaji Habib 
tii@tii-usa.com 
Ph 407-359-2373   
Fax 407-329-2372

 Address  1349 S. International Parkway,
Suite 2411
Lake Mary, FL 32746

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes: Head
Attch:

 

f   Moreno Supply, Inc. $108,730.00    (5/5 items)

 Bid Contact  Ellen Moreno 
ralphellenmoreno@msn.com 
Ph 972-233-4429   
Fax 972-233-4906

 Address  4140 Billy Mitchell Dr.
Addison, TX 75001

 Bid Notes   the luminaire fixtures are also available at 1750.00/e if needed in led

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:
the luminaire fixtures are also available at
1750.00/e if needed in led 

Head
Attch:

 

**

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 3



 Technology International, Inc.
 Bid Contact  Shaji Habib 

tii@tii-usa.com 
Ph 407-359-2373   
Fax 407-329-2372

 Address  1349 S. International Parkway, Suite
2411
Lake Mary, FL 32746

 Item #  Line Item Notes   Unit Price      Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs

 21-37--01-01    Radius Light Street
Poles, 40 Feet 

Supplier Product
Code: 

  First Offer -  $10,780.00      8 / each $86,240.00
 

Y  

 21-37--01-02    Base Covers  Supplier Product
Code: 

Supplier Notes:  
base covers included in
line item 1 

  First Offer -  $0.00      8 / each $0.00   Y  

 21-37--01-03    Luminares  Supplier Product
Code: 

Supplier Notes:  no
quote 

  First Offer -  $0.00      16 / each $0.00      

 21-37--01-04    Pulse Start Lamps  Supplier Product
Code: 

Supplier Notes:  no
quote 

  First Offer -  $0.00      16 / each $0.00      

 21-37--01-05    Break Away Support
Systems 

Supplier Product
Code: 

Supplier Notes:  no
quote 

  First Offer -  $0.00      8 / package $0.00      

        Supplier Total   $86,240.00      

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 4



 Technology International, Inc.

 Item:  Radius Light Street Poles, 40 Feet

 Attachments

 TII-TX-0121-16569-Street Light Assemblies-Online-01-21-21.pdf

 Data Sheets.pdf

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 5



Technology International, Inc. 
1349 South International Pkwy, Suite 2411 

Lake Mary, FL 32746 
Tel:  (407) 359-2373 
Fax:  (407) 359-2372 

E-mail:  tii@tii-usa.com 
Website: www.tii-usa.com 

 

 

Equipment Proposal 
 

Description: Street Light Assemblies 
 
Bid #:  21-37 
 
Agency: Town of Addison, TX 
 
TII Ref: TII/TX/0121/16569 
 
Date: 01/20/2021 

 
In response to your quote request for Street Light Assemblies, Technology International, Inc. is 
pleased to submit the following for consideration: 
 

 
ITEM 
NO. 

 
QTY 

 
DESCRIPTION/ MODEL NO. 

 
UNIT 

PRICE 

 
EXTD. 
PRICE

 
1 
 

 
8 

 
Sheridan Part # CSP39-RTC-40-BAB-SW 42’ Curved 
Round Tapered Steel Pole with Twin Arm, Breakaway 
Couplings, Base Cover, Anchor Bolts, Powder Coated 
Custom Silver; Light Fixtures by Others Per submittal 
PD113292.2 (attached) 
 

 
$10,780.00 

 
$10,780.00

 
2 
 

 
8 

 
Base Covers 

 
Included 

 
Included 

 
3 
 

 
16 

 
No Quote 

 
 

 
 

 
4 
 

 
16 

 
No Quote 

 
 

 
 

 
5 
 

 
8 

 
No Quote 

 
 

 
 

 
See attached data sheets 

 
Total…………................$10,780.00 

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 6



 
 

 
Warranty: Manufacturer’s standard warranty applies.  
 
Delivery:  

 Estimated delivery is 20 Weeks after receipt of order and approved submittal.  
 Please note, due to COVID-19 there may be unanticipated disruptions and delays in the supply 

chains globally, for parts, components, equipment and internal manufacturing services such as 
engineering, production allocation, and logistics. This may result in manufacturing & delivery 
delays out of our control. We will do our best to communicate all such impacts and reduce the 
effects of any such delays.  

 All delivery dates quoted are subject to manufacturer’s confirmation at time of order. 
 Submittal data will be provided for approval after receipt of order (if applicable) 
 Customer to provide equipment and personnel to unload  
 TII will provide MSO at time of payment confirmation. Customer is responsible for all titling and 

registration of trailer (If Applicable) 
 
Freight: Included to Addison, TX 75001. 
 
Payment Terms: NET 30 
Prompt Payment discount: 1/4 % 10 days 
 
Quote Validity: 90 days. 
 
*** Notes: 

 Quoted price is not available on a line item basis. This is an offer for a lump sum contract. 
 

Technology International, Inc. Corporate data: 
We are a small business and our Tax Payer Identification Number (TIN): 650342335. The price 
quoted does not include any sales, excise or similar taxes. 
 
We trust that this proposal will meet your requirements and we look forward to hearing from you. 
 
If you have any questions or need more information, please contact us by phone at 407-359-2373, 
fax at 407-359-2372 or email us at tii@tii-usa.com 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 
Rifat Habib 
Business Development Exec. 
Technology International, Inc. 

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 7



21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 8



 Technology International, Inc.

 Item:  Base Covers

 Attachments

 Edited _ Information_and_Instruction_Form.pdf

 Edited _ Information_and_Instruction_Form.pdf

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 9



 
 

Information and Instruction Form 

  

RESPONSES THAT DO NOT CONTAIN THIS COMPLETED FORM MAY NOT BE COMPLIANT 

  

Section I Company Profile 

  

Name of Business:   

Business Address:  

                                                                            

Contact Name:   

Phone#:   

Fax#:  

Email:   

  

Name(s) Title of Authorized Company Officers: 

  

Federal ID #:      W-9 Form:  A W-9 form will be required from the successful bidder. 

DUN #:   

  

Remit Address:  If different than your physical address:  

 

Section II Instructions to Bidders 

 Electronic Bids: The Town of Addison uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals. There will be 
NO COST to the Contractor/Supplier for Standard bids or proposals. For Cooperative Bids and Reverse 
Auctions ONLY, the successful contractor/supplier agrees to pay BidSync a transaction fee of one percent (1%) of 
the total amount of all contracts for goods and/or services. Cooperative Bids and Reverse Auctions will be 
clearly marked on the bid documents. To assure that all contractors/suppliers are treated fairly, the fee will be 
payable whether the bid/proposal is submitted electronically, or by paper means. Refer to www.bidsync.com for 
further information. 

  

Contractor/Supplier Responsibility: It is the contractor/suppliers responsibility to check for any addenda or 
questions and answers that might have been issued before bid closing date and time. Contractors/Suppliers will be 

Technology International, Inc.

1349 South International Pkwy, Suite 2411, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 

407-359-2373

407-359-2372

tii@tii-usa.com

650342335

877177162

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 10



notified of any addenda and Q&A if they are on the invited list, they view the bid, or add themselves to the watch 
list. 

Acknowledgement of Addenda:  #1 #2 #3 #4 #5  

  

Delivery of Bids: For delivery of paper bids our physical address is:  

Town of Addison 

5350 Beltline Road 

Dallas, TX 75254 

Attn:  Purchasing Department 

  

Contractor/Supplier Employees: No Contractor/Supplier employee shall have a direct or indirect financial interest 
in any contract with the town, or be directly or indirectly financially interested in the sale of land, materials, 
supplies or services to the town. 

  

Deliveries: All deliveries will be F.O.B. Town of Addison. All Transportation Charges paid by the 
contractor/supplier to Destination.  

 Payment Terms: A Prompt Payment Discount of % is offered for Payment Made Within Days of Acceptance of 
Goods or Services. If Prompt Payments are not offered or accepted, payments shall be made 30 days after receipt 
and acceptance of goods or services or after the date of receipt of the invoice whichever is later.  

  

Delivery Dates: Delivery Dates are to be specified in Calendar Days from the Date of Order.  

  

Bid Prices: Pre-Award bid prices shall remain Firm and Irrevocable for a Period of ________ Days. 

  

  Exceptions: Contractor/Supplier does not take Exception to Bid Specifications or Other Requirements of this 
Solicitation.  If neither exceptions box is checked, default shall be “No Exceptions” 

  Contractor/Supplier take the following Exception(s) to the Bid Specifications or Other Requirements of this 
Solicitation (Explain in Detail).  If box checked but no exceptions are listed, default shall be “No Exceptions” 

 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB): It is the policy of the Town of Addison to involve HUBs in the 
procurement of goods, equipment, services and construction projects. Prime Contractors/Suppliers are encouraged 
to provide HUBs the opportunity to compete for sub-contracting and other procurement opportunities. A listing of 
HUBs in this area may be accessed at the following State of Texas Website. 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/cmbl/cmblhub.html. 

 HUB Owned Business Yes No Include a current copy of your HUB certification with your response or insert 
Certification number _______________________ and expire date _______________________.                             

Other Government Entities: Would bidder be willing to allow other local governmental entities to participate in this 

90

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 11



contract, if awarded under the same Terms and Conditions? Yes     No   

 Bid Bond: Is Bid Bond attached if applicable?  Yes  No 

  

Termination: The town at any time after issuance of this agreement, by 30 days written notice, has the absolute 
right to terminate this agreement for cause or convenience. Cause shall be the contractor/supplier’s refusal or 
failure to satisfactorily perform or complete the work within the time specified, or failure to meet the specifications, 
quantities, quality and/or other requirements specified in the contract/purchase order. In such case the supplier shall 
be liable for any damages suffered by the town. If the agreement is terminated for convenience, the supplier has no 
further obligation under the agreement. Payment shall be made to cover the cost of material and work in process or 
“consigned” to the town as of the effective date of the termination.  

  

Bidder Compliance: Bidder agrees to comply with all conditions contained in this Information and Instruction 
Form and the additional terms and conditions and specifications included in this request. The undersigned hereby 
agrees to furnish and deliver the articles or services as specified at the prices and terms herein stated and in strict 
accordance with the specifications and conditions, all of which are made a part of your offer. Your offer is not 
subject to withdrawal after the award is made.  

  

The Town of Addison reserves the right to reject all or part of the offer and to accept the offer considered most 
advantageous to the town by item or total bid.  

  

The Town of Addison will award to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides goods or services 
at the best value for the Town. 

  

I hereby certify that all of the information provided in sections I and II are true and accurate to the best of my 
knowledge. 

  

Signature:    Date:  

  

Title:                   

  

Signature certifies no changes have been made to the content of this solicitation as provided by the Town of 
Addison. 

10/17/17 

  

 

 

 

           Rifat Habib 1/21/21

Business Development Executive 

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 12



 
 

Information and Instruction Form 

  

RESPONSES THAT DO NOT CONTAIN THIS COMPLETED FORM MAY NOT BE COMPLIANT 

  

Section I Company Profile 

  

Name of Business:   

Business Address:  

                                                                            

Contact Name:   

Phone#:   

Fax#:  

Email:   

  

Name(s) Title of Authorized Company Officers: 

  

Federal ID #:      W-9 Form:  A W-9 form will be required from the successful bidder. 

DUN #:   

  

Remit Address:  If different than your physical address:  

 

Section II Instructions to Bidders 

 Electronic Bids: The Town of Addison uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals. There will be 
NO COST to the Contractor/Supplier for Standard bids or proposals. For Cooperative Bids and Reverse 
Auctions ONLY, the successful contractor/supplier agrees to pay BidSync a transaction fee of one percent (1%) of 
the total amount of all contracts for goods and/or services. Cooperative Bids and Reverse Auctions will be 
clearly marked on the bid documents. To assure that all contractors/suppliers are treated fairly, the fee will be 
payable whether the bid/proposal is submitted electronically, or by paper means. Refer to www.bidsync.com for 
further information. 

  

Contractor/Supplier Responsibility: It is the contractor/suppliers responsibility to check for any addenda or 
questions and answers that might have been issued before bid closing date and time. Contractors/Suppliers will be 

Technology International, Inc.

1349 South International Pkwy, Suite 2411, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 

407-359-2373

407-359-2372

tii@tii-usa.com

650342335

877177162

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 13

Bradley Hubbard
Typewritten Text
Shaji Habib 

Bradley Hubbard
Typewritten Text
Sales Manager



notified of any addenda and Q&A if they are on the invited list, they view the bid, or add themselves to the watch 
list. 

Acknowledgement of Addenda:  #1 #2 #3 #4 #5  

  

Delivery of Bids: For delivery of paper bids our physical address is:  

Town of Addison 

5350 Beltline Road 

Dallas, TX 75254 

Attn:  Purchasing Department 

  

Contractor/Supplier Employees: No Contractor/Supplier employee shall have a direct or indirect financial interest 
in any contract with the town, or be directly or indirectly financially interested in the sale of land, materials, 
supplies or services to the town. 

  

Deliveries: All deliveries will be F.O.B. Town of Addison. All Transportation Charges paid by the 
contractor/supplier to Destination.  

 Payment Terms: A Prompt Payment Discount of % is offered for Payment Made Within Days of Acceptance of 
Goods or Services. If Prompt Payments are not offered or accepted, payments shall be made 30 days after receipt 
and acceptance of goods or services or after the date of receipt of the invoice whichever is later.  

  

Delivery Dates: Delivery Dates are to be specified in Calendar Days from the Date of Order.  

  

Bid Prices: Pre-Award bid prices shall remain Firm and Irrevocable for a Period of ________ Days. 

  

  Exceptions: Contractor/Supplier does not take Exception to Bid Specifications or Other Requirements of this 
Solicitation.  If neither exceptions box is checked, default shall be “No Exceptions” 

  Contractor/Supplier take the following Exception(s) to the Bid Specifications or Other Requirements of this 
Solicitation (Explain in Detail).  If box checked but no exceptions are listed, default shall be “No Exceptions” 

 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB): It is the policy of the Town of Addison to involve HUBs in the 
procurement of goods, equipment, services and construction projects. Prime Contractors/Suppliers are encouraged 
to provide HUBs the opportunity to compete for sub-contracting and other procurement opportunities. A listing of 
HUBs in this area may be accessed at the following State of Texas Website. 
http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/cmbl/cmblhub.html. 

 HUB Owned Business Yes No Include a current copy of your HUB certification with your response or insert 
Certification number _______________________ and expire date _______________________.                             

Other Government Entities: Would bidder be willing to allow other local governmental entities to participate in this 

90

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 14



contract, if awarded under the same Terms and Conditions? Yes     No   

 Bid Bond: Is Bid Bond attached if applicable?  Yes  No 

  

Termination: The town at any time after issuance of this agreement, by 30 days written notice, has the absolute 
right to terminate this agreement for cause or convenience. Cause shall be the contractor/supplier’s refusal or 
failure to satisfactorily perform or complete the work within the time specified, or failure to meet the specifications, 
quantities, quality and/or other requirements specified in the contract/purchase order. In such case the supplier shall 
be liable for any damages suffered by the town. If the agreement is terminated for convenience, the supplier has no 
further obligation under the agreement. Payment shall be made to cover the cost of material and work in process or 
“consigned” to the town as of the effective date of the termination.  

  

Bidder Compliance: Bidder agrees to comply with all conditions contained in this Information and Instruction 
Form and the additional terms and conditions and specifications included in this request. The undersigned hereby 
agrees to furnish and deliver the articles or services as specified at the prices and terms herein stated and in strict 
accordance with the specifications and conditions, all of which are made a part of your offer. Your offer is not 
subject to withdrawal after the award is made.  

  

The Town of Addison reserves the right to reject all or part of the offer and to accept the offer considered most 
advantageous to the town by item or total bid.  

  

The Town of Addison will award to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides goods or services 
at the best value for the Town. 

  

I hereby certify that all of the information provided in sections I and II are true and accurate to the best of my 
knowledge. 

  

Signature:    Date:  

  

Title:                   

  

Signature certifies no changes have been made to the content of this solicitation as provided by the Town of 
Addison. 

10/17/17 

  

 

 

 

           Rifat Habib 1/21/21

Business Development Executive 

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 15



 Moreno Supply, Inc.
 Bid Contact  Ellen Moreno 

ralphellenmoreno@msn.com 
Ph 972-233-4429   
Fax 972-233-4906

 Address  4140 Billy Mitchell Dr.
Addison, TX 75001

 Bid Notes   the luminaire fixtures are also available at 1750.00/e if needed in led

 Item #  Line Item Notes   Unit Price      Qty/Unit Total Price   Attch.  Docs

 21-37--01-01    Radius Light Street
Poles, 40 Feet 

Supplier Product
Code: 21-37-01-01

Supplier Notes: 
Sheridan poles 

  First Offer -  $10,400.00      8 / each $83,200.00
 

   

 21-37--01-02    Base Covers  Supplier Product
Code: 21-37-01-02

Supplier Notes:  base
covers 

  First Offer -  $12.50      8 / each $100.00      

 21-37--01-03    Luminares  Supplier Product
Code: 21-37-01-03

Supplier Notes:  
luminaires 

  First Offer -  $1,580.00      16 / each $25,280.00
 

   

 21-37--01-04    Pulse Start Lamps  Supplier Product
Code: 21-37-01-04

Supplier Notes:  pulse
start lamps 

  First Offer -  $6.25      16 / each $100.00      

 21-37--01-05    Break Away Support
Systems 

Supplier Product
Code: 21-37-01-05

Supplier Notes:  
breakaway bolts 

  First Offer -  $6.25      8 / package $50.00      

        Supplier Total   $108,730.00
 

   

21-37Town of Addison

BidSync1/21/2021 p. 16



 
 

 
 
 

 

Replacement Street Lighting Assemblies 
 
 
Description: This bid is to purchase eight 40’ radius street light poles, eight base covers, sixteen 
luminaires, and sixteen pulse start lamps. All hardware is to be included. 

 
Materials: The lighting assemblies will be of same manufacture as in the details sheets attached. 
All poles will be individually wrapped for protection from damage. The color of the lighting 
assemblies shall be approved by the Town prior to the powder coating process.  

 
Delivery: Delivery will only be accepted on Mondays – Thursdays only between the hours of 8:00 
am and 2:00 pm. The Town will be notified 48 hours in advance of the delivery being made. Contact 
information will be provided to the lowest most responsible bidder. 





tweinheimer
Typewritten Text
Pole Color



tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Typewritten Text
14"SQ

tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Typewritten Text
12 1/2"



38 +/- 3 mm 
(1-½” +/- 1/8”) 

170 mm 
(6-11/16”) 

70 mm 
(2-3/4”) 

1”-8 UNC (25 mm) Nut per ASTM 
A563 Grade DH 

3x28x51 mm (1/8”x1-1/8”x2”) Flat 
Washer per ASTM F436 

Pole Base Plate 

3x28x51 mm (1/8”x1-1/8”x2”) Flat 
Washer per ASTM F436 

Upper Wrench Flats 

Double-NeckTM Pole-Safe® 
Coupling, Model No. 4100 
4 per Pole, Typical 

Lower Wrench Flats 

Galvanized Steel Shim 
14g and/or 18g Thickness 
(if required for leveling) 

3x28x51 mm (1/8”x1-1/8”x2”) Flat 
Washer per ASTM F436 

Galvanized Anchor Bolt, 
1”-8 UNC (25 mm) Threads 
(Anchor Bolts supplied by others) 

Melted and Manufactured in the USA 
Patent Nos. 5,474,408 & 6,056,471    1/14 

SPECIFICATIONS 
Performance Criteria: 

1. Double-NeckTM Pole-Safe® conforms to AASHTO
“Standard Specifications for Structural Supports for
Highway Signs, Luminaires and Traffic Signals.”

2. Double-NeckTM Pole-Safe® has been crash-tested and
FHWA approved in accordance with the requirements of
NCHRP Report 350, “Recommended Procedures for the
Safety Performance Evaluation of Highway Features.”

3. Maximum Allowable Pole Mass = 450 kg (992 lb.) (total,
including fixtures).

Physical Properties per Coupling: 

1. Ultimate Tensile Strength = 221.5 kN (49.8 kips),
minimum.

2. Tensile Yield Strength = 192.0 kN (43.2 kips), minimum.

3. Ultimate Restrained Shear Strength = 16.9 kN (3.8 kips),
minimum.

4. Ultimate Restrained Shear Strength = 24.4 kN (5.5 kips),
maximum.

Corrosion Protection: 

1. All Double-NeckTM Pole-Safe® couplings, nuts, bolts, and
washers are galvanized after fabrication in accordance
with ASTM A153.  All leveling shims are galvanized after
fabrication in accordance with ASTM A653.

Pole-Safe® Model No. 4100 
Breakaway Support System for Light Poles 

20 Jones Street 
New Rochelle, NY  10801 
914-636-1000
www.transpo.com

http://www.transpo.com/


Pole-Safe® Model No. 4100 
Breakaway Support System for Light Poles 

INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS 

NOTE:  Proper Installation is essential for the Pole-Safe Breakaway Support System to 
function correctly as designed. 

1. Surface of foundation around anchor bolts must be smooth, flat and free of debris.

2. Existing anchor bolts MUST be sized to the proper projection height as shown on the
reverse side of these instructions.  Then, anchor bolts shall be cleaned, and if
necessary, coated with cold galvanizing material prior to installing Pole-Safe
couplings.

3. Install lower flat washers, and thread Pole-Safe couplings on to anchor bolts.

4. If needed, shims are provided for leveling of the pole base plate, and may be
installed at the base of the coupling(s).  No more than 2 shims shall be installed on
any one coupling.  For larger adjustments that may be required, install no more than
one additional flat washer under the base plate, on the top shank of the coupling(s).

5. Use lower wrench flats to tighten Pole-Safe couplings on to the anchor bolts.
Secure couplings as tight as possible using conventional wrenches.  Do not use a
pipe wrench.  Couplings must be seated squarely on the washers, and washers
must be seated uniformly on top of the foundation.  If necessary, remove coupling
and reduce the anchor bolt projection height to allow proper seating of the couplings.

6. Install a flat washer on top of each Pole-Safe coupling, and set the pole with base
plate on top of the couplings.

7. Install a flat washer and nut on to each Pole-Safe coupling extended through the
pole base plate.  If pole is not plumb, install shims and/or washers for proper leveling
as described in Step 4 above.

8. Tighten each nut on to pole base plate.  Pole-Safe couplings must be held with an
additional wrench on the upper wrench flats to prevent an induced torque stress
across the necked portion of the couplings.  Nuts shall be tightened using the turn-
of-nut method in accordance with American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC)
procedures (for ASTM A325 and A490 anchor bolts, 1/3 rotation past “snug tight”).

Transpo Industries, Inc., 20 Jones Street, New Rochelle, NY  10801-6098 
Phone: 914-636-1000 Fax: 914-636-1282 

www.transpo.com  

10/12 

http://www.transpo.com/


(800) 451-2606
or (440) 248-3510
Fax: (800) 451-2605
7905 Cochran Road
Glenwillow, Ohio 44139 USA
E-mail: venture@adlt.com
VentureLighting.com

GENERAL Characteristics
Lamp Type

ANSI Code

Bulb Shape

Base Type

Bulb Finish

Rated Life

Operating Position

Dimming

PHOTOMETRIC
Initial Lumens

Scotopic Lumens (S/P )

Lumens Per Watt

Lamp Lumen Depreciation (LLD)

Correlated Color Temperature

Chromaticity Coordinates (CIE-x,y)

Color Rendering Index (CRI)

PHYSICAL
Bulb Diameter

Max. Overall Length (MOL)

Light Center Length (LCL)

Effective Arc Length

Max. Base Temperature (°C)

Max. Bulb Temperature (°C)

Socket Pulse Rating (KV)

Luminaire Type

ELECTRICAL
Lamp Watts

Lamp Oper. Voltage (Nom.)

SUSTAINABILITY
Recycling Program Smartpac® 800-451-2606

NOTES

THIS LAMP CONFORMS TO FEDERAL STANDARD 21 CFR 1040.30

Warning: This lamp can cause skin burn and eye inflammation from shortwave
ultraviolet radiation if outer envelope of the lamp is broken or punctured. Do not use
where people will remain for more than a few minutes unless adequate shielding or
other safety precautions are used. Lamps that will automatically extinguish when outer
envelope is broken or punctured are commercially available.

UNI-FORM® P U L S E S T A R T M E T A L H A L I D E L I G H T I N G S Y S T E M S F O R H O R I Z O N T A L O P E R A T I O N

Dia. =
MOL =
LCL =
Base =

This Product is Recyclable Through

DATA SHEET

Horizontal
Pulse Start

© 2014 Venture Lighting International Venture Lighting and Uni-Form are registered trademarks of Venture Lighting International. VL
I-0

99
2S

S3
-0

81
4

T15
Mogul (E39)

Clear

26000 hours

M131/E

60258
MS 350W/H75/T15/S/PS/740

33000

2.0" (52mm)

8.3" (211mm)

5.0" (127mm)
38.4mm

210
500

4

.385 .390

68

350

135

Enclosed Rated

94

4000K

Horizontal ±75°

Lamp performance ratings published in this data sheet are based on 
operation with magnetic ballasts. Performance of position-rated lamps 
outside of their tolerances will result in poor performance. Minimum 
Starting Temperature: -40°C/°F. To calculate nighttime Scotopic lumens, 
multiply the lumen rating by the S/P ratio. **LEED V3, MR CREDIT 4: 
Sustainable Purchasing - Reduced Mercury in Lamps is awarded 1 point for 
projects which at least 90% of all mercury-containing lamps purchased 
during the performance period comply and meet the target for mercury 
content of 90 picograms per lumen-hour or less.  

.80 (80%) @ 8000 hours

MH Pulse Start Single Ended

350 Watt Pulse Start Lamp

50% Rated Power Yes

41

2.0" (52mm)
8.3" (211mm)
5.0" (127mm)
Mogul (E39)

T1
5

MR-Credit 4  Reduced Mercury in Lamps 1 LEED point

Picograms Hg per Mean Lumen Hour

EISA 2007 Compliant

1.7 56000

Revision:                     #2687-708/21/14



CAPELLA
SERIES

Product Overview and Technical information>>



luminaire > CPLM-TH3F
pole > ATR85C2

Bid 1510-002Town of Addison

10/9/2015 12:57 PM p. 11

tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Rectangle



CPLM CPLS

CAPELLA
SERIES
Inspired by movement  /  Inspired by the splendor of
movement, the Capella is one of the most adaptable luminaires on 
the market. With it’s graceful curves and sweeping lines it contributes 
to the beautification of any environment and enhances the visual 
impact of any project.>>

Some luminaires of this series  
are IDA (International Dark-Sky  
Association) approved.





PERFORMANCE

ADAPTABILITY

Photometric performance at its finest. With the Capella you get exceptional light distribution and spread 
as well as efficiency and durability. Full cut-off optics protect the night sky, energy efficiency protects 
the environment, and high-quality aluminum construction protects Capella’s beauty for years to come. 
Durable, reliable, with easy toolfree maintenance, the Capella is as tough and practical as it is beautiful. 

The Capella comes in two sizes to maximize its potential and appeal. The smaller version is perfect for 
lighting alleyways, pathways, sidewalks and small roadways while the larger version is ideal for city streets 
and boulevards. The two complement each other and can be used in tandem to add a measure of grace 
and fluidity to any area, big or small.

>>

 luminaire > CPLM-TH3F
pole > ATR85C2



BENEFITS
 > Pure lines with high visual appeal. 

 > Exceptional durability and reliability.

 > Simple, toolfree maintenance.

 > Superior photometric performance.

 > Respectful of the environment and the night sky.

LUMINAIRES
Conform to the UL 1598 and CSA C22.2 No. 250.0-08 standards

16 1/4" (413 mm)  16 1/4" (413 mm)  

9 
1/

4"
 (2

35
 m

m
)

11
" (

27
9 

m
m

)

42" (1067 mm)  42" (1067 mm)  

CPLM
EPA: 0,83 sq. ft.
Weight: 55 lbs (25 kg)

FLAT LENS OPTICS SAG LENS OPTICS

Luminaire LamP

TyPicaL deLivered
Lumens 2

TyPicaL 
LamP

waTTage  
(w)

TyPicaL 
sysTem

waTTage3 
(w)

TyPicaL
currenT @

120 v  
(a)

TyPicaL
currenT @

240 v 
 (a)

TyPicaL
currenT @

277 v  
(a)

Led
currenT

(ma)

HPs
equivaLenT 4

Luminaire efficacy
raTing (Lm/w)

fLaT Lens sag Lens fLaT Lens sag Lens

40W49LED4K-ES 4025 4070 42 47 0.39 0.20 0.17 285 100 W 86 87

CPLM 65W49LED4K-ES 5385 5440 65 72 0.60 0.30 0.26 428 100 W 75 76

90W49LED4K-ES 6450 6515 90 102 0.85 0.43 0.37 571 150 W 63 64

LAMPS / LED

OPTICAL SYSTEMS / LED
waTTage

Le2f / Le2s
Le3f /Le3s
Le4f / Le4s   
Le5f / Le5s

40W49LED4K-ES

 65W49LED4K-ES 

 90W49LED4K-ES

3

3

3

3 : Available  n/a: Not available

Flat lens
IP66 rated optical system, composed  
of individual pre-oriented lens to achieve  
desired distribution, assembled with  
a tempered-glass flat lens permanently  
sealed onto the lower part of the heat sink. 

Sag lens
IP66 rated optical system, composed  
of individual pre-oriented lens to achieve 
desired distribution, assembled with  
a tempered-glass sag lens permanently  
sealed onto the lower part of the heat sink.  

LE2F: Asymetrical
LE3F: Asymetrical
LE4F: Asymetrical
LE5F: Symmetrical (square)
> House shield available 

in option (HS)

LE2S: Asymetrical
LE3S: Asymetrical
LE4S: Asymetrical
LE5S: Symmetrical (square)
> House shield available 

in option (HS)

* Photometry available on Philips Lumec web site www.philips.com/lumec.

40W 49LED 4K

Lamp wattage
Number of diodes (LED)
Color temperature

LAMP CODE DEFINITION /  

VOLTAGE
120 / 208 / 240 / 277 / 347 1 / 480 1

1 Comes with a step-down transformer with 40W49LED4K-ES and 65W49LED4K-ES. 

New

Nouveau

1   L70 = 100,000 hrs (at ambient temperature = 25°C and forward current = 700 mA). 
2  May vary depending on the optical distribution used.
3  System wattage includes the lamp and the LED driver.
4  Compared to Capella (equivalence should always be confirmed by a photometric layout).

LED = Philips Lumileds Rebel ES, CRI = 70, CCT = 4000K (+/- 350K)
LED rated life = 100,000 hrs1 - Driver rated life = 50,000 hrs



FLAT LENS optics
Sealed optical chamber consisting of an 
hydroformed reflector permanently sealed 
on a flat tempered-glass lens.

THF: Full cut-off (II)

TH: Cut-off (II)
SAG LENS optics
Sealed optical chamber consisting of an 
hydroformed reflector permanently sealed 
on a sagged tempered-glass lens.

LAMPS / QL OPTICAL SYSTEMS / QL
 (Lamps not included)

waTTage TH THf

55 QL

85 QL
3

3

3

3

3 : Available

High frequency generator for induction lamp (4000K).  
Instant start. Operating range 50-60 Hz or DC.  
Lamp minimum starting temperature -40F (-40 °C).

VOLTAGE
120 / 208 / 240 / 277

> Multi-top ballast also available.

* Photometry available on Philips Lumec web site www.philips.com/lumec.

LUMINAIRE OPTIONS
HS House shield

PH8 Quarter-turn photoelectric cell

SAR Short arm for round pole  
(E.P.A.: 0.25 sq. ft. / Weight: 2.6 lbs (1.2 kg)

FLAT LENS optics
Sealed optical chamber consisting of an 
hydroformed reflector permanently sealed 
on a flat tempered-glass lens.

TH2F: Full cut-off (II)
TH3F: Full cut-off (III)

TH2: Cut-off (II)
TH3: Cut-off (III)

SAG LENS optics
Sealed optical chamber consisting of an 
hydroformed reflector permanently sealed 
on a sagged tempered-glass lens.

OPTICAL SYSTEMS / HID
 (Lamps not included)

waTTage TH2 / TH3 TH2f / TH3f

50  MH,  medium

70  MH,  medium

  100  MH,  medium

 150  MH,  medium

  200  MH,  mogul

  320  MH,  mogul

175  PSMH,  mogul

250  PSMH, mogul

400  PSMH, mogul

35  HPS, mogul

50  HPS, mogul

70  HPS, mogul

 100  HPS, mogul

150  HPS, mogul

 200  HPS, mogul

 250  HPS, mogul

 400  HPS, mogul

3

3

3

3

3 3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3 3

3 2

N/A

3 2

N/A

3

3 1

3 1

3 1

3 1

3 

3

3

3 : Available  n/a : Not available 
 1 Use only with ED17 medium base lamp.
 2 Use only with short version LCL 5 3/4’’ of T15 mogul base lamp.
 3 Use only with short version LCL 5’’ of T15 mogul base lamp.

* Photometry available on Philips Lumec web site www.philips.com/lumec.

LAMPS / HID

waTTage TH2 / TH3 TH2f / TH3f

210  MCE 3 3

3 : Available 

MasterColor® / new generation of ceramic metal halide lamp

waTTage TH2 / TH3 TH2f / TH3f

60  CW

90  CW
3

3

3

3

3 : Available

CosmoPolisTM   / new generation of ceramic metal halide lamp

VOLTAGE
Hid 1  & mastercolor®: 120 / 208 / 240 / 277 / 347 / 480
cosmoPolisTM: 120 / 208 / 240 / 277 

1 Multi-top ballast also available. 
1 Only available with 60 CW.



>>

FINISHES 
(Consult Philips Lumec’s Color Chart for complete specifications)

The specially formulated Lumital powder coat finish is available in a range of many standard colors.

ORDERING SAMPLE
ProducT LamP oPTicaL sysTem voLTage oPTions finisH

CPLM 250 HPS TH2F 120 HS NP

MAINTENANCE

ACCESS TO INTERNAL COMPONENT
The luminaire opens by simply turning the compres-
sion twist lock located underneath the luminaire at 
the front end. The hood can then be pivoted along a 
incorporated hinge found at the back of the luminaire. 
When opened, a safety cord holds in place the bottom 
part of the luminaire.

ACCESS TO LAMP
A simple quarter-turn of the sealed shutter provides 
easy access to the lamp. Quick-disconnect terminals 
between the lamp and the ballast tray ensure safe and 
easy lamp replacement.

ACCESS TO BALLAST 
The toolfree drop-in unitized ballast tray is slipped into 
the ballast box. Here again, the use of quick-disconnect 
terminals ensures safe and easy ballast maintenance. 



2H: Défilé (II)
4H: Défilé (IV)

Optique / LENTILLE EN SAILLIE
Bloc optique scellé composé d’un réflecteur 
hydroformé scellé de façon permanente sur 
une lentille en saillie en verre trempé.

FLAT LENS optics
Sealed optical chamber consisting of an 
hydroformed reflector permanently sealed 
on a flat tempered-glass lens.

2HF: Full cut-off (II)
4HF: Full cut-off (IV)

LUMINAIRES
Conform to the UL 1598 and CSA C22.2 No. 250.0-08 standards

CPLS
EPA:  0,47 sq. ft.
Weight: 30 lbs (13.6 kg)

13 “ (330 mm)  13 “ (330 mm)  

6 
1/

4 
« (

15
9 

m
m

)

7 
1/

8 
« (

18
1 m

m
)

31 1/2 “ (800 mm)  31 1/2 “ (800 mm)  

FLAT LENS OPTICS SAG LENS OPTICS

LAMPS / HID

waTTage 2H / 4H 2Hf / 4Hf

50  MH,  medium

70  MH,  medium

  100  MH,  medium

 150  MH,  medium

 175  MH,  medium

35  HPS, medium

50  HPS, medium

70  HPS, medium

 100  HPS, medium

150  HPS, medium

18  CF

26  CF

32  CF

     42  CF

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3 : Available n/a : Not available 
>  Socket: GX24Q-2 (18W), GX24Q-3 (26W)(32W), GX24Q-4 (42W), 

triple tube for compact fluorescent (lamp not included).

OPTICAL SYSTEMS / HID
 (Lampes non incluses)

* Photometry available on Philips Lumec web site www.philips.com/lumec.

VOLTAGE
Hid 1 : 120 / 208 / 240 / 277 / 347 / 480 

cosmoPolisTM: 1202 / 208 / 240 / 277 

1 Multi-top ballast also available. 
2 Only available with 60 CW.

LAMPS / LED

waTTage

Le2f / Le2s
Le3f /Le3s
Le4f / Le4s   
Le5f / Le5s

40W30LED4K-ES 

 60W30LED4K-ES
3

3

3 : Available n/a: Not available

40W 49LED 4K

Lamp wattage
Number of diodes (LED)
Color temperature

LAMP CODE DEFINITION /  

OPTICAL SYSTEMS / LED
Flat lens
IP66 rated optical system, composed  
of individual pre-oriented lens to achieve  
desired distribution, assembled with  
a tempered-glass flat lens permanently  
sealed onto the lower part of the heat sink. 

Sag lens
IP66 rated optical system, composed  
of individual pre-oriented lens to achieve 
desired distribution, assembled with  
a tempered-glass sag lens permanently  
sealed onto the lower part of the heat sink.  

LE2F: Asymetrical
LE3F: Asymetrical
LE4F: Asymetrical
LE5F: Symmetrical (square)
> House shield available 

in option (HS

LE2S: Asymetrical
LE3S: Asymetrical
LE4S: Asymetrical
LE5S: Symmetrical (square)
> House shield available 

in option (HS

* Photometry available on Philips Lumec web site www.philips.com/lumec.

VOLTAGE
120 / 208 / 240 / 277 

1   L70 = 100,000 hrs (at ambient temperature = 25°C and forward current = 700 mA). 
2  May vary depending on the optical distribution used.
3  System wattage includes the lamp and the LED driver.
4  Compared to Capella (equivalence should always be confirmed by a photometric layout).

LED = Philips Lumileds Rebel ES, CRI = 70, CCT = 4000K (+/- 350K)
LED rated life = 100,000 hrs1 - Driver rated life = 50,000 hrs

Luminaire LamP

TyPicaL deLivered
Lumens 2 TyPicaL 

LamP
waTTage  

(w)

TyPicaL 
sysTem

waTTage3 
(w)

TyPicaL
currenT @

120 v  
(a)

TyPicaL
currenT @

240 v 
 (a)

TyPicaL
currenT @

277 v  
(a)

Led
currenT

(ma)

HPs
equivaLenT 4

Luminaire efficacy
raTing (Lm/w)

fLaT Lens sag Lens fLaT Lens sag Lens

CPLS 40W30LED4K-ES 2965 3000 40 45 0.38 0.19 0.16 400 70 W 66 67

60W30LED4K-ES 4025 4070 60 68 0.57 0.28 0.25 600 100 W 59 60



>>

LUMINAIRE OPTIONS
HS House shield

PH Photoelectric cell

FINISHES 
(Consult Philips Lumec’s Color Chart for complete specifications)

The specially formulated Lumital powder coat finish is available in a range of many standard colors.

waTTage 2H / 4H 2Hf / 4Hf

60  CW

90  CW
3

3

3

3

3 : Available

CosmoPolisTM   / new generation of ceramic metal halide lamp

MAINTENANCE

ACCESS TO INTERNAL COMPONENT
The luminaire opens by simply turning the compres-
sion twist lock located underneath the luminaire at 
the front end. The hood can then be pivoted along a 
incorporated hinge found at the back of the luminaire. 
When opened, a safety cord holds in place the bottom 
part of the luminaire.

ACCESS TO LAMP
A simple quarter-turn of the sealed shutter provides 
easy access to the lamp. Quick-disconnect terminals 
between the lamp and the ballast tray ensure safe and 
easy lamp replacement.

ACCESS TO BALLAST 
The toolfree drop-in unitized ballast tray is slipped into 
the ballast box. Here again, the use of quick-disconnect 
terminals ensures safe and easy ballast maintenance. 

ORDERING SAMPLE
ProducT LamP oPTicaL sysTem voLTage oPTions finisH

CPLS 150 HPS 2HF 120 PH7 NP



cPLm-TH3f
aTr85c2-mPL
cPLs-2Hf

 cPLm-TH3f
 aTr85c1

cPLm-TH3
yc8-1a 
aTr85

 cPLm-TH2f-sar
 aPr4-LBc4c

cPLm-TH3f
ac6-2
aTr74

cPLs-2Hf 
Pc4-1a
sPr4-LBc4c

ASSEMBLY ExAMPLES



luminaire > CPLM-TH3F
 pole > ATR85C2-MF
  mid-pole luminaire > CPLS-2HF



www.philips.com/lumec

PHILIPS LUMEC HEAD OFFICE
640, Curé-Boivin Boulevard 
Boisbriand, Québec 
Canada  J7G 2A7  

T : 450.430.7040 
F : 450.430.1453

ONTARIO OFFICE
189 Bullock Drive 
Markham, Ontario 
Canada  L3P 1W4

T : 416.223.7255 
F : 866.971.2825

For the details of our different agents and representatives, please consult the Contact us  
section of our Website. 

         / Some luminaires use fluorescent or high intensity discharge (HID) lamps that contain 
small amounts of mercury. Such lamps are labeled ‘‘Contains Mercury’’ and/or with the symbol 
‘‘Hg.’’ Lamps that contain mercury must be disposed of in accordance with local requirements. 
Information regarding lamp recycling and disposal can be found at www.lamprecycle.org

                The choice to not print paper brochures anymore but to make them available on-line 
is an example of the positive environmental actions that Philips Lumec has decided to 
undertake. This not only considerably reduces our paper consumption but also guarantees 
the exactitude of the information our clients receive.

>>

All rights reserved. We reserve the right to change details of design, materials and finishes. 
© 2012 Philips Group.



Addison Beltline Road Median (62968) 

Qty ·:20 Luminaire [CPLM-004]-350PSMH-T15-TH3-240-HE-SC

Description of Components: 

Housing: the upper and lower part of the housing are made of die cast A360 Aluminum alloy 0.180 (4.6mm) minimum 
thickness. The mounting means includes two brackets made of stamped galvanized-steel {12ga.). Fits on a 1.9" {49mm) to 2 
3/8" (60mm) OD by 10 1/2" (267mm) long tenon, fixed by 318-16 UNC steel zinc plated bolls. An integral part of the housing 
permits an adjustment of+/- 5°. The housing Is complete with a ground lug and a terminal block that accepts (#8 max.) wires 
from the primary circuit. 

Access-Mechanism: Quarter-turn pressure locking system made of die cast aluminum. The mechanism shall offer toolfree 
access to the inside of the luminaire. An embedded memory-retentive gasket shall ensure weatherproofing. 

Lamp: (Not included), 350 watt metal halide Pulse Start Type (ANSI Code M131), short version LCL 5 3/4" T15 bulb from 
Venture reduced outer Jacket. mogul base. 

Optical System: (TH3), I.E.S. type Ill cut-off (asymmetrical) complete with a sag lens. Smartseal system. System 
composed ol 3 main components: 
-Shutter made of injection molded A360 aluminum alloy. Removable with a quarter turn, clw an injection molded silicone
gasket (duro 60 shore A). Horizontal lamp position.
-Multi-faceted reflector made of hydroformed 3002-0 aluminum alloy chemically brightened and anodized (5 micron min)
complete with additionnal reflectors made of aluminum with 95% reflectivity.
-Sag Lens made of clear tempered glass of 0.20" {5mm) thickness, permanently sealed onto the reflector. The Smartseal
optical syst<,rn Is rated IP66.

Bird Guard: Prevents birds from entering the lumlnalre. Made of high-density polyethylene 0.030" (0.8mm) thick and captive 
to the housing. 

LCP53844-62968(SA)IT (2) (2).DOC jJ 
06-07-2011 Page 1 / 2

PHIUPS 
640, Cure.Bol\l'!n 

L·U lillllliill_ E 
P_ BoJsbriand (Quebec) 

!1111 h Canada, J7G 2A1 

tweinheimer
Rectangle

tweinheimer
Text Box
16





Description Quantity (EA) Unit Price Total

40' Radius Street Light Poles 8

Street Light Base Covers 8

Luminares 16

Pulse Start Lamps 16

Break Away Support Systems 8

BID TOTAL

Street Light Assemblies Bid #  Tabulations



Town of Addison 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

  
By submitting an Offer in response to the Solicitation, the Contractor/Seller (hereafter called 
Seller) agrees the Contract/Purchase Order shall be governed by the following terms and 
conditions for goods and services. 
  
1.         Applicability:  These General Terms and Conditions and the Terms and Conditions, 
Specifications, Drawings and other requirements included in the Town of Addison’s Request for 
Bid (collectively, “Terms and Conditions”) are applicable to Contracts/Purchase Orders issued by 
the Town of Addison (hereinafter referred to as the “Town” or “Buyer”) and the Seller (herein 
after referred to as the “Seller”). Any deviations must be in writing and signed by a representative 
of the Town’s Purchasing Department and the Seller. No terms and conditions contained in the 
Seller’s Proposal, Invoice or Statement shall modify the Terms and Conditions. If there is a conflict 
between the Terms and Conditions and Seller’s response to the Town’s request for bids or 
proposals documents (including the provisions of the Seller’s form of contract/purchase order), the 
Terms and Conditions will take precedence and control.  
  
2.         Official Solicitation Notification:  The Town utilizes the following for official notifications 
of solicitation opportunities:  www.bidsync.com and the Dallas Morning News of Dallas 
County.  These are the only forms of notification authorized by the Town for notifications of 
solicitation opportunities.  The Town is not responsible for receipt of notifications or information 
from any source other than those listed.  It shall be the Seller’s responsibility to verify the validity 
of all solicitation  information received from any source other than the Town. There will be NO 
COST to the Seller for using BidSync to respond to Town of Addison solicitations. 
  
3.         Seller to Package Goods:  Seller shall package goods in accordance with good commercial 
practice.  Each shipping container, shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows: (a) Seller's 
name and address: (b) consignee's name, address and purchase order or purchase change order 
number; (c) container number and total number of containers, e.g., "box 1 of 4 boxes"; and (d) 
number of the container bearing the packing slip.  Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless 
otherwise provided and agreed to in writing by Buyer.  Goods shall be suitably packed to secure 
lowest transportation costs and to conform to requirements of common carriers and any applicable 
specifications.  Town's count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not 
accompanied by packing list.  Unless otherwise stated in the Town’s solicitation, all goods will be 
new, not used, rebuilt, reconditioned or recycled, will be in first class condition, and will be in 
containers suitable for site. 
  
4.         Shipment Under Reservation Prohibited:  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 
reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 
  
5.         Title and Risk of Loss:  Title and risk of loss of the goods will not pass to the Town until 
the Town actually receives, takes possession of, and inspects and accepts the goods at the point or 
points of delivery. 
  

http://www.bidsync.com/


6.         Delivery Terms and Transportation Charges:  Goods shall be shipped F.O.B. point of 
delivery; prices bid and quoted shall be F.O.B. point of delivery, and shall include all freight, 
delivery and packaging costs.  Town shall have the right to designate what method of 
transportation shall be used to ship the goods.  Town assumes and shall have no liability for goods 
damaged while in transit and or delivered in a damaged condition or that otherwise don’t conform 
to the Terms and Conditions.  Seller shall be responsible for and handle all claims with carriers, 
and in case of damaged or non-conforming goods shall ship replacement goods immediately upon 
notification by the Town of the same, and the Town may return such damaged or non-conforming 
goods at Seller’s sole cost and expense, including costs and expense for freight, delivery, 
packaging, and shipping. 
  
7.         Right of Inspection and Rejection; Backorders:  The Town shall have the right, and 
expressly reserves all rights under law, including, but not limited to the Uniform Commercial 
Code, to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them, and to reject defective or non-
conforming goods.  Backorders delayed beyond a reasonable period of time, as determined by the 
Town Purchasing Manager, may be cancelled by the Town without liability of any kind 
whatsoever, and payment will not be made for such cancellations. 
  
8.         Acceptance of Incomplete or Non-Conforming Goods:  If, instead of requiring immediate 
correction or removal and replacement of defective or non-conforming goods, Town prefers to 
accept such goods, Town may do so.  Seller shall pay all claims, costs, losses and damages 
attributable to Town’s evaluation of and determination to accept such defective or non-conforming 
deliverables.  If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, Town may deduct such 
amounts as are necessary to compensate Town for the diminished value of the defective or non-
conforming deliverables.  If the acceptance occurs after final payment, such amount will be 
refunded to Town by Seller. 
  
9.         Substitution:  Every delivery of goods by the Seller must comply with all provisions of this 
bid including the specifications, delivery schedule, quantity and quality, and the Terms and 
Conditions. Any delivery which does not conform to the Buyer’s requirements shall constitute a 
breach of contract. Seller does not have authorization to make or tender substitute goods unless it 
is agreed to in writing by the Buyer and signed by an authorized representative of Buyer.  
  
10.       Payment: 
  
(a)        All proper invoices received by the Town will be paid within thirty (30) days of the Town’s 
receipt and acceptance of the goods or of the invoice, whichever is later, unless other terms are 
specified on the face of the purchase order in the original printing.  If payment is not timely made, 
interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance at the lesser of one percent per month or the maximum 
lawful rate; except, if payment is not timely made for a reason for which the Town may withhold 
payment hereunder, interest shall not accrue until ten (10) days after the grounds for withholding 
payment have been resolved. 
  
(b)        If partial shipments or deliveries are authorized by the Town, Seller will be paid for the 
partial shipment or delivery, as stated above, provided that the invoice matches the shipment or 
delivery. 



  
(c)        The Town may withhold or set off the entire payment or part of any payment otherwise 
due Seller to such extent as may be necessary on account of:  (i) delivery of defective or non-
conforming goods by Seller, or (ii) failure of the Seller to submit proper invoices with all required 
attachments and supporting documentation, or (iii) failure of Seller to deliver quantity of goods 
ordered (payment will be made for actual quantities delivered). 
  
(d)       The Town’s payment obligations are payable only and solely from funds appropriated, 
budgeted, and available for the purpose of this purchase.  The absence of appropriated and 
budgeted or other lawfully available funds shall render the Contract/Purchase Order null and void 
to the extent funds are not appropriated and budgeted or available and any goods delivered but 
unpaid shall be returned to Seller.  The Town shall provide the Seller written notice of the failure 
of the Town to make an adequate appropriation and budget for any fiscal year to pay the amounts 
due under the Contract/Purchase Order, or the reduction of any appropriation to an amount 
insufficient to permit the Town to pay its obligations under the Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
11.       Invoicing:  Send ORIGINAL INVOICE to address indicated on the purchase order. If 
invoice is subject to cash discounts the discount period will begin on the day invoices are 
received.  So that proper cash discount may be computed, invoice should show amount of freight 
as a separate item, if applicable; otherwise, cash discount will be computed on total amount of 
invoice. 
  
12.       Taxes - Exemption:  All quotations are required to be submitted LESS Federal Excise and 
State Sales Taxes. Tax Exemption Certificate will be provided by the Town for the successful 
Seller 
  
13.       Warranty - Price: 
  
(a)        Seller warrants the prices quoted in its bid are no higher than Seller's current prices on 
orders by others for like goods under similar terms of purchase. 
  
(b)        Seller certifies that the prices in Seller's bid have been arrived at independently without 
consultation, communication, or agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any 
matter relating to such fees with any other firm or with any competitor. 
  
(c)        In the event of any breach of this warranty, the prices of the items will be reduced to Seller's 
current prices on orders by others, or in the alternative, the Town may cancel this 
Contract/Purchase Order without liability to Seller of any kind whatsoever.  In addition to any 
other remedy available, the Town may deduct from any amounts owed to Seller, or otherwise 
recover, any amounts paid for items in excess of Seller's current prices on orders by others for like 
goods under similar terms of purchase. 
  
14.       Warranty – Title:  Without limiting any provision of law, Seller warrants that it has good 
and indefeasible title to all goods furnished hereunder, and that the goods are free and clear of all 
liens, claims, security interests and encumbrances.  Seller shall indemnify and hold the Town 
harmless from and against all adverse title claims to the goods. 



  
15.       Warranty (goods):  If goods are sold and furnished to Seller in connection with these Terms 
and Conditions, Seller represents and warrants that the goods sold and furnished to the Town will 
be (i) free from defects in design, manufacture, materials and workmanship, (ii) be of merchantable 
quality and fit for ordinary use, (iii) be in full conformance with Buyer’s specifications, drawings 
and data, with Seller’s samples or models furnished in connection herewith, with Seller’s express 
warranties, and with the terms and conditions of the Town’s solicitation, and (iv) conform to all 
applicable Federal, State, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes, and to all applicable 
standards and industry codes and standards.  These warranties are in addition to all others given to 
the Buyer by the Seller or by law.  Seller shall not limit, disclaim, or exclude these warranties or 
any implied warranties, and any attempt to do so shall render this Contract/Purchase Order 
voidable at the option of the Buyer, and any such limitations, disclaim, or exclusions shall be void 
and without force or effect. 
  

Unless otherwise specified in a Contract/Purchase Order and approved by the Town in 
writing, the warranty period shall be at least one year from the date of acceptance of the 
goods or from the date of acceptance of any replacement goods.  If during the warranty 
period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, Seller shall promptly upon 
receipt of demand either repair the defective or non-conforming goods, or replace the non-
conforming or defective goods with fully conforming and non-defective goods, at the 
Town’s option and at no additional cost to the Town.  All costs incidental to such repair or 
replacement, including but not limited to, any packaging and shipping costs, shall be borne 
exclusively by Seller.  The Town shall endeavor to give Seller written notice of the breach 
of warranty within thirty (30) days of discovery of the breach of warranty, but failure to 
give timely notice shall not impair the Town’s rights hereunder. 
  
If Seller is unable or unwilling to repair or replace defective or non-conforming goods as 
required by Town, then in addition to any other available remedy, Town may reduce the 
quantity of goods it may be required to purchase under the Contract/Purchase Order from 
Seller, and purchase conforming goods from other sources.  In such event, Seller shall pay 
to Town upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the Town to procure such 
goods from another source. 
  
If Seller is not the manufacturer, and the goods are covered by a separate manufacturer’s 
warranty, Seller shall transfer and assign such manufacturer’s warranty to Town.  If for 
any reason the manufacturer’s warranty cannot be fully transferred to Town, Seller shall 
assist and cooperate with Town to the fullest extent to enforce such manufacturer’s 
warranty for the benefit of Town. 

  
16.       Warranty (services):  If services are provided to Seller in connection with these Terms and 
Conditions, Seller represents and warrants that all services to be provided to the Town will be fully 
and timely performed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with generally accepted 
industry standards and practices, the terms, conditions, and covenants of this Contract/Purchase 
Order, and all applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and codes. 
These warranties are in addition to all others given to the Buyer by the Seller or by law.  Seller 
shall not limit, disclaim, or exclude these warranties or any implied warranties, and any attempt to 



do so shall render this Contract/Purchase Order voidable at the option of the buyer, and any such 
limitations, disclaim, or exclusions shall be void and without force or effect. 
  

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract/Purchase Order, the warranty period shall be at least 
one year from the date of final acceptance of the services by the Town. If during the warranty 
period, one or more of the above warranties are breached, Seller shall promptly upon receipt 
of demand perform the services again in accordance with above standard at no additional cost 
to the Town. All costs incidental to such additional performance shall be borne by the Seller. 
The Town shall endeavor to give the Seller written notice of the breach of warranty within 
thirty (30) calendar days of discovery of the breach warranty, but failure to give timely notice 
shall not impair the Town’s rights under this section. 
  
If the Seller is unable or unwilling to perform its services in accordance with the above standard 
as required by the Town, then in addition to any other available remedy, the Town may reduce 
the amount of services it may be required to purchase under the Contract/Purchase Order from 
the Seller, and purchase conforming services from other sources. In such event, the Seller shall 
pay to the Town upon demand the increased cost, if any, incurred by the City to procure such 
services from another source. 

  
17.       Right to Assurance:  Whenever one party to the Contract/Purchase Order in good faith has 
reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, demand may be made to the other party for 
written assurance of the intent to perform.  In the event that no assurance is given within the time 
specified after demand is made, the demanding party may treat this failure as an anticipatory 
repudiation of this Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
18.       Default:  Seller shall be in default under this Contract/Purchase Order if Seller (a) fails to 
fully, timely and faithfully perform any of its material obligations under this Contract/Purchase 
Order (whether or not an obligation is “material” shall be determined by the Town), (b) fails to 
provide adequate assurance of performance as provided for herein, (c) becomes insolvent or seeks 
relief under the bankruptcy laws of the United States, or (d) makes a material misrepresentation in 
Seller’s offer or response to Buyer’s solicitation, or in any report or deliverable required to be 
submitted by Seller to the Town. 
  
19.       Termination for Cause or Convenience:  The Town, at any time, by 30 days written notice 
to the Seller, has the absolute right to terminate this Contract/Purchase Order, in whole or in part, 
for cause or for convenience (that is, for any reason or for no reason whatsoever). “Cause” means 
the Seller’s refusal or failure to perform or complete its obligations under this Contract/Purchase 
Order within the time specified and to the Town’s satisfaction, or failure to meet the specifications, 
quantities, quality and/or other requirements specified in the Contract/Purchase Order.  If the Town 
terminates this Contract/Purchase Order for cause, the Seller shall be liable for any damages 
suffered by the Town. If the agreement is terminated for convenience, the Seller has no further 
obligation under this Contract/Purchase Order.  Upon receipt of a notice of termination, Seller 
shall promptly cease all further work pursuant to the Contract/Purchase Order, with such 
exceptions, if any, specified in the notice of termination. Payment shall be made to cover the cost 
of goods delivered and services performed and obligations incurred prior to the date of termination 
in accordance with the terms hereof. 



  
20.       Delay:  Town may delay scheduled delivery or other due dates by written notice to Seller 
if the Town deems it is in its best interest.  If such delay causes an increase in the cost of the work 
under the Contract/Purchase Order, the Town and the Seller shall negotiate an equitable adjustment 
for costs incurred by Seller in the Contract/Purchase Order price and execute an amendment to the 
Contract/Purchase Order.  Seller must assert its right to an adjustment within thirty (30) days from 
the date of receipt of the notice of delay.  Failure to agree on any adjusted price shall be handled 
under the Dispute Resolution process specified herein.  However, nothing in this provision shall 
excuse Seller from delaying the delivery as notified.  For purposes of these Terms and Conditions, 
“days” means calendar days. 
  
21.       SELLER’S INDEMNITY OBLIGATION; INSURANCE:  See attached Town of 
Addison minimum requirements. 
  
22.       Gratuity:  Town may, by written notice to Seller, cancel this Contract/Purchase Order 
without liability to Town if it is determined by Town that any gratuity, in the form of entertainment, 
gifts, or otherwise, was offered or given by Seller, or any officer, employee, agent or representative 
of Seller, to any officer, employee, or representative of Town with a view toward securing a 
contract or securing favorable treatment with regard to the awarding or amending, or the making 
or any determinations with respect to the performance of, a contract. In the event this 
Contract/Purchase Order is canceled by the Town pursuant to this provision, the Town shall be 
entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost 
incurred by the Seller in providing such gratuities. 
  
23.       Notices:  Unless otherwise specified, all notices, requests, or other communications 
required or appropriate to be given under this Contract/Purchase Order shall be in writing and shall 
be deemed delivered upon being hand-delivered or upon three (3) business days after postmarked 
if sent by U.S. Postal Service certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.  Notices to 
Seller shall be sent to the address as specified by Seller.  Notices to the Town shall be addressed 
to Town at 5300 Belt Line Road, Dallas, Texas 75254 and marked to the attention of the Town 
Finance Director. 
  
24.       No Warranty By Town Against Infringement:  Seller represents and warrants to the Town 
that:  (i) Seller shall provide the Town good and indefeasible title to all goods being sold and/or 
supplied to the Town, and (ii) such goods in accordance with the specifications in this 
Contract/Purchase Order will not infringe, directly or indirectly, any patent, trademark, copyright, 
trade secret, or any other intellectual property right of any kind of any third party; that no claims 
have been made by any person or entity with respect to the ownership or operation of such goods 
and the Seller does not know of any valid basis for any such claims.  The Town’s specifications 
regarding the goods shall in no way diminish Seller’s warranties or obligations under this 
paragraph, and the Town makes no warranty that the production, development, or delivery of 
goods according to the specifications will not give rise to such a claim or will not will not impact 
such warranties of Seller, and in no event will Town be liable to Seller, its officers, employees, or 
agents (together, "Seller Parties") for indemnification or otherwise if Seller Parties or any of them 
is sued on the grounds of infringement or the like.  If Seller is of the opinion that an infringement 
or the like will or may result, Seller shall promptly notify Town of that opinion.  If Seller in good 



faith ascertains, prior to production of the goods, that production of the goods according to the 
specifications will result in infringement or the like, this Contract/Purchase Order will be null and 
void, and neither Town nor Seller shall have any liability one to the other. 
  
25.       Assignment and Successors: The successful Seller shall not assign, transfer, pledge, 
subcontract, or otherwise convey (collectively, “assign” or “assignment”), in any manner 
whatsoever, any rights, duties, obligations, or responsibilities of Seller under or in connection with 
this Contract/Purchase Order, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the Town of 
Addison (and any such assignment without the prior written consent of the Town shall be null and 
void).  Any person or entity to whom Seller assigns any right, duty or obligation shall, as a 
condition of such assignment, agree to comply with and abide by all provisions of this 
Contract/Purchase Order, and Seller shall promptly give the Town a true and correct copy of such 
agreement. 
  
This Contract/Purchase Order shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the City and the 
Seller and their respective successors and authorized assigns, provided however, that no right or 
interest in the Contract/Purchase Order shall be assigned and no obligation shall be delegated by 
the Contractor without the prior written consent of the City.  This Contract/Purchase Order does 
not and is not intended to confer rights or benefits on any person, firm or entity not a party hereto; 
it being the intention of the parties that there be no third party beneficiaries to this 
Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
26.       Waiver; Rights, Remedies:  All waivers must be in writing and signed by the waiving 
party.  The rights or remedies under this Agreement are cumulative to any other rights or remedies, 
which may be granted by law. 
  
27.       Modifications:  This contract can be modified or amended only by a writing signed by both 
parties.  No pre-printed or similar terms on any Seller invoice, order or other document shall have 
any force or effect to change the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
28.       Independent Contractor:  Seller shall operate hereunder as an independent contractor and 
not as an officer, agent, servant or employee of the Town.  Seller shall have exclusive control of, 
and the exclusive right to control, the details of its operations hereunder, and all persons 
performing same, and shall be solely responsible for the acts and omissions of its officers, agents, 
employees, contractors, subcontractors and consultants. 
  
29.       Interpretation:  This Contract/Purchase Order is intended by the parties as a final, complete 
and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.  No course of prior dealing between the 
parties or course of performance or usage of the trade shall be relevant to supplement or explain 
any term used in this Contract/Purchase Order.  Although the Contract/Purchase Order may have 
been substantially drafted by one party, it is the intent of the parties that all provisions be construed 
in a manner to be fair to both parties, reading no provisions more strictly against one party or the 
other.  Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code, as enacted by the  State of 
Texas, is used in this contract, the UCC definition shall control, unless otherwise defined in this 
Contract/Purchase Order. 
  



30.       Competitive Pricing:  It is the intent of the Town to consider Interlocal Cooperative 
Agreements and State/Federal contracts in determining the best value for the Town. 
  
31.       Interlocal Agreement:  Successful bidder (Seller) agrees to extend prices for the goods 
and/or services to be provided by Seller described in this Contract/Purchase Order to all entities 
that have entered into or will enter into joint purchasing interlocal cooperation agreements with 
the Town.  The Town is a participating member of several interlocal cooperative purchasing 
agreements.  As such, the Town has executed interlocal agreements, as permitted by law, including 
under Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, with certain other political subdivisions, 
authorizing participation in a cooperative purchasing program.  The successful bidder (Seller) may 
be asked by the Town to provide products/services based upon the bid price to any other participant 
to a cooperative purchasing agreement, and the Seller agrees to do so (such provision will be 
pursuant to an agreement between Seller and such other participant, and the Town will have no 
liability or responsibility in connection therewith). 
  
32.       Right to Audit:  The city shall have the right to examine and audit after reasonable notice 
any and all books and records. in any form or format whatsoever (including electronic), of Seller 
that may relate to this Contract/Purchase Order including, without limitation, the performance of 
Seller, its employees, agents, and subcontractors.  Such books and records will be maintained in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall, upon request and at the 
Town’s request, be made available at a location designated by the Town. Seller shall, except for 
copying costs, otherwise bear all costs of producing such records for examination and copying by 
the Town. Unless otherwise agreed by the Town, such books and records must be made available 
to the Town within five business days after the Seller’s receipt of a written notice from the Town 
requesting the same.  The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination of this 
agreement.  Seller shall retain all such books and records for a period of three (3) years after final 
payment on this Contract/Purchase Order or until all audit and litigation matters that the Town has 
brought to the attention of the Seller are resolved, whichever is longer. The Seller agrees to refund 
to the Town any overpayments disclosed by any such audit. The Seller shall include a similar audit 
right on behalf of the Town in all subcontractor agreements entered into in connection with this 
Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
33.       Correspondence:  The Bid number must appear on all correspondence and inquiries 
pertaining to the Request for Bid or to quotes.  The Purchase Order number must appear on all 
invoices or other correspondence relating to the Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
34.       Easement Permission:  The contractor shall not enter or use private property except as 
allowed by easements shown on the contract documents or if the contractor obtains specific written 
permission from the property owner. 
  
35.       Alternates - Samples:  If bidding on other than the item solicited by the Town, Seller’s bid 
must identify the item’s Trade Name, Manufacturer’s Name and/or Catalog Number, and certify 
the item offered is equivalent to the item solicited by the Town.  Descriptive literature must be 
submitted with alternate brands. Samples shall be furnished free of expense to the Town and if 
requested, may be returned at bidder’s expense. 
  



36.       Error - Quantity:  Bids must be submitted in units of quantity specified, extended, and 
totaled.  In the event of discrepancies in extension, the unit prices shall govern. 
  
37.       Acceptance:  The right is reserved to the Town to accept or reject all or part of the bid, and 
to accept the offer considered most advantageous to the Town by line item or total bid. 
  
38.       Term Contracts:  Except as otherwise provided herein, prices must remain firm for the 
entire Contract/Purchase Order period, including any periods of extension or renewal.  At the time 
of any renewal or extension of the Contract/Purchase Order, the Town or the Seller may request a 
price adjustment based upon the economy.  All requests for a price adjustment must include 
detailed documentation and rationale to support the requested adjustment.  The party to whom a 
request for price adjustment is made may, in its sole discretion, accept or reject the request.  Any 
price adjustment must be mutually agreed upon in writing by the parties, and shall be effective for 
the applicable renewal term.  
  
39.       Term Contract Quantities:  The quantities (if any) in the request for bid are estimated 
requirements and the Town reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantities or cancel any 
item to be furnished.  The successful bidder (Seller) shall have no claim against the Town for 
anticipated profits for quantities diminished or deleted. 
  
40.       Term Contract Shipments:  The Seller will make shipments under this Contract/Purchase 
Order only when requested and only in the quantities requested.  Seller shall comply with 
minimum shipments or standard packaging requirements (if any) included in the 
Contract/Purchase Order. 
  
41.       Contract Renewal Options:  In the event a clause for option to renew for an additional 
period is included in the request for bid, all renewals will be based solely upon the option and 
agreement between the Town and the Seller.  Either party dissenting will terminate the 
Contract/Purchase Order in accordance with its initial specified term. 
  
42.       Electronic Signature – Uniform Electronic Transactions Act:  The Town adopts Texas 
Business and Commerce Code Chapter 322, Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, allowing 
individuals, companies, and governmental entities to lawfully use and rely on electronic signatures. 
  
43.       Funding Out Clause:  This Contract/Purchase Order may be terminated by the Town 
without notice and without penalty or liability in the event that (1) the Town lacks sufficient funds 
for this Contract/Purchase Order; (2) funds for this Contract/Purchase Order are not appropriated 
and/or budgeted by the City Council of the Town; and (3) funds for this Contract/Purchase Order 
that are or were to be provided by grant or through a third party are withheld, denied or are 
otherwise not available to the Town. 
  
44.       Dispute Resolution:  Pursuant to subchapter I, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government 
Code, Seller agrees that, prior to instituting any lawsuit or other proceeding arising from any 
dispute or claim of breach under this Contract/Purchase Order (a “Claim”), the parties will first 
attempt to resolve the Claim by taking the following steps:  (i) A written notice substantially 
describing the factual and legal basis of the Claim shall be delivered by the Seller to the Town 



within one-hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the event giving rise to the Claim, which 
notice shall request a written response to be delivered to the Seller not less than fourteen (14) 
business days after receipt of the  notice of Claim; (ii) if the response does not resolve the Claim, 
in the opinion of the Seller, the Seller shall give notice to that effect to the Town whereupon each 
party shall appoint a person having authority over the activities of the respective parties who shall 
promptly meet, in person, in a effort to resolve the Claim; (iii) if those persons cannot or do not 
resolve the Claim, then the parties shall each appoint a person from the highest tier of managerial 
responsibility within each respective party, who shall then promptly meet, in person, in an effort 
to resolve the Claim.  
  
45.       Disclosure of Certain Relationships:  Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code 
requires that any person, as defined in the statute, considering doing business with a local 
government entity disclose in the Questionnaire Form CIQ, the person’s affiliation or business 
relationship that might cause a conflict of interest with a local government entity.  By law, this 
questionnaire must be filed with the Records Administrator of the Town not later than the 7th 
business day after the later of (a) the date the person (i) begins discussions or negotiations to enter 
into a contract with the local governmental entity, or (b) submits to the local governmental entity 
an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or another writing 
related to a potential contract with the local governmental entity, or (b) the date the person becomes 
aware (i) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a 
family member of the officer, described by the statute, or (ii) that the person has given one or more 
gifts described in the statute.  See Section 176.006, Local Government Code.  A person commits 
an offense if the person knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code.  An offense 
under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.  The questionnaire may be found at 
www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf   By submitting a response to this request, Seller represents 
that it is in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
  
46.       Force Majeure:  To the extent either the Town or Seller shall be wholly or partially 
prevented or delayed from the performance of this Contract/Purchase Order or of any obligation 
or duty under this Contract/Purchase Order placed on such party, by reason of or through work 
strikes, stoppage of labor, riot, fire, flood, acts of war, insurrection, court judgment, act of God, or 
other specific cause reasonably beyond the party’s control and not attributable to its malfeasance, 
neglect or nonfeasance, then in such event, such party shall give notice of the same to the other 
party (specifying the reason for the prevention) and the time for performance of such obligation or 
duty shall be suspended until such disability to perform is removed. 
  
47.       BAFO: During evaluation process Town reserves the right to request a best and final offer 
upon completion of negotiations. 
  
48.       Silence of Specifications:  The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or 
to the apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded 
as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail.  All interpretations of these 
specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement. 
  
49.       Applicable Law:  This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, 
including, when applicable, the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Texas 

http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/CIQ.pdf


(excluding any rule or principle that would refer to and apply the substantive law of another state 
or jurisdiction), as effective and in force on the date of this Contract/Purchase Order, without regard 
to its conflict of laws rules or the conflict of law rules of any other jurisdiction.  The foregoing, 
however, shall not be construed or interpreted to limit or restrict the right or ability of the City to 
seek and secure injunctive or any other relief from any competent authority as contemplated herein. 
  
50.       Venue:  This Contract/Purchase Order is performable in Dallas County, Texas, and venue 
for any suit, action, or legal proceeding under or in connection with this Contract/Purchase Order 
shall lie exclusively in Dallas County, Texas.  Seller submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the 
courts in Dallas County, Texas for purposes of any such suit, action, or proceeding hereunder, and 
waives any claim that any such suit, action, or legal proceeding has been brought in an inconvenient 
forum or that the venue of that proceeding is improper.   
  
51.       Cost of Response:  Any cost incurred by the Seller in responding to the Request for 
Proposal  is the responsibility of the Seller and cannot be charged to the Town. 
  
52.       Prohibition Against Personal Interest in Contracts:  No Town of Addison officer or 
employee shall have a direct or indirect financial interest in any contract with the Town, or be 
directly or indirectly financially interested in the sale of land, materials, supplies or services to the 
Town. 
  
53.       Prior or Pending Litigation or Lawsuits:  Each Seller must include in its proposal a 
complete disclosure of any alleged significant prior or ongoing contract failures, any civil or 
criminal litigation or investigation pending which involves the Seller or in which the Seller has 
been judged guilty or liable. 
  
54.       Severability:  The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this 
Contract/Purchase Order shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion 
or provision of this Contract/Purchase Order.  Any void or invalid provision shall be deemed 
severed from this Contract/Purchase Order and the balance of the Contract/Purchase Order shall 
be construed and enforced as if the Contract/Purchase Order did not contain the particular portion 
or provision held to be void.  The parties further agree to reform the Contract/Purchase Order to 
replace any stricken provision with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent 
of the stricken provision.  The provisions of this section shall not prevent this entire 
Contract/Purchase Order from being void should a provision which is the essence of the 
Contract/Purchase Order be determined to be void. 
  
55.       Headings; “Includes”:  The headings of this Contract/Purchase Order are for convenience 
of reference only and shall not affect in any manner any of the terms and conditions hereof.  The 
words “includes” and “including” are terms of enlargement and not of limitation or exclusive 
enumeration, and use of the terms does not create a presumption that components not expressed 
are excluded. 
  
56.       Conflict:  When there is a conflict between the this purchase order (including, without 
limitation, these Terms and Conditions) and the Seller's invoice, this purchase order shall prevail. 
  



57.       Response Contractual Obligation; Waiver:  This response, submitted documents, and any 
negotiations, when properly accepted by the Town, shall constitute a contract equally binding 
between the successful Seller and the Town.  No different or additional terms will become part of 
this Contract/Purchase Order except as properly executed in an addendum or change order.  By 
submitting a bid, Seller waives any claim it has or may have against the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, and agents, arising out of or in connection with the administration, 
evaluation, or recommendation of any bid, acceptance or rejection of any bid, and the award 
of a contract. 
  
58.       No Waiver of Immunity.  Notwithstanding any other of this Contract/Purchase Order, 
nothing in this Contract/Purchase Order shall or may be deemed to be, or shall or may be construed 
to be, a waiver or relinquishment of any immunity, defense, or tort limitation to which the Town, 
its officials, officers, employees, representatives, and agents are or may be entitled, including, 
without limitation, any waiver of immunity to suit. 
 
59.       No Boycotting Israel.  The entity contract with the Town of Addison does not boycott Israel 
and will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.  Reference HB 89 as it relates to Chapter 
2270 of the Texas Government Code.  Boycott Israel means refusing to deal with, terminating 
business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict 
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel or with a person or entity 
doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made 
for ordinary business purposes. 
 



   
Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management
Milestones: Implement the Asset Management Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving a Contract Between the Town of
Addison and DN Tanks, LLC. for the Rehabilitation of the 6 Million Gallon
Celestial Ground Storage Tank and Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Contract  in an Amount Not to Exceed $1,239,510.

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this item is to award a contract with DN Tanks, LLC, for the
Celestial Ground Storage Tank Improvements Project.  The project scope
consists of the structural rehabilitation of the existing ground storage tank, a new
storm drainage swale for erosion control, new sidewalks for accessibility, a
section of a new security perimeter fence, and other miscellaneous
improvements.

The Celestial ground storage tank (GST) has been operating since 1988.  In
2014, a comprehensive evaluation and assessment of the Celestial GST was
conducted by Kleinfelder, Inc..  This project's scope is based on the Klienfelder
assessment.

On June 11, 2019, a Professional Services Agreement with Kleinfelder, Inc. was
executed for design services associated with the Celestial GST improvements. 
This design was completed in December 2020.  The project was posted to
CIVCAST for bidding on December 15, 2020, and it was closed on January 14,
2021.  The Town received one bid from DN Tanks for $1,239,510.00.  The
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost for this project was
$1,250,000.

Kleinfelder, Inc. has checked DN Tanks' references and recommends they be
awarded the contract. DN Tanks successfully completed a similar scope of work
for the Town with the rehabilitation of the 2 million gallon Surveyor GST in 2018. 
Additionally, DN Tanks has extensive experience in the construction and
rehabilitation of pre-stressed concrete ground storage tanks.

Due to the size and highly specialized nature of this project, there are very few
contractors that are qualified to perform this type of work.  The tight construction



schedule, size and construction (pre-stressed concrete) of the tank and the type
of coating all contributed to the limited pool.  Only two prospective bidders, DN
Tanks and Pre-Load Construction, were known to meet the rigorous experience
requirements outlined in the specifications.  To allow for any prospective bidders
that did meet the requirements, there was the opportunity to submit references of
comparable sized projects utilizing similar coating types and structural repairs.

If approved, the work is anticipated to commence in mid-February 2021.  This
project is expected to take a total of four months to complete with the tank being
out of service for a total of 45 days. During this 45 day period, all water service
will be provided through the Surveyor GST.  The timing of this project is critical
and must be performed before the arrival of higher water demands in the late
spring.

Town staff has performed field tests to verify that the Surveyor site will be
adequate to serve the Town and will have an emergency back-up system on
standby in case of any unforeseen failures.

If the Town chooses to rebid this project, the project will need to be done next
winter and a reduction in the warranty period may need to be investigated to
increase the pool of potential bidders.

Funding of this project is budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2021 Capital Improvements
Program.  The budget for the construction of the project is $1,375,000.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - DN Tanks, LLC for Celestial Ground Storage Tank Project 
DN Tank Submittal 
Recommendation Letter 
Contractor Qualifications and Experience Requirements 
2014 5 Year CIP Report 
2104 Celestial Assessment 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND DN 
TANKS LLC, FOR THE REHABILITATION OF THE 6.0 MG CELESTIAL 
GROUND STORAGE TANK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $1,239,510.00 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. The Agreement between the Town of Addison and DN Tanks LLC, for 
the Rehabilitation of the 6.0 MG Celestial Ground Storage Tank Improvements Project in an 
amount not to exceed $1,239,510.00, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A 
and which incorporates the Town of Addison’s General and Specific Conditions for 
construction contracts, and the Advertisement for Bids, Instruction to Bidders, General 
Provisions, Special Provisions, Plans and other bid documents, is hereby approved. The City 
Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement. 

 
SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 9th day of FEBRUARY 2021. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No.           Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 



Town of Addison, Texas

Rehabilitation of 6.0 MG Celestial Ground 
Storage Tank

Bid Number #21-42

SUBMITTED TO: 
Town of Addison, TX

Purchasing Department

SUBMITTED BY:
DN TANKS 

410 East Trinity Boulevard, 
Grand Prairie, TX 75050

www.dntanks.com 



Bid Proposal







PF-9 

If BIDDER is: 

AN INDIVIDUAL 

By (Seal) 
(Individual’s Name) 

doing business 
as 

Business 
address: 

Phone 
No. 

A PARTNERSHIP 

By (Seal) 
(Firm Name) 

(General Partner) 

doing business 
as 

Business 
address: 



PF-10 

Phone 
No. 





PF-12 

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and corporation 
that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.) 











Bid Bond









Acknowledgement of Addendum



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 1 OF 9 

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL  
GROUND STORAGE TANK 

BID NO. 21-42 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
January 7, 2021 

 
Bidders are hereby informed of the following changes to the contract documents for the Town of 
Addison Rehabilitation of 6.0 Million Gallon (MG) Celestial Ground Storage Tank (GST) project. 
Bids for the project will be received up to 2:00 PM on Thursday, January 14, 2021. Bidders must 
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum on the Bid Proposal and below. 
  

A. DESIGN: 
 

SHEET C2.0 
a. Delete callout Proposed 24” roof hatch per C10.0 and replace with “PROPOSED 

24” ROOF VENT PER C10.0.” 
SHEET C5.0 
a. Added Note 5: A CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SHALL BE INSTALLED AND 

THE LOCATION SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE TOWN”.  
SHEET C6.0 
a. Delete callout Proposed 24” roof hatch per C10.0 and replace with “PROPOSED 

24” ROOF VENT PER C10.0.” 
b. Add Note 15: “CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE AND REPLACE INLET PIPE 

SUPPORT STRAP IN KIND AND GROUT PER SPECIFICATION.” 
SHEET C8.0 
a. Added new Detail 8 for Deflector Plate. 

 
SHEET C10.0 
a. Delete the 24” Roof Hatch design and replace with 24” Roof Vent. 

 
SHEET C11.0 
a. Photograph 1: Delete and replace the title with “REMOVE AND REPLACE 

EXISTING FLAP VALVE PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS” 
b. Photograph 11: Delete and replace the title with “REMOVE AND REPLACE THE 

EXISTING WEIR, PIPE AND SUPPORTS PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS” 
c. Photograph 12: Delete and replace the title with “BLAST AND RECOAT PER 

SPECIFICATION IN DIVISION 9. INSTALL NEW DEFLECTOR PLATE” 
 

SHEET S2.0 
a. See Sheet S2.0 for modifications. 

 
SHEET S3.0 
a. See Sheet S3.0 for modifications. 

 
SHEET S4.0 
a. See Sheet S2.0 for modifications. 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 2 OF 9 

 
SHEET S5.0 
a. Add note 3 on Detail 4: “APPROXIMATE LENGTH FOR CRACK REPAIR IS 

2500 LINEAR FEET.”  
 

B. SPECIFICATION 
 
SECTION IB – INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 
a. Section D: Delete and replace with the following:  

1. DOCUMENTS: Bidding Documents include the Project Manual (consisting 
of the Advertisement for Bids, these Instructions to Bidders, Proposal 
Forms, Contract Agreement, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, 
Maintenance Bond, Contractor’s Affidavit of Bills Paid, General Provisions, 
Special Provisions, Terms and Conditions, Information and Instruction 
Form, Project Sign, and Technical Specifications), a Waiver of Lien, 
Drawings, and Addenda which may be issued by the Town of Addison 
during the bidding period. Bidding Documents may be viewed and/or 
obtained under the terms and conditions set forth in the Advertisement for 
Bids, Section AB of this Project Manual. 

 
SECTION BQS – BIDDER QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 
a. Title on Sheet BQ3: Delete and replace with the following: 

“1. REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MILLION GALLON (MG) CELESTIAL 
GROUND STROAGE TANK (GST) BID NO 21-42” 

 
SECTION 01740 – WARRENTIES AND BONDS 
a. Part 1 Section 1.4 Submittal Part k Delete and replace with the following: 

“1. The manufacturer of the Tnemec exterior wall coating system shall 
provide the Owner a minimum warranty of ten (10) years on the surface 
preparation and coating.  

 
2. The manufacturer of the Euclid Chemical System roof coating system 

shall provide the Owner a minimum warranty of twenty (20) years on the 
surface preparation and coating.”  

 
SECTION 03600 – GROUTING  
a. Part 2 Section A: Add the following: 

g. Quikrete Crack Resistance Concrete Mix 1006-80 

h. Or Approved Equal 

SECTION 30001 – TANK ROOF REHABILIATION 
a. Revise Part 1 Summary 1.c: Delete and replace with following: 

1. Apply two (2) coats of a non-cementitious 100% acrylic coating to exterior 
surface of the roof.  



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 3 OF 9 

 b. Revised Part 1.6 Section E: Delete and replace with the following: 
1. The Contractor to provide a twenty (20) year warranty on the Euclid 

Chemical Company or approval equal coating.    

c. Revised Part 3 Section B: Delete and replace with the following: 
 

1. “The surface preparation of existing roof concrete shall be in accordance 
with the manufacturer documentation.   
 

2. At a minimum removal all traces of existing coating, clean the surface by 
removing any dust, unsound or contaminated material, laitance, and 
corrosion deposits.  Clean loose corrosion deposits from exposed 
reinforcing.  Where chipping is not required to remove unsound material, 
roughen the surface and remove any laitance by light scrabbling.  High-
pressure wash with clean water, at a minimum pressure of 3,500 psi, prior to 
priming exposed reinforcing and substrate.” 

 
d. Revise Part 4 Title: Delete and replace with Measurement and Payment 

 
  
SECTION 09900 – SURFACE PREPARATION AND COATING 
a. Part 1.6 Section r: Delete and replace with the following: 

“The manufacturer of the coating system shall provide the Owner a minimum 
warranty of ten (10) years on sidewall, steel pipe and fitting coating commencing 
from the date of final completion. The Contractor shall submit with his bid a written 
statement by the coating’s manufacturer stating that the Contractor is familiar with 
the materials specified and has workers capable of performing the work specified 
herein.” 

 
SECTION 09901 – EXTERIOR CLEANING AND COATING 
a. Part 1.1 Section A.3 Note 3: Delete in its entirety. 

SECTION 13000 – GROUND WATER STORAGE TANK REHABILITATION 
a. Section 1.1 Summary D. Part c. Delete and replace with: “Exterior cleaning and 

coating including the blasting of the exterior roof coating.” 

b. Section 1.1 Summary D. Part d. Delete and replace with: “Interior power wash 
and cleaning.” 

c. Section 1.1 Summary D. Part e. Delete and replace with: “Blasting and coating of 
the interior and exterior steel pipe and ductile iron pipe coating.” 

d. Section 1.1 Summary D. Part k. Delete and replace with: “Installation of a new 
24” roof vent.” 

e. Section 1.1 Summary D. Part n. Delete and replace with: “Installation of new 
splash pad and concrete energy dissipators.” 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 4 OF 9 

f. Section 1.10 Guarantee C. Delete and replace with: “Warranty on coating will be 
as stated in Division 9 and Division 3.” 

g. Section 2.3 Piping Section C Part 4. Delete and replace with: “The proposed 
overflow pipe and weir shall be coated per manufacturer’s recommendation.” 

h. Revised Section 2.3 Piping Section D Part 3 to “The proposed overflow flap valve 
will be coated per manufacturer’s recommendation.” 

i. Part 2.3 Section E: Delete and replace with the following: 

1. The contractor shall provide the engineer a submittal with detail of the roof 
vent prior to fabrication and installation. The vent shall have a bolted 
connected between the vent neck and vent lid. Please refer to the existing 
roof vent on site for refence. 

 
2. A pressure/vacuum relief mechanism shall be provided that will operate in the 

event of a vent failure. The mechanism shall be designed to return 
automatically to its original position after operation. The pressure/vacuum 
relief mechanism shall be located on the tank roof above the maximum weir 
crest elevation and may be incorporated in the vent assembly. 

 
3. Install a new 24-inch roof vent as shown in the Drawings. Also provide 16- 

mesh corrosion resistant stainless steel insect screen on tank ventilation 
structures as included under scope of work herein. Install screen per TCEQ 
requirements. 

 
4. The Vent shall meet current TCEQ and AWWA Standard.  
 
5. Provide safety labeling as per OSHA standard for confined space entryways 

on manway and water access hatches.  
 

Appendix:  
Refer to Appendix B: Inspection Report attached to this Addendum No. 1. 

 
C. CIVCAST QUESTIONS: 
 

1. Section IB – Instructions to Bidders references a geotechnical report as part of 
the Project Manual.  To our knowledge no geotechnical report has been provided 
as part of the Bidding Documents. 

 
Answer: See Addendum No. 1.  
 

2. Section BQS – Bidder Qualification Statement – title reads “Infrastructure and 
Development Services Bid Number 16-33, Addison Airport Northwest Drainage 
Ditch Improvements”.  Please update to reference the correct project. 

 
Answer: See Addendum No. 1. 

 
3. Please confirm that the BQS should be submitted with the bid of if it should be 

submitted by the apparent low bidder within 5 days following the opening of bids 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 5 OF 9 

per the Special Provisions. 
 

Answer: Yes. 
 

4. Section SP – Special Provisions indicates that permits and licenses for the 
prosecution of the Work shall be secured and paid for by the Contractor and any 
required permit fees will still be paid by the Contractor.  Please identify what, if 
any, permits are going to be required for this project and the fee associated with 
each. 

 
Answer: If any permit is required for the project, contractor will have to comply 
with permit requirements and any applicable fees will be waived by the Town. 
 

5. Section SP – Special Provisions state that “Ten-percent (5%) retainage shall be 
withheld until 40 days after Final Completion”.  Please confirm the retainage 
percentage for this project will be 5% as stated in Section 01025 – Measurement 
and Payment, Paragraph 1.3.K. 

 
Answer: Revised to Five-percent (5%) retainage.  

 
6. Section 01025 – Measurement and Payment – Construction Contingency (Item 

18), please confirm that overhead and profit will be included in any work to be 
performed under this bid item and that overhead and profit for this contingency 
item should not be carried in the lump sum Bid Item No. 1. 

 
Answer: Confirmed.  

 
7. Section 01740 – Warranties and Bonds, Paragraph 1.4.K states that the 

manufacturer of the coating system shall provide the Owner a minimum warranty 
of “ten (15) years” on the surface preparation and coating.  Please confirm the 
length of this warranty to be 10 years. 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1. 
 

8. Section 02100 – Site Preparation, Paragraph 3.8.A states that the Contractor is 
to coordinate with the Owner to determine the new alignment of the existing 
irrigation main around the perimeter of the tank for the proposed sidewalk.  
Please provide additional information regarding this scope of work for bidding 
purposes including as-built drawings and proposed adjusted layout in order for 
this work to be priced appropriately. 

 
Answer: No additional details are available at this time.  Contractor to coordinate 
with Town of Addison about the alignment during construction phase. The 
estimated amount of replacement of the irrigation pipe shall be 900 linear feet 
with new sprinklers heads. All the existing piping and sprinkler heads, that will be 
impacted by the proposed sidewalk, shall be removed and disposed off.    
 

9. Section 09900 – Surface Preparation and Coating, Paragraph 1.6.r notes that the 
manufacturer of the coating system shall provide the Owner a minimum warranty 
“often (5) years” on steel pipe and fitting coating commencing from the date of 
final completion.  Please confirm the warranty period is 5 years. 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 6 OF 9 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1. 
 

10. What is the estimated cost range? 
 

Answer: Estimated construction cost range (N/A).   
 

12. Are any building or construction permits required?  If permits are required, can 
you provide cost? 

 
Answer: If any permit is required for the project, contractor will have to comply 
with permit requirements and any applicable fees will be waived by the Town. 
 

13. Is this an AIS Project? 
 

Answer: The materials and products used will have to conform to applicable 
laws, code and standards, as stated in the specification and plans. 
 

14. Is there a complete inspection report detailing all areas requiring concrete 
repairs? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No. 1. 
 

15. The project drawings, specifications and Bid Form do not completely specify the 
amount of interior and exterior of concrete repairs needed for the tank roof, walls 
or floor. Can you quantify all concrete repairs in terms of square feet for these 
areas and modify the Bid Form allowing Contractors to bid a specified quantity? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1.  
 

16. Can you provide details for site access, employee parking and equipment staging 
adjacent to the tank? 

 
Answer: The general site layout is shown in the contract documents.  
 

17. Does this contract require construction entrance road and access road 
maintenance? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1. 
 

18. Are there drawings available detailing the existing irrigation system to be 
removed and the location of the new system? 

 
Answer: No additional drawing are available. Contractor to coordinate with Town 
of Addison during construction phase. 
  

19. Are there details available for piping arrangements and connections for the 
irrigation system into existing piping/valves? 

 
Answer: No additional details are available.  Contractor to coordinate with Town 
of Addison during construction phase. 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 7 OF 9 

 
20. Project Drawing C6.0, Note #4 appears to have been distorted in print.  Can you 

provide the information for Note #4? 
 

Answer: See Addendum No.1  
 

21. Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 2 illustrates grout repair at Roof Section.  Can you 
provide the total amount of area needing grout repair and caulking? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1.  
 

22. Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 5 states, “…remove and replace support pads…”.  
There are no detail drawings or instruction in the project specifications detailing 
the pads and what is to be replaced.  Can you provide details? 

 
Answer: See the Addendum No.1  
 

23. Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 11 (Overflow) states we are to blast and recoat the 
existing piping.  However, Project Drawing S6.0, Detail 3 states we are to replace 
both overflow pipes.  Which is correct? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1 
 

24. Project Drawing S6.0, Detail 3, Note 6 is not complete.  Can you provide the 
complete note? 

 
Answer: The note is complete.  

 
25. Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 12 states we are to blast and paint the Inlet Pipe.  

The photo is of the pipe interior.  Are we required to blast and paint the interior of 
the 36” diameter inlet pipe? 
 
Answer: The blasting and recoating shall be for the exterior of the inlet pipe only. 
The photo is for the outlet pipe. The outlet pipe shall be blasted and recoated 
until the bend begins to occur.   
 

26. If we are to blast and paint the 36” diameter inlet pipe, where do we terminate 
this work? 

 
Answer: The work shall be terminated at the penetration of the proposed 
sidewalk.  

 
27. Project Drawing S3.0 is missing notes at the referenced details and other notes 

appear not to align with the detail mark.  Can you provide the missing notes or 
updated drawing? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1. 

 
28. There are two S4.0 drawings in the bidding package  Are we missing drawings? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.1. 



 
ADDENDUM NO.1 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 8 OF 9 

 
29. "Project Drawing S3.0, note on left side of tank states,  “…apply joint sealant to 

top of slab…” and references Drawing S4.0 (16 of 18), Detail 2.   
a. Is this meant for tank floor/wall repair inside or outside of the tank? 
b. How much area is required for the sealant?" 

 
Answer: The work is for the interior of the tank between sidewall and roof 
connection. See Addendum No.1 for the amount.  

 
30. Project Drawing S3.0, Note on lower left side of tank states “Crack Repair per…” 

The note is incomplete.  Can you provide the complete note and total linear 
footage required for crack repair? 
 
Answer: The sheet has been revised from S3.0 to “S2.0”. See Sheet S2.0 per 
Addendum No.1. 
 

31. Project Specifications Section 13000, Page 1 states we are to replace the tank 
vent, however Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 6 states to blast and recoat.  Which 
is correct? 
 
Answer: The existing Roof Vent shall be blasted and recoated per contract 
document. Per Addendum No.1, a new additional 24” Roof Vent shall install at 
the location of the existing level indicator.    
 

32. Project specifications Section 13000, Page 8 states the tank overflow Flap 
Valves are to be replace, however Project Drawing C11.0, Detail 1 states to blast 
and recoat.  Which is correct?  
 
Answer: The Overflow Flap Valves shall be replaced.  

 
 
D. PRE-BID MEETING NO.1:  

1.    Sign-sheet: 
 

• Pre-Bid sign in sheet will be uploaded to CivCast.  
 

 





P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
I
R

O
N

 
F

E
N

C
E

P
E

R
 
1
/
C

7
.
0

ANALYZER

BUILDING

VAULT

PROPOSED

5' SIDEWALK SEE SHEET

C7.0 FOR DETAIL

42" OUTLET

PIPE #2

1

5

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
S

A

N

I
T

A

R

Y

 
S

E

W

E

R

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

PROPERTY

LINE

PROPERTY

LINE

ROBERT BRADFIELD

14738 CELESTIAL PL

A
D

A
M

 
O

T
T

E
M

B
R

A
J
T

 
&

T
A

R
A

 
S

I
M

P
S

O
N

5
5

3
0

 
C

E
L

E
S

T
I
A

L
 
R

D
.

RONALD E & JUDITH

LINDMAN

14742 CELESTIAL PL

PROPOSED

CONCRETE PAD WITH

ENERGY DISSIPATORS

SEE SHEET 4/C8.0

S

V

GUY

GUY

GUY

GUY

AC

AC

GATE

MOTOR

GATE

MOTOR

GUY

P

U

M

P

 
H

O

U

S

E

B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

EX. IRON FENCE

E

X

.

I
R

O

N

F

E

N

C

E

E

X

.
 
I
R

O

N

 
F

E

N

C

E

E

X

.

 

C

H

A

I

N

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

INLET

VAULT

E

X

.

G

A

T

E

C

E

L

E

S

T

I
A

LR

O

A

D
EX.

GATE

E

X

.

 

G

A

T

E

INLET

E

X

.

 

C

H

A

I

N

L

I

N

K

 

F

E

N

C

E

DROP

INLET

EX. 50" ROOF VENT

EX. 36" INLET PIPE

EX. 4'x4'

ROOF HATCH

GENERATOR

BUILDING

DWU  VAULT

42" OUTLET

PIPE #1

EX. 6" PERFORATED

DRAIN PIPE

(TO BE PROTECTED)

S

S

SS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

V

V

V

E
X

. C
H

A
IN

LIN
K

 F
E

N
C

E

VAULT

STORM

INLET

E

X

.

 

C

H

A

I

N

L

I

N

K

F

E

N

C

E

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

2
.
0

 
P

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
S

i
t
e

 
P

l
a

n
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

PROPOSED OVERALL SITE PLAN

OVERALL SITE PLAN - PROPOSED

SCALE: 1" = 20'

C2.0

3

NP

CM

NP

CN

PROPOSED 24"

ROOF VENT

PER C10.0

PROPOSED CHANNEL

WITH GABION PER 2/C9.0

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

ACCESS POINT

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

ACCESS POINT

PROPOSED

AASHTO #3 STONE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

ANALYZER DRAINAGE

10'

~108'

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



ROBERT BRADFIELD

14738 CELESTIAL PL

ADAM OTTEMBRAJT &

TARA SIMPSON

5530 CELESTIAL RD.

MICHAEL A BODMER

14734 CELESTIAL PL

RONALD E & JUDITH LINDMAN

14742 CELESTIAL PL

YANA GLADTSKOVA

14746 CELESTIAL PL

JONES JEANETTE M TRUSTEE

14750 CELESTIAL PL

BLAKE W. & JEAN S CLEMENS

14754 CELESTIAL PL

6

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
D

R

A

I
N

A

G

E

1

5

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
S

A

N

I
T

A

R

Y

 
S

E

W

E

R

 
E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

T

O

 
D

A

L

L

A

S

 
W

A

T

E

R

 
U

T

I
L

I
T

I
E

S

PROPERTY

LINE

S

V

GUY

GUY

GUY

GUY

AC

AC

GATE

MOTOR

GATE

MOTOR

GUY

5

8

1

.

0

5

8

2

.

0

5

8

3

.

0

5

8

4

.

0

5

8

5

5

8

5

5

8

6

.
0

5

8

7

.

0

5

8

7

.

0

5

8

8

.

0

5

8

8

.
0

5

8

9

.

0

5

8

9

.

0

5

8

9

.

0

5

8

9

.
0

5

9

0

5
9
0

5

9

0

5

9

0

5

9

0

5
9
1
.
0

5

9

1

.

0

5

9

1

.
0

5
9
2
.
0

5

9

2

.

0

5

9

3

.

0

5

9

3

.

0

5

9

4

.

0

5

9

4

.

0

5

9

5

5

9

5

5

9

5

5

9

6

.
0

5

9

6

.

0

5
9
7
.
0

5
9
7
.
0

5

9

7

.
0

597.0

5

9

7

.

0

5
9
7
.
0

5

9

8

.

0

5

9

8

.

0

598.0

5

9

8

.

0

598.0

5

9

8

.

0

5
9
8
.
0

5

9

9

.
0

5

9

9

.

0

5

9

9

.

0

5

9

9

.

0

599.0

599.0

5

9

9

.

0

6

0

0

6

0

0

6

0

0

6

0

0

6

0

0

600

6
0
0

6

0

0

6

0

1

.
0

6
0
1
.0

6

0

2

.
0

6

0

2

.

0

6

0

2

.

0

6

0

3

.

0

6

0

3

.

0

6

0

3

.

0

6

0

3

.

0

6
0
3
.
0

6
0
3
.
0

603.0

6
0
3
.
0

603.0

6

0

4

.

0

6

0

4

.
0

6
0
4
.
0

6

0

4

.

0

6

0

5

6
0
6
.
0

S

S

SS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

V

V

V

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

5
.
0

 
E

R
O

S
I
O

N
 
 
A

N
D

 
S

E
D

I
M

E
N

T
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

SCALE: NTS

2
ROCK BERM DETAIL

C5.0

SCALE: NTS

    SITE PLAN NOTES:

1. ALL THE DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE  AND WERE GATHERED FROM VARIOUS RESOURCES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONFIRMING ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO MOBILIZATION.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CAPTURING AND DISPOSING THE RUNOFF FROM THE SITE IN

ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS.

4. THE CONTRACTOR TO USE TOWN OF ADDISON EROSION CONTROL PLAN (LATEST EDITION).

5. A CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SHALL BE INSTALLED AND THE LOCATION SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE

TOWN.

6.0MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

C

E

L

E

S

T

I
A

L

 
R

O

A

D

SITE ENTRANCE

P

U

M

P

 
S

T

A

T

I
O

N

B

U

I
L

D

I
N

G

SITE EXIT

PERIMETER

OF TANK

SILT FENCE

PER 3/C5.0

LIMITS OF

CONSTRUCTION

ROCK

BERM

PER 2/C5.0

C5.0

6

3
SILT FENCE DETAIL

C5.0

SCALE: NTS

4
GRATE AND WYE INLET

C5.0

SCALE: NTS

1
GENERAL NOTES

C5.0

SCALE: NTS

NP

CM

NP

CN

S

F

S

F

S

F

S

F

S

F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S
F

S

F

STONE OVERFLOW

STRUCTURE PER 3/C5.0

S
F

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



EXISTING ROOF HATCH WITH

INTERIOR LADDER

EXISTING ROOF VENT

EXISTING 36" DUCTILE IRON

INLET PIPE (THROUGH ROOF)

EXISTING 24" OVERFLOW PIPE WITH

NEW CONCRETE SPLASH PAD

AND ENERGY DISSIPATORS

REF SHEET C8.0

EXISTING 24" OVERFLOW PIPE WITH

CONCRETE SPLASH PAD

AND ENERGY DISSIPATORS

REF SHEET C8.0

PROPOSED 24"

ROOF VENT PER

C10.0

16" CONC. COLUMN BELOW (TYP)

(69 TOTAL)

206'-0" DIAMETER (TO SHELL WALL)

208'-8" DIAMETER (TO EDGE OF CONCRETE ROOF SLAB)

CONSTRUCTION JOINT

CONSTRUCTION JOINT

REMOVE EXISTING SAFETY

CAGE AND INSTALL NEW

FALL PROTECTION SYSTEM

PER NOTE 2

EXISTING 6" PERFORATED

DRAIN PIPE

INSTALL NEW 5'

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

EXISTING 6" PERFORATED

DRAIN TO BOX CULVERT

TOWARD SOUTH CREEK

INSTALL NEW 5'

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

PER 6/C7.0

CENTER LINE

EXISTING 42-INCH

OUTLET #1

EXISTING 42-INCH

OUTLET #2

INSTALL PER 8/C7.0

1

+

0

0

3

+

0

0

4

+

0

0

5

+

0

0

6

+

0

0

0

+

0

0

6

+

7

0

BEGIN SIDEWALK PER C10.0

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

6
.
0

 
R

o
o

f
 
P

l
a

n
s

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

TANK PLAN - CIVIL

NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY CONCERNING ANY

CONFLICTS BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS.

2. REMOVE EXISTING LADDER CAGE FOR INTERIOR OF THE TANK BUT LADDER TO

REMAIN. INSTALL THE TS RAIL SYSTEM, (TYPE 1-1100-AR) MANUFACTURED BY THE

FRENCH CREEK PRODUCTION, FRANKLIN, PA IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL THE

LADDER LOCK SYSTEM AS PER THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

3. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR THE STRUCTURAL IMPROVEMENTS.

4. A CAUTION SIGN SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE  ACCESS TO THE INTERIOR LADDER

REQUIRING SAFE CLIMBING DEVICES. THE SIGN SHALL READ “CAUTION - SAFETY

EQUIPMENT REQUIRED WHEN CLIMBING LADDER”. THE SIGN SHALL BE SECURED

TO THE HATCH OR WHEREVER CLEARLY VISIBLE NEAR LADDER ACCESS.

5. PROVIDE SAFETY LABELING AS PER OSHA STANDARDS FOR CONFINED SPACE

ENTRYWAYS ON ROOF ACCESS HATCH AND ROOF VENT.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE DI-ELECTRIC FITTINGS WHERE DISSIMILAR METALS

ARE IN CONTACT WITH EACH OTHER. SUBMIT FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO

INSTALLATION.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL THE CONCRETE SIDEWALK PER STANDARD

CONSTRUCTION DETAIL FOR TOWN OF ADDISON (LATEST EDITION).  SEE SHEET

C7.0

8. THE EXISTING 42-INCH OUTLET PIPES TO BE BLASTED AND COATED PER DIVISION 9

SPECIFICATION.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE REMOVAL OF THE EXISTING PIPE

SLEEVE AND SONIC LEVEL TRANSMITTER WITH THE OWNER.

10. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT THE EXISTING 6" PERFORATED DRAIN PIPE

AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE TANK. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR ANY DAMAGE DURING DURATION OF THE PROJECT.

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE EXISTING TREE ROOTS IN THE AREA FOR THE

PROPOSED STONE IMPROVEMENTS AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR THE EXISTING LEVEL INDICATOR SUPPORT ON

INTERIOR OF THE ROOF ACCESS HATCH WITH NEW BRACKET AND BOLTS.

13. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR THE EXISTING SPRING ON THE UNDERSIDE OF

THE ROOF ACCESS HATCH. THE CONTRACTOR TO REPLACE THE SPRING IF

NECESSARY IN KIND.

14. A SITE SUPERINTENDENT SHALL BE ON-SITE AT ALL TIMES DURING ANY

CONSTRUCTION.

15. THE CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE IN REPLACE INLET PIPE SUPPORT STRAP IN KIND

AND GROUT PER SPECIFICATION.

16. THE CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DETAIL FOR A NEW CARBON STEEL DEFLECTOR

TO ENGINEER FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

C6.0

7

CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR EXISTING

CRACKS AND COAT THE EXTERIOR SHELL

PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

NP

CM

NP

CN

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1

1

1

1



MATCH

EXISTING

GRADE

6" THICK CONCRETE

INSTALL ENERGY

DISSIPATORS

2'-0"

10"

4 - #4 DOWELS X 1' X 5" DRILL

& ADHESIVE ANCHOR W/4" EMBED

ROUGHEN SURFACE

W/CHIPPING HAMMER

3

4

" CHAMFER

ALL EXPOSED

EDGES - TYP

2 - #3  HORIZ

STIRRUPS

1' - 0"

PROPOSED CONCRETE

SWALE

2 - #3  HORIZ

STIRRUPS

2.0'

CLR.

TYP.

4"

6"

EXISTING GROUND

PROPOSED

CONCRETE SWALE

NATIVE BACKFILL COMPACTED

AT 95% MODIFIED PROCTOR

1'- 6"

1
 CONCRETE SWALE

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

2
ENERGY DISSIPATOR DETAIL

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

3
EMBEDMENT AND BACKFILL

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

INSTALL AASHTO #3

STONE PER SHEET C2.0

1' - 4"

PROPOSED 24"

OVERFLOW PIPE

AND FLAP VALVE

ENERGY

DISSIPATORS

1'-0" TALL

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

+/-10'-00"

10'-0"

7'-0"

4'-00"

6'-0"

3'-00"

5'

6" THICK

CONC.

6" WIDE

CONC. CURB

12" THICK

CONC.

EXPANSION JOINT

4
CONCRETE SIDEWALK AND PAD PLAN

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

EXPANSION JOINT

12"

12"

6"

CONCRETE CURB

BEYOND

6"X16"X1'-0" TALL

CONC ENERGY

DISSIPATORS

EXISTING TANK

CONCRETE WALL

3'-0" 3'-0"

4" @10" OC EA WAY

T&B

90° HOOK TOP

MAY TYPE

3/4" CHAMFER

3" CLEARANCE

ADD 1 - #4 @

MIDHT

2 - #5 T&B

W/ #3 STIR @ 12" OC

4" @10" OC W/

ACI HOOK
3" CLEARANCE

2 - #5 CONT.

12"

12"

6"

4" @10" OC EA WAY

T&B

3/4" CHAMFER

5
 CONCRETE SECTION DETAIL

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

6
CONCRETE SECTION DETAIL - REBAR

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

7
 CONCRETE PAD W/ CURB DETAIL

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

6" TALL

5

C8.0

6

C8.0

7

C8.0

4" @ 10" OC EA WAY

OPTIONAL CJ

RUBBER CAULK

PER 5/C7.0

4" @ 10" OC EA WAY

2'-0"

1'-0"

8
 NEW DEFLECTOR PLATE

C8.0

SCALE: NTS

EXISTING OUTLET PIPE TO BE

BLASTED AND COATED

NEW CARBON COATED

STEEL DEFLECTOR PLATE

NOTE: THE CONTRACTOR TO SUBMIT DETAILED SUBMITTAL FOR

ENGINEER REVIEW PRIOR TO FABRICATION AND START OF WORK.

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

8
.
0

 
C

i
v
i
l
 
D

e
t
a

i
l
s
 
I
I

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
7

/
2

0
2

1
 
9

:
1

4
 
A

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

CIVIL DETAILS SHEET II

C8.0

9

NP

CM

NP

CN

VARIES, MAX 10'

VARIES, MAX 10'

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



1
DETAIL - 24" ROOF VENT

C10.0

SCALE: NTS

1

4

"

1

4

"

2'-0"

ROOF HATCH NOTES:

1. THE ROOF VENT SHALL BE REMOVAL WITH BOLTED CONNECTION TO THE VENT NECK. THE MATERIAL SHALL MATCH THE

EXISTING VENT ON SITE AND BE COATED PER DIVISION 9.

2. THE OPENING IS TO BE WRAPPED IN 16 MESH, 316 SS, 0.018" SCREEN, TO EXTEND 1 1/2" ABOVE AND BELOW THE OPENINGS.

3. THE ROOF VENT SHALL HAVE A PRESSURE-VACUUM RELIEF MECHANISM PER AWWA D100 REQUIREMENT.

4. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING DIMENSIONS.

5. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL THE ROOF VENT PER DIVISION 13000 SPECIFICATION.

EXISTING CONCRETE

COLUMN (MINIMUM 6")

EXISTING 24" LEVEL

TRANSMITTER STEEL

PIPE

PROPOSED ROOF

VENT NECK

BOLTED

CONNECTION TO

VENT LID

ROOF VENT LID

G
R

A
D

E
 
B

R
E

A
K

 
S

T
A

 
=

 
0

+
0

0
.
0

0

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
 
6

0
0

.
0

0
0

G
R

A
D

E
 
B

R
E

A
K

 
S

T
A

 
=

 
1

+
7

6
.
9

4

E
L

E
V

 
=

 
 
6

0
0

.
7

0
5

0.40%

-4.50%

G
R

A
D

E
 
B

R
E

A
K

 
S

T
A

 
=

 
4
+

3
5
.
5
0

E
L
E

V
 
=

 
 
5
8
9
.
0
7
5

G
R

A
D

E
 
B

R
E

A
K

 
S

T
A

 
=

 
6
+

7
0
.
2
6

E
L
E

V
 
=

 
 
6
0
0
.
0
0
0

4.6
5%

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

1
0

.
0

 
C

i
v
i
l
 
D

e
t
a

i
l
s
 
I
V

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

CIVIL DETAILS SHEET IV

C10.0

10

NP

CM

NP

CN

2 DETAIL - SIDEWALK PROFILE 0+00 to +00

C10.0

SCALE: 1" = 20'

3
DETAIL - SIDEWALK PROFILE 4+00 to 6+70

C10.0

SCALE: 1" = 20'

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
C

1
1

.
0

 
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
S

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

PHOTOGRAPHS - CIVIL

EXISTING FLAP VALVE

REMOVE AND REPLACE EXISTING FLAP

VALVES PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

EXISTING GROUT AT ROOF

CONNECTION

EXISTING LEVEL INDICATOR

REPLACE THE SUPPORT ASSEMBLY WITH NEW BOLTS

EXISTING ROOF ACCESS HATCH

REPLACE HARDWARE FOR DOOR SUPPORT AND

INSTALL CONFINED SPACE SIGNAGE

EXISTING INLET PIPE

REMOVE AND REPLACE THE SUPPORT PADS PER SPECIFICATION

FOR THE INLET PIPE AND GROUT AS NECESSARY

EXISTING LEVEL INDICATOR

REMOVE AND INSTALL NEW 24-INCH ROOF VENT

EXISTING ROOF VENT

BLAST AND RECOAT PER DIVISION 9.

INSTALL CONFINED SPACE SIGNAGE

EXISTING 2" PIPE SLEEVE

REMOVE AND PATCH THE CONCRETE

PER STRUCTURAL RECOMMENDATION

EXISTING EAST SIDE FENCE

REMOVE AND REPLACE WITH WROUGHT

IRON FENCE

EXISTING INTERIOR LADDER

REMOVE EXISTING CAGE AND FALL PROTECTION SYSTEM.

INSTALL NEW TS RAIL FALL PROTECTION SYSTEM

EXISTING OVERFLOW WEIR

REMOVE AND REPLACE THE EXISTING WEIR, PIPE

AND SUPPORT PER CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

EXISTING OUTLET PIPE

BLAST AND RECOAT PER SPECIFICATION IN

DIVISION 9. INSTALL NEW DEFLECTOR PLATE

NOTES:

1. ALL THE PHOTOGRAPHS ARE INTENDED TO ILLUSTRATE THE CONDITIONS THAT THE CONTRACTOR MAY

ENCOUNTER DURING CONSTRUCTION.

2. NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE TO ADDRESS THE ACCURACY OF EVERY ELEMENT SHOWN IN THE

PHOTOGRAPHS, ALTHOUGH MINOR PIPING AND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT ASSOCIATED WITH EACH PIECE OF

EQUIPMENT MAY NOT BE SHOWN AS BEING REMOVED, IT IS INTENDED THAT THESE ITEMS ARE ALSO REMOVED.

3. THE PHOTOGRAPHS SHOWN MAY NOT REFLECT ALL ITEMS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROJECT SCOPE.

1

C11.0

2 3 4

5 6 7 8

9 10 12

APPLY GROUT PER RECOMMENDATION IN

SPECIFICATION

C11.0

11

NP

CM

NP

CN

11

C11.0 C11.0 C11.0

C11.0C11.0C11.0C11.0

C11.0 C11.0 C11.0 C11.0

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1

1

1

1



C D EBA F G H

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

±

2

0

6

'
-

0

"

 

I

.

D

.

5

I

Ø1669'-4"Ø1669'-4"Ø1669'-4"

EXISTING ROOF

HATCH

EXISTING 36" DI INLET

PIPE (THROUGH ROOF)

APPROX. 40 RUSTED

REBAR REPAIRS

REQUIRED AT INTERIOR

WALL LOCATIONS

APPROX 50 LINEAR FEET.

REPAIR PER DETAIL

REFERENCE PHOTO

CRACK REPAIR

PER

REFERENCE PHOTO

3'X2' APPROX. AREA OF CONC

SPALL (TYP.)

REPAIR PER

REFERENCE PHOTO

APPROX. 4,000 RUST SPOTS OVER ENTIRE

UNDERSIDE OF ROOF SLAB. REPAIR EACH

SPOT PER

REFERENCE PHOTO

EXISTING CONC COLUMN

AND CAPITAL TYP. SEE

NOTE 9 FOR REPAIR.

REFERENCE PHOTO

APPLY JOINT SEALANT TO

THE TOP OF THE SLAB

PER SPECIFICATION.

REFERENCE PHOTO

EXISTING

ROOF VENT

REMOVE EXISTING 2" PIPE

SLEEVE

REMOVE EXISTING LEVEL

INDICATOR AND INSTALL

NEW 24" ROOF VENT PER

REMOVE AND REPLACE THE

EXISTING OVERFLOW WEIR (2)

AND INSTALL NEW WEIR (2) PER

    AND

42" OUTLET PIPE

42" OUTLET PIPE

REPAIR SIDEWALL

CORROSION  PER REF

APPROX. 50'

REPAIR PER SHEET

4

S5.0

9

S4.0

2

S4.0

1

S6.0

7

S4.0

3

S5.0

6

S4.0

8

S4.0

8/9

S4.0

1

S5.0

3

S6.0

1

C10.0

4

S6.0

7

S4.0

2

S5.0

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
S

2
.
0

 
U

N
D

E
R

S
I
D

E
 
O

F
 
R

O
O

F
 
P

L
A

N
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

UNDERSIDE OF ROOF PLAN - STRUCTURAL

NOTES:

1. THE EXISTING TANK COMPONENTS LOCATIONS ARE INTENDED TO SHOW THE GENERAL

EXISTING CONDITIONS. THE ENGINEER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

ACCURACY OF THE TANK INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATION OF THE TANK COMPONENTS PRIOR TO ORDERING

THE MATERIAL AND PERFORMING ANY MODIFICATION WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY WHEN CONFLICTS WITH THE

EXISTING INFORMATION ARE DISCOVERED.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DISPOSAL OF THE DEMOLISHED

EQUIPMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS AND OWNER'S

REQUIREMENTS.

3. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND COLUMN LOCATIONS.

4. FIELD VERIFY LOCATION OF UTILITIES, MECH EQUIPMENT, CITY ELECTRICAL CONDUITS,

WIRING, AND PULL BOXES  AND PROTECT IN PLACE.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXECUTE THE PROPER CLEANING OF ALL SURFACES AFTER

COMPLETION OF WORK PER GOVERNING JURISDICTION RECOMMENDATION & SPECS.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT IN PLACE EXISTING PIPING AND APPURTENANCES TO

REMAIN.

7. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THAT HAVE BEEN

APPROXIMATED ON THESE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. PROVIDE UNIT COST

FOR ITEMS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS AND IF LESS REPAIRS ARE REQUIRED NOTIFY

GOVERNING JURISDICTION AND CREDIT ACCORDINGLY.

8. ALL COATINGS, REPAIR PATCHING, & JOINT MATERIALS USED ON THE INTERIOR OF THE

TANK SHALL BE NSF-61 APPROVED.

9. APPROX. 35 TOTAL RUSTED REBAR SPOTS ON COLUMNS TO BE REPAIRED PER DETAIL

1/S5.0

10. THE APPLICATION OF THE SEALANT SHALL BE PER SPECIFICATION. THE APPROXIMATE

AMOUNT OF REPAIR IS 675 LINEAR FEET.

S2.0

14

KH

NP

CN

KH

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1



C D FBA G H I

1

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

±

2

0

6

'
-

0

"

 

I

.

D

.

±

2

0

8

'

-

8

"

 

O

.

D

.

EXISTING ROOF

VENT

5

E

CONCRETE REPAIR PER PHOTO

REPAIR PER DETAIL

EXISTING 2" SLEEVE PIPE

REFERENCE PHOTO

TO BE REMOVED AND FILLED PER

NEW ROOF WATERPROOF COATING OVER

ENTIRE SURFACE PER PHOTO.

AND

SEE PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION

SEQUENCING & REQUIREMENT NOTES

EXISTING ROOF HATCH

EXISTING 36" DI INLET

PIPE (THROUGH ROOF)

EXISTING OVERFLOW #1

PIPE AND SPLASH PAD

EXISTING OVERFLOW #2

PIPE AND SPLASH PAD

EXISTING PRESTRESSED

CONCRETE TANK

EXISTING CONC COLUMN AND

CAPITAL BELOW, TYP

EXISTING LEVEL INDICATOR

REFERENCE PHOTO

TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED

WITH NEW 24" ROOF VENT

42" OUTLET PIPE

42" OUTLET PIPE

APPLY JOINT SEALANT

TO THE EXTERIOR PER

SPECIFICATION.

REFERENCE PHOTO

2

S6.0

1

S4.0

4

S4.0

2

S4.0

4

S5.0

5

S4.0

3

S4.0

3

S4.0

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
S

3
.
0

 
R

O
O

F
 
P

L
A

N
P

L
O

T
T

E
D

:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

ROOF PLAN - STRUCTURAL

S3.0

15

NOTES:

1. THE EXISTING TANK COMPONENTS LOCATION ARE INTENDED TO SHOW THE GENERAL EXISTING

CONDITIONS. THE ENGINEER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE TANK

INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE EXACT LOCATION OF

THE TANK COMPONENTS PRIOR TO ORDERING THE MATERIAL AND PERFORMING ANY MODIFICATION

WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY WHEN

CONFLICTS WITH THE EXISTING INFORMATION ARE DISCOVERED.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DISPOSAL OF THE DEMOLISHED EQUIPMENT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS AND OWNER'S REQUIREMENTS.

3. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND COLUMN LOCATIONS.

4. FIELD VERIFY LOCATION OF UTILITIES, MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT, CITY ELECTRICAL CONDUITS,

WIRING, AND PULL BOXES  AND PROTECT IN PLACE.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL EXECUTE THE PROPER CLEANING OF ALL SURFACES AFTER COMPLETION OF

WORK PER GOVERNING JURISDICTION RECOMMENDATION & SPECS.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT IN PLACE EXISTING PIPING AND APPURTENANCES TO REMAIN.

(NON-PAY ITEM).

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THAT HAVE BEEN APPROXIMATED ON

THESE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. PROVIDE UNIT COST FOR ITEMS SHOWN ON

DRAWINGS AND IF LESS REPAIRS ARE REQUIRED NOTIFY GOVERNING JURISDICTION AND CREDIT

ACCORDINGLY.

8. ALL COATINGS, REPAIR PATCHING, & JOINT MATERIALS USED ON THE INTERIOR OF THE TANK SHALL

BE NSF-61 APPROVED.

LEGEND:

INDICATES AREAS OF POTENTIAL PONDING WATER TO BE

FILLED AND LEVELED. USE EUCLID FLEXDECK MEMBRANE

PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE &

REQUIREMENT NOTES:

1. REMOVE ALL EXISTING ROOF GROUT COVER (IF ANY).  CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DAMAGE

EXISTING STRUCTURAL CONCRETE ROOF SLAB BELOW GROUT WHEN REMOVING GROUT

COVER.

2. AFTER REMOVAL OF CONCRETE TOPPING, CONTRACTOR SHALL SURVEY ROOF TO DETERMINE

LOW POINTS TO BE FILLED AND LEVELED.

3. WHERE CRACKS IN CONCRETE SLAB ARE DISCOVERED AFTER THE GROUT IS REMOVED TRACE

AND MATCH WITH CRACKS ON UNDER SIDE (SEE S2.0) AND, REPAIR CRACKS FROM TOP OF ROOF

PER S6.0.

4. CLEAN AND PREPARE SURFACE PER MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS.

5. FILL LOW POINTS (SHADED AREAS) TO ESTABLISH POSITIVE DRAINAGE.

6. COAT SURFACE WITH ELASTOMERIC WATER PROOF MEMBRANE, FLEXDECK SYSTEM BY EUCLID

CHEMICAL, OR APPROVED EQUAL. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL ROOF APPURTENANCES

PRIOR TO APPLYING WATERPROOF COATING.

7. SEE SPECIFICATIONS DIVISION 3, 9 AND 13 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE

COATING AND GROUTING REPAIRS.

KH

NP

CN

KH

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1

1

1

1



C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
S

4
.
0

 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

I
T

E
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 
P

H
O

T
O

G
R

A
P

H
S

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
6

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

1
:
3

5
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

PHOTOGRAPHS - STRUCTURAL

ROOF EXTERIOR- FILL AND APPLY COATING

ROOF EXTERIOR - REPAIR THE EXTERIOR CRACKS

ROOF UNDERSIDE - REMOVE AND PATCH

2" PIPE SLEEVE

ROOF UNDERSIDE - INSTALL NEW ROOF VENT

EXISTING LEVEL INDICATOR

ROOF INTERIOR - EXPOSED & RUSTED REINF

WALL INTERIOR - CUT ANCHOR
ROOF UNDERSIDE - RUST SPOT AND CRACKS

ROOF UNDERSIDE - RUST SPOTS AND CRACKS

9

S4.0

8

S4.0

7

S4.0

6

S4.0

5

S4.0

4

S4.0

3

S4.0

2

S4.0

S4.0

16

KH

NP

CN

KH

NOTES:

1. ALL THE PHOTOGRAPHS ARE INTENDED TO ILLUSTRATE THE CONDITIONS THAT THE CONTRACTOR MAY

ENCOUNTER DURING CONSTRUCTION.

2. NO ATTEMPT HAS BEEN MADE TO ADDRESS THE ACCURACY OF EVERY ELEMENT SHOWN IN THE

PHOTOGRAPHS, ALTHOUGH MINOR PIPING AND ELECTRICAL CONDUIT ASSOCIATED WITH EACH PIECE OF

EQUIPMENT MAY NOT BE SHOWN AS BEING REMOVED, IT IS INTENDED THAT THESE ITEMS ARE ALSO REMOVED.

3. THE PHOTOGRAPHS SHOWN MAY NOT REFLECT ALL ITEMS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROJECT SCOPE.

NO SCALE NO SCALE

NO SCALE

NO SCALE

NO SCALE
NO SCALE

NO SCALE NO SCALE

1

S4.0

NO SCALE

ROOF CONNECTION AT WALL - REPAIR GROUT

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



NOTES:

1. CHIP AWAY & REMOVE LOOSE CONCRETE.

2. PREPARE CONCRETE SURFACE PER NOTES ON SHEET S1 AND

MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS.

3. PATCH WITH SIKATOP 123 PLUS OR APPROVED EQUAL.

FINISHED EDGE OF RUST FREE

REBAR OR SOUND CONC IN A

RECTANGULAR PATTEN AFTER

CHIPPING OUT UNSOUND

MATERIAL

CONCRETE SPALL AREA

PRIOR TO BEING

CHIPPED OUT TO

SOUND MATERIAL

1
/
2
"

NOTES:

1. SAW CUT PERIMETER TO 

1

2

" DEPTH AND CHIP OUT 

1

2

 " BEYOND REINFORCEMENT.

2. REMOVE ALL UNSOUND MATERIAL. ALL DETERIORATED CONCRETE TO BE REMOVED AND ALL

CORRODED REBAR TO BE CLEANED TO NEAR WHITE.

3. APPLY CORROSION INHIBITOR SYSTEMS TO INCREASE THE pH AND RELEASE CONTAMINATIONS IN

CONCRETE AND STEEL.

4. APPLY SCRUB COAT FOR BOND ENHANCEMENT FROM NEW GROUT TO EXISTING CONCRETE AND

STEEL.

5. HAND PATCH WITH REPAIR MORTAR SUCH AS SIKATOP 123 PLUS OR APPROVED EQUAL TO MATCH

ORIGINAL SECTION.

6. OWNER'S REP/QUALIFIED INSPECTOR TO VERIFY CONCRETE REPAIR INSTALLATION USING A BALL

PEEN HAMMER.

7. NOTIFY ENGINEER IF CLEANED REINFORCING HAS LOST MORE THAN 25% OF ITS ORIGINAL SOLID

MATERIAL CROSS SECTION AREA.

EXISTING REINF

EXISTING CONC

SLAB

PLAN

1" CUT BACK

FILL W/ EPOXY

NOTES:

1. CUTBACK TOP 1" OF EXPOSED REBAR/ANCHOR.

2. REMOVE ANY UNSOUND MATERIAL PRIOR TO APPLICATION OF EPOXY.

3. EPOXY SHALL BE PRESSURE INJECTION EPOXY SUCH AS SIKADUR 35 HI-MOD

LV OR APPROVED EQUAL AND COVER REPAIR EPOXY WITH SIKADUR 31

HI-MOD GEL OR APPROVED EQUAL.

1" MIN CUT BACK

REMOVE CORRODED

SURFACE METAL AND LOOSE

CONCRETE.  FILL W/ EPOXY

CUT AND/OR EXPOSED

ANCHOR

EXISTING

CONCRETE

REPAIR CRACK PER

PROCEDURE, TYP

REPAIR PROCEDURE:

FOR CRACK WIDTH IS LESS THAN 1/8 "

1. REPAIR CRACKS WITH PRESSURE INJECTION EPOXY SUCH AS SIKADUR 35 HI-MOD LV

OR APPROVED EQUAL AND COVER REPAIR EPOXY WITH SIKADUR 31 HI-MOD GEL OR

APPROVED EQUAL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS.

2. NOTIFY ENGINEER FOR CRACK WIDTH LARGER THAN OR EQUAL TO 1/8 "

3. APPROXIMATE AMOUNT OF CRACK LENGTH IS 2500 LINEAR FEET.

NOTES:

1. CUTBACK OR DRILL OUT TOP 1" OF EXPOSED METAL.

2. WHERE EXISTING REPAIRS WERE PERFORMED, REMOVE ALL PREVIOUS

REPAIR MATERIALS.

3. EPOXY SHALL BE PRESSURE INJECTION EPOXY SUCH AS SIKADUR 35 HI-MOD

LV OR APPROVED EQUAL AND COVER REPAIR EPOXY WITH SIKADUR 31

HI-MOD GEL OR APPROVED EQUAL.

NOTES:

1. SAW CUT PERIMETER TO 3/4" DEPTH.

2. REMOVE ALL DETERIORATED CONCRETE.

3. APPLY SCRUB COAT FOR BOND ENHANCEMENT FROM NEW GROUT TO EXISTING

CONC.

4. HAND PATCH WITH REPAIR MORTAR SUCH AS SIKATOP 123 PLUS OR APPROVED

EQUAL TO REGAIN ORIGINAL SECTION.

5. OWNER'S REP/QUALIFIED INSPECTOR TO VERIFY CONCRETE REPAIR

INSTALLATION USING A BALL PEEN HAMMER.

EXISTING CONC

SLAB

3
/
4
"

M
I
N

OR

5

S6.0

6

S6.0

C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
S

5
.
0

 
R

E
P

A
I
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
I

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
7

/
2

0
2

1
 
1

0
:
5

3
 
A

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

STRUCTURAL DETAIL SHEET I

CONCRETE SPALL REPAIR

SURFACE METAL RUST SPOT REPAIR CONCRETE REPAIR AT CUT REINF/ANCHOR

CONCRETE THRU CRACK REPAIR

CONCRETE REPAIR AT EXPOSED REINFORCING

CONCRETE REPAIR WITHOUT EXPOSED REBAR  OR

SURFACE RUST

3

S5.0

4

S5.0

5

S5.0

6

S5.0

1

S5.0

2

S5.0

S5.0

17

NO SCALE NO SCALE NO SCALE

NO SCALE NO SCALE NO SCALE

KH

NP

CN

KH

ADDENDUM NO.1

1

1/07/2021

1



 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A B



 

 

CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK – SITE ASSESSMENT 
JULY 2019 

 
Kleinfelder completed the site assessment of the 6.0MG pre-stressed concrete Celestial GST 
on July 2, 2019. The following is the assessment summary for the site visit along with our 
proposed rehabilitation recommendations.    
 
COATING SYSTEM 
 
Exterior Coating System:  
The exterior coating system is stained, and the roof coating is chipping and cracking. The 
exterior roof had numerous areas of cracks that range from minor to moderate on the roof 
coating along with low area with potential water ponding resulting in staining. The shell area 
coating has minor cracks with efflorescence at multiple locations throughout.  
 
Action: The roof exterior will be coated with a new waterproof coating system. The exterior shell 
will have new coating for all the exposed areas (Aesthetic only). 
   

   

Photo No.1 - Cracking & Ponding   Photo No.2 - Cracking 
  

Interior Coating System:  
The Interior of the tank has no coating.  
 
No Action. 
 
STRUCTURAL 
 
Exterior & Appurtenances: 
Roof – The exterior has some moderate cracking on the exterior roof. Some cracking appears to 
be all the way through the concrete sections and edge. In addition, some areas on the roof were 
observed to have low spots for water ponding. The exterior roof slope is 0.25 inches/foot which 
is not in compliance with current TCEQ regulations of 0.75 inches/foot. An exception letter will 
be submitted to TCEQ for the roof slope.  
 



 

 

Action: The roof will get a new waterproof coating and additional coating layers will be added at 
the low-lying areas to help improve the positive roof slope. The cracking will be sealed prior to 
coating application. 
 

   

Photo No.3 - Cracking  Photo No.4 - Water Ponding 
  

 
Grout/Caulk: 
The grout between the exterior roof and the exterior shell wall has deteriorated at multiple 
locations around the tank.  
 
Action: The area will be repaired with new grout/caulk to provide a positive seal. 
 

   

Photo No.5 - Grout Deterioration  Photo No.6 - Grout Deterioration 
  

 
Shell Wall: 
The exterior wall has multiple areas with efflorescence, but no water was observed at those 
locations. The shell has some areas with minor to moderate cracking.  
 
Action: The cracking will be sealed prior to coating application. The exterior shell will have new 
coating applied for all the above-grade exposed areas. (Aesthetic only).   



 

 

 
   

Photo No.7 - Staining  Photo No.8 - Cracking 
  

 
Interior & Appurtenances: 
Roof – The interior roof has areas with moderate cracking with some efflorescence, steel chair 
exposure and concrete spalling. More than 10 locations of surface failure (spalling) were 
observed on the interior roof. Corrosion of the reinforced steel chairs and some exposed 
reinforced steel was observed in more than 16 locations. The areas were marked on the plans 
based on the float assessment.  
 
Action: The concrete at the spalling and chair corrosion will be repaired with proper techniques 
to preserve the tank life. The cracks will be sealed, and the corrosion repairs will be completed 
prior to applying the coating 
 

   

Photo No.9 - Cracking  Photo No.10 - Efflorescence 
  

 
 
Columns: 
There are sixty-nine (69) 16-inch diameter columns, each with 3.5-foot cone shaped tops and 4-
ft square bases. The columns appear to be in good condition, with spotted corrosion.  



 

 

 
Action: The corrosion areas will be repaired with patch repair.  
 

   

Photo No.11 – Exiting Column  Photo No 12 – Existing Column 
  

 
Grout/Caulk: 
The grout between the interior roof panels and interior shell panel has multiple areas of 
deterioration.  
 
Action: These areas will be repaired with new grout/caulking to provide a positive seal. 
 

   

Photo No.13 – Grout Deterioration  Photo No.14 – Grout Deterioration 
  

 
Shell: 
The interior shell is concrete that has staining on the interior. There was area spanning 50-feet 
where some exposed rebar was observed.  
 
Action. Remove the staining and repair the exposed rebar  
  



 

 

   

Photo No.15– Shell Wall Staining  Photo No.16 – Exposed Rebar 
  

 
SAFETY AND SECURITY 
 
Interior Ladders:  
The interior ladder appears to be in good condition. There is rust and staining but, is not of any 
safety concern. The ladder also has ladder cage with cable climb system.  
 
Action: The cage will be removed and the cable climb system will be removed and replaced with 
TS rail system.  
 

   

Photo No.17 – Interior Ladder  Photo No.18 – Cable Climb System 
  

 
Roof Hatch: 
The roof hatch was in good condition on the exterior. The interior of the hatch was in good 
condition except for two of the hatches lifting springs which had moderate corrosion. The 
confined space signage was missing on the exterior.  
 
Action: The interior hatch springs will be replaced, and new confined space signage will be 
installed. 
 
   



 

 

   

Photo No.19 – Roof Hatch  Photo No.20 – Roof Hatch 
  

 
Fencing & Gate:  
The existing fence and gate are in good condition.  
 
Action: Per Town of Addison instruction, the chain link fence on the east side of the property will 
be replaced with wrought iron fence. 
  

   

Photo No.211 – Northeast Gate  Photo No.22 – Northwest Gate 
 
 
 

 



 

 

   

Photo No.23 – Chain Link Fence - West 
 

 Photo No.24 - Chain Fence to be Replaced on 
East Side of Property 

  
 
OPERATIONAL 
 
Inlet Pipe: 
Existing 36-inch diameter ductile iron inlet pipe with cast iron elbows has some staining. The 
support saddle may need some minor repair.  
 
Action: Clean/removed the stained area and repair the support saddle deterioration with grout 
for the gap.  
 

   

Photo No.25 – Inlet Pipe  Photo No.26 – Inlet Pipe 
  



 

 

   

Photo No.27 – Inlet Pipe  Photo No.28 – Inlet Pipe Interior  
  

 
Outlet Pipe: 
The two existing (2) 42-inch ductile iron outlet pipes are in good condition.  The outlet pipes are 
flush- mounted to the floor plate. The outlet pipes on interior do not have any deflector plates. 
Please note that only the outlet structure was observed from the dive assessment.  
 
Action: Install deflector plate reduce any future Vortex.  
 

 

  

Photo No.29 – Outlet Pipe No.1  Photo No.30 – Outlet Pipe No.2 
  

Overflow Pipe:  
The two existing (2) 24-inch ductile iron overflow pipes was in moderate condition with spotted 
corrosion on the interior and exterior. The bolts on the interior flanges are severely corroded. 
Corrosion was observed on the interior of the pipes near the flap valve. Corrosion on overflow 
pipe 1 was more severe than overflow pipe 2.  
 
Action: The bolts will be replaced with stainless steel bolts. The overflow pipes will be fully 
blasted and recoated with the three-coat epoxy system. 
 
  



 

 

   

Photo No.29 – Overflow Pipe #1  Photo No.30 – Overflow Pipe #1 
 

   

Photo No.31 – Overflow Pipe #2  Photo No.32 – Overflow Pipe #2 
 
 
Overflow Weir: 
The existing 4-foot 2-inch weir boxes were severely corroded on the interior. Both of the weirs 
have steel that is severely corroded with delamination. The weirs bolts on the interior flanges 
are in poor condition with corrosion and delamination. The supports are in poor condition with 
severe corrosion.  
 
Action: Both of the overflow weirs shall be removed and replaced with new overflow weirs.  
 



 

 

   

Photo No.33– Overflow Weir #1  Photo No.34 – Overflow Weir #1 
 

   

Photo No.35 – Overflow Weir #2  Photo No.36 - Overflow Weir #2 
 
 
Overflow Flap Valve: 
The 24-inch flap valve on southeast side has corrosion on the exterior. The interior corrosion 
was severe with delamination. The valve closed fully. The 24-inch flap valve on southside has 
minor corrosion on interior and exterior.  
 
Action: Both flap valves shall be blasted and recoated. The deteriorated bolts shall be replaced.  
 



 

 

   

Photo No 37 – Overflow Flap Valve  Photo No.38 – Overflow Flap Valve 
  

 
Concrete splash pad:  
The overflow drains to storm drain located on southside of the tank site. The splash pad has 
minor staining and spotted cracking.  
 
No Action.  
 
Roof Vent: 
The existing 54-inch roof vent was in good condition.  
 
Action: Kleinfelder will calculate if any additional roof vent is necessary. 
 
  

   

Photo No.39 – Roof Vent  Photo No.40 Roof Vent Interior View 
 
 
INSTRUMENT & CONTROL SYSTEMS 
 
Level Indicator: 
The existing level indicator and structure are not being used as a new level indicator has been 
installed in the roof access hatch opening.  
 



 

 

Action: The anchor bolts for the new level indicator are completely corroded; they need to be 
replaced immediately. The old level indicator with all the equipment needs to be removed and/or 
repaired.  
 

   

Photo No. 41 – Old Level Indicator  Photo No.42 – Old Level Indicator 
 
 
SITE IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
The Town has requested to add a sidewalk around the perimeter of the tank. The Town to 
confirm for the requirement around the existing concrete splash pad.  
 
Action: There needs to be site grading that needs to be completed on the southside of the tank 
where moderate soil erosion has occurred due to runoff.  A drainage swale may be needed to 
provide proper site drainage and prevent runoff to adjoining properties. In addition, the grading 
needs to be completed for the sidewalk installation.  
 

   

Photo No.43 – Moderate Erosion  Photo No.44 – Moderate Erosion 
 
 
OTHER IMPROVEMENTS: 
 
The existing carbon coated bolts throughout the tank have corroded at multiple locations 
(except the inlet pipe).  



 

 

 
Action: The bolts will be replaced with new stainless-steel bolts.  
 

   

Photo No.45 – Carbon Coated Bolts (Interior)  Photo No.46 – Carbon Coated Bolts (Exterior) 
 
 



 
ADDENDUM NO.2 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 1 OF 6 

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL  
GROUND STORAGE TANK 

BID NO. 21-42 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
January 11, 2021 

 
Bidders are hereby informed of the following changes to the contract documents for the Town of 
Addison Rehabilitation of 6.0 Million Gallon (MG) Celestial Ground Storage Tank (GST) project. 
Bids for the project will be received up to 2:00 PM on Thursday, January 14, 2021. Bidders must 
acknowledge receipt of this Addendum on the Bid Proposal and below. 
  

A. DESIGN: 
 

SHEET S1.0 
a. Add Note #15: THE CONTRACTOR TO DISPOSE OF ALL WATER AND 

DEBRIS DURING THE POWER WASH, CLEANING, AND REPAIRS FOR 
INTERIOR OF THE TANK. NO SEPARATE PAY ITEM. 

 
B. SPECIFICATION 

 
SECTION SP – SPECIAL PROVISION 
a. Part 22 Qualification of Bids: Delete and replace with the following: 

 To be considered responsive, the apparent three lowest Bidders are required to 
submit the Section BQS Bidder Qualification Statement with Bid Submittal. 

 
SECTION PF – PROPOSAL FORM  

a. Bid Schedule Item No.5: Delete and replace to the following: 

a. Furnish and Install interior concrete repairs per contract 
documents, including surface preparation and field coating, use 
of joint sealants, caulking and grouting, Work includes all 
material and equipment, safety tools & plans, removal, haul off 
and disposal of existing concrete, per most recent federal, state 
and local regulations, complete in place, for the sum of  
 _________________________________ 
____________________________ Dollars 
and _______________________ Cents per Unit.  
 

b. Bid Schedule Item No.14: Delete and replace with following: 



 
ADDENDUM NO.2 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 2 OF 6 

14 1 LS 

Installation of new sidewalk around the 
perimeter of the Celestial GST, new splash 
pads, energy dissipators and associated rip 
rap per contract documents, complete in 
place, for the sum of 
_______________________________ 
____________________________ Dollars 
and _______________________ Cents per 
Unit .  

$_______ $_______ 

 
SECTION 01010 – SCOPE OF WORK 
a. Section 1.3 Summary Part 3. Delete and replace with: “Exterior cleaning and 

coating including the blasting of the exterior roof coating.” 

b. Section 1.3 Summary Part 4. Delete and replace with: “Remove and replace with 
“Interior power wash and cleaning entire interior tank to remove debris, dirt, 
staining around perimeter of the wall, column and roof.” 

c. Section 1.3 Summary Part 11. Delete: “Installation of a new 24” roof hatch.” 

d. Section 1.3 Summary Part 13. Delete and replace with: Removal of the sleeve 
pipe and level indicator on roof with all the appurtenance and cabling and replace 
with new 24-inch roof vent.  

SECTION 01025 – MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
a. PART 1.4 Bid Item E: Delete and replace with the following: 

 E. Interior Roof Concrete Repairs (Item 5) 

1. Work under this item includes furnishing all labor, materials and equipment 
for interior concrete repairs per contract documents, including surface 
preparation and field coating, use of joint sealants, caulking and grouting, 
Work includes all material and equipment, safety tools & plans, removal, 
haul off and disposal of existing concrete, per most recent federal, state and 
local regulations, complete in place. 

2. Measurement and payment for Item 5 shall be per lump sum at the unit price 
bid.   

b. PART 1.4 Bid Item N: Delete and replace with the following: 
 

 N. Site Improvements (Item 14) 

1. Work under this item includes furnishing all labor, materials and 
equipment to install new sidewalk around the perimeter of the Celestial 
GST, new splash pads, energy dissipators and associated rip rap 
(AASHTO #3). Work includes all material and equipment, safety tools & 
plans, removal, haul off and disposal of existing concrete, per most recent 
federal, state and local regulations, complete in place. 



 
ADDENDUM NO.2 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 3 OF 6 

2. Measurement and payment for Item 14 shall be per lump sum at the unit 
price bid.    

SECTION 03600 – GROUTING  
a. Part 2 Section A: Add the following: 

a. Sikadur 31 Hi-Mod Gel/LV 

b. Sikadur 123 Plus 

SECTION 09900 – SURFACE PREPARATION AND COATING 
a. Part 2.1  Add the following: 

1. Exterior Concrete Walls: 
  
1.         Surface Preparation: Pressure wash all surfaces to be coated using a 

solution of hot water and detergent at a minimum of 3500 psi and 
a minimum flow rate of 3.0 gallons per minute to remove all oil, 
grease, chalk, dust, dirt and other contaminants.  For mildewed 
surfaces, add chlorine bleach and allow solution to dry on the 
surface.  Rinse all surfaces with clean water.  

  
2.         Coating System: 

First Coat:        Tnemec Series 151 Elasto-Grip FC applied at 
200 square feet per gallon. 

Second Coat:   Tnemec Series 156 Enviro-Crete applied at 4.0 
to 6.0 dry mils.   

Third Coat:       Tnemec Series 156 Enviro-Crete applied at 4.0 
to 6.0 dry mils. 

  
                        Total minimum dry film thickness shall be 8.0 mils.  
 
SECTION 13000 – GROUND WATER STORAGE TANK REHABILITATION 

e. Section 1.1 Summary D. Add d. of Addendum No.1: Delete and replace with 
“Interior power wash and cleaning entire interior tank to remove debris, dirt, 
staining around perimeter of the wall, column and roof.”  

C. CIVCAST QUESTIONS: 
 

11. The project specifications state the hold period is 60 calendar days which goes 
beyond the stated start date of the tank rehabilitation schedule of February 25, 
2021 as stated on PDF Page 13 of the specifications.  Will the hold period for 
contract execution be reduced or will the scheduled window for tank rehab be 
moved allowing the contractor time for executing contracts and scheduling the 
work? 

 
Answer: The hold period can be reduced to 30 days.  
 

34. The Instructions to Bidders state that the tank can only be out of service for 45 
Calendar Days between the dates of February 25th, 2021 to April 15th, 2021.  
There are more than 45 Calendar Days between February 25 and April 15.  Can 



 
ADDENDUM NO.2 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 4 OF 6 

it be confirmed that the tank can be out of service for the full time from February 
25 through April 15?  
 
Answer: The tank can only allow to be out of service for a maximum of 45 
consecutive calendar days and those days shall fall between February 25th, 2021 
and April 15th, 2021.  

 
35. Bid Item No. 5 in the Proposal Form describes interior concrete repairs and 

includes “fluid applied to roofing”.  The remainder of the Bid Documents appear 
not to require that fluid be applied to the underside of the tank roof.  Can 
clarification be provided as to the meaning of “fluid applied to roofing” in Bid Item 
No. 5? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.2 

 
36. Part 3, Paragraph A of Section 01656 states that disinfection of the water storage 

tank must be by Method 2 of AWWA Standard C652-11.  Is Method 3 of AWWA 
Standard C652-11 an acceptable alternative? 

 
Answer: The disinfection shall be as per the contract documents.   

 
37. Article 1.4.K of Section 01740 (as revised by Addendum No. 1) requires that the 

manufacturers of the wall and roof coatings provide warranties of ten (10) and 
twenty (20) years, respectively, on the surface preparation and coating.  It is our 
experience that coating manufacturers do not warrant surface preparation and 
coating installations, nor do they provide warranties for such extended periods.  
Can this article be changed to require only that the coating system manufactures 
provide their standard material warranties? 

 
Answer: Refer to  the contract documents. 

 
38. Article 1.1.A.1.c of Section 30001 (as revised by Addendum No. 1) states:  

“Apply two (2) coats of a non-cementitious 100% acrylic coating to exterior 
surface of roof.”.  However, Articles 2.1.C through F specify a roof system 
consisting of epoxy primers and urethane membranes.  What coating(s) should 
be applied to the tank roof? 

 
Answer: Refer to the contract documents.  

 
39. Article 1.6.A of Section 30001 states that the concrete tank retrofit work shall be 

performed by skilled personnel employed directly by the tank contractor.  Can 
subcontractors employed directly by the tank contractor be used to perform 
surface preparations and the installation of the roof waterproofing system and 
other coatings required on the project? 

 
Answer: Refer to the contract documents.  

 
40. Article 1.6.j of Section 09900 states the following:  “The manufacturer shall 

certify, in writing that the surface has been prepared, that the coating is being 
properly installed and, upon completion that the quality of the coating installed 
meets the requirements shown in this specification section.”.  It is our experience 



 
ADDENDUM NO.2 

REHABILIATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GST 
BID NO. 21-42 
PAGE 5 OF 6 

that coating manufacturers do not certify surface preparation and installation 
quality.  Can this article be changed to require that the certification be by the tank 
contractor. 

 
Answer: Refer to the contract documents. 
 

41. Article 1.6.r of Section 09900 (as revised by Addendum No. 1) requires that the 
manufacturer of the coating system provide a minimum warranty of ten (10) 
years on the coating system.  It is our experience that coating manufacturers do 
not warrant coating installations, nor do they provide warranties for such an 
extended period.  Can this article be changed to require only that the coating 
system manufacturer provide their standard material warranty? 

 
Answer: Refer to the contract documents.  

 
42. Article 1.1.D.d of Section 13000 (as revised by Addendum No. 1) states: “Interior 

power wash and cleaning.”  What interior tank surfaces need to be power 
washed? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.2 

 
43. "NOTE 7 on the first Sheet S4.0 (Sheet 15) states: “CONTRACTOR SHALL 

FIELD VERIFY THE AMOUNT OF REPAIRS THAT HAVE BEEN 
APPROXIMATED ON THESE DRAWINGS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 
PROVIDE UNIT COST FOR ITEMS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS AND IF LESS 
REPAIRS ARE REQUIRED NOTIFY GOVERNING JURISDICTION AND 
CREDIT ACCORDINGLY.”.  We are unclear as to the meaning of this note.  Can 
clarification be provided as to the intent of this note and, if a credit for less repairs 
is actually required, can it be confirmed that the Contract Price will be increased 
if more repairs are required?" 

 
Answer: Any overage will be paid in accordance with the submitted unit cost.  

 
44. PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE  REQUIREMENT NOTE 1 on the 

first Sheet S4.0 (Sheet 15) requires the removal of all existing roof grout cover (if 
any).  Is there any existing roof grout cover and, if so, can information be 
provided as the surface area and approximate thickness of the grout? 

 
Answer: No additional information available at this time.  

 
45. NOTE 3 of the CONCRETE SPALL REPAIR detail on Sheet S5.0 says to patch 

with SIKATOP 123 PLUS OR APPROVED EQUAL.  Article 2.1.A of Section 
30001 lists a number of pathing materials, none of which is SIKATOP 123 PLUS. 
What patching material should be used on the concrete spall repair? 

 
Answer: See Addendum No.2 

 
46. The application of the tank roof membrane system is very weather sensitive.  

Can the project completion time be extended from 120 to 150 calendar days? 
 

Answer: The project complete time shall be as per the contract documents.  





C
A

D
 
F

I
L

E
:
 
 
C

:
\
U

s
e

r
s
\
n

p
a

t
e

l
\
O

n
e

D
r
i
v
e

 
-
 
K

l
e

i
n

f
e

l
d

e
r
\
D

e
s
k
t
o

p
\
T

O
A

\
D

r
a

w
i
n

g
\
T

o
w

n
 
O

f
 
A

d
d

i
s
o

n
_

C
e

l
e

s
t
i
a

l
 
G

S
T

_
C

O
N

F
I
R

M
E

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
 
S

E
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
 
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
:
 
 
S

1
.
0

 
-
 
T

Y
P

I
C

A
L

 
N

O
T

E
S

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
:
 
 
 
1

/
1

1
/
2

0
2

1
 
2

:
5

6
 
P

M
 
 
B

Y
:
 
n

i
r
a

v
 
p

a
t
e

l

18

DEC 2020

-

20201073.001A

REV DESCRIPTION

DSN CHK

DATE

DWN APP

7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100

Irving, TX 75063

Phone: 972-868-5900

www.kleinfelder.com

BID SUBMITTAL

SHEET of

DESIGNED BY

ISSUE DATE

CURRENT REVISION

DRAWN BY

CHECKED BY

PROJECT NO.

REVISIONS

1"0

SCALE VERIFICATION

THIS BAR IS 1 INCH IN LENGTH

ON ORIGINAL DRAWING

IF IT'S NOT 1 INCH ON THIS

SHEET ADJUST YOUR

SCALES ACCORDINGLY

APPROVED BY

ORIGINAL DRAWING SIZE IS 22 x 34

N

ADDISON, TEXAS 75001

16801 WESTGROVE ROAD

PUBLIC WORKS AND ENGINEERING SERVICES

ADDISON, TEXAS

Firm Registration No.: F-16438

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL

GROUND STORAGE TANK

BID NO 21-42

TYPICAL NOTES I

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE PART OF THE

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

2. THE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS ARE TO BE USED IN

CONJUNCTION WITH CIVIL DRAWINGS. NO PORTION OF

STRUCTURAL RELATED WORK, INCLUDING SHOP DRAWING

DEVELOPMENT, SHALL BE PERFORMED WITHOUT CONSIDERING

REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS IN THEIR

ENTIRETY.

3. DETAILS AND SCHEDULES INDICATED AS "TYPICAL" MAY NOT BE

SPECIFICALLY REFERENCED ON DRAWINGS. DETERMINE

WHERE EACH TYPICAL DETAIL OR SCHEDULE APPLIES BEFORE

PROCEEDING WITH WORK. IF CONDITIONS ARE FOUND WHICH

ARE NOT SPECIFICALLY DETAILED AND NO TYPICAL DETAIL OR

SCHEDULE APPLIES, PROMPTLY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER.

4. OPENINGS, POCKETS, CORE DRILLING, ETC. SHALL NOT BE

PLACED IN STRUCTURAL WALLS, SLABS, AND MEMBERS

UNLESS SPECIFICALLY DETAILED ON THE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS. NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD WHEN

DRAWINGS BY OTHERS INDICATE OPENINGS, POCKETS, CORE

DRILLING, ETC., NOT INDICATED ON THE STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS, BUT WHICH ARE LOCATED IN STRUCTURAL

MEMBERS.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW EXISTING CONDITIONS ON

THE SITE DURING THE BIDDING. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO STARTING WORK. THE

ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR

INCONSISTENCIES PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

6. UNLESS NOTED OR SHOWN OTHERWISE, ALL PHASES OF WORK

ARE TO CONFORM TO THE MINIMUM STANDARDS OF THE

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (LATEST EDITION), AND ANY

ASTM SPECIFICATIONS ON WHICH THESE STANDARDS ARE

BASED. WHERE CONFLICT BETWEEN BUILDING CODES AND

SPECIFICATIONS OCCUR, THE MOST STRINGENT

REQUIREMENTS SHALL GOVERN.

7. ALL ASTM DESIGNATIONS REFERRED TO ON THESE DRAWINGS

SHALL BE THE LATEST ADOPTED OR REVISED SPECIFICATION,

AS OF THE DATE OF THESE DRAWINGS.

8. ALL DIMENSIONS SHALL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALE

SHOWN ON PLANS, SECTIONS AND DETAILS. DRAWINGS SHALL

NOT BE SCALED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

9. NOTES AND DETAILS ON THE DRAWINGS SHALL TAKE

PRECEDENCE OVER GENERAL NOTES AND TYPICAL DETAILS.

10. THE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS SHOW ONLY THE BASIC

STRUCTURAL REQUIREMENTS. REFER TO CIVIL DRAWINGS FOR

NON-STRUCTURAL ITEMS, SUCH AS:

A. SIZE AND LOCATION OF ALL OPENINGS.

B. SIZE AND LOCATION OF ALL CONCRETE

CURBS,WALKS,ROOF AND FLOOR DRAINS, SLOPES, ETC.

C. FLOOR, ROOF, AND WALL FINISHES.

D. DIMENSIONS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN ON STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS.

11. THE STRUCTURAL CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND

SPECIFICATIONS REPRESENT THE FINISHED STRUCTURE.

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, THEY DO NOT INDICATE THE

METHOD OF CONSTRUCTION.

12. NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER WILL ENFORCE

SAFETY MEASURES OR REGULATIONS. THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL, AT HIS OWN EXPENSE, DESIGN, CONSTRUCT, AND

MAINTAIN ALL SAFETY DEVICES, INCLUDING SHORING,

SCAFFOLDING AND BRACING AND SHALL BE SOLELY

RESPONSIBLE FOR CONFORMING TO ALL LOCAL, STATE, AND

FEDERAL SAFETY AND HEALTH STANDARDS, LAWS AND

REGULATIONS.  SITE OBSERVATION VISITS BY THE

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER SHALL NOT INCLUDE INSPECTION OF

THE ABOVE SAFETY ITEMS.

13. SATISFACTORY EXECUTION OF CONSTRUCTION IS DEPENDENT

UPON CONFORMANCE WITH THE INTENT OF THESE DRAWINGS.

THE OWNER OR CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN A TEXAS

LICENSED CIVIL OR STRUCTURAL ENGINEER DURING

CONSTRUCTION TO OBSERVE THE CONSTRUCTION AND STATE

THAT THE STRUCTURE HAS BEEN BUILT IN GENERAL

CONFORMANCE WITH THE INTENT OF THESE DRAWINGS.

14. WHERE NO CONSTRUCTION DETAILS ARE SHOWN OR NOTED

FOR ANY PART OF THE WORK, THE DETAILS SHALL BE THE

SAME AS FOR OTHER SIMILAR WORK.

15. THE CONTRACTOR TO DISPOSE OF ALL WATER AND DEBRIS

DURING THE POWER WASH, CLEANING, AND REPAIRS FOR

INTERIOR OF THE TANK. NO SEPARATE PAY ITEM.

STRUCTURAL STEEL:

1. STEEL FABRICATION, ERECTION, AND CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO CHAPTER

22 OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, AISC 360 "SPECIFICATION FOR

STRUCTURAL STEEL BUILDINGS," AND AISC 303 "CODE OF STANDARD PRACTICE FOR

STEEL BUILDINGS AND BRIDGES" (LATEST EDITIONS), EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SHOWN

OR SPECIFIED.

2. SPECIAL INSPECTION AND TESTING IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTIONS

1704 AND 1705 OF THE INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE AND THE "STATEMENT OF

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS" ON THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

3. AWS CERTIFIED WELDERS SHALL BE USED FOR ALL WELDING. WELDING TO BE

PERFORMED IN AISC CERTIFIED FABRICATOR SHOP OR EQUAL. ALL WELDING TO

CONFORM TO THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN WELDING SOCIETY

STRUCTURAL WELDING CODE AWS D1.1.

4. MATERIALS:

ROLLED SHAPES

WIDE FLANGES ASTM A992 GRADE 50

CHANNELS, ANGLES, OTHER ASTM A36

PLATES

BEAM COVER/SIDE PLATES ASTM A572 GRADE 50

COLUMN CONTINUITY PLATES ASTM A572 GRADE 50

COLUMN BASE PLATES ASTM A572 GRADE 50

OTHER UON ASTM A36

OTHER SHAPES

PIPES ASTM A53 GRADE B

HSS (SQUARE AND RECTANGULAR) ASTM A500 GRADE B (FY = 46 KSI)

HSS (ROUND) ASTM A500, GRADE B (FY = 42 KSI)

FASTENERS

HIGH STRENGTH BOLTS A325

MACHINE BOLTS A307

ANCHOR BOLTS ASTM F1554, GRADE 36 UON

THREADED AND HANGER ROD ASTM A307

WELDED SHEAR CONNECTORS ASTM A108 GRADE 1015 THRU 1020

NUTS FOR BOLTS AND MACHINE BOLTS ASTM A563 UON

HARDENED WASHERS ASTM F436

FINISHING

GALVANIZING ASTM A123

RUST-INHIBITING PRIMER TT-P-645

5. HOT-DIPPED GALVANIZE PER ASTM A123, A153, A385 AFTER FABRICATION OF ALL

STRUCTURAL STEEL AND CONNECTORS EXPOSED TO WEATHER.  REPAIR PER ASTM

A780.

6. CONNECTED MEMBERS SHALL BEAR ONLY UPON UNTHREADED PORTIONS OF BOLTS.

7. BURNING OF HOLES IN STEEL MEMBERS/PLATES IS NOT PERMITTED.

8. THE STRUCTURAL STEEL FABRICATOR SHALL SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS TO THE

ENGINEER FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO FABRICATION.

9. BOLT HOLES SHALL BE 1/16" LARGER IN DIAMETER THAN NOMINAL SIZE OF BOLT USED,

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

10. STRUCTURAL STEEL SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE JOB SITE FREE OF EXCESSIVE

RUST, MILL SCALE, GREASE, ETC.

11. OPENINGS SHALL NOT BE PLACED IN STEEL MEMBERS UNLESS SPECIFICALLY

DETAILED.

12. TIGHTEN ASTM A325N BOLTS TO "SNUG-TIGHT" CONDITION PER AISC SPECIFICATION

FOR STRUCTURAL JOINTS.

13. WHEN FABRICATING BEAMS, PLACE NATURAL CAMBER UP. PROVIDE UPWARD CAMBER

TO ALL MEMBERS INDICATED TO HAVE CAMBER. AMOUNT MEASURED IN THE FIELD

PRIOR TO ERECTION SHALL NOT DEVIATE BY MORE THAN ALLOWED BY THE AISC

SPECIFICATIONS. DO NOT CAMBER MEMBERS OCCURRING BELOW ELEVATOR

ENTRANCE DOORS.

WELDING:

1. ALL WELDING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICAN WELDING SOCIETY CODE

D1.1. (LATEST EDITION).

2. ALL WELDING SHALL BE DONE BY CERTIFIED WELDERS.

3. ALL WELDS SHALL HAVE A WELD CONTROLLED SEQUENCE

AND TECHNIQUE IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE SHRINKAGE,

STRESSES, AND DISTORTION.

4. ALL ELECTRODES FILLER MATERIAL SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF

E70XX.

5. WELDING OF REINFORCING BARS IS NOT PERMITTED

WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEER. SPECIAL

INSPECTION IS REQUIRED.

6. UNLESS A LARGER SIZE FILLET WELD IS INDICATED, PROVIDE

MINIMUM SIZE WELD PER AISC SPECIFICATION, SECTION J2

AND TABLE J2.4.

7. WELD LENGTHS INDICATED ON PLANS ARE THE MINIMUM NET

EFFECTIVE LENGTH REQUIRED. WHERE LENGTH OF WELD IS

NOT SPECIFIED, IT SHALL BE FULL LENGTH OF JOINT.

CONCRETE ANCHORS:

1. CONCRETE ANCHORS INSTALLED INTO CONCRETE SHALL BE

STAINLESS STEEL AND AS INDICATED BELOW, UON. INSTALLATION

SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ICC REPORT AND

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

  CONCRETE: HILTI KWIK BOLT TZ (ICC ESR-1917)

SIMPSON STRONG BOLT 2 (ICC ESR-3037)

                            OR APPROVED EQUAL

       

2. ADHESIVE FOR REBAR AND ANCHORS SHALL HAVE TESTED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 355.4 AND ICC-ES AC308 FOR CRACKED

CONCRETE. DESIGN ADHESIVE BOND STRENGTH HAS BEEN BASED

ON ACI 355.4 TEMP CATEGORY "A" WITH INSTALLATION INTO DRY

CONCRETE. ANCHROS SHALL BE INSTALLED BY A CERTIFIED

ANCHOR INSTALLER PER ACI 318-14 D.9.2.

CONCRETE:

HILTI "HIT-HY 200" (ICC-ES ESR-3187)

SIMPSON STRONG-TIE "SET-3G" (ICC-ES ESR 4057)

3. ANCHOR INSTALLERS SHALL BE TRAINED BY A QUALIFIED

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE ANCHOR MANUFACTURER ON THE

PROPER PROCEDURES AND TECHNIQUES FOR INSTALLATION.

4. PROVIDE EXPANSION ANCHORS WITH THE TYPE, DIAMETER, AND

MINIMUM EMBEDMENT DEPTH AS NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS.

SUBSTITUTIONS ARE NOT ALLOWED WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM

THE ENGINEER.

5. LOCATE REINFORCEMENT AND CONFIRM FINAL ANCHOR

LOCATIONS PRIOR TO FABRICATING PLATES, MEMBERS, OR OTHER

STEEL ASSEMBLIES ATTACHED WITH ANCHORS.

6. WHEN INSTALLING ANCHORS IN EXISTING REINFORCED CONCRETE

AVOID CUTTING OR DAMAGING THE EXISTING REINFORCING BARS

AND PRESTRESSED TENDONS.

7. HOLES DRILLED FOR ANCHORS THAT DO NOT SET PROPERLY OR IF

REINFORCEMENT IS ENCOUNTERED DURING DRILLING, ABANDON

AND SHIFT THE HOLE LOCATION TO AVOID THE REINFORCEMENT.

PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 2 ANCHOR DIAMETERS OR 1 INCH,

WHICHEVER IS LARGER, OR SOUND CONCRETE BETWEEN THE

DOWEL AND THE ABANDONED HOLE.  FILL THE ABANDONED HOLE

WITH NON-SHRINK GROUT.  CONTRACTOR TO GET APPROVAL FROM

ENGINEER BEFORE RELOCATING ANCHOR.

8. THE DIAMETER AND DRILLING METHOD OF THE HOLES ARE PER THE

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.  PRIOR TO INSTALLING

ANCHORS, BLOW OUT WITH OIL-FREE COMPRESSED AIR.

9. SPECIAL INSPECTION IS REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

SECTION 1704 OF THE CURRENT INTERNATIONAL BUILDING

CODE, THE "STATEMENT OF SPECIAL INSPECTIONS” ON THESE

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, AND THE ICC REPORTS.

S1.0

12

KH

NP

CN

KH

ADDENDUM NO.2

2

1/11/2021

2



Bidders Qualification Statement 



 

 

Company Background  
 
 
 
 
DN Tanks, LLC specializes in the design and construction of AWWA D110 prestressed concrete tanks 
used for potable water, wastewater, chilled water and other liquids. With over 90 years of experience, 
and over 3,000 tanks ranging in capacity from 40,000 gallons to 42 million gallons, DN Tanks offers 
expanded construction capacity, unmatched technical expertise and proficiency in multiple types of 
proven tank designs to provide customized storage solutions. Our tanks are designed to meet varying 
project requirements while delivering our clients the lowest future cost of ownership and best long-term 
value. 
 
Concrete Tank Services is a division of DN Tanks that is committed to quality and customer service and 
providing turn-key design and construction capabilities for the inspection, rehabilitation and retrofit of all 
types of concrete tanks. 
 
Our mission to drive the quality of our work inside and out, is simply to make every tank we build a 
source of pride, for us and for our customers. It’s our commitment to quality, durability, and to 
delivering long-term value that lasts for generations. 
 

DN Tanks Operational Centers 

East Operations Center 
11 Teal Road 

Wakefield, MA 01880 
Telephone: 781.246.1133 

Central Operations Center 
410 East Trinity Boulevard 
Grand Prairie, TX 75050 

Telephone: 972.823.3300 

West Operations Center 
351 Cypress Lane 

PO Box 696 
El Cajon, CA 92020 

Telephone: 619.440.8181 
   

Covering New England States Covering No. TX & OK Covering So. CA & HI 
408.663.0479 972.823.3302 619.270.4546 

 
DN Tanks Regional Offices 

New York 
315.930.2325 

 

So. Texas & Louisiana 
361.541.5560 

Southwest  
619.270.4524 

Mid-Atlantic 
267.661.5565 

 

Midwest 
701.540.4290 

Pacific Northwest 
503.323.2000 

Mid-Central 
812.558.0001 

 

Central States 
913.681.6006 

No. California 
916.426.5838 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 



BQS-1 

SECTION BQS 

BIDDER QUALIFICATION STATEMENT



BQS-2 

SECTION BQS 

ALL BIDDERS ARE NOTIFIED THAT THE FOLLOWING QUALIFICATION 

STATEMENT MUST BE COMPLETED AND SUBMITTED WITH THE BID PROPOSAL 

CONTRACTOR’S QUALIFICATIONS 

The Contractor shall show that he has experience with similar projects that require working on 

water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer construction and/or relocation projects working in 

confined areas in close proximity to many physical features (such as: fences, carports, utility 

poles, guy lines, gas lines and meters, water lines, sewer manholes and cleanouts, etc.) which 

will require the Contractor to plan his work efforts and equipment needs with these limitations in 

mind.  The Contractor shall submit a complete list of ALL Municipal and Similar Non-

Municipal current and completed projects for the past three (3) years for review. This list shall 

include the names of supervisors and type of equipment used to perform this work. 



BQS-3 

BIDDERS QUALIFICATION STATEMENT 

REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MILLION GALLON (MG) CELESTIAL 
GROUND STORAGE TANK (GST) BID NO 21-42

Contractor:______________________________________________________________ 

Indicate One: _______Sole Proprietor _______Partnership _______Other 

_______Corporation _______ Joint Venture 

Name: Partner: 

Title: Title: 

Address:___________________________ Address: ____________________________________ 

City:  City: 

State & Zip:  State & Zip: 

Phone:___________________________ ___Phone:____________________________________ 

State and Date of Incorporation, Partnership, Ownership, Etc.

Location of Principal Office: 

Contact and Phone at Principal Office: 

Liability Insurance Provider and Limits of Coverage: 

Workers Compensation Insurance Provider: 

Surety (Performance and Payment): 

Address:________________________________________________________________ 

Contact and Phone:________________________________________________________ 

DN Tanks, LLC

410 East Trinity Boulevard

Grand Prairie

Texas & 75050

(972) 823-3300

(LLC)

 Delaware, January 1, 2020

11 Teal Road, Wakefield, Massachusetts, 01880

Stephen Boyle  (781)224-5163

Zurich American Insurance Company

Western Surety/ CNA Surety

53 State Street  Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Daniel Rapp - (617) 994-4306

Zurich American Insurance Company $2M/$4M

Robert J. Walsh 

Vice President of Construction

dyounis
Stamp



BQS-4 

Superintendent and Backup Superintendent: (Work Resume - attach additional sheets.) (Safety 

Record – attached additional sheets; if needed show all verified safety violations.)  The 

superintendent shall be able to communicate in English and not operate any equipment and have not 

had any verified job safety violations in the past five years.  Any variations shall be reviewed by the 

OWNER for approval or denial.  A job site shall be shut down if proper supervision is not provided. 

Superintendent Name Backup Superintendent Name 

_____________________________ ____________________________________

Safety Record – List ALL Verified Violations for Superintendent and Backup Superintendent 

with explanation, date and action taken to correct future safety violations: 

Superintendent 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Backup Superintendent 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Total Number of Employees to be Associated with this Job: ______________________________ 

Managerial__________ Administrative__________ Professional__________ 

Skilled__________ Semi-Skilled__________ Other__________ 

Percentage of work to be done by Bidder’s Employees (Based on Dollars Bid): ______________ 

19

5 4 2

6 2

Francisco Villa ** Oscar De La Cerda **

No OSHA Violations

No OSHA Violations

** DN Tanks reserves the right to make final Superintendent assignment based on schedule and 
availability.  An assignment can be submitted for approval prior to mobilization with all 
required safety and experience documentation.

** DN Tanks reserves the right to make final Superintendent assignment based on schedule and 
availability.  An assignment can be submitted for approval prior to mobilization with all 
required safety and experience documentation.

+/- 75%



BQS-5 

Type(s) of work to be done by Bidder’s Employees (examples: concrete paving, structural concrete, 

waterlines, sanitary sewer lines, storm pipe, storm inlets, excavation, lime, bridge fencing, etc.)  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Access to Tools and Equipment:  Percent Owned____ Percent Rented____ 

Number of Years in Business as a Contractor on Above Types of Works:_______ 

Type(s) of Work to be done by Sub-Contractors 

Include Name, Address, and Phone Number of Sub-Contractor. 

Use additional sheets if needed. 

Type of Work Sub-Contractor 

List Equipment to be used on this project (Make/Model/Age of Major Equipment) Any Equipment 

not listed shall be reviewed by the OWNER for approval or rejection prior to use of Equipment on 

this project. (Use additional sheets if necessary) 

Type of Equipment Make Model Age (years) 

90 Years

******* See attached Equipment list *******

Tank rehabilitation, pipe replacements, concrete rehab, tank coatings, tank modifications

75 25

Fencing & Mow Strip To be determined

Site Work (Sidewalk, swale, site restoration) To be determined

Irrigation          To be determined

Overflow discharge improvements To be determined



BQS-6 

List of ALL Municipal and Similar Non-Municipal current and completed projects for the past three (3) 

years.   (Use additional sheets if necessary.) 

1. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

2. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

******* See attached Statement of Experience *******

See BQS Page 12

Safety Records and OSHA 300 Logs can be provided upon request



BQS-7 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

3. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

4. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 



BQS-8 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

5. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

6. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 



BQS-9 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

7. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 



BQS-10 
 

8. Project:___________________________________________________________________ 

  

 Current Status:_____________________________________________________________  

 

 Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

 

9. Project:___________________________________________________________________ 

  

 Current Status:_____________________________________________________________  

 

 Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

 



BQS-11 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

10. Project:___________________________________________________________________

Current Status:_____________________________________________________________ 

Any Litigation Issues: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Any Verified Safety Violations: Yes or No (Circle One) If Yes, explain:________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Description:_________________________________________________________ 

Owner/Agency:____________________________________________________________ 

Year Built:______________________ Contract Price:______________________________ 

Contact Person:________________ Phone:______________________________________ 

Trade references (List Company, Address, Contact Person, and Phone): 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Bank References (List Institution, Address, Contact Person, and Phone) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Michigan Steel Fabricators - 5225 Energy Drive, Flint, MI 48505 - Richard Webster (810) 785-1820

United Forest Products, Inc. - 2801 E. Beltline NE, Grand Rapids, MI 49525 - Angela Bass (616) 364-6161

Fine Line Metal Fabricators, Inc. - 3975 Tem Tex Blvd. Terrell, TX 75160 - John Somogye (972) 524-6248

Citizens Bank - 28 State Street, MS1410,  Boston, MA 02109

Telephone: (617) 725-5593  

Contact: Denise McGeough, Vice President, email: Denise.D.McGeough@citizensbank.com







Delivery of Bids: For delivery of paper bids our physical address is: 

Town of Addison 

5350 Beltline Road 

Dallas, TX 75254 

Attn:  Purchasing Department 

Contractor/Supplier Employees: No Contractor/Supplier employee shall have a direct or indirect financial 

interest in any contract with the Town, or be directly or indirectly financially interested in the sale of land, 

materials, supplies or services to the town. 

Deliveries: All deliveries will be F.O.B. Town of Addison. All Transportation Charges paid by the 

contractor/supplier to Destination.  

Payment Terms: A Prompt Payment Discount of __% is offered for Payment Made Within Days of 

Acceptance of Goods or Services. If Prompt Payments are not offered or accepted, payments shall be 

made 30 days after receipt and acceptance of goods or services or after the date of receipt of the invoice 

whichever is later.  

Delivery Dates: Delivery Dates are to be specified in Calendar Days from the Date of Order. 

Bid Prices: Pre-Award bid prices shall remain Firm and Irrevocable for a Period of ________ Days. 

 Exceptions: Contractor/Supplier does not take Exception to Bid Specifications or Other Requirements 

of this Solicitation.  If neither exceptions box is checked, default shall be “No Exceptions” 

 Contractor/Supplier take the following Exception(s) to the Bid Specifications or Other Requirements 

of this Solicitation (Explain in Detail).  If box checked but no exceptions are listed, default shall be “No 

Exceptions” 

Historically Underutilized Business (HUB): It is the policy of the Town of Addison to involve HUBs in 

the procurement of goods, equipment, services and construction projects. Prime Contractors/Suppliers 

are encouraged to provide HUBs the opportunity to compete for sub-contracting and other procurement 

opportunities. A listing of HUBs in this area may be accessed at the following State of Texas Website. 

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/cmbl/cmblhub.html 

HUB Owned Business Yes No Include a current copy of your HUB certification with your response or 

insert Certification number _______________________ and expire 

date _______________________.     

Other Government Entities: Would bidder be willing to allow other local governmental entities to 

participate in this contract, if awarded under the same Terms and Conditions? Yes    No  

Bid Bond: Is Bid Bond attached if applicable? Yes No 

60

0

http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/cmbl/cmblhub.html
dyounis
Stamp

dyounis
Oval

dyounis
Stamp

dyounis
Stamp





  IS 2 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK 

REQUIREMENTS 
Contractors performing work on TOWN OF ADDISON property or public right-of-way shall provide the TOWN 
OF ADDISON a certificate of insurance or a copy of their insurance policy(s) (and including a copy of the 
endorsements necessary to meet the requirements and instructions contained herein) evidencing the 
coverages and coverage provisions identified herein within ten (10) days of request from TOWN OF 
ADDISON.  Contractors shall provide TOWN OF ADDISON evidence that all subcontractors performing work 
on the project have the same types and amounts of coverages as required herein or that the subcontractors 
are included under the contractor’s policy.  Work shall not commence until insurance has been approved by 
TOWN OF ADDISON. 

All insurance companies and coverages must be authorized by the Texas Department of Insurance to transact 
business in the State of Texas and must have a A.M. Best’s rating A-:VII or greater.  Refer to Section SP – 
Special Provisions for additional insurance information. 

Listed below are the types and minimum amounts of insurances required and which must be maintained during 
the term of the contract.  TOWN OF ADDISON reserves the right to amend or require additional types and 
amounts of coverages or provisions depending on the nature of the work. 

TYPE OF INSURANCE AMOUNT OF INSURANCE PROVISIONS 
1. Workers’ Compensation

Employers’ Liability to
include:

(a) each accident 
(b) Disease Policy 

Limits 
(c) Disease each 

employee 

Statutory Limits per 
occurrence 

Each accident $1,000,000 
Disease Policy Limits 
$1,000,000 
Disease each 
employee$1,000,000 

TOWN OF ADDISON to be provided a 
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION AND 30 
DAY NOTICE OF CANCELLATION or 
material change in coverage. 
Insurance company must be A-:VII 
rated or above. 

2. Commercial General 
(Public) Liability to 
include coverage for:
a) Bodily Injury
b) Property damage
c) Independent

Contractors
d) Personal Injury
e) Contractual Liability

Bodily Injury/Property 
Damage per occurrence 
$1,000,000, General 
Aggregate $2,000,000 
Products/Completed 
Aggregate $2,000,000, 
Personal Advertising Injury 
per occurrence $1,000,000, 
Medical Expense 5,000  

TOWN OF ADDISON AND THE 
ENGINEER (KLEINFELDER) to be 
listed as ADDITIONAL INSURED  and 
provided 30 DAY 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION or 
material change in coverage. 
Insurance company must be A-:VII 
rated or above. 

3. Business Auto Liability
to include coverage for:
a) Owned/Leased

vehicles
b) Non-owned vehicles
c) Hired vehicles

Combined Single Limit 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for 
bodily injury and property 
damage 

TOWN OF ADDISON AND THE 
ENGINEER (KLEINFELDER) to be 
listed as ADDITIONAL  INSURED and 
provided 30 DAY NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION or material change in 
coverage. 
Insurance company must be A:VII-
rated or above. 

4. Umbrella or Excess
Liability Policy over
Commercial General
Liability and Automobile
Liability limits of $1
million per occurrence

Minimum $4 million per 
occurrence excess $1 million 
underlying per occurrence 

TOWN OF ADDISON AND THE 
ENGINEER (KLEINFELDER) to be 
listed as ADDITIONAL  INSURED and 
provided 30 DAY NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION or material change in 
coverage. 
Insurance company must be A:VII-
rated or above. 





Authority to do 
Business





 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
June 30, 2020 
 

 
 
 
Reference: Bidding and Proposal Submission Documents – Authority to Sign 
 
 
This letter authorizes, during the bidding process and prior to award of a project, the 
following individuals at DN Tanks, LLC to execute bid and proposal submission 
documents in the name of and on behalf of DN Tanks, LLC. 
 
Ryan Aldrich Francis P. Houston Joseph G. Pappo 
Stephen T. Applegate Jamie C. Howard Kevin G. Peacock 
Nicholas K. Belmont Jeremy W. Jacobs Jeffery J. Pfarr 
Tyler Bernhard Kyle M. Koebbe Stephen Puopolo 
Adam P. Blaser Kyle K. Leininger Christopher A.J. Saxton
Matthew D. Ford Terry Marshall Allen M. Speedie 
Guy S. Frankenfield Corey M. Meyers Sean Sudol 
Antonio Hernandez, Jr. David S. Ornduff Ryan E. Wessels 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Charles E. Crowley 
President-CEO 
 
 
 





Qualifications Submittal 
& Financials



Partial Statement of Experience
 Rehabilitation of Large Concrete Drinking Water Reservoirs

Additional Project Experience can be Provided Upon Request

Owner: Engineer:
Acton Water Supply District

Year Repaired:  2020 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Grand Prairie - Dept. of Water

Year Repaired:  2020 1 - 12.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Lancaster Public Works

Year Repaired:  2020 1 - 6.00 MG & 3.00 MG

Owner: Engineer:
Bell County WCID #1

Year Repaired:  2019 1 - 4.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Upper Trinity Regional Water District

Year Repaired:  2019 1 - 5.00 MG & 2.00 MG

Owner: Engineer:
City of Wichita

Year Repaired:  2019 7 Reservoirs

Owner: Engineer:
City of Annapolis GHD, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2018 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Danvers Water Dept.

Year Repaired:  2018 1 - 4.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Providence Water Supply Board Wright-Pierce

Year Repaired:  2018 1 - 3.50 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
North Texas Municipal Water District Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc. 

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Washington Suburban Sanitary Commission

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 10.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Lubbock Water Utilities Division Freese and Nichols Headquarters

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 7.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Olathe Public Works

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 6.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Rockford Strand Associates, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 5.00 MG; 1 - 3.00 MG

Owner: Engineer:
San Antonio Water System (SAWS) Engineering by Owner

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 7.50 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Wendel - Headquarters

Year Repaired:  2017 1 - 2.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Decatur City of Decatur - Engineering Services

Year Repaired:  2016 1 - 7.50 MG; 1 - 5.00 MG

Danvers, MA, USA
Project Type: Rehabilitation and Retrofit

Project Information:
Providence, RI, USA

Project Type:  Interior and Exterior rehabilitation

Project Information:
Witchita, KS, USA

Project Type:  Interior Cleanings & Rehabilitations ranging from 3MG to 10.6MG

Project Information:
Annapolis, MD, USA

Project Type: Rehabilitation and Retrofit

Project Information:

Project Information:
Belton, TX, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Roof Re-Coating

Project Type:  Exterior Roof & Wall Cleaning

Project Information:
Flower Mound, TX, USA

Project Type:  Interior and Exterior rehabilitation

Project Information:
Grand Prairie, TX, USA

Project Type:  Interior waterproofing

Project Information:
Lancaster, TX, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Wall and Roof Re-Coating & Logos

Project Information:
Olathe, KS, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Tank Cleaning

Project Information:
Lubbock, TX, USA

Decatur, IL, USA
Project Information:

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat and Interior In-Service Cleanings of storage tank 
located at treatment plant

Project Information:

Project Information:

Project Information:
Wayland, MA, USA

Acton, MA, USA

Project Information:

Project Type:  Interior Waterproofing and exterior roof coatings.  Hatch & Vent

Project Type:  Interior waterproofing and hatch/ladder/vent upgrades

Project Type:  Interior and Exterior rehabilitation

Project Type:  Interior waterproofing

Project Information:
San Antonio, TX, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat and Interior In-Service Cleaning of tank

Germantown, MD, USA

Garland, TX, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Wall and Roof Rehabilitation including coatings

Rockford, IL, USA
Project Information:

 Proprietary and confidential information. Information contained herein is the property of DN Tanks and intended solely for the use this proposal.



Owner: Engineer:

Year Repaired:  2016 1 - 2.50 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Village of Medina Wendel - Headquarters

Year Repaired:  2016 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Midland Parkhill, Smith & Cooper, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2016 2 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Naperville-Utilities Engineering by Owner

Year Repaired:  2016 1 - 8.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Aberdeen Banner Associates, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2015 1 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
North Harris County Regional Water AECOM

Year Repaired:  2015 2 - 3.00 MG; 2 - 10.25 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Chester Water Authority Gannett Fleming, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2014 1 - 8.60 MG; 1 - 10.20 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Calumet City Department of Public Works Robinson Engineering, Ltd.

Year Repaired:  2014 1 - 6.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Des Plaines Dixon Engineering, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2014 1 - 4.00 MG 
Owner: Engineer:
Marion Township Nelson Tank Engineering

Year Repaired:  2014 1 - 4.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Chester Water Authority Chester Water Authority

Year Repaired:  2013 1 - 8.60 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Village of Oak Forest

Year Repaired:  2013 1 - 3.00 MG; 1 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Carlsbad - Public Works Department

Year Repaired:  2012 1 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Covina Public Works City of Covina Public Works

Year Repaired:  2012 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Dartmouth Public Works Dept.

Year Repaired:  2012 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Municipal Authority of Westmoreland County Municipal Authority of Westmoreland 

Year Repaired:  2012 1 - 10.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Danvers Water Dept.

Year Repaired:  2010 1 - 4.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Grand Prairie City of Grand Prairie

Year Repaired:  2010 1 - 8.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Natick, MA Haley and Ward, Inc.

Year Repaired:  2010 1 - 4.00 MG; 1 - 5.00 MG 

Project Information:
Houston, TX, USA

Project Information:
Hannibal, MO, USA

Project Type:  Interior in-service cleaning of  tank located at treatment plant
City of Hannibal - Board of Public Works

Project Information:
Naperville, IL, USA

Ruffsdale, PA, USA
Project Information:

Project Information:
Carlsbad, CA, USA

Project Type:  Inspection, Cleaning, and Rebar/Hole Patching

Project Type:  Exterior coatings with Inspection

Project Type:  Interior cleaning and waterproofing. Exterior clean & coat

Project Type:  Exterior Cleaning and Interior Cleanings

Project Information:
Calumet City, IL, USA

Project Information:
Des Plaines, IL, USA

Project Information:
Danvers, MA, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat, Interior Coatings, Mixing System

Project Information:
Oak Forest, IL, USA

Project Information:
Covina, CA, USA

Project Information:
Midland, TX, USA

Project Type:  Interior Waterproofing and exterior coatings

Project Information:
Medina, NY, USA

Project Type:  Exterior repair & coatings, Interior cleaning & waterproofing

Project Information:
Aston, PA, USA

Project Information:
Aston, PA, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat, Concrete Repair, Interior Cleaning

Project Type: Interior waterproofing and hatch upgrade

Project Information:
Aberdeen, SD, USA

Marion Township, IL, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat, Concrete Patching, Hatch Upgrade

Project Type:  New Flat Roof and Re-stressing

Project Type:  In-service cleaning of storage tank, ladders, hatches, concrete repairs, 
overflow modification, and interior waterproofing

Project Type:  Interior waterproofing and exterior coatings

Project Information:
Grand Prairie, TX, USA

Project Information:
Dartmouth, MA, USA

Project Type:  Interior Clean & Coating Application.  Wall penetrations

Project Information:

Project Information:

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat, Concrete Repair, and Hatch upgrade

Natick, MA, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Cleaning of Dome

Project Type:  Interior Clean & Coating Application

Project Type:  Interior clenaing and waterproofing. Exterior Concrete Repairs

 Proprietary and confidential information. Information contained herein is the property of DN Tanks and intended solely for the use this proposal.



Owner: Engineer:
San Patricio Municipal Water District San Patricio Municipal Water District

Year Repaired:  2010 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Kansas City, KS Board of Public Utilities Kansas City, KS Board of Public Utilities

Year Repaired:  2009 1 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Warwick Water Dept. Warwick Water Dept.

Year Repaired:  2009 1 - 5.50 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Charter Township of Clinton

Year Repaired:  2009 1 - 3.50 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Lancaster Water Division

Year Repaired:  2009 1 - 4.30 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
City of Grand Prairie City of Grand Prairie

Year Repaired:  2008 1 - 5.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Niagara County Water District Niagara County Water District

Year Repaired:  2008 1 - 3.00 MG 

Owner: Engineer:
Omaha Metropolitan Utilities District (Omaha Omaha Metropolitan Utilities District 

Year Repaired:  2008 1 - 10.00 MG 

Lockport, NY, USA
Project Information:

Project Information:
Lancaster, OH, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat

Project Information:
Clinton Township, MI, USA

Project Type:  Interior Cleaning, Access Upgrades

Project Information:
San Patricio, TX, USA

Project Type:  Exterior Clean & Coat, Install baffle walls, Install floor penetrations

Project Type:  Rehab Dome, Exterior Clean & Coat, New Hatch

Project Information:
Kansas City, KS, USA

Project Type:   Exterior Clean & Coat, Interior Cleaning & Waterproofing

Project Information:
Grand Prairie, TX, USA

Project Information:
Warwick, RI, USA

Project Type:  Interior Cleaning

Project Type:  Interior & Exterior Rehabilitation, Exterior Clean & Coat

Project Information:

Project Type:  Interior Clean & Coating Application

Omaha, NE, USA

 Proprietary and confidential information. Information contained herein is the property of DN Tanks and intended solely for the use this proposal.



Owner: Engineer:
City of Wichita Engineering by Owner
455 North Main
Wichita, KS, USA  67202
Contact:  Breitenbach, Stan Contact:  
(316) 268-4501

Owner: Engineer:
Town of Addison Kleinfelder
P O Box 9010 7805 Mesquite Bend, Suite 100
Addison, TX 75001 Irving, TX 75063

Contact:  CP Nawal, P.E.
(972) 450-7000 (972) 868-5900

Owner: Engineer:
City of Rockford Strand Associates, Inc.
425 East State Street 910 West Wingra Drive
Rockford, IL, USA  61104 Madison, WI, USA  53715
Contact:  Carrie Eklund Contact:  Ryan Wood, P.E.
(815) 961-3785 (608) 251-4843

Owner: Engineer:
City of Abilene Jacob & Martin
555 Walnut St. 3465 Curry Lane
Abilene, TX 79601 Abilene, TX 79606

Contact:  Kirt Harle, P.E.
(325) 695-1070

Owner: Engineer:
City of Lewisville Engineering by Owner
1400 N Cowan
Lewisville, TX 75057
Contact:  Karen Emadiazar
(972) 219-5078

Project Information:
Lewisville, TX, USA
1 - 2.00 MG Concrete Ground Storage Tank
Year Repaired:  2011
Project Type:  Roof Rehabilitation with Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical 
Project Name:  Rehabilitation of CR Feaster WTP Clearwell No. 1

This project was completed on time and within budget.

Project Type:  Roof Rehabilitation with Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical
Project Name:  Clearwell Roof Repairs

This project was completed on time and within budget.

Year Repaired:  2017
Project Type:  Dome Rehabilitation with Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical
Project Name:  Well Nos. 13 and 30 Reservoir Rehabilitation 2016

This project was completed on time and within budget.

Project Information:
Abilene, TX, USA
3 - 1.00 MG Concrete Ground Storage Tanks
Year Repaired:  2014

1 - 2.00 MG Prestressed Concrete Ground Storage Tank
Year Repaired:  2018
Project Type:  Roof Rehabilitation with Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical
Project Name:  Surveyor Pump Station Rehabilitation

This project was completed on time and within budget.

Project Information:
Rockford, IL, USA
1 - 3.00 MG Prestressed Concrete Ground Storage Tank

Wichita, KS, USA
1 - 4.00 MG Concrete Ground Storage Tank
Year Repaired:  2019
Project Type:  Roof Rehabilitation with Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical
Project Name:  Underground Storage Reservoirs Repairs and Cleaning

This project was completed on time and within budget.

Project Information:
Addison, TX, USA

Statement of Experience
Statement of Experience Using Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical Co.

Project Information:

 Report Date: 1/12/2021  Proprietary and confidential information. Information contained herein is the property of DN Tanks and intended solely for the use of the authorized personnel listed on the rou



 

410 East Trinity Blvd, Grand Prairie, TX   | 972.823.3333 |   Fax 972.823.3300 
 

 
   Adam P. Blaser, P.E. 
   Regional Manager – CTS Central Region 

 

  Professional Experience 
    

  DN Tanks, Inc., Grand Prairie, TX 
   

   
 
 2016-Present  Regional Manager – CTS Central Region: Responsible for performing inspections 

of new and existing tanks, preparation of reports of findings and making 
recommendation for repair procedures. Additionally, responsible for assisting in the 
efficient execution of repair projects including estimating, monitoring costs, quality 
control, field supervision and overall project supervision. 

 
 2010 – 2016    Technical Services Engineer: Responsible for performing inspections of new and 

existing tanks, preparation of reports of findings and making recommendation for 
repair procedures. Additionally, responsible for assisting in the efficient execution of 
repair projects including estimating, monitoring costs, quality control, field 
supervision and overall project supervision. This position reports directly to the Vice 
President of the Concrete Tank Services Division. 

 
 2006 – 2010    Cooperative Education Student: Responsible for assisting in the management of 

both the estimating and execution of new tank and repair projects. 
 
 

 Field Experience  
2011   Field Engineer: Rehabilitation and Retrofit of 3.0 Million Gallon Clearwell for 

Water Plant Expansion in San Patricio, TX 

 
2010  Field Engineer: Construction of new 0.50 Million Gallon Canal Rd Tank #2 Project 

in West Hartford, CT & Rehabilitation and Retrofit of 0.50 Million Gallon Canal Rd 
Tank #1.  

 

  Education 
   Northeastern University: Degree in Bachelor of Science in Civil & Environmental 

Engineering (May 2010) 
    

Professional Memberships 

 American Water Works Association  
American Society of Civil Engineers  

  Texas Society of Professional Engineers 



 

 

 

       

   Robert J. Walsh  
   Vice President-Construction 

 

   Professional Experience 
 

   DN Tanks, Inc., Wakefield MA  
     
 

2011 – Present Vice President, Construction – Responsible for overseeing DN Tanks’ 

Southwest construction division including all office and field personnel 

related to construction.   
 

2006 - 2009  Construction Manager – Responsible for overseeing construction activity and 

direct supervision of project managers and field superintendents. Manages the 

construction process; conducts review of construction schedules and cost 

control data, meets with project managers to resolve construction issues, 

coordinates with other departments; monitors compliance of projects with 

accepted Natgun construction procedures. 
 

2002-2006 Field Operation Manager – Responsible for hiring and management of field 

construction workforce of over (50) workers consisting of assistant 

superintendents, foremen, carpenters and laborers. Reviews company project 

schedules and directs weekly work assignments of crews; handles weekly 

transfers of manpower. Resolves day-to-day personnel and performance 

issues. Oversees field employment benefits, skills training and performance 

management programs. Recommends and implements policies and 

procedures. Works with unions as required.  

 

2000 - 2002  Project Manager – Responsible for organizing, directing, and executing 

Natgun’s projects in accordance with contract drawings and specifications, 

Natgun final tank drawings, and Natgun’s Construction and Safety 

procedures. Direct charge of projects in the areas of quality, safety, cost, and 

scheduling.  Responsible for all submissions to the consulting engineer, 

including monthly pay requisitions, shop drawing submittals, material 

specification submittals, etc. Act as a liaison between Natgun management 

and the field personnel, discussing and acting on all aspects of Natgun’s 

projects.  Attend project management meetings, prepare site layout plan, 

obtain subcontractors for various portions of the work, monitor quality control 

and safety through daily communication with the superintendent, and periodic 

site visits.   Act as Natgun’s representative to the owner and engineer striving 

to maintain their satisfaction while maintaining Natgun’s interests 
 

    

 

    

410 East Trinity Blvd, Grand Prairie, TX   | 972.823.3333 |   Fax 972.823.3300 



    

   Robert J. Walsh 
   Vice President-Construction 

   Page Two 
 

 

 

   Middlesex Corporation, Littleton MA  

1995 - 2000  Project Superintendent – Responsibilities include scheduling of crews, 

equipment, deliveries, and subcontractor operations. Negotiate change orders 

and extra work requests and implement into project schedules.  

    

   Perini Corporation, Framingham MA  
1986 - 1995  Project Manager, Estimating Engineer – Overall responsibility for 

estimating projects, office engineer, field engineer, scheduling, as well as 

duties relating to project superintendent.  

    

   Education  
 

   Wentworth Institute, Boston, MA  
   Bachelor of Science in Building Construction Engineering Technology 

 



410 East Trinity Blvd, Grand Prairie, TX   | 972.823.3333 |   Fax 972.823.3300 

 

 

 

 

Andrew R. Minogue, P.E. 
   Director of Engineering  
 

   Professional Experience  
   DN Tanks, Inc., Grand Prairie, Texas 

    

2018-Present  Director of Engineering -  Responsible for management and direction of the 
Engineering Department across the US. 

  

2016-2018  Engineering Manager -  Responsible for management and direction of the 
Engineering Department in the Central and Eastern US. 

 
2008-2016   Southwest Engineering Manager -  Responsible for final design calculations and 

computer-generated drawings for precast, prestressed concrete water, wastewater 
and Thermal Energy storage tanks throughout the United States.  Responsible for 
the management of the engineering department in the southwest. 

 
2002 –2008  Senior Design Engineer -  Responsible for final design calculations and  
  computer-generated drawings for precast, prestressed concrete water, wastewater 

and Thermal Energy storage tanks throughout the United States.  Interact with 
consulting engineers, suppliers and the Natgun construction department to resolve 
engineering-related questions and issues concerning the tank design.  Review 
design work for inconsistencies and adherence to project specifications.  Develop 
computer programs for in-house design work. 

 
1997 – 2002 Design Engineer -  Responsible for final design calculations and computer- 
  generated drawings for precast, prestressed concrete water and wastewater tanks, 

including cylindrical shell walls, spherical domes, 2-way flat slabs, columns, 
shallow footings and precast erection throughout the United States.  Review design 
work for inconsistencies and adherence to project specifications.  Develop 
computer programs for in-house design work. 

 

   Biogen, Inc., Cambridge, MA  
1996-1997  Materials Analyst -  Configuring Global Enterprise Manufacturing Management 

Systems (GEMMS). System Administrator to a Novell Network running fourth 
shift MSS MRP (Materials Requirements Planning) application. Reviewed 
production material requirements to ensure no raw material stock-outs and 
adequate supply on hand.  

 

    



 
Andrew Minogue, P.E. 
Director of Engineering  
Page 2 

 
 

 
2 

   Education 

   Villanova University, Villanova, PA  
    Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering 
   Northeastern University, Boston, MA 
    Masters of Science in Civil Engineering 
 

   Memberships 
   American Concrete Institute Committee 350:  Code Requirements for 

Environmental Engineering Concrete Structures (Secretary and Voting Member of 
Main Committee, Chair of Structural Subcommittee and Secretary of Seismic 
Subcommittee) 

   American Concrete Institute Committee 372:  Design and Construction of 
Circular, Wire and Strand-Wrapped Prestressed Concrete Structures (Chair) 

   American Water Works Association Committee D110: Wire- and Strand-Wound, 
Circular, Prestressed Concrete Water Tanks (Secretary and Voting Member) 

   American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers, 
Technical Committee 6.9, Thermal Storage 

    
 
 

   Professional Engineering Registrations 
   Registered Professional Engineer in Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, Colorado, 

Connecticut Florida, Georgia, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Maine, Maryland, 
Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, Nebraska, New Hampshire, New Mexico, North 
Carolina, North Dakota, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, 
Texas, Virginia, Wisconsin 



 

 

 

  Eric Olson, MS, CSP, CIH 
  Safety Director 
 

  Professional Experience 
    

  DN Tanks, Inc., Wakefield, MA 
8/20-Present Safety Director – Primary responsibility is to ensure a safe work environment for 

all DN Tanks employees. Adopt a pro-active approach to safety that helps prevent 

employee injuries. Provide safety leadership that moves the company in the needed 

direction to establish a “Safety Culture”.   Develop, maintain, and implement a 

written safety and health program that ensures all company goals are met and that 

the program complies with all local, state, federal, owner and contractor rules and 

regulations.   Create safety training programs used by project supervisors to provide 

day-to-day safety training for project employees.  Provide safety training for 

employees and management. Review company construction procedures and create 

written safe work practices for each procedure.   Provide safety meetings for 

employees to educate them on useful information in providing a safe place to work.  

Review sub-contractor safety programs and procedures. Work with contractors and 

owners to maintain a safe work environment.  Actively participate with a network 

of safety professionals to stay current with safety ideas and practices. Develop and 

organize required safety documentation. Maintain a system for safety 

documentation that meets regulatory requirements.  Conduct company safety audits 

that provide positive feedback for safe work practices and also to find hazards that 

need to be corrected. Help company employees correct all known hazards and 

develop safe work practices in order to eliminate those hazards in the future. Create 

accounts and relationships with suppliers and manufactures to provide the company 

with the equipment needed to protect our employees. Instruct employees on the 

proper methods to wear safety equipment.  Coordinate and administer the 

company’s workers compensation. Work with the insurance company’s Claims 

Department to quickly facilitate all workers compensation claims.     

 

  Western Construction Group, St. Louis, MO 
1/13-8/20 Safety Director – Management of the Safety Department and all personnel, creating 

and managing Safety Department budget, strategic planning and goal setting, as well 

as complete responsibility for all safety, health, and related activities throughout the 

entire organization.  Assisted with claims management across all insurance lines.  

Coordinated company qualification through account management. Project 

Management as it related to safety and health programs. 

 

3/10-12/12 Assistant Safety Director – Management of field safety operations for 34 offices 

across all 50 states.  Managing regional safety inspectors, inspecting jobsites, safety 



 

Eric Olson 
Safety Director 

Page 2 

 
 

 2 

policy development and implementation, budget management and public protection 

design and installation.  Assisted with claims management across all insurance lines. 

 

  Gerstner Electric, Inc, St. Louis, MO 
2/08-3/10 Director of Health and Safety – All aspects of safety and industrial hygiene.   

  Electrical compliance, new employee orientation, drug and alcohol testing, safety  

  training, claims management, accident investigation, OSHA compliance, DOT  

  compliance, work zone design, environmental issues and jobsite audits.  Managed 

  all claims across all insurance lines. 

 

  Marathon Petroleum Company, Texas City, TX 
5/07-2/08 HES Professional – All aspects of industrial hygiene.  Construction coordination, 

  contractor management and training, contractor pre-qualification, project planning 

  and design, safety policy implementation and enforcement, process safety   

  management compliance, auditing, taproot accident investigation, environmental  

  awareness, staff safety training, and OSHA 300 Log management. 

 

  Fred Weber, Inc., St. Louis, MO 
12/01-5/07 Assistant Safety Director/Safety and Industrial Hygiene Coordinator –All  

  aspects of safety and industrial hygiene covering construction, industrial   

  locations, the company golf course and restaurant, and the railroad spur. Including 

  drug testing coordinator, DOT coordinator, emergency procedures, lead   

  monitoring, dust monitoring, noise monitoring, mold exposures, ventilation,  

  confined space, jobsite audits, respirator fit testing, EPA requirements,   

  orientations, accident investigation, fall protection, MSHA and OSHA site visits,  

  accident investigation, worker’s compensation, EPA requirements, and   

  Department of Homeland Security Compliance. 

 

  Education 
  University of Central Missouri, Bachelor of Arts in Biology, minor in Safety 

  University of Central Missouri, Master of Science in Industrial Hygience 

 

  Certifications/Accreditations  
  Certified Safety Professional (CSP) 

  Certified Industrial Hygienist (CIH) 

  NSSGA Advanced Supervisory Training Course 

  OSHA 500 and 502 Course 

  Alcohol and Substance Abuse Testing Training 

  Ergonomics Training 

  Forklift Certification Trainer 

  Radiation Safety Officer 

  Chairman – AGC Missouri Executive Safety Comm. 

  Dale Carnegie’s Leadership for Managers 

  Leadership Through People Skills – Psyc. Assoc. 



 

Eric Olson 
Safety Director 

Page 3 

 
 

 3 

  Communicating with Professionalism – Skillpath 

  Industrial Hygiene: Sampling for Silica and Noise 

  Manlift Certification Trainer 

  Certified 1081 Exterior Firefighter 

  Suspended Scaffold Competent Person Course 

 

Professional Memberships 

  American Society of Safety Engineers 

  American Board of Industrial Hygienists 

  Associated General Contractors – Safety Executive Board 

  DOL/OSHA Silica Standard Technical Group 

  ASSE Silica Guidance Brief Working Group 

  AIHA St. Louis Local Section - Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

 

 

   Adrian Domek 
   Project Manager 

    

   Professional Experience 

   DN Tanks, Inc. Wakefield, MA 
     

 

2015 - Present  Project Manager - Responsible for organizing, directing, and executing DN 

Tanks’ projects in accordance with contract drawings and specifications, DN 

Tanks final tank drawings, and DN Tanks’ Construction and Safety 

procedures. Has direct charge of projects in the areas of quality, safety, cost, 

and scheduling.  Responsible for all submissions to the consulting engineer, 

including monthly pay requisitions, shop drawing submittals, material 

specification submittals, etc. Act as a liaison between DN Tanks management 

and the field personnel, discussing and acting on all aspects of DN Tanks’ 

projects.  Attend project management meetings, prepare site layout plan, 

obtain subcontractors for various portions of the work, monitor quality control 

and safety through daily communication with the superintendent, and periodic 

site visits.   Act as DN Tanks’ representative to the owner and engineer 

striving to maintain their satisfaction while maintaining DN Tanks’ interests. 

 

2006 - 2015  Project Engineer - Provides office support to project managers. Evaluates and 

issues request for quotes and purchase orders. Prepares concrete mix design 

submittals; checks DN Tanks material purchase orders; prepares shoring 

drawings and site layouts; prepares DN Tanks and subcontract submittals; 

obtains ready-mix supplier bid information; makes site progress and quality 

control inspections; makes daily manpower entries and projections. 

 

 Flatiron Constructors, Longmont, Colorado 

2003 – 2006 Field Engineer - Worked on the 1-10 Escambia Bay Bridges Replacement. 

Trestle responsibilities - include: review and coordination of temporary 

work trestle design along with fabrication and construction drawings, 

material inventory control and troubleshooting for construction problems, 

communication with foundation engineer to revise foundation criteria based 

on as-built pile driving and soil boring data, coordination and quality control 

for on-site fabrication of trestle components, communicate and track 

progress for off-site fabrication of second trestle system, analyze crane lifts, 

work with foremen and superintendents to plan work and solve problems, 

preparing quantity takeoffs and tracking, and inspection of structure to 

ensure conformance with plans 

 

 

410 East Trinity Blvd, Grand Prairie, TX   | 972.823.3333 |   Fax 972.823.3300  



 

Adrian Domek 
Project Manager 

Page 2 

 

 

 

  

 

   Flatiron Constructors, Longmont, Colorado   
2003 – 2006 Field Engineer - Worked on the Knightdale Bypass (US-64) 

 Roadway responsibilities - subcontractor management including blasting, 

mass grading, erosion control, noise wall, and concrete flat work subs, 

quantity tracking, served as erosion/environmental control liaison to 

NCDOT, quantified mass grading and blasting quantities using SurvCAD, 

and supervised self-performed environmental permit work 

   

 

   Education 
 

   Clemson University, Clemson SC  

   Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering Technology 

 

 Certification 
 EIT Certification – June of 2002 

 OSHA 10 Hour  

 First Aid & CPR 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  Paul Brown 
  CTS Superintendent 
 

  Professional Experience 
    

  DN Tanks, Inc., Wakefield, MA 
   

   

2009-Present CTS Superintendent: responsible for executing CTS projects from 

contract award/assignment to completion within budget, in accordance 

with contract documents to assure a safe and quality project. 

Coordinate efforts with the Project Manager and Vice President of 

CTS to address project needs and recommend solutions to resolve 

issues. Also responsible for field training of CTS Repair Apprentices 

and Technicians and ensuring compliance with company construction 

procedures and safety policies. This position may find one working 

solo one day, applying carpentry, labor or mechanical skills to resolve 

an issue, to directing subcontractors and field crews the next day to 

close out a new tank project, and then still yet the next day running a 

crew executing a tank rehabilitation project that might include, core-

drilling, re-stressing prestress wires, installing new pipe or a mixing 

system, cleaning and coating and exterior or interior to resolving any 

number of issues. 
 

2004-2009 CTS Technician: Act as a project foreman, leading smalls crews to 

perform a specific task. Responsible for following the company safety 

and quality control policies and ensure work is completed in 

accordance with approved drawings and methodologies. 

 

  Certifications Accreditations  

 

Forklift Operation 

Aerial Lift Operation 

CPR/First Aid Red Cross 

OSHA 30 

 
 



 
 

      410 East Trinity Blvd., Grand Prairie, TX 75050 | 972.823.3300 | Fax 972.823.3333 
 

MAJOR EQUIPMENT LIST 
 

Quantity Description & Capacity Net Value  Condition 

1 2001 Kenworth, 2 Axle Truck $40,000 Excellent 
2 Steel Diaphragm Rolling Machines $800,000 Excellent 
6 Shotcrete Putzmeister Thomkatts 2050 Pumps $240,000 Excellent 

13 Shotcrete Reed B50 Pumps $780,000 Good/Excellent 
1 Self Propelled Electric Prestressing Unit $200,000 Excellent 
2 Self-Propelled Prestressing Units $160,000 Good/Excellent 
2 Brake Resistance  Prestressing Units $200,000 Excellent 

21 Prestressing Units $12,000 Excellent 
31 Electronic Stressometers $32,000 Excellent 

165 Generators $150,000 Good to Excellent 
31 Box Storage Trailers $120,000 Good 
25 Lasers $60,000 Excellent 
25 Transits $25,000 Excellent 
13 Diaphragm Seamers $48,750 Excellent 
55 Shoring Lowering Winches $165,000 Excellent 
7 Forklifts $200,000 Good 

23 Tamms Pumps $69,000 Excellent 
10 Low Pressure Epoxy/Low Output System and 

Dura-Jet System  
$100,000 Excellent 

8 Vertical Post Tensioning Systems $320,000 Excellent 
8 High Pressure and High Output Vertical Post-

Tensioning Epoxy Injections 
$160,000 Excellent 

8 Tower Machines $50,000 Excellent 
6 Mechanical Strand-Wrapping Machines With 

Automated Shotcrete 
$2,600,000 Excellent 

 
NOTES: 
 
• Plus various small tools, including, but not limited to, roto hammers, rock drills, 

waterstop sealers and testers, drills, saws, vibrators, steel pipe wall braces, 
shoring braces, lifting hardware, and spreader beams. 

 
• All of the above equipment is in good to excellent working condition and is 

owned 100% by DN Tanks. 
 
• In addition to the above, DN Tanks plans to rent the following equipment:  Cranes, manlifts, 

lulls, compressors, loaders 



 
 

 

410 East Trinity Blvd., Grand Prairie, TX 75050 | 972.823.3300 | Fax 972.823.3333 
 

January 13, 2021 
 
Reference: Schedule Statement 

Rehabilitation of 6.0 MG Celestial Ground Storage Tank 
              Town of Addison 

Bid Number #21-42 
              
To whom it may concern, 
 
DN Tanks has reviewed the contract documents and addenda issued for the subject project and 
acknowledges the schedule requirements including substantial completion and final completion.  
 
DN Tanks general sequence for the project is as follows:  
 

• Install and set-up interior and exterior access. 
• Perform full internal cleaning and sediment removal and prepare surfaces to be repaired and set-

up environmental controls. 
• Perform remainder of interior structural repairs and required structural modification work. 
• Remove and replace tank piping and appurtenances as required. 
• Disinfect the tank interior upon completion of the work.  
• Perform exterior cleaning, coating removal, roof repairs, and exterior coating work. 
• Perform site improvements, fencing, sidewalk, and site restoration.  

 
We anticipate the overall work to take approximately 16 weeks and to be completed in Spring 2021.  
 
DN Tanks understands that time is of the essence on this project. We have performed similar tank 
rehabilitation projects with a proven history of successfully partnering with tank owners to execute and 
complete these complex projects on-time. We are committed to providing our expertise and resources to 
this project and executing the scope of work within the time given. We will work closely with the Town of 
Addison to move quickly after award to provide submittals and mobilize as soon as possible.   
 
If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact me at your convenience. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Adam Blaser 
 
Adam P. Blaser, P.E. | Regional Manager, CTS Central Region 
DN TANKS | Concrete Tank Services 
410 East Trinity Blvd., Grand Prairie, Texas 75050 
Main Office 972.823.3300 
Direct 972.823.3322 | Cell 214.293.6465 | Fax 972.823.3333 



 

 

Section 1. Executive Summary & Project Plan 
 
DN Tanks specializes in the design and construction of AWWA D110 Type III prestressed concrete tanks 
and the turn-key condition assessment, rehabilitation, and structural repurposing of all types of concrete 
water and wastewater structures.  
 
Our long-term history of providing reliable storage service stems from our company’s mission of providing 
our clients with the highest quality liquid storage tanks, while delivering the highest level of customer 
satisfaction.   
 
DN Tanks employs over 150 office professionals and has over 45 experienced tank construction crews 
totaling over 300 employees working on concrete tank related projects.  As leaders in the tank industry, 
we drive an industry leading safety culture paired with the financial stability to assure our project partners 
that we can deliver and will live up to the challenges of completing your project.   
 
We look forward to working with the Town of Addison and Kleinfelder through the construction of this 
vital project.  
 
Design and Construction Management Approach 
DN Tanks’ experience in over 80 years of tank construction, rehabilitation, and retrofit work has allowed 
us to develop a full-service project mentality that places a priority on delivering an exceptional client 
experience. Our approach to this project is to provide an experienced design and construction team that 
works with the Town and Engineer to plan and execute the best long term, cost effective repair solution 
for the existing storage tank rehabilitation  
 
Given the long-life expectancy of a concrete tank, rehabilitation and retrofitting existing infrastructure is 
a logical, economical, often necessary way to increase the efficiency of your current system, adapt it to 
changes in process or operations, or create a safer, more secure tank.  Every DN Tanks rehabilitation or 
structural modification project comes with the security of knowing that the people performing the work 
understand concrete tanks inside and out.   
 
Safety 
Safety is our number one priority at DN Tanks and part of our Core 
Values.  Whether in design, planning, or construction, safety is the 
primary focus for the project team. Our team is committed to a goal 
of zero lost time accidents and zero recordable injuries and we 
strive to send our employees, subcontractors and all project 
teammates home in the same way they came to work that day. 
Our safety goals are simple:  

- Complete each and every project with zero injuries and 
accidents 

- Have the most highly trained and safest employees in the 
industry 

- Eliminate liability risks to our clients, subcontractors, and 
ourselves 

- Build safety into the design of the project 

  



 

 

Section 2. Proposed Project Team 
 
DN Tanks proposes to design and manage this project with the following team: 
 
Regional Manager (Concrete Tank Services) – Adam Blaser, PE. is 10-year DN Tanks employee and will be 
the main point of contact for all existing tank rehabilitation aspects for the project.  Adam’s primary focus 
with the company is performing inspections of existing concrete tanks, providing assessments, and 
developing tank modification and restoration projects with a focus on solutions and meeting the needs of 
the project.   
 
Design Engineer – During the project planning stage, a design engineer is utilized to review the existing 
structure and develop the modifications required to the tank.  The design work needed on this project will 
include modifications to the roof access hatch, vent, ladder, and overflow pipes including anchorage 
designs to the prestressed tank wall and roof.  The Design Engineer will be licensed in the State of Texas.  
 
Construction Manager – Corporate executive is responsible for the overall project with authority to sign 
contractual documents.  Responsibility is to ensure that all resources required to execute the successful 
completion of the project are committed and deployed to the project.  

Project Manager – The Project Manager is DN Tanks primary contact with the Town throughout the 
execution phase of the project.  Primary responsibilities include scheduling, planning, quality control, 
safety, and oversight of the entire project.  DN Tanks’ Project Manager is responsible managing on-time 
delivery and quality of DN Tanks design and construction.   
 
Project Engineer – The Project Engineer provides field office support to the Project Manager, Project 
Superintendent and on-site crews. Evaluate and issue request for quotes and purchase orders. Prepare 
submittals; check material purchase orders; coordinate vendors and suppliers; make site progress and 
quality control inspections, and daily manpower entries and projections. 
 
Project Superintendent – Located on site from mobilization through the construction completion.  
Responsible for scheduling and oversight of all construction operations focusing on providing a culture of 
safety, quality, and professionalism amongst all members of the construction field team.  Duties include 
hiring the craft labor force, planning and directing the day to day construction activities with the crew 
foreman, coordinating with the project manager for resource requirements, deliveries, and inspections.  
 
Safety Manager – Safety Specialist whose responsibilities include ensuring an on-site culture of safety 
awareness focused on the elimination of all unsafe acts and conditions, developing and implementing the 
site-specific Accident Prevention Safety Plan, implementing required safety training and conducting and 
documenting project safety inspection reports.  

 
  



 

 

Section 3. Project Approach & Methodology 
 
Tank Access 
DN Tanks will be accessing the interior of the tank through an existing roof access hatch.  Temporary 
ladders/scaffold will be installed and regularly checked to comply with DN Tanks safety procedures.  In 
addition, a new secondary access hatch to facilitate safe access and expedite surface preparation and 
coating application may be provided at DN Tanks discretion.  Upon completion of the project, all hatches 
will comply with current standards.  
 
Internal Cleaning and Removal of Sediment 
The tank will first receive a full internal pressure washing of the floor and wall, and all surface sediments 
will be removed from the tank.  
 
DN Tanks will be self-performing the cleaning and structural concrete repairs.  The existing coatings will 
be stripped off the wall and floor as required with specialized equipment, collected, and loaded out 
through the roof hatch.  The material will be stockpiled in 
dumpsters and properly disposed of offsite 
 
The remainder of the required interior wall and floor surfaces to 
be repaired will be prepared utilizing a combination of blasting 
and pressure washing.  The surfaces will be prepared to meet all 
manufacturer’s recommendations.  

 
Interior OSHA compliant rolling scaffoldings will be 
provided to achieve access to the entire interior 
wall and underside of the tank roof as required. 
 
 
 
 

Dehumidification and Environmental Control 
DN Tanks will be furnishing and installing the proper climate control 
equipment as required.  The system will be monitored daily by DN 
Tanks and properly fueled to provide continuous climate control on 
the interior of the tank.  Inspections will also be performed to ensure 
the system is functioning properly.  In addition to the interior climate 
control, DN Tanks will need to maintain fresh clean air supply for 
workers on the interior of the tank.  Forced air will be provided and 
air supply inside of the tank will be properly monitored and turned 
over to comply with OSHA regulations.   
 
 
 
 



 

 

Exterior Cleaning & Applications of Coatings 
For the exterior roof repairs, the existing roof coating will be 
completely removed down to the original concrete surface.  Low 
areas in the roof will be identified and filled with grout to help 
promote positive drainage.  Spalled concrete, exposed reinforcing 
steel, and/or cracks will be identified, quantified, and reviewed with 
the Town and Engineer.  These areas will be repaired as required by 
the Contract Documents to prepare the surface for the application 
of the exterior coating system. Flexdeck by Euclid Chemical, a multi-
component urethane deck coating, will be applied over the entire 
roof surface to seal the roof and maintain a watertight seal from any future environmental moisture. DN 
Tanks will pressure wash and apply two coats on of Tammscoat by Euclid Chemical on the exterior wall.  
 
The Tammscoat products listed above are the standard used on prestressed concrete tanks and have been 
applied for over 30 years with excellent results. DN Tanks is very confident that the coatings above will 
provide long term service to the Town of Addison. 
 
Field Quality Control  
DN Tanks has developed standard Quality Control plans and Tank Hazard 
Analyses for many of the work activities contemplated in the project.  If 
awarded this project, a project specific quality control and safety plan 
will be developed and implemented on this project.  The project 
superintendent will be responsible for implementing the programs in 
the field and continuously providing feedback to the Project Manager.  
For the interior and coating applications, the surface preparation, 
atmospheric conditions, coating inspection, and coating curing and 
repairs will all be closely monitored to ensure a quality product.  
 
Safety Management 
It is the intent of DN Tanks to provide employees a work environment free from all recognizable hazards 
and an environment that complies with all applicable safety and health regulations.  DN Tanks strives to 
have ZERO accidents and injuries on our project sites.  The prevention of injuries is the top priority for a 
DN Tanks construction management team. There are many other items that must also be prioritized, 
including quality and operating productivity, however, Safety is the #1 priority on a daily basis.  
 

DN Tanks employees and our Subcontractors are required to 
follow a thorough, site-specific safety plan throughout the 
construction of the project to accomplish our goal of ZERO 
accidents.  DN Tanks provides documented onsite training for 
all employees on the proper use of personal protection 
equipment, emergency evacuation and rescue, material 
handling, rigging, crane signalling, heat illness prevention, 
confined space, fall protection and ladder safety among 

others.  Employees will also be trained on the proper use of power tools and equipment.  All operators on 
DN Tanks jobs are required to have current certifications to operate aerial lifts and forklifts.  



 

 

 
DN Tanks conducts daily safety meetings and each employee participates in a daily stretch and flex 
program designed help employees “loosen up” before work each day.  During the morning safety meeting, 
a task hazard analysis will be reviewed, and a daily safety task assignment card will be completed with the 
full involvement of the crew.  On a weekly basis, a 9-page site safety inspection report will be completed 
and shared with the crew.  The site inspection report is a complete inspection of all work including 
excavations, equipment, tools, overall housekeeping, PPE, fall protection, etc.  Any hazards that are 
identified during the safety inspection will be fixed immediately.   During the project, the Project Manager 
and/or Project Engineer will also conduct a safety audit of the overall project site.   

 
All DN Tanks management staff, including the Project Manager, Project Engineer, Superintendent and 
Foreman, have current CPR and First Aid certificates to assist in the event of an injury.  For this project the 
site Superintendent will also function as the on-site safety representative for DN Tanks and will administer 
and manage the various programs. 
 
Quality Control Management 
Our team understands the importance of a quality project and adherence to the contract documents.  The 
DN Tanks team takes quality control seriously and follows USACE recommended quality procedures. 

 
DN Tanks’ Superintendent will conduct several Quality Control Huddles with the crew prior to starting a 
major activity to review key construction procedures and tolerances.  During the Huddle, the 
Superintendent provides direction and training to each of the field employees to make them aware of the 
importance of their specific task.  Superintendents will provide a series of quality control photos during 
construction and develop key plans to document the repair work.  The photos, key plan, and quality 
control manual are assembled at the end of the project for a complete log of the quality control plan. 

 
The Project Manager and Project Engineer will also conduct field quality control checks throughout the 
construction repair process of the tanks.  They will be intimately involved with the Superintendent 
throughout the planning and inspection of the project.  

 
Testing & Quality Assurance 
For this project, specific testing will be performed to confirm environmental conditions 
and surface preparations.  Once surface preparation of the substrate has been 
completed, an adhesion test will be performed to confirm that the concrete surface 
meets the manufacturer’s recommendations and adhesion criteria.  Daily 
measurements for the substrate and air environment inside of the tank will be taken to 
record surface and air temperatures, humidity, and surface moisture content.  Tools 
include psychrometers and pin-style moisture meter.  
 

During coating application, coating thickness will be confirmed utilizing both 
theoretical coverage rates and with mil gauges to confirm proper final 
coating thickness.   

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

March 8, 2013 

 

DN Tanks 

11 Teal Road 

Wakefield, MA  01880 

 

RE: Euclid Factory Trained Applicator Program 

 

Gentlemen: 

 

DN Tanks is a factory trained Euclid applicator in good standing.  Throughout the years, many individuals from 

DN Tanks have attended our training programs.  DN Tanks is clearly committed to providing employees with 

the proper knowledge to ensure successful installations.   

 

Thank you again for considering our materials for your project. 

 

 

Regards, 

Christopher French 
Christopher French 

Euclid Chemical Company  

 





 

 

 
 
 

November 9, 2020 

 
Ms. Christina DeGroote 

CFO 

DN Tanks, LLC 

11 Teal Road 

Wakefield, MA 01880 

 

Re:  Bank Reference    

 

Dear Christina, 

 

As the Senior Vice President of commercial markets for Citizens Bank in Massachusetts, I want to 

communicate our bank’s institutional support for DN Tanks, LLC. At Citizens, we partner with and support 

strong businesses and talented management teams that can execute upon their business models and have a 

differentiated ability to deliver value to their customers. In addition, Citizens has a critical mission to invest 

in our region and in our local industries in support of the Massachusetts and New England economies.  

 

We consider DN Tanks a valued client and to support their business initiatives we provide the company 

with an eight figure line of credit as well as treasury and deposit services.  It is a priority of Citizens to 

support the company because of our confidence in the management team and their business model.    

 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please don’t hesitate to contact me directly at 617-

725-5593. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Denise D. McGeough 

Senior Vice President  

 

 

           Denise McGeough



INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

PRO-

OTHER:

LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED PROPERTY DAMAGE $

AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

POLICY

NON-OWNED

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2016/03)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Zurich American Insurance Company

Starr Indemnity & Liability Company

1/12/2021

Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC
Marsh & McLennan Ins. Agency LLC
PO Box 85638
San Diego, CA  92186

constructioncerts@marshmma.com

DN Tanks, Inc.
P.O. Box 696
El Cajon, CA  92022-0696

16535
38318

A X
X

X

X GLO933673510 05/01/2020 05/01/2021 2,000,000
500,000
10,000
2,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000

A
X

X BAP933673609 05/01/2020 05/01/2021 1,000,000

B X X 1000586306201 05/01/2020 05/01/2021 4,000,000
4,000,000

A

N

WC012497605 05/01/2020 05/01/2021 X
1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

RE: For Bidding Purposes. Town of Addison, TX - REHABILITATION OF THE 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK 
 5510 Celestial Rd. Dallas, TX 75254. 
Town of Addison, Kleinfelder (Engineer), are included as additional insured with respects to General
Liability and Auto Liability per attached endorsements. Coverage is primary and noncontributory per
attached endorsements. Excess/Umbrella policy follows form of primary policies.

Town of Addison
Kleinfelder
5350 Belt Line Rd.
Dallas, TX  75254

1 of 1
#S6933868/M4884489

DNTANKSClient#: 424896

WSADH
1 of 1

#S6933868/M4884489




BINDER

POLICY NUMBER:  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 CG 25 03 05 09 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
 

CG 25 03 05 09  Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2008  Page 1 of 2  
 

DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION PROJECT(S)  
GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT 

 

 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART  

 
SCHEDULE 

 
Designated Construction Project(s): 

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 
 

 

A. For all sums which the insured becomes legally 
obligated to pay as damages caused by 
"occurrences" under Section I ---- Coverage A, and 
for all medical expenses caused by accidents 
under Section I ---- Coverage C, which can be 
attributed only to ongoing operations at a single 
designated construction project shown in the 
Schedule above: 

 1. A separate Designated Construction Project 
General Aggregate Limit applies to each 
designated construction project, and that limit 
is equal to the amount of the General 
Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations. 

 2. The Designated Construction Project General 
Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for the 
sum of all damages under Coverage A, except 
damages because of "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" included in the "products-
completed operations hazard", and for 
medical expenses under Coverage C 
regardless of the number of: 

 a. Insureds; 

 b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or 

 c. Persons or organizations making claims or 
bringing "suits". 

 3. Any payments made under Coverage A for 
damages or under Coverage C for medical 
expenses shall reduce the Designated 
Construction Project General Aggregate Limit 
for that designated construction project. Such 
payments shall not reduce the General 
Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations nor 
shall they reduce any other Designated 
Construction Project General Aggregate Limit 
for any other designated construction project 
shown in the Schedule above. 

 4. The limits shown in the Declarations for Each 
Occurrence, Damage To Premises Rented To 
You and Medical Expense continue to apply. 
However, instead of being subject to the 
General Aggregate Limit shown in the 
Declarations, such limits will be subject to the 
applicable Designated Construction Project 
General Aggregate Limit. 

Binder              

A GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES TO EACH CONSTRUCTION PROJECT WHERE  
THE NAMED INSURED IS PERFORMING OPERATIONS, HOWEVER, A GENERAL        
AGGREGATE LIMIT DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY CONSTRUCTION PROJECT WHERE THE  
NAMED INSURED IS PERFORMING OPERATIONS THAT ARE INSURED UNDER A WRAP  
UP OR ANY OTHER CONSOLIDATED OR SIMILAR INSURANCE PROGRAM.            
                                                                      
                                                                      

GLA 3069412-00

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INSURED:  

                                                                                           

POLICY#:                                                                                 POLICY PERIOD:

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                       TO: 

DN Tanks, Inc.

GLO933673510 05/01/2020 05/01/2021

1049359
Rectangle



BINDER

B. For all sums which the insured becomes legally 
obligated to pay as damages caused by 
"occurrences" under Section I ---- Coverage A, and 
for all medical expenses caused by accidents 
under Section I ---- Coverage C, which cannot be 
attributed only to ongoing operations at a single 
designated construction project shown in the 
Schedule above: 

 1. Any payments made under Coverage A for 
damages or under Coverage C for medical 
expenses shall reduce the amount available 
under the General Aggregate Limit or the 
Products-completed Operations Aggregate 
Limit, whichever is applicable; and 

 2. Such payments shall not reduce any 
Designated Construction Project General 
Aggregate Limit. 

C. When coverage for liability arising out of the 
"products-completed operations hazard" is 
provided, any payments for damages because of 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" included in 
the "products-completed operations hazard" will 
reduce the Products-completed Operations 
Aggregate Limit, and not reduce the General 
Aggregate Limit nor the Designated Construction 
Project General Aggregate Limit. 

D. If the applicable designated construction project 
has been abandoned, delayed, or abandoned 
and then restarted, or if the authorized 
contracting parties deviate from plans, blueprints, 
designs, specifications or timetables, the project 
will still be deemed to be the same construction 
project. 

E. The provisions of Section III ---- Limits Of 
Insurance not otherwise modified by this 
endorsement shall continue to apply as 
stipulated. 

1049359
Rectangle



INSURED:  

POLICY #:  POLICY PERIOD:  TO  

    
 

 
 

DN Tanks, Inc.

GLO933673510 05/01/2020 05/01/2021

Blanket Endorsement. As Required By Written Contract



 

 



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 31 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

CG 20 31 12 19 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1
Wolters Kluwer Financial Services, Inc. | Uniform FormsINTERNAL USE ONLY

ADDITIONAL INSURED – ENGINEERS,
ARCHITECTS OR SURVEYORS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured any architect,
engineer or surveyor engaged by you, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury" or
"property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by
your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of
those acting on your behalf:

 1. In connection with your premises; or
 2. In the performance of your ongoing operations.

However:
 1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted by
law; and

 2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusion applies:
This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or
"property damage" arising out of the rendering of
or the failure to render any professional services
by or for you, including:

 1. The preparing, approving, or failing to prepare
or approve, maps, shop drawings, opinions,
reports, surveys, field orders, change orders or
drawings and specifications; or

 2. Supervisory, inspection, architectural or
engineering activities.

This exclusion applies even if the claims against
any insured allege negligence or other wrongdoing
in the supervision, hiring, employment, training or
monitoring of others by that insured, if the
"occurrence" which caused the "bodily injury" or
"property damage" involved the rendering of or the
failure to render any professional services by or for
you.

C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III – Limits Of Insurance:
If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

 1. Required by the contract or agreement; or
 2. Available under the applicable limits of

insurance;
whichever is less.
This endorsement shall not increase the
applicable limits of insurance.

INSURED:  

                                                                                           

POLICY#:                                                                                 POLICY PERIOD:                                                                                                                                       TO: 05/01/2020 05/01/2021

DN Tanks, Inc.

GLO933673510



INSURED:  

POLICY #:  POLICY PERIOD:  TO  

    
 

 

DN Tanks, Inc.

DN Tanks, Inc.

GLO933673510

GLO933673510

05/01/2020

05/01/2020

05/01/2021

05/01/2021



INSURED:  

POLICY #:  POLICY PERIOD:  TO  

    
 

 

DN Tanks, Inc.

BAP933673609 05/01/2020 05/01/2021



 
 

 

410 East Trinity Blvd., Grand Prairie, TX 75050 | 972.823.3300 | Fax 972.823.3333 
 

 
January 13, 2021 
 
 
Reference: Warranty Statement 

Rehabilitation of 6.0 MG Celestial Ground Storage Tank 
              Town of Addison 

Bid Number #21-42 
              
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
 
DN Tanks has reviewed the contract documents and addenda issued and acknowledges the warranty 
requirements for this project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact me at your convenience. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Adam Blaser 
 
Adam P. Blaser, P.E. | Regional Manager, CTS Central Region 
DN TANKS | Concrete Tank Services 
410 East Trinity Blvd., Grand Prairie, Texas 75050 
Main Office 972.823.3300 
Direct 972.823.3322 | Cell 214.293.6465 | Fax 972.823.3333 
 



*DN Tanks considers Financial Statements confidential. Please refer to orginal bid*



 

 

 

        7805 Mesquite Bend Drive, Suite 100, Irving, Texas 75063      P | 972.868.5900      F | 972.409.0008 
Page 1 of 1 

 
January 19, 2021 
 
Wilson K. Kakembo, P.E. 
Capital/Development Projects Manager  
Public Works and Engineering Services - Town of Addison 
16801 Westgrove Dr.  
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Re: Bid Evaluation and Recommendation to Award 
 Rehabilitation of 6.0 MG Celestial Ground Storage Tank- Bid No. 21-42 
 
Dear Mr. Kakembo: 
 
Kleinfelder, Inc. has completed its review of the one (1) bid that was received from general 
contractor and opened on January 14, 2021 at 2:00 PM for the above referenced project. 
Presented below is our evaluation of the bid, including our recommendation to award the 
construction contract.  
 
A summary of the bids received is provided in Table 1 below: 
 

TABLE 1 – SUMMARY OF BID RECEIVED 
 

Number General Contractor 
Base Bid 

Price 

1 DN Tanks $1,239,510.00 

 
Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost: $1,250,000  
 

Bid Bond totaling 5% of the Total Bid Price in the bid package received from the submitted 
bidder. 
 
Based on our evaluation of the bid, verification with the data sheet references and in 
consideration of relevant construction experience and qualifications, we recommend 
awarding this project to DN Tanks in the amount of $1,239,510.00. 
 

Please contact me should you have any questions or comments concerning our 
recommendation at npatel@kleinfelder.com or (972) 467-2799.  
 
Sincerely, 
KLEINFELDER 

 
 
 
 
 

Nirav Patel, P.E. 
Project Engineer  

mailto:npatel@kleinfelder.com


TOWN OF ADDISON 
REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK 

 

 

WATER TANK REHABILITATION SPECIFICATION 
30001 - 2 

 

 
 1.4 SUBMITTALS 

A. Comply with requirements of Section 01330 – Submittal Procedures 

B. Manufacturer’s technical data on all manufactured products including 
preparation, installation, application, finishing and curing procedures, and 
temperature limitations.  Submit detailed surface preparation method and 
procedure complying with manufacturer’s recommendations.  

1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 

A. Store all materials in cool, dry conditions in the original unopened bags or cans, 
and in strict accordance with manufacturer’s directions.  Do not use materials 
that have been stored for periods longer than the manufacturer’s recommended 
shelf life. 

1.6 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Qualifications & Experience 

The contractor shall be a specialist tank contractor experienced in the design, 
construction, and retrofit of precast wire-wound prestressed concrete tanks, with 
a minimum of ten (10) projects completed that met AWWA D110 Type III 
Standard, having retrofitted, in their own name, at least three (3) tanks in the last 
5 years of equal size or greater, and shall have rehabilitated at least five (5) 
tanks with the specified coating material.   

Tank contractor is responsible for the coordination, design, detailing, installation, 
and sealing of the penetration to ensure all work is performed with current 
standards. 

Singular Responsibility: The concrete tank retrofit work shall be performed by 
skilled personnel employed directly by the tank contractor. 

B. Prequalification 

DN Tanks, Wakefield, Massachusetts and PreLoad, LLC Louisville, Kentucky 
are prequalified as tank contractor for this project.  Additional tank contractors 
seeking prequalification, shall submit a prequalification package in accordance  
with Section 1.6C to the ENGINEER for review and approval no later than seven 
(7) days prior to the date set for receipt of bid.  Within five (5) days prior to the 
date of receiving bids, the engineer will publish a list of additional prequalified 
tank contractors. 

C.  Qualification Standards 

1. Tank contractors shall submit one copy of a qualification submittal along 
with the sealed bid package on the advertised bid date. 



TOWN OF ADDISON 
REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK 

 

 

WATER TANK REHABILITATION SPECIFICATION 
30001 - 3 

 

2. Project Experience – The tank contractors shall submit a complete record 
of their experience in the rehabilitation of circular concrete tanks with a 
minimum capacity of 5.0 MG.  The record shall indicate the size of the 
tank, the name and address of the OWNER, the year of rehabilitation, and 
the name of the ENGINEER for each project.   

3. Company Personnel – Provide the names, project responsibilities, 
experience on similar projects and resumes for personnel responsible for 
the following: 

• Project Manager 

• Design Engineer 

• Site Superintendent 

• Quality Control Manager  

4. Construction Equipment, Materials and Methods – Provide the following: 

• Summary of all equipment to be used in the rehabilitation of the 
tank. 

• Construction schedule and plan including labor requirements and 
responsibilities, sequencing, materials and methods. 

• Quality control plan and procedures including testing, correcting 
deficiencies, systems and methods, schedule and responsibilities. 

• List all major suppliers and subcontractors who may work on this 
project. 

5. Financial Capacity – Provide the following: 

• References for bank and bonding company 

• Insurance Limits 

• Warranty Statement 

• Annual Reports and/or financial statements 

6. The contractor shall sign and date the information provided and certify that 
to the extent of the Contractor’s knowledge, the information is true and 
accurate, and the design and construction supervisory personnel for the 
tank construction will be directly involved with and used on this project.  
Substitutions of personnel and/or methods will not be allowed without the 
written authorization of the Owner. 

D.  Construction Submittals for Review Prior to Use: 



TOWN OF ADDISON 
REHABILITATION OF 6.0 MG CELESTIAL GROUND STORAGE TANK 

 

 

WATER TANK REHABILITATION SPECIFICATION 
30001 - 4 

 

1. Design proportions for all concrete and shotcrete and concrete strengths of 
trial mixes for all concrete. 

2. Admixtures to be used in the concrete and their purpose. 

3. Shop drawings shall be stamped by a Professional ENGINEER, 
experienced in the design and rehabilitation of circular concrete water 
tanks and registered in the State of Texas. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

2.1 MATERIALS 

A. Patching material: Thorite by Thoro System Products, Speedcrete Redline, 
Tamms Patch II, Tamms Structural Mortar by Euclid Chemical Company or other 
approved equal. 
 

B. Waterborne Acrylic – Wall System 
 
1. The basecoat and topcoat shall be TAMMSCOAT as manufactured by 

Euclid Chemical Company, or approved equal. 
 

C. Penetrating Epoxy Primer – Roof System 
 
1. Penetrating Primer: Provide (2) component, low viscosity, water-

emulsion, penetrating epoxy designed for use as a moisture mitigation 
treatment on concrete with the following characteristics: 

 
2.  Product: Dural Aquatight WB by Euclid Chemical Co.  

 
D. Primer – Roof System 
 

1. Epoxy Primer: Provide 100% solids, two-component, penetrating epoxy 
primer manufactured by Urethane Deck Coating System manufacturer. 

 
  a. Mixed Viscosity of 300 to 400 cps 
  b. Tack Free Time of 3 to 4 hours @ 75 deg F. 
  c. Cure Time of 12 hours @ 75 deg F 
  d. VOC: <5 g/L 

 
2.  Product:  Dural Epoxy Primer by Euclid Chemical Co. 

 
E. Waterproof Membrane – Roof System 
 

1. Urethane Membrane: Provide (2) component, 100% solids, elastomeric 
urethane manufactured by Urethane Deck Coating System manufacturer. 

 
a. Tensile Strength 1,200 psi @ 7 days per ASTM D 412 
b. Tensile Elongation: 350% per ASTM D 412 
c. Tear Resistance: 100 pli per ASTM D 1004 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
FOR WATER STORAGE FACILITIES 
 
 
Celestial 6 MG Ground Storage Tank, Surveyor 2 MG Ground 
Storage Tank, & Addison Circle 1 MG Elevated Storage Tank 
Addison, Texas 

 
 
Project 00138755.000A 
August 25, 2014 



 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423  August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 
 

7805 Mesquite Bend Drive, Suite 100, Irving, TX 75063 p | 972.868.5900 f | 972.409.0008 

August 25, 2014 
Project No.:  00138755.000A 

Ms. Lisa Pyles 
Director Infrastructure Operations and Services 
Town of Addison 
16801 Westgrove Drive 
Addison, Texas 75001 

Reference:  Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for Water Storage Facilities 
Celestial Ground Storage Tank, Surveyor Ground Storage Tank, and 
Addison Elevated Storage Tank 

Dear Ms. Pyles, 
 
Kleinfelder has completed all authorized site visits and Preliminary Evaluation and Assessment 
Report for the three (3) water storage facilities in Addison, Texas. In accordance with Task 5 of 
our proposal related to Professional Services for Captial Improvements Plan - Water Stroage 
Facilities dated August 23, 2013 submitted herewith is the 5-year Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) for FY 2015 to 2019 related to water storage facilities. The Town of Addison’s capital 
needs have been based on a risk-based asset management approach. This approach will allow 
the Town to compare and contrast the wide range of projects based on the likelihood of failure 
and the resulting consequences should a failure occur. The lasting impact is not the report 
document – it is the dynamic asset management tool Kleinfelder has developed and the 
framework put in place that will better provide the critical information the Town needs to make 
informed decisions about capital funding needs going forward. 
 
We look forward to spending time with your staff and you in the near future to reach consensus 
on finalizing the plan. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
KLEINFELDER CENTRAL, INC. 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-5592 

 
 
 
 
C.P. Nawal, PE Freddie Guerra, RS CAPM 
Project Engineer Project Manager 





 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 iii August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 PAGE 

1  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .................................................................................................. 1 

2  FY 2015-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) ................................................... 7 
 
 
APPENDICES 

A – Asset Priority and Associated Projects 
B – Risk Based Prioritization Plan for Capital and O&M Projects for FY 2015 to 2019 

 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 1 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

5-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR WATER STORAGE FACILITIES 
 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

OVERVIEW 

The initial determination of capital needs from the Infrastructure Operations and Services 

Department identified over 22 projects which were considered “important to maintain and 

preserve the physical assets that support the Town of Addison’s water storage operations, 

programs, and services”. For the purpose of this report, the physical assets evaluated were 

limited to the Town’s three (3) water storage facilities infrastructure at: 

1. Celestial Ground Storage Tank (GST) 

2. Surveyor Ground Storage Tank (GST) 

3. Addison Circle Elevated Storage Tank (EST) 

The investments identified are intended to properly maintain or replace capital assets. All of the 

project recommendations were evaluated to prioritize when each project should be implemented 

using the calculated risk associated with the asset(s) involved. 

Where it was practical, repair/replacement of like-items were bundled into larger capital 

investments, while other items were recommended to be migrated to the Department’s 

operational budget (smaller capital valued at less than $50,000, maintenance items, etc.) This 

resulted in a final CIP project listing of six (6) projects valued at $4.6 million including, O&M, 

engineering and construction contingency costs. As the pie chart on the next page illustrates, 

the majority (54%) of capital needs belong to the Addison Elevated Storage Tank (EST) 

rehabilitation work. A summary of the highest capital needs for all of the water storage facilities 

is shown at the end of this section. 

The FY2015-2019 Capital Improvement Plan proposes funding allocations for nearly $4.6 

million in projects. The entire list of projects broken down by Capital and Operational budgets is 

located in Appendix B. 

 
  



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 2 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Breakdown of Projects by Water Storage Facility 

 
 
 
 

Highlights of Process 

This Capital Improvement Plan represents a significant shift in the manner by which capital 

projects are recorded, reviewed, and eventually executed by the Town of Addison. Like any 

planning tool, it is fully expected it will continue to evolve, adopting changes that will only 

improve the process and the manner in which the Town allocates scarce resources to their 

infrastructure needs. 

The goal of this capital improvement plan for the water storage tanks is to identify and prioritize 

capital needs across the Town, and to allocate funding to implement those projects through a 

process that is logical, transparent, and data-driven. To that end, a Risk model was 

developed to create a standard framework related to the decision-making process for the 

Department’s water storage facility capital needs. 

One of the first steps was to assess the current condition of the capital assets – specifically 

Celestial GST, Surveyor GST, and Addison Circle EST. Kleinfelder was commissioned to 

conduct the evaluation and assessment of water storage facilities and to give the Town a 

current snapshot of both short-term critical needs and longer-term investments needed to 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 3 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

maintain the serviceability of each facility. All assets were rated according to physical, 

performance and rules-based criteria as defined in the individual assessment reports. 

The rating process evaluated and compared the different capital needs using the same criteria: 

the likelihood of failure and the consequences of failure of a particular asset or proposed 

project. Likelihood of Failure considers the physical and performance condition of an asset 

while Consequence of Failure considers what would happen if the asset were to fail. The 

details of this risk-based approach are described in Section 2 of this document. It is important to 

point out that this methodology is the driver for management’s evaluation of capital improvement 

needs within the context of competing demands. 

The Risk Factor is calculated as the highest value of likelihood of failure multiplied by the 

highest consequence for each asset to yield: 

 
Risk Factor = LoF x CoF 

 

Where: LoF = Likelihood of Failure and CoF = Consequence of Failure 

Details of this calculation are further described starting from Section 2 of this report. 

The projects are then prioritized according to the magnitude of the Risk Factor for assets 

defined within each capital need. Finally, the Town’s annual funding capacity determines the 

degree to which capital projects in the CIP are funded according to the priority. This model 

provides a transparent decision-making framework that can support the capital improvement 

planning process into the future. 

The initial master list of prioritized projects (see Appendix A) included several top priority 

projects that were identified for FY15 capital funding.  

Key Findings 

 
 No identification of urgent near term needs: Specific conditions were not noted 

during the assessment which required immediate attention and a plan for mitigation. 
These conditions constitute life-safety issues and can result in considerably greater 
expense due to further facility damage with repair under an emergency condition, or 
worse, personal injury. 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 4 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 No identification of assets that are obsolete or no longer functioning as intended: 
Our investigations determined that none of the facilities were obsolete or of limited use 
to the Town in their current configuration. 

 Increased investments needed in specified asset categories: In-depth analysis 
pertaining to various assets in the Department, revealed particular needs critical enough 
to warrant a proposal for significant investment over the next five years. 

 Migration of smaller capital needs to operational budgets: As noted earlier, projects 
of less than $50,000 were not included in the CIP in order to migrate these needs to the 
operational budget. It is proposed that smaller capital and maintenance needs should be 
a part of the annual work-plan for the Department and not called out in the CIP.  

 Asset Management Software: Crucial to the management of the Town’s infrastructure, 
is data documentation in a manner that is accessible and organized, which was 
accomplished in preparing this CIP. Electronic files allow for quick recovery of 
information and condition ratings of the various tank system components. The 
VUEWorks system integrates with GIS to give the spatial orientation of the capital asset. 

A view of the database is depicted in the “screen shots” below. This tool helps to manage the 

vast amount of information about the Town’s assets and provides easy, real time access to data 

needed for cost estimates and renewal recommendations. 

 
  



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 5 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 Preventive maintenance nexus to premature capital investments: One cannot 
discuss capital needs planning without thoughtful consideration of the allocation of 
resources for maintenance. The figure below depicts the typical deterioration of a facility 
with no maintenance and repair done to it during its projected life. However with an 
appropriate level of maintenance at the proper time, the deterioration curve can be 
shifted to the right, indefinitely. This has significant financial implications for the Town 
trying to manage assets having a replacement value approaching millions of dollars. As 
the curve depicts, by forgoing relatively inexpensive maintenance, in the course of a few 
years, the capital dollars needed to return facility back to its operational potential, 
become exponential. 
 

Decay Curve 

 
 
 

Water Storage Facility Project Costs 

Costs for water storage facility improvement recommendations were developed primarily 

through the review of recent bid tabulations of similar projects in the DFW area.  Estimated 

costs are for planning purposes only, a detailed engineer’s opinion of probably cost will be 

provided during the design phase of each project.  The estimated costs are not a projection of 

future costs. 

  



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 6 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Listing of Top 4 Water Storage Facilities in CIP by Total Cost of Repair & Replacement 

Water 
Storage 
Facility 

Project Title Description 
Estimated 

Project Cost 

Addison 
EST 

Coating  –  
Exterior 

Option 2:  Exterior Coating Complete Replacement 
Including the Containment Cost 

$1,000,000

Celestial 
GST 

Structural – 
Exterior roof 

Add Material to Bring Roof Slope to 0.75 Inches Per 
Foot Including the Required Structural Modifications 

$1,000,000

Addison 
EST 

Coating  –  
Interior 

Interior Coating Replacement $550,000 

Surveyor 
GST 

Structural – 
Exterior Roof 

Add Material to Bring Roof Slope to 0.75 Inches Per 
Foot Including the Required Structural Modification 

$500,000



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 7 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

2 FY 2015-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

CIP Methodology - A Paradigm Shift to a Risk-Based Approach 

Kleinfelder developed this comprehensive and integrated capital plan using a risk-based 

approach to analyze and prioritize capital needs across the Town’s water storage facilities 

infrastructure. 

Risk Approach Overview 

In the context of asset management, Risk is defined as the probable magnitude of a future loss, 

and is expressed mathematically as the Likelihood of Failure (LoF) multiplied by the magnitude 

of its Consequence of Failure or its expected loss (CoF). This risk-based approach considers 

that an asset may “fail,” due to its condition and the inherent consequences of that “failure”. 

Failure here is used to mean that an asset fails to meet its intended purpose or use. Using this 

methodology, Likelihood of Failure is multiplied by a weighted Consequence (or impact) of 

Failure to arrive at a Risk Factor. 

Calculating Risk 

The assessment of Risk begins with the development of a list of Consequences that could occur 

if any asset identified within the water tank fails. The list of consequences used for Addison is 

specified herein. Each Consequence is given a relative weight in recognition that while all 

consequences are important, some consequences have a greater impact on the mission of the 

tank than others. 

A failure of any asset may impact several consequences at varying amounts. Once the list of 

consequences is determined each asset is assessed against each consequence on a scale of 

Not Rated to 10. Where 10 indicates when a failure would result in the greatest impact to that 

consequence. 

The Likelihood of Failure (LoF) is derived from one or more failure modes which are typically 

measures of condition and performance. The modes of failure used for the Addison tank assets 

are Condition, Performance and Rule based.  Assets were assessed against each of these 

measures and then given a likelihood of failure score of 0% to 100% according to their 

assessment scores. 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 8 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

At this point the asset has a CoF score for each consequence and an LoF value for each Failure 

Mode. To determine Risk, a matrix is established so that each combination of CoF and LoF may 

be evaluated. 

Matrix Used to Calculate Risk for One Asset 

 

Once Risk is calculated for each asset the results can be presented in a number ways including 

a prioritized list or plotted in a quadrant graph as shown below. The quadrant the asset falls 

within provides guidance on how to proceed with each asset as follows: 

Lowest Priority – Low CoF, Low LoF  = no action required at this time, may re-inspect at 
longer intervals 

Regular Monitoring – High CoF, Low LoF = no action required at this time, but set up an 
aggressive maintenance and inspection routines  

Second Priority – Low CoF, High LoF = take remedial action to repair or replace as budget 
allows 

Highest Priority – High CoF, High LoF = Asset requires remedial action as soon as possible. 
Continue aggressive monitoring  

 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 9 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Asset Risk by Quadrant for Addison EST Tank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Referring to the prioritization grid above, if a coating is in poor condition, the likelihood of a 

coating failure leading to a consequential tank roof leak could be very high for a metal tank but 

has much smaller risk associated with a concrete tank (because concrete does not corrode as 

metal does).  

Recommendations to correct specific asset deficiencies can then be prioritized based on risk. 

With a high LoF and CoF, the asset would also rate as a high priority for repair. However, if the 

likelihood of a failure for an asset is low, while the consequences of that failure remains  high, 

aggressive maintenance and monitoring should be scheduled to ensure that remedial action 

takes place before a  failure is allowed to disrupt the mission of the Tank. 

This data driven methodology allows the Town to more consistently and objectively evaluate 

assets for potential CIP projects across the spectrum of asset types to assure that capital 

dollars are allocated properly. While beyond the scope of this project, it also provides the basis 

forr setting up inspection and maintenance schedules to assure cost effective actions take place 

before more costly rehabilitation projects are required. 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 10 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Criteria Used to Calculate Risk 

The criteria for risk ranking each asset was developed based on the mission of the Water Tanks 

relevant to the value they deliver to the Town of Addison community. Accomplishing this goal 

typically begins with a mission statement that reflects the value the assets deliver to the 

community: 

1. Mission of Water Storage Facilities 

Cost effectively provide reliable water supply and  pressure for industrial, domestic and 

fire suppression needs while preserving water quality and meeting regulatory 

requirements in a manner that demonstrates community pride while providing a safe 

environment for workers in a secure setting. 

2. Develop a List of Consequences 

Consequences reflect the impact a failure would have on the mission of the Water Tanks 

and are therefore typically expressed as an undesired occurrence.  Developing this list 

begins with identifying key words in the mission statement such as: 

 “Cost effectively” 

 “Reliable water supply and pressure” 

 “Preserving water  quality” 

 “Meeting regulatory requirements” 

 “Community pride” 

 “Safe environment for workers” 

 “Secure setting” 

The list of consequences or ‘undesirable impacts’ developed from these key words are as 

follows: 

 High Cost to Repair or Operate 

 Poor Water Flow / Pressure  

 Compromised Water Quality 

 Regulatory Incompliance 

 Decline in Public Relations 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 11 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 Decreased Worker Safety 

 Decreased Security 

The next step involves understanding that while all consequences are important, some may 

be considered more important than others. To accomplish this each consequence is ranked 

on a relative scale of 1 to 10 where 10 signifies the most important consequence to consider 

and where 5 indicates that the consequence is half as an important. The following is the 

criteria applied to the Addison’s list of consequences: 

Ranking of Consequences 

Consequence Value 

Compromised Water Quality 10 

Poor Water Flow / Pressure 10 

Regulatory Incompliance 8 

High Cost to Repair/ Operate 9 

Decline in Public Relations  8 

Decreased Worker Safety 8 

Decreased Security 7 

With this information developed, each asset is then evaluated based on how severe the 

impact would be on each consequence if the asset were to fail. Severity is based on a scale 

of 1 to 10 where 1 represents little Impact and 10 represents a high or more urgent impact. 

For instance an inadequate coating thickness could be classified as a coating failure. While 

such a failure may lead to corrosion and eventual leaking of the tank wall (a severe impact to 

water flow) the urgency of the failure is diminished substantially by the fact that it would take 

a long time for a coating failure to manifest itself to this level. Therefore, the impact to poor 

water flow/pressure would be low. However more urgent consequences such as high cost to 

repair and Regulatory Incompliance would be high. Another factor that will modify the 

Consequence rating of an asset is redundancy. For instance in the case of outlet pipes, two 

outlet pipes are rated at about half the consequence rating that only one outlet pipe would 

receive. 

  



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 12 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Values for Consequence Severity by Asset 

Description Value 
No Impact NR 

Low Severity 1 
 2 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

High Severity 10 

3.  Develop Likelihood of Failure Criteria  

Likelihood of Failure is developed from the criteria for Physical Condition, Performance 

Condition, and Rules Condition as defined in the accompanying Evaluation and Assessment 

Reports. Physical and Performance condition were rated on a 1 to 5 scale using the following 

criteria: 

Rating Criteria 

Rating Physical Condition Performance 

1 - Excellent No Visible Degradation 
Component Functioning as 

Intended 

2 - Good Slightly Visible Degradation 
In-service, but Higher Than 

Expected O&M 

3 - Moderate Visible Degradation In-service, but Function is Impaired 

4 - Poor 
Integrity of Component 

Moderately Compromised 
In-service, but Function is Highly 

Impaired 

5 - Critical 
Integrity of Component Severely 

Compromised 
Component not Functioning as 

Intended 

Assets that must meet various state and federal regulatory requirements were also 

assessed with a Rules rating scale as follows: 

  



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 13 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Rating Scale for Compliance with Rules 

Rating Rule (or Regulation) 

1 - Exceeds Component Functioning as Intended by Rule 

2 - Acceptable In-service, but Function Minimally Meets Rule 

3 - Needs Improvement In-service, but Function Does Not Meet Rule 

The Likelihood of Failure is set to a scale of 0% Likely to 100% Likely that failure will occur 

in a given year as summarize in the following table: 

Interpreting Likelihood of failure levels 

Likelihood of 
Failure 

What it means 

100% Failure likely to occur within a year 

90% 90%  chance of Failure in any year – Failure likely within 2 years 

50% 50% chance of Failure within any year 

20% 20% chance of Failure within any year 

10% 10% chance of Failure within any year – 90% chance it won’t 

2% 2% chance of Failure within any year – 98% chance it won’t 

Failure likelihood relative to physical and performance condition was set as follows: 

Condition Score Likelihood 

1 5% 

2 20% 

3 40% 

4 75% 

5 100% 

Failure likelihood relative to Rules Condition was set as follows: 

Rules Condition Likelihood 

1 5% 

2 40% 

3 80% 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 14 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Calculation of the Risk Value for each Asset: 

As mentioned earlier Risk is calculated as the product of Consequence of Failure and 

Likelihood of Failure. 

Risk = CoF x LoF 

VUEWorks was used to calculate the consequence for each asset. The calculation is 

illustrated as follows: 

 

Risk Calculation Further Described 

Referring to the screenshot above, each consequence rating is modified by the relative rank 

(weight) of the consequence and adjusted to a scale of 1 to 10 (see page 14 for consequence 

ranks). The highest consequence score is set as the Consequence Factor. To determine the 

Risk Factor each consequence score is multiplied by the Likelihood of Failure for each Failure 

Mode. The highest scores for each consequence (shown in red) are compared to determine the 

highest value. The highest value is then set as the Risk Factor for the asset. 

In the example above, Compromised Water Quality received the highest consequence score 

and was therefore set as the Consequence Factor. This score (along with the other 

consequence scores) was multiplied by the Likelihood of Failure for each Failure Mode. In this 

case the Likelihood for Physical Condition of 75% is the influencing Failure Mode with a risk 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 15 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

score of 6.00. This value was determined to be the highest risk score and thus set as the Risk 

Factor for the asset. The scores noted in red tell us that the influencing consequence is 

‘Compromised Water Quality’ due to a 75% likelihood that the asset (rafters) may fail within any 

year due to the physical condition of the rafters. Failure only indicates a high likelihood that a 

consequence will occur, which is not necessarily a catastrophic failure (such as a collapse). In 

this case the system is telling us that there is a risk that corroded material from the rafter could 

enter the water supply if left untreated (this asset is identified for a project in the first year). 

Risk-based Project Ranking 

Included in each Evaluation and Assessment report is a list of recommended projects for each 

tank. To rank these projects the Risk Factor of the asset(s) with the highest risk in each project 

is used. 

Below is a summary of the highest Risk assets and the projects they are associated with: 

Highest Risk Assets and Their Associated Projects 

 

 

 

 

A complete list can be found in Appendix A 

Regarding the Asset Management Software 

All of the data collected during the inspection of the water storage facilities is stored in a GIS 

centric enterprise asset management application called VUEWorks. The value of such system is 

that data manipulation can be accomplished quickly, shared with as many users as needed, and 

can be interactive by flagging suggested work timeframes or provide high-speed consolidated 

town-wide assessment (i.e. the condition and cost to repair all the different ladders at the water 

storage facilities). A screen-shot of the VUEWorks software is below. 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0423 Page 16 of 16 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 
Asset Priority and Associated Projects 



 

 

 
  



 

 

 
  



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

Appendix B: 
Risk-based Prioritization Plan for Capital and O&M Projects for FY 2015 to 2019 

All Projects 
  



 

 

 
  

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Totals
CIP Total 1,675,000$      500,000$         150,000$              ‐$                  1,000,000$           3,325,000$      
O&M Total 75,000$           37,500$           40,000$                 5,000$              107,900$               265,400$         
Contingency 263,000$         81,000$           29,000$                 1,000$              167,000$               541,000$         
Engineering 263,000$         81,000$           29,000$                 1,000$              167,000$               541,000$         

6 Year Total 2,276,000$      699,500$         248,000$              7,000$              1,441,900$           4,672,400$      

Project Name Project Description Facility Project Risk Project Type 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Surveyor‐ inlet repairs
Upsize the inlet pipe (Approximately 100 LF) 

from 12‐inches to 24‐inches.
Surveyor 7.50 O&M 30,000$          

Addison EST‐Interior Coating Replacement Interior Coating Replacement Addison EST 7.50 CIP 550,000$        

Addison EST‐Exterior Coating Replacement Exterior Coating Replacement Addison EST 6.48 CIP 1,000,000$     

Surveyor‐Ext. Roof Upgrades

 Add material to bring roof slope to 0.75 inches 

per foot including the required structural 

modifications

Surveyor 6.40 CIP 500,000$        

Addison EST‐Roof Rafter Repairs
Repair Roof Rafters, Patch Corrosion Pitting on 

Roof Plates
Addison EST 6.00 CIP 125,000$        

Surveyor‐Roof vent repairs
Remove roof vent and replace with larger necked 

vent.
Surveyor 6.00 O&M 15,000$          

Addison EST‐Roof Landing Repairs
Remove Cable System and Install Perimeter 

Railing
Addison EST 6.00 O&M 20,000$          

Celestial‐Operational Upgrades
Abrasive blast and recoat sonic level indicator  

and overflow weir and piping
Celestial 5.60 O&M 7,500$            

Addison EST‐Manhole and Hatch Repairs

Repair of 30‐inch Wet Side Manhole 

Replacement of 24‐inch “Vent Manhole” 

Painter’s Hatch

Addison EST 5.40 O&M 25,000$          

Celestial‐Overflow weirs Replace the overflow weirs and corroded bolts Celestial 4.32 O&M 5,000$            

Surveyor‐Int. Roof Repairs Repair Spalling and Reinforcing Corrosion Surveyor 4.00 O&M 10,000$          

Celestial‐Interior Roof Repairs
Repair Spalling and Reinforcing Corrosion 

(Assumes 400 SF Spalling Repair)
Celestial 4.00 O&M 20,000$                

Addison EST‐Overflow Repairs Install Access Lid for Overflow Catchment Box  Addison EST 4.00 CIP 150,000$             

Celestial‐Interior Floor Sealing Seal cracking (Assumes 200 LF Repair) Celestial 3.60 O&M 5,400$                  

Surveyor‐Roof Hatch Repairs Repair surface corrosion on Roof Hatch Surveyor 3.20 O&M 5,000$             

Surveyor‐Ladders Repairs
Remove ladder cages and cable climb system.  

Install safety climb rail system.
Surveyor 3.20 O&M 20,000$                

Celestial‐Ext. Roof Repairs
Add material to bring roof slope to 0.75 inches 

per foot including the required structural 
Celestial 3.20 CIP 1,000,000$          

Celestial‐Erosion Control Revegitation to control erosion  Celestial 3.20 O&M 7,500$                  

Celestial‐Safety Improvements
Remove ladder cage and cable climb system .  

Install safety climb rail system.
Celestial 2.56 O&M 20,000$                

Addison EST‐Interm. Landing Repairs
Replace Nuts on 24‐inch Diaphragm Manhole 

Install losing Mechanism 24‐inch Shaft Manhole
Addison EST 1.60 O&M 25,000$                

Addison EST‐Ladder Repairs
Interior Wet Side Ladder and Safety Climb Device 

Replacement
Addison EST 1.60 O&M 25,000$                

Addison EST‐Dollar Plate Repairs

Abandoned CPS Handhole Covers Replacement 

Couplings and Welding Plates removal from 

Dollar Plate

Addison EST 1.44 O&M 25,000$                



 

 

 Due to design, bidding, mobilization, and demobilization costs, the following 
table has been prepared to indicate costs for completing projects by tank 
within the same year to avoid additional costs to the Town. 

 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / Appendix B Page 24 of 25 May 17, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 



 

 

 

00138755.000A / Appendix B Page 25 of 25 May 17, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRELIMINARY EVALUATION AND 
ASSESSMENT REPORT 
 
 
Celestial 6.0 MG Ground Storage Tank 
5510 Celestial Road 
Addison, Texas 

 
 
Project 00138755.000A 
August 25, 2014 



 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0245  August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 
 

7805 Mesquite Bend Drive, Suite 100, Irving, TX 75063 p | 972.868.5900 f | 972.409.0008 

 
 
 
 
August 25, 2014 
Project 00138755.000A 
 
 
 
Ms. Lisa Pyles 
Director Infrastructure Operations and Services 
Town of Addison 
16801 Westgrove Drive 
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Reference:  PRELIMINARY EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT REPORT 

Celestial Ground Storage Tank 
 
Dear Ms. Pyles: 
 
Kleinfelder has completed the authorized site visit and Preliminary Evaluation and Assessment 
Report for the Celestial Concrete Ground Storage Tank (GST) located at 5510 Celestial Road, 
Addison, Texas. 
 
The purpose of this report is to describe the procedures that were undertaken to complete the 
evaluation and assessment, to record observations, and to present the resulting replacement 
and rehabilitation (R&R) recommendations of Town of Addison’s 6 million gallon (MG) Celestial 
Ground Storage Tank (GST). 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide our services for this project and look forward to the 
design phase. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
KLEINFELDER CENTRAL, INC. 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-5592 

 
 
 
 
C.P. Nawal, PE Freddie Guerra, RS CAPM 
Project Engineer Project Manager 
 





 

 
 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 iii August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 PAGE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................................................................. V 

1  PURPOSE ......................................................................................................................... 1 

2  BACKGROUND ................................................................................................................ 2 

3  EXISTING FACILITY INFORMATION .............................................................................. 3 

4  PROJECT APPROACH .................................................................................................... 4 
4.1  DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................ 5 

5  EVALUATIONS AND ASSESSMENT RESULTS ............................................................ 7 
5.1  COATING SYSTEM .............................................................................................. 8 

5.1.1  Exterior ...................................................................................................... 8 
5.1.2  Interior ....................................................................................................... 9 

5.2  STRUCTURAL ...................................................................................................... 9 
5.2.1  Exterior & Appurtenances ........................................................................ 10 
5.2.2  Interior & Appurtenances ......................................................................... 10 
5.2.3  Foundation ............................................................................................... 10 

5.3  SAFETY & SECURITY ........................................................................................ 11 
5.3.1  Ladders .................................................................................................... 11 
5.3.2  Roof Hatch ............................................................................................... 11 
5.3.3  Fencing & Gate ........................................................................................ 12 

5.4  OPERATIONAL ................................................................................................... 12 
5.4.1  Inlet Pipe & Valves................................................................................... 12 
5.4.2  Outlet Pipe & Valve.................................................................................. 12 
5.4.3  Overflow Pipe, Weir & Catchment ........................................................... 12 
5.4.4  Level Indicator ......................................................................................... 13 
5.4.5  Vents ....................................................................................................... 13 
5.4.6  Lighting .................................................................................................... 13 
5.4.7  Instrument & Control Systems ................................................................. 13 

5.5  SANITARY .......................................................................................................... 14 
5.5.1  Roof Hatch ............................................................................................... 14 
5.5.2  Roof Vent ................................................................................................. 14 
5.5.3  Overflow................................................................................................... 14 

6  CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS .............................................................. 15 
6.1  COATING SYSTEM ............................................................................................ 15 

6.1.1  Exterior .................................................................................................... 15 
6.1.2  Interior ..................................................................................................... 15 

6.2  STRUCTURAL .................................................................................................... 16 
6.2.1  Exterior & Appurtenances ........................................................................ 16 
6.2.2  Interior & Appurtenances ......................................................................... 16 
6.2.3  Foundation ............................................................................................... 17 

6.3  SAFETY & SECURITY ........................................................................................ 17 
6.3.1  Ladders .................................................................................................... 17 
6.3.2  Roof Hatch ............................................................................................... 17 
6.3.3  Fencing & Gate ........................................................................................ 17 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 iv August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 
 
 PAGE 
 

6.4  OPERATIONAL ................................................................................................... 17 
6.4.1  Inlet Pipe & Valves................................................................................... 17 
6.4.2  Overflow Pipe, Weir & Catchment ........................................................... 18 
6.4.3  Level Indicator Pipe ................................................................................. 18 
6.4.4  Vents ....................................................................................................... 18 
6.4.5  Lighting .................................................................................................... 18 
6.4.6  Instruments & Control Systems ............................................................... 18 

6.5  SITE IMPROVEMENTS ...................................................................................... 18 

7  OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS .............. 19 
 
APPENDICES 
A - Site Map 
B - Standard Inspection Form 
C - Site Photographs 
D - Preliminary Design Report – Structural Condition Assessment 
E - Summary of Ratings for Physical Condition, Performance and Rules 
 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 v August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On December 19, 2013, the Town of Addison retained Kleinfelder Central Inc. (Kleinfelder) to 

furnish engineering services associated with the tank evaluation and development of a CIP for 

the Town's water storage facilities. The scope of services provided by Kleinfelder for the 

purposes of this project included the observation of tank systems, preparation of 

recommendations and engineer’s opinion of probably cost, and the development of a risk based 

Capital Improvement Plan. 

A comprehensive evaluation and assessment of Celestial Ground Storage tank was performed 

by the Kleinfelder team. The assessment involved data collection, review of the reports and 

plans of the existing facilities, interviews with the Town staff, and field inspections of assets. The 

field inspection was conducted on January 27, 2014, and the detailed findings are described in 

this report. Data and estimated construction costs were inserted into a database which is able to 

organize the data to develop a list of potential Repair and Replacement (R&R) projects for all 

the inspected existing assets. 

The Celestial GST has been operating since 1988. In general, over the years, the GST has 

been well maintained. During the assessment some assets were observed to be in poor 

condition. The entire list of the observations and recommendations for all the assets and various 

systems can be found in sections 5 and 6 of this report. However, below is the brief summary of 

the observations and recommendation: 

 Coating: The coating system is mainly for aesthetic purposes and is in good 
condition. 

 Structural: The exterior roof slope is not in compliance with TCEQ standard of 
0.75 inches/foot. It is recommended to modify the roof to be in compliance or a 
waiver shall be requested from TCEQ. There is minor cracking in the shell and 
roof that should be monitored. The caulk between the roof and the shell is failing; 
it is recommended the caulk be replaced to ensure a positive seal from the 
environment. 

 Safety & Security: The interior ladder has ladder cages and cable climb device. It 
is unnecessary to have both and therefore it is recommended the ladder cage be 
removed. 

 Operational: The overflow weirs are severely corroded, it is recommended that 
both weirs are replaced. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 1 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

PRELIMINARY EVALUATION AND ASSESSMENT REPORT 
CELESTIAL 6.0 MG GROUND STORAGE TANK 

 

1 PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to describe the procedures that were undertaken to complete the 

evaluation and assessment, to record observations, and to present the resulting replacement 

and rehabilitation (R&R) recommendations for the Town of Addison’s 6 million gallon (MG) 

Celestial Ground Storage Tank (GST). 

A comprehensive evaluation and assessment is critical to the Town’s vision for implementing 

asset management for its water storage facilities. The assessment involves collection of data 

through review of existing reports and plans for existing facilities, interviews with Town staff, and 

field inspections of assets. Data and estimated replacement costs are then compiled into a 

database which is able to organize the data to develop a list of potential R&R projects for 

existing assets. The results of this assessment are detailed in this report and will be used in 

conjunction with the results from other tank assessments to develop the overall CIP. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 2 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

2 BACKGROUND 

 On December 19, 2013, the Town of Addison engaged Kleinfelder to “furnish engineering 

services associated with the development of a CIP for the Town's water storage facilities”. The 

scope of services to be provided by Kleinfelder for the purposes of this project includes: 

 Observation of tank systems – structural, safety and security, operational, and sanitary; 

 Preparation of recommendations and engineer's opinion of probable cost; and  

 Development of a risk based Capital Improvement Plan for the tanks. 

Ultimately, Kleinfelder will evaluate each tank in terms of its physical and operating 

performance. The assessment and other inputs by Town staff will be used to determine the 

likelihood and consequence of failure (or critically) for each tank. Kleinfelder will develop 

planning estimates of the costs to repair tank deficiencies observed and will develop a 

defensible prioritization of repairs as a CIP. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 3 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

3 EXISTING FACILITY INFORMATION 

The site is located in an area consisting of mostly residential development and is surrounded by 

trees along the tank perimeter. There are two roadways within approximately 100’ north of the 

tank site. There are three buildings located at the site. The pump station is located on the 

southwest corner and the flow meter vault is located on the northeast corner of the property. 

There is a small staging area to the west of tank. A gate provides sufficient entry into the 

secured site, which is relatively level and covered mostly with grass. An 8-foot chain link fence 

surrounds the site with wrought iron fencing bordering the front of the site. Access to the tank is 

gained from Celestial Road. A site plan of the existing tank facility is shown in Appendix B. 

The tank is a 6 MG concrete-constructed ground storage tank. The foundation consists of a 

slab-on-grade concrete footing over a compacted aggregate subgrade. The walls of the tank 

consist of composite precast concrete wall panels finished with pneumatic mortar. The base of 

the walls also consists of encased prestressed galvanized cables. The roof structure consists of 

a seven and a half-inch (7½-in.) reinforced concrete flat slab supported by an interior column 

grid consisting of sixty-nine (69) columns. The columns are sixteen inches (16 in.) in diameter 

and include three and a half foot (3.5 ft.) rectangular concrete capitals at the top (1.08 ft. deep) 

and rectangular concrete bases at the bottom. The concrete bases are four feet by four feet (4.0 

ft. x 4.0 ft.). The roof hatch is a Bilco hatch and the ladder access for the interior of the tank is 

caged. There is a single vent located near the eastern edge of the roof. The inlet piping on the 

roof is supported by one concrete pipe support. The tank location slopes in grade from the north 

to the south exposing an additional ten to twelve feet of the tank on the lower side. 

Table 1 – Facility Information 
 
Capacity (MG) 6MG Year Built 1988 

Height of Tank (ft) 26 feet Tank Builder Preload Co., Inc. 

Diameter of Tank (ft) 206 feet Exterior Coating Grout 

Inlet Pipe Size (in) 36 inch Interior Coating None 

Outlet Pipe Size (in) (2) 42 inch Tank Type Ground Storage Tank 

Overflow Pipe Size (in) (2) 24 inch Tank Class Concrete 

Overflow Elevation (ft) 598.42 feet Pressure Zone I.D. NA – Only 1 PZ 

Sidewater Depth (ft) 24 feet Tank I.D. Celestial  



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 4 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

4 PROJECT APPROACH 

The evaluation and assessment included a field inspection of key components of various tank 

systems by a multi-discipline engineering team licensed and experienced in the areas of 

civil/sanitary engineering, structural engineering, and environmental engineering as well as 

coating specialists. Personnel from Kleinfelder, Inc., Nathan D. Maier Consulting Engineers, Inc. 

(NDM) and Boswell’s Consulting Testing Services conducted the field inspection on Monday, 

January 27, 2014. 

The inspection was performed in accordance with AWWA D110-04 “Wire- and Strand-Wound, 

Circular, Prestressed Concrete Water Tanks” and Section 290.46(f)(3)(D)(ii) of the Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality’s Rules and Regulations for Public Water Systems. 

Field inspection of exterior systems was limited to those conditions that could be directly 

observed from ground and elevated surfaces including visual inspection and observation of 

noise, odor and vibration. Inspection of interior systems was performed by a float and via diving. 

The scope of the inspection and evaluation did not include in-depth electrical, instrumentation or 

controls (EIC) investigations; however, a general visual observation was made of the 

functionality of the EIC systems. 

The information gathered during the condition assessment provides a standardized record of 

the asset condition specific to each discipline. Data collected for each asset included: condition, 

performance, rule (regulatory), and discipline specific data as applicable. In addition, other 

relevant information, such as recent performance history, and design and sizing criteria was 

gathered where available, and the existing condition of all assets was documented with digital 

photos. To standardize the process of determining an asset’s condition, specific discipline-

related questions were answered for each asset. Kleinfelder’s Standard Inspection Form and 

discipline questions are presented in Appendix A. The assessment also included assigning 

criticality to each major asset. Data from the assessment was organized for entry into the 

VueWerks database. 

Following data population and discussions with the Town of Addison, Kleinfelder developed 

three (3) separate lists of potential R&R projects. These lists were based on three (3) different 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 5 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

criteria: physical condition, repair cost, and risk. Based on specific criteria, key projects from 

each list were used to develop a single list of R&R projects. The developed list will be used in 

conjunction with the master planning or master plan to develop a CIP for water storage facilities. 

4.1 DEFINITIONS 

The rating scale used in the inspection and evaluation of each major component is 

shown in Table 2. Each component was assigned a value based on the percentage of 

the value of the component that was required to return each component to essentially 

new condition (i.e., restored to original physical condition, no performance issues, etc.). 

This scale is an internationally accepted, industry-wide standard for designating 

condition and performance. The terms have been adapted from International 

Infrastructure Management Manual (IPWEA, 2006). 

Table 2 – Rating Scale for Physical Condition and Performance 
 

Rating Physical Condition Performance 

1 - Excellent No Visible Degradation 
Component Functioning as 

Intended 

2 - Good Slightly Visible Degradation 
In-service, but Higher Than 

Expected O&M 

3 - Moderate Visible Degradation 
In-service, but Function is 

Impaired 

4 - Poor Integrity of Component Moderately Compromised
In-service, but Function is Highly 

Impaired 

5 - Critical Integrity of Component Severely Compromised 
Component not Functioning as 

Intended 

Another rating scale (Table 3) was developed for the compliance of specific components 

and their associated rules. Specifically for this report, Kleinfelder focused on Texas 

Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 

and Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) rules. 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43 (c): External Roof Plates 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(c)(1): Roof Ventilation Structures 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(c)(2): Water Access Hatch 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(c)(3): Overflow Flappers 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(c)(4): Water Level Indicator 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 6 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(c)(10): Manway Access Hatch 

 TCEQ Rule: 290.43(e): Security Fence 

 OSHA Rule: 1910.27(b)(1)(ii): Ladder Rungs 

 OSHA Rule: 1910.146(c)(2): Permits 

 OSHA Rule: 1917.118(e)(1): Fall Protection 

 OSHA rule: 1917:118(c)(1): Broken Ladders 

 FAA Rule: Aircraft Warning Lights 

Table 3- Rating Scale for Compliance with Rules 
 

Rating Rule (or Regulation) 

1 - Exceeds Component Functioning as Intended by Rule 

2 - Acceptable In-service, but Function Minimally Meets Rule 

3 - Needs Improvement In-service, but Function Does Not Meet Rule 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 7 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

5 EVALUATIONS AND ASSESSMENT RESULTS 

To minimize City costs and risks with draining of the ground storage tank, Kleinfelder proposed 

to inspect the interior of the tank (below high water level) via diving. A “float” inspection was 

conducted of the roofing system and areas above the high water level. 

Although not all OSHA regulations apply to this inspection, any unsafe condition or violations of 

current OSHA, which were observed, are noted in this report. In addition, an effort was made to 

identify applicable components complying with TCEQ and FAA rules. 

The section below provides an overview of observations and issues that have been identified for 

each system of the tank. In addition, ratings are provided for applicable components for each 

system. Specific tank systems include: 

Table 4 – Tank Systems 
 

Tank System Components 

Structural 

Tank Exterior 
Structural and 
Appurtenances 

 Tank foundation 
 Roof panels and shell panels 
 Access ladders 
 Roof accessories, vents, and roof hatches 
 Exterior valves and piping connected to the tank, inlet/outlet piping, tank drain, 

overflow pipe, and flap valve  

Tank Interior 
Structural and 
Appurtenances 

 Roof plates and roof framing 
 Tank and appurtenances at floor level 
 Overflow weir, and pipe 
 Ladder, platforms, walkways, and Crow's Nest  
 Level sensor/transmitter and sample taps 

Safety & Security 

Safety and 
Security Features 

 Security cameras, alarms, sensors and access controls 
 Fall protections systems 
 Ladders  
 Safety devices  
 FAA warning lights 
 Fencing, gates, lighting and access points 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 8 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Table 4 – Tank Systems (continued) 
 

Tank System Components 

Operational 

Tank Site 
Evaluation 

 Paved areas including access drive and parking 
 Overflow splash pads or catchment structures 
 Site grading and drainage, drain piping, detention ponds, headwalls and 

culverts 

Pipe and Valve 
Vaults 

 Vault structure 
 Access hatch, manhole covers, ladders, safety railing and platforms 
 Pipe and valves 
 Pipe and valve coating 
 Pipe and valve supports and thrust restraint system 
 Ventilation, lighting, sump pumps and drains 

Instrumentation 
and Control 
Systems 

 Pressure, level and valve controls 
 SCADA and Remote Terminal Units 
 Interior, exterior lighting and obstruction lights 

 
Sanitary 

Pathways for 
Contamination 
Evaluation 

 Roof and walls 
 Sleeves and shielding 
 Roof hatches 
 Roof drainage 
 Venting 
 Screening 
 Overflows 

 

5.1 COATING SYSTEM 

The tank exterior was recoated in the year 2008 based on the information provided by 

the Town of Addison. The shell coating is good condition. There is no Cathodic 

Protection system installed at this tank. The roof coating is in moderate condition. An 

overall Physical Condition Rating of 2 and a Performance Rating of 1 were assigned to 

the coating system. The coating system should be re-inspected and reevaluated in 3 to 5 

years, with the anticipation that complete coating replacement will be required in 5 years. 

5.1.1 Exterior 

 Tank Shell – The tank shell have a grout/stucco coating. (See Appendix C,  
Photo 1) 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 9 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Date of last re-coating: 2008 

Coating materials used in last re-coat: Not Available 

Coating method: Not Available 

General condition of coating: The tank shell coating typically appears to be 
in good condition. 

Adhesion of coating: Adhesion tests were not performed as a part of the 
inspection due to the coating being grout/stucco and the tank being concrete. 

Thickness of coating: Not Available 

 Tank Roof – The tank roof has a grout/stucco coating. (See Appendix C, Photo 

10) 

Roof type and structure: Concrete 

Date of last re-coating: 2008 

Coating materials used in last re-coat: Not Available 

Coating method: Not Available 

General condition of coating: The roof coating typically appears to be in 
good condition.  

Adhesion of coating: Adhesion tests were not performed as a part of the 
inspection due to the coating being grout/stucco and the tank being concrete. 

Thickness of coating: Not Available 

5.1.2 Interior 

The Interior of the tank has no coating. 

5.2 STRUCTURAL 

Based on NDM’s Condition Assessment Report in Appendix D, structural issues include 

missing vegetation around the base of the tank which is causing erosion around the 

foundation. Cracking on the exterior walls will need to be addressed if they become 

more significant. Cracking on the exterior roof will need to be addressed if they become 

more significant. Spalled and exposed reinforcing areas on the interior roof need repair. 

Cracking on the interior floor needs to be sealed. The overflow structure and piping is 

corroded. The sonic level transmitter is corroded. Consequently, the structural system 

was assigned an overall Physical Condition Rating of 2, Performance Rating of 2 and 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 10 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Rule Rating of 1. It is recommended that the structural repairs be completed within the 

next 1-3 years. 

5.2.1 Exterior & Appurtenances 

 Roof – The roof is made up of four (4) concrete sections. Some moderate 
cracking was observed on exterior roof. Some cracking appears to be all the way 
through the concrete sections. (See Appendix C, Photos 1-4)  The slope of the 
roof is 0.25 inch per foot which does not meet TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and 
Regulations for Water Systems 290.43(c). TCEQ requires that “no area of the 
roof shall have a slope of less than 0.75 inch per foot.” 

 Grout/Caulk – The grout between the roof and the shell wall was observed to be 
in poor condition. There appears to be some areas that the grout has failed and 
has allowed a gap between the roof and shell that exceeds 0.062 inches. 

 Shell – The exterior shell is concrete with a grout coating. Some cracking was 
observed in the shell. The exterior shell typically appears to be in good condition 
(See Appendix C, Photos 13 and 14). 

5.2.2 Interior & Appurtenances 

 Roof – The roof is made up of four (4) concrete sections. Some moderate 
cracking was observed on the interior with some efflorescence. Some surface 
failure (spalling) was also observed on the interior roof. Corrosion of the 
reinforced steel chairs and some exposed reinforced steel was observed. (See 
Appendix C, Photos 5-9) 

 Columns – There are 69 16-inch diameter columns with 3-foot 6-inch cone 
shaped column caps and 4-ft X 4-ft square bases. (See Appendix C, Photos 10-
12) 

 Grout/Caulk – The grout between the interior roof panels typically appears to be 
in good condition. The grout between the floor panels appears to be in good 
condition, some sedimentation has collected around the joints. 

 Shell – The interior shell is concrete. The interior shell typically appears to be in 
good condition (See Appendix C, Photo 17). 

5.2.3 Foundation 

The foundation was not accessible for observation. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 11 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

5.3 SAFETY & SECURITY 

In general, the site’s fencing complies with TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and Regulations 

for Water Systems 290.43(e). Fall protection and ladder rungs are in compliance with 

OSHA 1910. The workplace contains permit spaces that are adequately identified with 

signage. An overall Physical Condition Rating of 2, Performance Rating of 2, and Rule 

Rating 2 were assigned to the safety and security components. 

5.3.1 Ladders 

 Interior 

The interior ladder is stainless steel with a ladder cage and a cable climb system. 

The overall condition of the ladder is good. No severe corrosion was observed on 

the ladder. The cable climb system has some visible corrosion. (See Appendix C, 

Photos 52-55). 

Safety climb device: Yes – Cable Climb 

General condition of coating: Not Applicable 

Degree of rusting: Low 

Condition of metal: Good 

 Exterior 

There is no exterior Ladder. 

5.3.2 Roof Hatch 

The roof hatch is equipped with a padlock and proper confined space signage. 

(See Appendix C, Photo 51). 

Hatch type: 4 foot x 4 foot Stainless Steel Bilco Hatch 

General condition of coating: Not Applicable 

Degree of rusting: Low 

Condition of metal: Good 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 12 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

5.3.3 Fencing & Gate 

Fencing type: 8-foot chain link and wrought iron (See Appendix C, Photos 56 
and 57) 

Gate type: Automatic Swinging Gate (See Appendix C, Photo 58) 

Access to site: Access to site is from Celestial Road – north of site – via a 
security gate. 

General condition of coating: Good 

Degree of rusting: Low 

Condition of metal: Good 

5.4 OPERATIONAL 

An overall Physical Condition Rating of 2, Performance Rating of 2, and Rule Rating 1 

were assigned to operational components. 

5.4.1 Inlet Pipe & Valves 

Size: 36-inch diameter ductile iron inlet pipe with cast iron elbows. (See 
Appendix C, Photos 22-25). 

General condition of coating: Exterior pipe coating is in good condition. 

Degree of rusting: Not Accessible 

Condition of metal: Not Accessible 

5.4.2 Outlet Pipe & Valve 

Size: (2) 42-inch ductile iron outlet pipes. (See Appendix C, Photos 26 and 27) 

General condition of coating: Not Accessible  

Degree of rusting: Not Accessible 

Condition of metal: Not Accessible 

5.4.3 Overflow Pipe, Weir & Catchment 

Type and size: (2) 24-inch ductile iron overflow pipes with cast iron flap valves. 
Each pipe has a 4-foot 2-inch x 4-foot 2-inch weir box. (See Appendix C, Photos 
28-43 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 13 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

Details for catchment: No overflow catchment. Concrete splash pad. (See 
Appendix C, Photos 28 and 37). The overflow drains to storm drain located at 
north of the tank site. 

General condition of coating: Poor  

Degree of rusting: Both overflow weir boxes are severely corroded. (See 
Appendix C, Photos 32-35 and 40-42) The bolts on the interior flanges are 
severely corroded. (See Appendix C, Photos 36 and 43) Corrosion was observed 
on the interior of the pipes near the flap gates. Corrosion on overflow pipe 1 was 
more severe than overflow pipe 2. (See Appendix C, Photo 31) 

Condition of metal: NA 

5.4.4 Level Indicator 

Type and size: (1) abandoned unknown size level indicator pipe.  

General condition of coating: Poor 

Degree of rusting: Severe 

Condition of metal: Poor 

5.4.5 Vents 

Type and size: (1) 48-inch roof vent with a 16-inch fine mesh screen which 
meets TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and Regulations for Water Systems 290.43(c) 
(1). The full in-depth analysis will be required to confirm the proper vent sizing.  

General condition of coating: Good 

Degree of rusting: Low 

Condition of metal: Good 

5.4.6 Lighting 

There is no lighting near the tank. 

5.4.7 Instrument & Control Systems 

The Wonderware SCADA software is a Windows based system located in the 

Pump Station and is at least 15 years old. The current SCADA system and all other 

electrical systems are operable and functions on a daily basis based on the 

information received by the Town of Addison. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 14 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

5.5 SANITARY 

Overall, potential pathways for contamination from rodents, insects, etc. have been 

eliminated. An overall Physical Condition Rating of 2, Performance Rating of 2, and Rule 

Rating 1 were assigned to the sanitary components. 

5.5.1 Roof Hatch 

The roof hatch meets TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and Regulations for Water 

Systems 290.43(c) (2). The hatch is more than 30-inches 

5.5.2 Roof Vent 

48-inch roof vent 16-inch fine mesh screen which meets TCEQ Subchapter D 

Rules and Regulations for Water Systems 290.43(c) (1). The vent size needs more 

detailed evaluation for the proper sizing. 

5.5.3 Overflow 

The overflow flap gate complies with TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and Regulations 

for Water Systems 290.43(c) (3). The gap between the flap gate and the flange is 

less than 1/16-inch. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 15 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

6 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Celestial GST has been operating since 1988. Over the years, the GST has been well 

maintained; this fact is evident in the small number of Physical Condition Rating of 4 and 5 

identified during the assessment. Currently, the Town of Addison has no plans for improvement 

of this asset. 

To ensure accurate and timely identification of future R&R projects, it is recommended that 

evaluations and assessments be conducted on a regular basis and that the components of the 

various tank systems identified for the R&R projects be monitored and assessed prior to 

implementation of the project. 

Accordingly, it is recommended that the components in poor condition (Condition 4 or 5) be 

assessed annually, and a comprehensive assessment of all of the components of the tank 

systems be conducted every 3 to 5 years.  

The assessment should be conducted by a team of individuals including O&M staff and 

engineering staff, and discipline specialists. Information collected during future assessments 

should mirror the work completed for this work. Digital photos of the assets should also be taken 

to document the existing condition of each component of the various tank systems. 

6.1 COATING SYSTEM 

6.1.1 Exterior 

The grout coating system on the exterior of the tank is in good condition. The 

coating system is for aesthetics and does not need to be replaced for the 

functionality of the tank. There are no improvements recommended for the 

coatings. 

6.1.2 Interior 

Level Indicator Pipe – the level indicator pipe is in poor condition with severe 

corrosion. It is recommended that the coating on all surfaces of the pipe be 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 16 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

completely removed by abrasive blasting and surfaces prepared to an SSPC-SP10 

Near-White Blast Cleaning standard. A 100% solids elastomeric NSF 61 approved 

coating system is recommended for application on any interior tank surfaces. 

Overflow Structure and Piping – the overflow weir and bolts are in poor condition, 

it is recommended in addition to the replacement that the new weir sections and 

the pipe be abrasive blasted and surfaces prepared to an SSPC-SP10 Near-

White Blast Cleaning standard. A 100% solids elastomeric NSF 61 approved 

coating system is recommended for application on any interior tank surfaces. 

6.2 STRUCTURAL 

6.2.1 Exterior & Appurtenances 

 Roof (Option 1) – the exterior roof is in moderate condition, it is recommended 
that the cracking is monitored. (See appendix E) The slope of the roof does not 
meet TCEQ standard of 0.75 inches. It is recommended that a waiver is 
requested from TCEQ to keep the slope less than 0.75 inches per foot. If a 
waiver is received the roof should be modified to have positive drainage to avoid 
ponding 

 Roof (Option 2) – the exterior roof is in moderate condition, it is recommended 
that the cracking is monitored. (See appendix E) The slope of the roof does not 
meet TCEQ standard of 0.75 inches. If a waiver from TCEQ is not received, it is 
recommended that the roof shall be modified to meet the TCEQ standards. Any 
new additional material added to modify the roof will need to be evaluated 
structurally so that the integrity of the tank structure is not compromised with the 
additional weight. 

 Grout/Caulk – the grout between the roof plates and the shell is in poor condition. 
It is recommended that the grout be repaired to provide a positive seal between 
the environment and the tank. 

 Shell – the shell is in good condition, some cracking was observed on the shell it 
is recommended that the cracks be monitored. (See appendix E). 

6.2.2 Interior & Appurtenances 

 Roof – the interior roof is in moderate condition, it is recommended that the 
spalled and cracked areas are monitored and repaired during the next 
rehabilitation. 

 Columns – the columns are in good condition, no improvements are 
recommended. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 17 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

 Grout/Caulk – the interior grout is in good condition, no improvements are 
recommended. 

 Shell – the interior shell is in good condition, no improvements are 
recommended. 

6.2.3 Foundation 

The foundation was not accessible for observation. 

6.3 SAFETY & SECURITY 

6.3.1 Ladders 

The interior ladder is in good condition, the cable climb device shows some signs 

of degradation. It is recommended that the ladder cage be removed from the 

ladder and the cable climb system be replaced with a safety climb rail system. 

6.3.2 Roof Hatch 

The roof hatch is in good condition, no improvements are recommended. 

6.3.3 Fencing & Gate 

The fencing and gates are in good condition, no improvements are recommended. 

6.4 OPERATIONAL 

6.4.1 Inlet Pipe & Valves 

The inlet pipe and valves are in good condition, no improvements are 

recommended. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 18 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

6.4.2 Overflow Pipe, Weir & Catchment 

The overflow weirs and bolts on the interior flanges are in poor condition with 

severe corrosion. It is recommended that the weirs and bolts be replaced during 

the next rehabilitation. The overflow runs to the storm drain located north of the 

tank site. 

6.4.3 Level Indicator Pipe 

The level indicator pipe is in poor condition. See coating recommendations in 

section 6.1.2. 

6.4.4 Vents 

The roof vent is in good condition, no improvements are recommended. 

6.4.5 Lighting 

The lighting is in good condition, no improvements are recommended. 

6.4.6 Instruments & Control Systems 

The instrument and control systems are in good condition, no improvements are 

recommended. 

6.5 SITE IMPROVEMENTS 

There is minor erosion around the tank base due to absent vegetation in the area. It is 

recommended that the area be re-vegetated to avoid further erosion damage. (See 

Appendix E). There may be necessity of either installing the side walk around the tank 

perimeter or provide a gravel side walk for the easy access of the tank perimeter for 

visual inspection and/or routine maintenance. 



 

 
00138755.000A / DFW14R0245 Page 19 of 19 August 25, 2014 
© 2014 Kleinfelder 

7 OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS  

 
Tank System/ 
component 

Description Estimated Cost 

Coating – Level 
Indicator 

Abrasive blast and recoat sonic level indicator and 
overflow weir and piping 

$7,500 

Structural – Interior 
Roof 

Repair Spalling and Reinforcing Corrosion (Assumes 
400 SF Spalling Repair) 

$20,000 

Structural – Exterior 
roof 

Add material to bring roof slope to 0.75 inches per foot 
including the required structural modifications. 

$1,000,000 

Structural – Interior 
Floor 

Seal cracking (Assumes 200 LF Repair) $5,400 

Structural – Overflow Replace the overflow weirs and corroded bolts $5,000 

Safety – Ladder 
Remove ladder cage and cable climb system. Install 
safety climb rail system. 

$20,000 

Site Improvements Revegitation to control erosion $7,500 

 Sub Total $1,065,400 

 Contingency (15%) $159,810 

 Engineering (15%) $159,810 

 Total Cost $1,385,020 

 



 

 

APPENDIX A 
Standard Inspection Form 

 



General Info

Project City
 /

/

/

/

Rehabilitated

CIP - Water Storage Facilities
Tank Type
Name of Firm

Concrete

Project Cost

Bac-T Result
Date of Bac-T Firm's Phone Number

Date Filled 
Date Drained 

LisaInspector's Name

Plan Prepared By

Kleinfelder

Tank Class

Sidewater Depth (ft)

Type of Inspection

Interior Coating

36
Year Built

Inlet Pipe Size (In)

25' 6"Height of Tank (ft)(2) 24

Per load Co, Inc.

Notes of Access to Property:

General Comments Related to Property & Tank:

Diameter of Tank (ft)
Overflow Pipe Size (In)

1976

Overview of Property Information

6
(2) 42

Pressure Zone I.D.

206
Capacity (MG)

Larson

Ground Storage     

Exterior Coating

Outlet Pipe Size (In)

Overflow Elevation (ft)

O&M Plan for Tanks

Tank Builder

If information related to rehab available? If yes, please describe rehabilitation:

jshroyer@addisontx.gov

Client Contact Information

ShroyerProperty Owner
Contact Phone

Town of Addison
972-450-2849

Contact EmailClient P.O.

Contact Department

Age of TankYear Rehabilitated 38

Infrastructure Operations & Service
Jason

Project State/Country TX

Contact Name
Client Project No.

Site I.D.

Site and Inspector Information

Standard Inspection Form

Celestial GST
CIP - Water Storage Facilities

01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM

    Company Name/Logo

Addison

Project Name
Project Number US
Inspection Date

Town of AddisonClient Name

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 2 4/4/2014



General Info

Project City
 /Project State/Country TXCelestial GST

CIP - Water Storage Facilities

01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Addison

Project Name
Project Number US
Inspection Date

Is the area declining or distressed No
Site and Vicinity Comparison Data

Status
Capital Expenditures
Describe in detail Repairs, Replacements or Capital Improvements

Describe site, surrounding land use & other pertinent information:

Distance

0%

Percent Use - % 

Industrial

Single Family
Multifamily

0%

100%

2. Name or Type

Is there any new construction near the tank
Major 
Buildings:

Identified Cost

No

Distance
1. Name or Type

Undeveloped 0%

Additional Collateral Description Information

Other Information

Commercial

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 2 of 2 4/4/2014



Operational Assessment

 /

Operational Assessment

Vents 2 2 1 48-inch with 16-inch fine mas screen

TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and 
Regulations for Water Systems 290.42-b-7 
states all openings to  the atmosphere 
should be covered with 16-mesh or finer 
corrosion-resistant screening.  Roof vent 
screen is in compliance.

Washout Pipe
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Drain Pipe & 
Valve

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Overflow Pipe 
Catchment

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Overflow Pipe & 
Weir

3 2 1
(2) 24-inch diameter ductile iron overflow 
pipes with cast iron elbows and 4-foot 2-inch 
weir boxes. Concrete splash pads.

The overflow weirs were observed to be 
severely corroded.  Corrosion was also 
observed on the bolts on the interior 
flanges.  Both flap gates meet the TCEQ 
Subchapter D Rules and Regulations for 
Water Systems 290.43-c-3 requirement of 
no more than a 1/16-inch gap allowed.

Outlet Pipe 
Valve

Not 
Accessible

Not 
Accessible

Not 
Applicable

Not Accessible Not Accessible

Outlet Pipe 2 2
Not 

Applicable
(2) 42-inch diameter ductile iron outlet pipes. None

Inlet Pipe Valve
Not 

Accessible
Not 

Accessible
Not 

Applicable
Not Accessible Not Accessible

Comments

Inlet Pipe 2 2
Not 

Applicable
36-inch diameter ductile iron inlet pipe with 
cast iron elbows.

None

Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Operational Assessment - Physical, Performance & Rule

ID Physical Perform Rule
Representative Components 

(Not all-inclusive)

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Standard Inspection Form
Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 2 4/4/2014



Operational Assessment

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Exterior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Interior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Recommended Improvements

Identify Item and Describe Condition (including location) Rating
Photo 

#
Life 

Safety
Est. Cost

Instrumentation 
& Control 
Systems

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable
No Instrumentation & Control Systems 
were observed.

Lighting
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not Applicable No lighting was observed.

Electrical 4
Not 

Accessible
Not 

Applicable

Conduit to the Sonic Level Transmitter.  
Conduits to roof hatch (need info on what 
these are for)

The conduits were observed to be broken 
and taped over.  It is unknown whether any 
of the conduits have active cable.

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 2 of 2 4/4/2014



Safety & Security Assessment

 /

Safety & Security Assessment

Lockable Ladder 
Guard

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Ladder 2 2 1
Interior ladder with a ladder cage and cable 
climb.

Ladder cage should be removed and a 
safety climb rail should be installed.

Immediate 
Landing

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Platform
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Railing
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Roof Landing
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
Not Applicable Not Applicable

Roof Perimeter 
Railing

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Painters Access 
Hatch

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Tie-off Point
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
1 Not Applicable

No exterior ladder due to the tank being 
partially below ground.

Comments

Roof Hatch 2 2 1 4-foot square Bilco Roof Hatch

TCEQ Subchapter D Rules and 
Regulations for Water Systems 290.43-c-2 
states at least one opening of 30-inch or 
more is required.  In compliance

Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Safety & Security Assessment - Physical, Performance & Rule

ID Physical Perform Rule
Representative Components 

(Not all-inclusive)

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Standard Inspection Form
Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 2 4/4/2014



Safety & Security Assessment

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not 
Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Exterior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Interior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Recommended Improvements

Identify Item and Describe Condition (including location) Rating
Photo 

#
Life 

Safety
Est. Cost

Fencing & Gate 2 2 1
6-foot chain-link fence with wrought iron 
fencing at front and gate.

Shell Opening 
(Manway)

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 2 of 2 4/4/2014



Coatings Assessment

 /

Coatings Assessment

Exterior Coating 2 1
Not 

Applicable
Grout coating on the roof and shell

Coating on the roof and shell is typically in 
good condition.

Comments

Interior Coating
Not 

Applicable
Not 

Applicable
3 Not Applicable Not Applicable

Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Coatings Assessment - Physical, Performance & Rule

ID Physical Perform Rule
Representative Components 

(Not all-inclusive)

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Standard Inspection Form
Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 1 4/4/2014



Coatings Assessment

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Addison
Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Inspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Exterior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Interior - Additional description of the tank conditions:

Recommended Improvements

Identify Item and Describe Condition (including location) Rating
Photo 

#
Life 

Safety
Est. Cost

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 2 of 2 4/4/2014



Mgmt Interview

 /

In the past 12 months, have there been any significant issues with the tank?

Is the tank undergoing any planned rehab in the next 1-2 years?

Are there any improvements you would like to recommend?
If yes, please explain:

Other Information or Comments:

Yes

Roof sometimes holds water.  Might need to address the drainage off the top of the tank.  Safety cage over discharge outlet. 

If yes, please explain:
Are there any water pressure issues associated with this tank? No

No

If yes, explain the type of rehab and estimated costs:

Are there any water quality issues associated with the tank?
If yes, please explain:

No

Length of Time in Dept
Department Infrastructure Operations & Services

If yes, please describe the violation, the costs associated and any resolution or outstanding issues:
No

If yes, explain the type of issue, resolution & cost associated:

In the past 12 months, to the best of your knowledge, have any code violations (TCEQ and/or OSHA) occurred?

No

    Company Name/Logo Standard Inspection Form

Property City AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM
TXProject Number Celestial GST

Client Information & Interview

Name of Interviewee

Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities
Property State/Country US

In your opinion, how does the tank perform compared to similar tanks in your system? Superior

Email Address jshroyer@addisontx.gov
Client Name Town of Addison Phone Number 972-450-2849

Jason Shroyer
Role or Title Assistant Director

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 1 4/4/2014



Criticality Assessment

/

Did you experience any of the following limitations to performing this field assessment:  (Choose Yes/No)
Management? Operations unavailable for interview or operations experience on the site is less than six months

Interior of tank unavailable for assessment due to accessibility

Significant portions of the tank site were unavailable for assessment

Other

None
Comment:

1.  Public Health & Safety (Choose the one that applies from the drop down menu):

Comment:

2. Effect on Customer (Choose the one that applies from the drop down menu): 

Comment:

3. Environmental Impact (Choose the one that applies from the drop down menu): 

Comment:

4. Cost to Repair (Choose the one that applies from the drop down menu): 

Comment:

Comment:

Seller/Servicer Certification Date:

First Name:
Last name:
Title:
Phone Number:
Email Address:

Company Name/Logo Standard Inspection Form

AddisonInspection Date

US
01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Limitations of Field Investigation

Criticality Assessment

Inspector Information

Overall Criticality Rating 

0Overall Rating Scale:

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 1 4/4/2014



 

 

APPENDIX B 
Site Map 



6 MG Celestial GST
DFWMaps.com

Copyright NCTCOG

DISCLAIMER
This data has been compiled for
NCTCOG.
Various official and unofficial
sources were used to gather this
information. Every effort was made
to ensure the accuracy of this
data, however, no guarantee is
given or implied as to the accuracy
of said data.



 

 

APPENDIX C  
Site Photos



Photographs

 /

Category:

Category:

Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Photo 1
Roof of 206-foot interior diameter tank  with slope of 0.25 inch per foot

Structural

Photo 2
Roof

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 1 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 3
Roof

Structural

Photo 4
Roof - Construction Joint

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 2 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 5
Roof - Severe Cracking Observed

Structural

Photo 6
Interior Roof - Construction Joint

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 3 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 7
Interior Roof - Typical Spalling Observed

Structural

Photo 8
Interior Roof - Construction Joint

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 4 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 10
Column - 1-foot 4-inch Square Cap with 16-inch Column

Structural

Photo 9
Interior Roof - Spalling and Corroded Rebar Observed

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 5 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 12
Column - 4-foot Square Base with 16-inch Column

Structural

Photo 11
Column - 16-inch 

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 6 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 13
Shell - 6-1/2-inch Precast Composite Core Wall with 1/2-inch CL

Structural

Photo 14
Shell

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 7 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 15
Shell with Sprinkler Head

Structural

Photo 16
Shell and Roof - Observed Severe Degredation of the Joint

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 8 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 17
Interior Shell and Roof

Structural

Photo 18
Water Stop

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 9 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 19
Interior Floor - Cracking was Observed

Structural

Photo 20
Floor Joints

Structural

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 10 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 21
Floor - Concrete pieces from the Roof were Observed

Structural

Photo 22
Inlet Pipe - 36-inch Ductile Iron Class 53

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 11 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 23
Inlet Pipe - 36-inch Ductile Iron Class 53

Operational

Photo 24
Inlet Pipe - 36 Inch Ductile Iron Class 53

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 12 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 25
Interior Inlet - 36-inch Ductile Iron

Operational

Photo 26
Outlet 1 - 42-inch Ductile Iron

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 13 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 27
Outlet 2 - 42-inch ductile iron

Operational

Photo 28
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Cast Iron Flap Valve and Concrete Splash Pad

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 14 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 29
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Cast Iron Flap Valve

Operational

Photo 30
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Cast Iron

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 15 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 31
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Cast Iron - Interior Corrosion was Observed

Operational

Photo 32
Overflow 1 Weir Box - 4 feet 2 inches Wide by 4 feet 2 inches Wide

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 16 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 33
Overflow 1 Weir Box - 4 feet 2 inches Wide by 4 feet 2 inches Wide

Operational

Photo 34
Overflow 1 - Turnbuckle - 1/2 inch Diameter by 6 inch

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 17 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 35
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Diameter

Operational

Photo 36
Overflow 1 - 24-inch Cast Iron 90 Degree Bend

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 18 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 37
Overflow 2 - 24-inch Cast Iron with Concrete Splash Pad

Operational

Photo 38
Overflow 2 - 24-inch Cast Iron Flap Valve

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 19 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 39
Overflow 2

Operational

Photo 40
Overflow 2 - Weir Box - 4 feet 2 inches Wide by 4 feet 2 inches Wide

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 20 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 41
Overflow 2 - 1/2-inch Diameter by 6-inch Turnbuckle

Operational

Photo 42
Overflow 2 - Weir Box - 4 feet 2 inches Wide by 4 feet 2 inches Wide

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 21 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 43
Overflow 2 - 24-inch Cast Iron 90 degree Bend

Operational

Photo 44
Vent - Fiberglass with 48-inch Opening 

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 22 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 45
Vent - Fiberglass with 48-inch Opening 

Operational

Photo 46
Pipe - 24-inch Steel Pipe for Sonic Level Transmitter (Abandoned)

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 23 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 47
Electrical - Formerly for Sonic Level Transmitter

Operational

Photo 48
Electric - Formerly for Sonic Level Transmitter

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 24 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 49
Transducer Tag

Operational

Photo 50
Control Building???

Operational

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 25 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 51
Roof Hatch - 4-foot x 4-foot

Safety & Security

Photo 52
Interior Ladder - Stainless Steel

Safety & Security

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 26 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 53
Interior Ladder - Stainless Steel Ladder Cage

Safety & Security

Photo 54
Interior Ladder - Cable Climb

Safety & Security

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 27 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 55
Interior Ladder Brace

Safety & Security

Photo 56
Perimeter Fence - Chain Link

Safety & Security

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 28 of 29 4/4/2014



Photographs

 /
Project Name CIP - Water Storage Facilities

Photos

Standard Inspection Form
AddisonInspection Date 01/27/14 Time 9:00 AM Property City

Project Number Celestial GST Property State/Country TX US

Category:

Category:

Photo 57
Perimeter Fence

Safety & Security

Photo 58
Gate

Safety & Security

Kleinfelder Central, Inc.
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder Page 29 of 29 4/4/2014



 

 

APPENDIX D 
Preliminary Design Report – Structural Condition Assessment 















 

 

APPENDIX E 
Summary of Ratings for Physical Condition, Performance and Rules



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 1 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 
 

 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 2 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 3 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 4 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 
 

 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 5 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 
 

 



 

 
 

00138755.000A / Appendix F Page 6 of 6 August 22, 2014 
Copyright 2014 Kleinfelder 

 



   
Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of an Untitled
Public Art Piece by Artist Russ Connell to be Located at the Surveyor
Water Tower Site Near the Intersection of Arapaho Road and Surveyor
Boulevard.

BACKGROUND:
On January 26, 2021, the Addison Arbor Foundation (AAF) made a presentation
to Council proposing the installation of a steel sculpture commissioned from artist
Russ Connell.  The sculpture will be approximately 16' tall (including a 3' base)
and 3' wide.  The sculpture will be finished in a gold color. The base of the
sculpture will cover the existing concrete base where the wind turbine once stood
at the Surveyor Water Tower which is located near the intersection of Arapaho
Road and Surveyor Boulevard.

The sculpture is currently untitled, but will be named by the artist at a later date. 
Council approved the presentation made by the AAF on January 26, 2021.  The
Addison Arbor Foundation will finalize the commission of the sculpture when the
attached resolution is approved by Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art "Untitled" 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE INSTALLATION OF AN UNTITLED PUBLIC ART PIECE 

CREATED BY RUSS CONNELL TO BE LOCATED AT THE SURVEYOR WATER 

TOWER SITE NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF ARAPAHO ROAD AND 

SURVEYOR BOULEVARD AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Addison Arbor Foundation will commission and install for the Town 

of Addison, a public art piece by artist Russ Connell which is currently untitled; and 
 

WHEREAS, at its January 26, 2021, City Council meeting, the City Council approved 

the placement of the sculpture, by the Addison Arbor Foundation, at the Surveyor Water Tower 

Site located near the intersection of Arapaho Road and Surveyor Boulevard; and 

 

WHEREAS, Town staff has recommended installation of the public art piece at the 

Surveyor Water Tower Site near the intersection of Arapaho Road and Surveyor Boulevard. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 

 

SECTION 2. The Addison City Council hereby approves installation, by the Addison 

Arbor Foundation, of the untitled public art piece commissioned to and to be created by artist 

Russ Connell as shown in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 9th day of FEBRUARY 2021. 
      

   

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

  



 EXHIBIT A 

Sculpture Location 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Artist’s Rendering of the Commission 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sculpture  
Location 



   
Council Meeting 8.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of the Public Art
Piece by Artist Russ Connell Known as Rocko Within One of Three Parks
Spaces Located in the Addison Grove Development.

BACKGROUND:
On January 26, 2021, the Addison Arbor Foundation made a presentation to
Council proposing the installation of a steel sculpture titled Rocko that has been
created by artist Russ Connell.  The sculpture is 4' x 4' x 7' and finished in a
Golden Sunset Color with a gloss finish.  The sculpture will be placed in one of
three of the parks located in the Addison Grove Development identified in Exhibit
A of the resolution.  The resolutions authorizes the Addison Arbor Foundation to
work with Staff to select the final location for the public art once construction of
the parks is underway.

Council approved the presentation made by the Arbor Foundation on January 26,
2021, and the Addison Arbor Foundation will finalize the purchase of the
sculpture if the attached resolution is approved by Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art "Rocko" 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______         Page 1 of 2 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE INSTALLATION OF THE PUBLIC ART PIECE CREATED BY 

ARTIST RUSS CONNELL KNOWN AS “ROCKO” WITHIN ONE OF THREE 

PARK SPACES LOCATED IN THE ADDISON GROVE DEVELOPMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Addison Arbor Foundation will purchase and install for the Town of 

Addison, a public art piece from artist Russ Connell known as “Rocko;” and 
 

WHEREAS, at its January 26, 2021, City Council meeting, the Council approved the 

placement of the sculpture within one of the three parks located within the Addison Grove 

Development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town staff has recommended installation of the public art piece within 

one of the three parks located within the Addison Grove Development. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 

 

SECTION 2. The Addison City Council hereby approves installation of the public art 

piece known as “Rocko” in one of the three parks located within the Addison Grove 

Development as illustrated in Exhibit A.  

 

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 9th day of FEBRUARY 2021. 
      

 TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 

 

 

             
Joe Chow, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



 EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. ______         Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Sculpture Location Options 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sculpture 

 



   
Council Meeting 9.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Parks & Recreation
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving the Installation of the Public Art
Piece Created by Artist David B. Hickman Known as "Aikido" at 15601
Addison Road.  

BACKGROUND:
On January 26, 2021, the Addison Arbor Foundation (AAF) made a presentation
to Council proposing the installation of a bronze, glass and steel kinetic sculpture
fabricated by artist David B. Hickman.  The sculpture was purchased from MAA,
formerly Post Properties, and restored by the Addison Arbor Foundation.  The
sculpture will be installed at 15601 Addison Road on airport property which is
leased by Black Forest Aviation.  The lessee has signed an agreement
authorizing the placement of the sculpture and granting access to maintain and
view the artwork.

Council approved the presentation made by the AAF on January 26, 2021.  The
Addison Arbor Foundation will finalize the installation of the sculpture when the
attached resolution is approved by Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art "Aikido" 



Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. R19-043 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

APPROVING THE INSTALLATION OF A PUBLIC ART PIECE CREATED BY 

ARTIST DAVID B. HICKMAN KNOWN AS “AIKIDO” TO BE LOCATED 

AT 15601 ADDISON ROAD AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Addison Arbor Foundation purchased and restored for the Town of 

Addison, a public art piece by artist David B. Hickman known as “Aikido;” and 

WHEREAS, at its January 26, 2021, City Council meeting, the Council approved the 

placement of the sculpture by the Addison Arbor Foundation at 15601 Addison Road; and

WHEREAS, the Town staff has recommended installation of the public art piece at 

15601 Addison Road.

WHEREAS, the Lessee, Black Forest Aviation, of Town property at 15601Addison 

Road has signed a letter of agreement allowing the Town access to place, maintain and for the

public to view the sculpture.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 

SECTION 2. The Addison City Council hereby approves installation of the public art 

piece, by the Addison Arbor Foundation, known as “Aikido” at 15601 Addison Road, as

shown in Exhibit A attached hereto.  

SECTION 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 

Texas, on this the 9th day of FEBRUARY 2021. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

Joe Chow, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 

Resolution No. _______ Page 2 of 2 



   
Council Meeting 10.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Information Technology
Pillars: Optimize the Addison Brand
Milestones: Define and promote Addison Identity

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Agreement Between the
Town of Addison and Casteel & Associates, Inc. for the Belt Line Road
Digital Street Signs Project and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
the Agreement in an Amount Not to Exceed $455,006.04.

BACKGROUND:
In May of 2012, Addison voters approved $500,000 in General Obligation bonds
for the design and installation of an electronic sign over Belt Line Road to replace
the static banners located just east of Quorum Drive.

On March 20, 2020, Staff released a request for proposal (RFP) for the design
and installation of the sign, but no proposals were received.  Staff then sought
qualified vendors through two (2) cooperative purchasing hubs.  Fourteen (14)
potential vendors were initially identified.  Upon further review, Staff determined
that two of the vendors were qualified for the project.  Of these two vendors,
Casteel & Associates, Inc. (Casteel) was selected based on proven capability
and the know-how to design and build this platform within the available budget.
 
On January 26, 2021, Staff and the Casteel design team provided an overview of
the conceptual design to the Council in order to solicit, receive, and incorporate
Council's comments into the final design.  Council directed Staff to proceed with
the contract negation with Casteel to design, construct, and install the proposed
electronic sign. 
 
Casteel will provide design, engineering, manufacturing, and electronic unit
procurement for a two (2) sided electronic display system for the Town. Casteel
will excavate and pour the concrete foundation, fabricate, and install a bent steel
structure, provide electrical services, provide a concrete safety barrier system,
and install the display unit.  Casteel will also install, configure and train staff on
the software that controls what is displayed by the signs.  The landscaping
component of this project will be provided by others.
 
Construction for this project is anticipated to take 6 months to complete.  This
project is budgeted in the 2012 Bond Fund at $500,000.



project is budgeted in the 2012 Bond Fund at $500,000.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Agreement with Casteel & Associates, Inc. for the Belt Line Road
Digital Street Signs Project 



RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON,
TEXAS APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON
AND CASTEEL & ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR THE BELTLINE ROAD DIGITAL
STREET  SIGNS  PROJECT  IN  AN  AMOUNT  NOT  TO  EXCEED  $455,006.04,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. The Agreement between the Town of Addison and Casteel & Associates,
Inc., for the Beltline Road Digital Street Signs Project in an amount not to exceed $455,006.04, a
copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison,
Texas, on this the 9  th day of FEBRUARY 2021.

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

                                                                                  
Joe Chow, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

                                                                                                                                
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 1 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 2 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 3 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 4 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 5 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 6 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 7 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 8 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 9 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 10 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 11 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 12 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 13 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 14 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 15 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 16 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 17 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 18 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 19 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 20 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 21 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 22 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 23 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 24 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 25 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 26 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 27 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 28 of 29



EXHIBIT A

Town of Addison, Texas

Resolution No. _______ Page 29 of 29



   
Council Meeting 11.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consideration Action on a Staff Recommendation to
Implement Compensation Changes for Fiscal Year 2021 Based on a Market
Analysis of the Town’s Comparator Cities.

BACKGROUND:
During the August 6, 2020 Special Meeting and Budget Work Session, Council
directed staff to conduct a Compensation Market Study (Study) and to develop
recommendations based on the Study findings. 
 
During a Work Session on January 26, 2021, Council was presented the Study
findings, Staff’s recommendations in response to the Study’s findings, the
projected long-term financial impact of the recommendations, and details of the
funding sources to cover the cost of the recommendations. 
 
The analysis found that Addison's employee pay is below the market average for
certain job classifications and no longer meets the compensation philosophy
adopted by Council (Resolution 17-38) on July 11, 2017.  Using findings from the
Study, Staff identified the adjustments necessary to bring employee
compensation in line with the adopted compensation philosophy.  Staff also
identified the funding source to cover the cost of these adjustments.  The Fiscal
Year 2021 budget contained a conservative sales tax revenue estimate due to
uncertainty associated with the pandemic.  To date, actual sales tax revenue has
exceeded the budgeted amount.    
 
A change in the total cost of the recommendations (a $75,572 increase) is
reflected in this presentation compared to the total cost presented on January
26, 2021.  This is due to an update made in the data and calculation
methodology for public safety positions.  Details will be provided during the
discussion.  

This item is being brought before Council for action.  If approved, compensation
adjustments will be reflected in the first pay period following formal action. That
anticipated pay date is March 12, 2021.  If approved, the FY2021 Budget will be
amended at mid-year to reflect the implementation of these recommendations. 

For Council to approve the recommendations, a motion will be necessary. 



Suggested language for this motion is:  I make a motion to approve Staff's
Recommendations to Implement Compensation Changes for Fiscal Year 2021
Based on a Market Analysis of the Town’s Comparator Cities.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.  

Attachments
Presentation - Compensation Discussion 



Market Study &  
Pay Plan Update

February 9, 2021

1



Previous Council Discussion

On January 26, 2021, Council was presented the results of 
the Market Study and recommendations for implementation.

This discussion included information from Staff and Matt 
Weatherly with Public Sector Personnel Consultants.

2



Adopted Compensation Philosophy

3

The purpose of the merit and market pay plan is threefold:

To encourage excellence in service by tying salary increases to job
performance;

To reward employees for their efforts and job performance and;

To remain competitive with other metroplex cities in regards to the
Town’s compensation program by paying employees better than the
average of our comparison cities.

We support an open range system in compliance with our compensation
philosophy. We will annually budget for market and merit adjustments for
compensation that are fair and sustainable.



Addison

Allen
Carrollton

Coppell

Farmers  
Branch

Frisco

Grapevine

Flower  
MoundIrving

Lewisville

McKinney

Plano

Richardson

University  
Park

Comparison Cities

4



Market Range Comparisons For Police And Fire

Rank
Market Variance

Entry Top
Firefighter/Paramedic -5.96% -2.01%
FEO/Paramedic -2.05% -4.83%
Fire Lieutenant -9.16% -4.08%
Fire Captain -5.05% -4.05%
Battalion Chief -5.86% -4.03%
Fire Marshal -4.10% -2.21%
Deputy Fire Chief 1.88% -9.14%

Police Officer -8.44% -7.44%
Police Sergeant -9.29% -6.75%
Police Lieutenant -10.34% -10.44%
Police Captain -4.61% -6.24%
Assistant Police Chief -0.32% -9.23%

High Level Overview of Findings

5



Market Range Comparisons Found For 70+ Civilian Job Titles

Relationship to
Prevailing Rates

Benchmark
Job Classes

% of
Sample

Average
Variance

Below 16 23% - 8.54%

Comparable 45 63% - 1.33%

Above 10 14% + 7.28%

High Level Overview of Findings

6



Recommendations

 Adjust Pay Ranges and Salaries for Sworn Police and Fire Positions  
to reflect a position of market + 1%

 Adjust Pay Ranges and Salaries for Civilian Positions to reflect a  
position of market + 1%

 Pay 2% merit increase based on Fiscal Year 2020 Performance

 Implement on a go-forward basis

7



Costing (Fully Loaded) – “1% Above Market”

Civilian annual cost estimated - $594,586
Police annual cost estimated - $647,500
Fire annual cost estimated - $413,730
Total Annual Cost - $1,655,816
Total Fiscal Year 2021 Cost - $1,152,838

Market - $783,182
Merit - $369,656

Fiscal Year 2021 Merit Budget - $512,000
Additional Funds Needed in Fiscal Year 2021 - $640,838

8



Questions

?

9



   
Council Meeting 12.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a CARES Act Update and Potential
Uses of Remaining Funds.   

BACKGROUND:
On June 9, 2020, Council approved an Inter-Local Agreement with Dallas County
whereby Addison became eligible for up to $894,465 in reimbursement under the
CARES Act for authorized expenditures.  On July 14, 2020, Council gave Staff
direction on the creation of three CARES Act programs.  These programs and
their estimated funding are:
  

Addison CARES Lease Mortgage Assistance Program ($500,000) 
Resident Assistance Program ($200,000)
Public Health and Compliance Program ($200,000)

The Addison CARES Lease Mortgage Assistance Program received few eligible
applications in Round 1 of funding.  Second and third rounds of funding were
opened under modified eligibility requirements to distribute funds to local
businesses.  Staff was approved by Dallas County to reallocate unused funds in
this program to the Town's other programs and/or certain other eligible expenses.  

The Resident Assistance Program was administered for the Town by Metrocrest
Services.  They enrolled, vetted and provided eligible Addison Residents with
rent, food and utility assistance.    

The Public Health and Compliance Program was designed to help keep Town
facilities and services operational while dealing with the pandemic.  The program
funded facility disinfection and virus protection efforts, medical supplies, and
telework equipment and services.     

Through December 31, 2020, the Town submitted the following amounts for
reimbursement: 

Addison CARES Lease/Mortgage Assistance Program               $319,053.08
Resident Assistance Program                                                      $180,934.45
Public Health and Compliance Program (total- detail below)       $327,750.55 

Public Space Disinfection            $190,395.68
Medical Supplies                         $  34,176.11
Telework                                      $103,178.76



Telework                                      $103,178.76

On December 27, 2020, with just a few business days remaining before the end
of the original CARES Act performance period, the Act was amended to extend
the performance period by an additional year.  Based on this extension, Staff
halted plans to submit an invoice for a 10% administrative fee that would have
obtained reimbursement of all remaining funds (approximately $66,000). 

Uses for the remaining funds include applying the funds toward the Resident
Assistance Program or the Public Health and Compliance Program.  The Town
could also apply these funds toward an administrative fee paid to the Town for
the management of the grant or to cover public safety salaries.  While applying
the remaining funds toward a fourth round of the Addison CARES Lease/
Mortgage Assistance Program is a possibility, it will require a significant
administrative effort and approval from Dallas County.  Lastly, the remaining
funds could be reallocated to initiate a new program or programs allowed under
the Act.  However, Dallas County has requested that any such reallocation be
completed by March 31, 2021. 

For the sake of expediency and efficiency, Staff recommends utilizing the
remaining funds to continue the Resident Assistance Program through
Metrocrest Services until the funds are exhausted. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks direction from Council.

Attachments
Dallas County Letter - Coronavirus Relief Fund Extension 



FKDUOHV�UHHG#GDOODVFRXQW\�RUJ _�����������± ����
����(OP�6WUHHW�� �UG )ORRU�� 'DOODV��7H[DV�����������

'DOODV�&RXQW\
&RPPLVVLRQHUV�&RXUW�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ

&OD\�/HZLV�-HQNLQV
&RXQW\�-XGJH

'U��7KHUHVD�0��
'DQLHO

&RPPLVVLRQHU�
3UHFLQFW��

-�-��.RFK
&RPPLVVLRQHU
3UHFLQFW��

-RKQ�:LOH\�3ULFH
&RPPLVVLRQHU�
3UHFLQFW��

'U��(OED�*DUFLD
&RPPLVVLRQHU
3UHFLQFW��

'DUU\O�0DUWLQ
&RPPLVVLRQHUV�

&RXUW $GPLQLVWUDWRU

&KDUOHV�5HHG
$VVLVWDQW�

$GPLQLVWUDWRU

'HFHPEHU���������

'HDU�&LW\�/HDGHUVKLS�

,W�KDV�EHHQ�D�SOHDVXUH�ZRUNLQJ�ZLWK�\RX�DQG�\RXU�WHDP�PHPEHUV�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�VXPPHU�DQG�
IDOO� :H�DSSUHFLDWH�FLWLHV�ZRUNLQJ�KDUG�WR�FORVH�RXW�WKHLU�&$5(6�$FW�&RURQDYLUXV�5HOLHI�
)XQGV��&5)���$V�\RX�PD\�KDYH�KHDUG��GXH�WR�WKH�UHFHQW�&RQVROLGDWHG�$SSURSULDWLRQV�$FW�RI�
������WKHUH�LV�D�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�WLPHOLQH�RI�WKLV�&29,'����UHOLHI�IXQGLQJ� 8QIRUWXQDWHO\��QR�
QHZ�IXQGLQJ�ZDV�DSSURSULDWHG�IRU�ORFDO�JRYHUQPHQWV�

3HU�SUHYLRXV�7UHDVXU\�&$5(6$FW�UHTXLUHPHQWV��WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�7UHDVXU\�ZRXOG�UHFRXS�
DPRXQWV�UHFHLYHG�IURP WKH�IXQG�WKDW�ZHUH�QRW�XVHG�WR�FRYHU�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�E\�'HFHPEHU�����
������7KH�&$5(6�7HDP�KDV�UHFHLYHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�QRWLILFDWLRQ�IURP�WKH�7UHDVXU\�
7KH�&RQVROLGDWHG�$SSURSULDWLRQV�$FW��������H[WHQGV�WKH�SHULRG�GXULQJ�ZKLFK�UHFLSLHQWV�PD\�
LQFXU�HOLJLEOH�FRVWV�WKDW�PD\�EH�FRYHUHG�XVLQJ�SD\PHQWV�IURP�WKH�&RURQDYLUXV�5HOLHI�)XQG�
�&5)��WR�'HFHPEHU�����������'LYLVLRQ�1��7LWOH�;��6HFWLRQ��������3UHVLGHQW�7UXPS�VLJQHG�WKH�
OHJLVODWLRQ�RQ�'HFHPEHU�����������DQG�WKH�FKDQJH�LV�HIIHFWLYH�LPPHGLDWHO\��5HIHUHQFHV�WR�
³'HFHPEHU���������´�LQ�7UHDVXU\�JXLGDQFH�GDWHG�6HSWHPEHU���������DQG�)UHTXHQWO\�$VNHG�
4XHVWLRQV�GDWHG�2FWREHU����������VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�DV�³'HFHPEHU���������´�LQ�DOO�LQVWDQFHV�
UHODWHG�WR�WKH�XVH�RI�IXQGV�WR�FRYHU�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����G�����RI�WKH�6RFLDO�
6HFXULW\�$FW��7UHDVXU\�ZLOO�XSGDWH�LWV�JXLGDQFH�WR�UHIOHFW�WKLV�FKDQJH�WR�WKH�VWDWXWH�LQ�WKH�
QHDU�IXWXUH�

3OHDVH�FRQWLQXH�WR�IROORZ�WKH�ODWHVW�8�6��7UHDVXU\�&RURQDYLUXV�5HOLHI�)XQG�*XLGHOLQHV�DQG�
)$4V�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKDW�W\SH�RI�H[SHQGLWXUHV�DUH�HOLJLEOH��2XU�WHDP�VKRXOG�EH�LQIRUPHG�RI�
DQ\�UH�DOORFDWLRQ�SODQV�RU�SURJUDP�SURMHFW�H[WHQVLRQV��,W�LV�VWLOO�HDFK�FLW\¶V�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�
HQVXUH�WKH\�XWLOL]H�WKHLU�EDODQFHV LQ�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�FRPSOLHV�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�&$5(6�$FW�
IXQGLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV��'DOODV�&RXQW\�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�UHSRUWLQJ�DOO�UHTXLUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
LQFOXGLQJ�IXQGLQJ�REOLJDWLRQV��H[SHQGLWXUHV��ORDQ�SD\PHQWV��HWF���WR�WKH�7UHDVXU\�2IILFH�RI�
,QVSHFWRU�*HQHUDO� &LWLHV�WKDW FRQWLQXH�WR�KDYH DFWLYLW\�ZLWK�WKHLU�&5)�DOORFDWLRQV LQWR WKH�
QHZ�\HDU�VKRXOG�FRQWLQXH�WR�VXEPLW�PRQWKO\�UHSRUWV�WR�WKH�'DOODV�&RXQW\�&$5(6�7HDP�

7KDQN�\RX�DJDLQ�LQ�\RXU�FRRSHUDWLRQ�WR�DGPLQLVWHU�WKLV�IXQGLQJ�WR�VXSSRUW�'DOODV�&RXQW\�
FRPPXQLWLHV��2XU�WHDP�ZLVKHV�\RX�DQG�\RXU�IDPLO\�D�KDSS\�QHZ�\HDU��

6LQFHUHO\�

&KDUOHV�5HHG



   
Council Meeting 13.           
Meeting Date: 02/09/2021  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Acceptance of the Fiscal Year
2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).       

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Town Charter requires that Town Staff prepare a Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that shows the status of the Town’s finances. 
The CAFR is required to be prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.  The charter also requires that the Town’s financial
statements be audited annually by an independent external auditing firm.  The
results of the independent external audit are included in the CAFR.  

The Town of Addison Finance Department has prepared the CAFR for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2020.  The CAFR is a report of the Town's overall
financial results.  The Town's financial statements have been audited by BKD,
LLP, an independent firm of licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of
the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the Town are free of material misstatement. 

In addition to providing an overview of the Town of Addison CAFR for Fiscal Year
2020, BKD will present their audit report and opinion on the Town's financial
statements.

BKD has issued an unmodified opinion, which means that financial statements
are presented fairly, in all material respects, and in accordance with applicable
financial reporting framework.  Simply stated, an unmodified opinion is a clean
opinion.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Fiscal Year 2020 



Town of Addison, Texas

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended September 30, 2020

City Council
Expiration of Term

Joe Chow, Mayor May 2021
Lori Ward, Mayor Pro Tempore May 2021
Guillermo Quintanilla, Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore May 2022
Tom Braun, Council Member May 2021
Ivan Hughes, Council Member May 2021
Paul Walden, Council Member May 2022
Marlin Willesen, Council Member May 2022

City Manager

Wesley S. Pierson

Prepared by the 
Department of Finance

Steven Glickman, CPA, CGFO, Chief Financial Officer
Amanda Turner, CPA, CGFO, Controller
Ashley Boatright, Accounting Manager

Tandi Dickey, Senior Accountant
Ben Nguyen, Accountant

Eric Wellman, Accounting Specialist
Kristen Solares, CGFO, Budget Manager

DRAFT



DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION Page No.
Letter of Transmittal  1 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement  6 
Organizational Chart  7 
List of Principal Officials  8 

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor’s Report  9 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  12 

Basic Financial Statements:
      Government-wide Financial Statements:
            Statement of Net Position  21 
            Statement of Activities  22 

      Fund Financial Statements:
            Governmental Funds:
               Balance Sheet  23 
               Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position  24 
               Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  25 
               Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
                  and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities  26 
               Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
                  Budget and Actual – General Fund  27 
               Statement and Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
                  Budget and Actual – Hotel Fund  31 

            Proprietary Funds:
               Statement of Net Position  32 
               Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position  33 
               Statement of Cash Flows  34 

      Notes to Financial Statements  35 

Required Supplementary Information:

      Texas Municipal Retirement System: 
                Schedule of the Town's Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios (Unaudited)  72 
                Schedule of Town Contributions (Unaudited)  74 
      Schedule of Changes in the Town's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios-Retiree Healthcare Plan
              (Unaudited)  75 
      Schedule of Changes in the Town's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios-TMRS Supplemental
             Death Benefits Fund (Unaudited)  76 

DRAFT



FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued) Page No.

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES:

Debt Service Fund:

      Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  -- 
            Budget and Actual -- General Obligation Debt Service Fund  77 

Non-major Governmental Funds:

      Special Revenue Funds:

            Combining Balance Sheet  78 
            Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances  79 

            Municipal Court Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual  80 

            Public Safety Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual  81 

            Advanced Funding Grant Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual  82 

            Economic Development Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual  83 

            Reimbursement Grant Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual  84 

            PEG Fees Fund:
            Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -- Budget and Actual  85 

Proprietary Funds:

      Internal Service Funds:

                  Combining Statement of Net Position  86 
                  Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position  87 
                  Combining Statement of Cash Flows  88 

STATISTICAL SECTION Table Page No
Net Position by Component  1  89 
Changes in Net Position  2  90 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds  3  92 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds  4  93 
General Governmental Revenues by Selected Sources  5  95 
General Governmental Expenditures by Function  6  96 
Summary of Tax Revenues and Franchise Fees  7  97 
Assessed and Estimated Market Value of Taxable Property  8  98 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates  9  99 
 

DRAFT



STATISTICAL SECTION (Continued) Table Page No
Property Tax Levies and Collections  10  100 
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type  11  101 
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding  12  102 
Direct and Overlapping Debt  13  103 
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage – Water and Sewer Fund  14  104 
Schedule of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Coverage – Hotel Fund  15  105 
Demographic and Economic Statistics  16  106 
Principal Property Taxpayers  17  107 
Major Employers  18  108 
Budgeted Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program  19  109 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program  20  110 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program  21  111 

DRAFT



February 5, 2021

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
Town of Addison, Texas

I am pleased to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Town of Addison, Texas for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. The purpose of the report is to provide the City Council, management,
staff, the public, and other interested parties with detailed information reflecting the Town's financial condition.

THE REPORT

This report satisfies §103.001 of the Texas Local Government Code requiring annual audits of all
municipalities and was conducted in accordance with Section 2.15 of the Charter of the Town of Addison.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Town. We believe the data is accurate in all material
respects and is presented in a manner that fairly sets forth the financial position of the Town. We also believe
all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Town's financial affairs have
been included. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Town of
Addison has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the Town of Addison’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of
Addison’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is organized into three major sections: Introductory,
Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section provides general information on the government’s
structure and personnel as well as information useful in assessing the government’s financial condition.

The Financial Section contains the opinion of the Town's independent auditor. The Town of Addison’s
financial statements have been audited by BKD, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal
of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Town of
Addison for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 are free of material misstatement. The independent
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion (i.e., clean opinion) that the
Town of Addison’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020 are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial
section of this report.

Also included in the Financial Section is management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) that provides users
of the basic financial statements a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of those statements. The
basic financial statements, including the accompanying notes, represent the core of the financial section.
These financial statements present the financial condition of the Town of Addison as a single entity, as well
as the individual funds that account for the Town’s various governmental and business-type activities.

1

DRAFT



The report concludes with the Statistical Section, which, through the use of tables, presents comparative
economic and financial data to give users of the report a perspective of the Town's performance over a
number of years.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Town of Addison is located in the Dallas North Parkway area, which has been referred to as the
"platinum corridor" of the Dallas Metroplex. The area, which developed rapidly over the past three decades, is
home to affluent neighborhoods, hundreds of million-dollar companies, scores of quality restaurants, and two
spacious malls. At 4.4 square miles, Addison is the smallest, yet most densely developed, of the various
suburbs located in the area. Although it has just over 16,000 residents, the Town has developed into a
cosmopolitan center which serves well over 125,000 business persons, shoppers, and visitors daily. Money
Inc. and Doorsteps.com recently listed Addison as the number one place in the Dallas region to live.

The Town was incorporated in 1953 and is operating under a Charter adopted in 1978 and last amended in
November 2010. Under the amended Charter, the Council is comprised of a mayor and six council members
who enact local legislation, determine policies, and adopt the Town's budget. The mayor and council
members are elected for two-year terms with the mayor and three council members being elected each 
odd-numbered year and the remaining three council members elected each even-numbered year. The City
Manager is appointed by the City Council and is responsible to them for the proper administration of the
affairs of the Town.

2

DRAFT



The Town provides a full range of municipal services including general government, public safety (police and
fire), streets, parks and recreation, planning and zoning, code enforcement, stormwater, and water and sewer
utilities. Sanitation collection services are provided through private contractors; non-residential customers
contract with the collection firm of their choice while single-family residential customers contract through the
Town with sanitation fees added to their municipal utility bills.

The annual budget of the Town of Addison serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and
control. The budget is prepared by the City Manager and adopted by the City Council in accordance with
policies and procedures established by the Town Charter and Council ordinances. The appropriated budget is
prepared and presented by fund, department (e.g. police) or function (e.g. debt service), and major cost
category (e.g. personal services). All expenses of the Town are made in accordance with the adopted annual
budget. The department level is the legal level of control enacted by the Town Charter. Budgetary control is
maintained at the individual expenditure account level by the review of all requisitions of estimated purchase
amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. Transfers between expenditure accounts in one
department may occur with the approval of the Chief Financial Officer. Transfers between operating
departments may occur with the approval of the City Manager and Chief Financial Officer provided that a
department's total budget is not changed by more than five percent. Transfers between funds or transfers
between departments that change a department's total budget by more than five percent must be
accomplished by budget amendment approved by the City Council. Budget amendments calling for new fund
appropriations must also be approved by the City Council.

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each major fund for which an appropriated
annual budget has been adopted.  For the non-major governmental funds with appropriated annual budgets,
this comparison is presented in the combining and individual fund financial statements section of this report. 

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

Status of Local Economy

With its concentration of commercial and retail development, the Town of Addison’s economy is strongly
influenced by the region’s economic climate. According to reports issued by the Federal Reserve Bank of
Dallas, the Leading Index and Business Cycle Index indicators declined significantly during FY2020, primarily
due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Both indicis, however, after sharp declines in the second and third quarters
rebounded significantly in the fourth quarter, a trend that bodes well for the continued economic strength of
the Town.

3

DRAFT



The United States unemployment rate rose significantly due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Texas ended the
year above the nation as a whole.  Texas began fiscal year 2020 at 3.5% unemployment, which was the
lowest point reached during the year, and ended the year at 8.3%, above the U.S. rate of 7.9%.

Addison is densely developed with 11.4 million square feet of office space distributed among 120 office
buildings. Much attention is given to the occupancy rates of buildings in Addison. At the end of September
2020, Addison’s occupancy rate stood at 79 percent compared with the 82 percent recorded a year earlier.
Addison’s occupancy rate is 4 percent higher than the 75 percent average for all of the Dallas/Ft. Worth Area.
(Source: CoStar Group)

The Town experienced a 2.2 percent increase in taxable property values for the 2020 certified appraised
values compared to a 2 percent increase for the 2019 certified appraised values.  

For the 2020 fiscal year, General Fund revenues of $39.8 million represented a slight decrease from $40.2
million in fiscal year 2019. The property tax levy produced 47% of the total revenue available to the Town's
General Fund for this year, while the sales tax revenue category produced 38%. The Town’s sales tax
receipts decreased 6.04 percent from fiscal year 2019. General Fund expenditures and transfers for the 2020
fiscal year totaled $40.3 million. The General Fund ending fund balance decreased by almost $454 thousand
to $20.1 million, with an ending fund balance of 55% of General Fund operating expenditures. The primary
reason for the decrease was due to planned increased transfers to cash-funded capital project funds.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The City Council has adopted various financial policies for operations, capital, and debt management.  Fiscal
year 2020 was most significantly impacted by our fund balance policy during this Coronavirus pandemic. 
During the year, Town employees worked together to find ways to cover lost revenues, use grant funding to
cover unplanned expenditures, and adjust spending in several funds to ensure each fund will continue to be
sustainable. 

Users of this document, as well as others interested in the programs and services offered by the Town of
Addison, are encouraged to read the Town’s 2019-20 Annual Budget. The document details the Town’s 
long-term goals and financial policies, describes program accomplishments and initiatives, and outlines the
Town’s capital improvement program. The Town’s Annual Budget also includes long-term financial plans for
the major operating funds that forecast revenues and expenditures over a five-year horizon. The plans are
driven by financial policies adopted by the City Council that are designed to protect the Town’s financial
integrity. The policies include establishing significant fund balances, or reserves, to protect the Town from the
boom/bust economic cycle common to the state and the region. The budget document can be obtained from
the Town of Addison’s Financial and Strategic Services Department by calling (972) 450-7051. The Annual
Budget can also be accessed through the department’s website at
http://addisontexas.net/index.php?section=finance-department_Addison-budget.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Addison, Texas for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. The
Certificate, which is reproduced herein, is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local
government financial reporting. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards.
The document must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Town of Addison has received a
Certificate for the last 44 consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA for consideration.

4

DRAFT

http://addisontexas.net/index.php?section=finance-department_Addison-budget


In addition to the Certificate, the Town received GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its
fiscal year 2020 annual budget document. In order to qualify for the Award, the Town's budget document was
judged to be proficient or exceptional in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning,
and operations guide. The Town has received the Award for 33 consecutive years. Together, the Award and
the Certificate are evidence of the Finance Department’s dedication to producing documents that effectively
communicate the Town's financial condition to elected officials, city administrators, and the general public.

I wish to thank all members of the Finance Department who assisted in preparing and assembling the
information presented in this report. I also acknowledge our auditors, BKD, LLP, and the assistance they
provided in meeting the deadlines established for publication of the document. I am grateful for the support
provided by the City Council, and affirm our pledge to be a resource to help them achieve the goals they have
established for the Addison community.

Respectfully submitted,

Wesley S. Pierson  Steven Glickman, CPA
City Manager        Chief Financial Officer

5

DRAFT



6

DRAFT



7

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Introductory Section  Principal Officials

Town of Addison
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

September 30, 2020

Town Hall
(972) 450-7000

Fax (972) 450-7043

Elected Officials

Mayor Joe Chow (972) 450-7000

Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward (972) 450-7000

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Guillermo Quintanilla (972) 450-7000

Council Member Tom Braun (972) 450-7000

Council Member Ivan Hughes (972) 450-7000

Council Member Paul Walden (972) 450-7000

Council Member Marlin Willesen (972) 450-7000

Town Management

City Manager Wesley Pierson (972) 450-7037

Deputy City Manager Ashley Mitchell (972) 450-7010

Deputy City Manager John Crawford (972) 450-7036

Exec. Dir. of Business Performance & Innovation Hamid Khaleghipour (972) 450-2868

City Secretary Irma Parker (972) 450-7017

Director of Administrative Services Bill Hawley (972) 450-7016

Director of Airport Administration Joel Jenkinson (972) 392-4855

Director of Economic Development & Tourism Orlando Campos (972) 450-7034

Chief Financial Officer Steven Glickman (972) 450-7050

Fire Chief David Jones (972) 450-7206

Director of General Services Rob Bourestom (972) 450-6203

Director of Human Resources Passion Hayes (972) 450-2819

Director of Parks and Recreation Janna Tidwell (972) 450-2869

Police Chief Paul Spencer (972) 450-7168

Director of Public Communications Mary Rosenbleeth (972) 450-7032

Director of Public Works & Engineering Shannon Hicks (972) 450-2849

Director of Special Events Jasmine Lee (972) 450-6221

8

DRAFT



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

As management of the Town of Addison, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Addison for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.
Readers are encouraged to read this narrative in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report
and the Town’s financial statements, which follow this section. All amounts reported in this MD&A, unless
otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars (000's).

Financial Highlights

 The Town’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the 2020 fiscal year by $251,573. This amount represents a decrease over the
previous year of $138. The slight decrease is due to decreased revenues offset by controlled spending to
preserve fund balance during the Coronavirus pandemic to prepare for potential declining revenues in the
upcoming year.

 As of September 30, 2020, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$75,501, an increase of $29,051. The majority of the increase is due to the issuance of $16,900 in new
Certificates of Obligation and $13,635 in new General Obligation bonds.

 At the end of the 2020 fiscal year, the fund balance for the General Fund was $20,134, or 55 percent of total
fund expenditures. Fund balance decreased $454 during the year.

 At year-end, the Town of Addison’s outstanding debt totals $133,573, an increase of $18,628 from the
previous year, which is attributed to the issuance of additional debt during the year.

Overview of Financial Statements

This annual report is comprised of four segments as dictated by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP):
management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, required supplementary
information and other supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements
that present different views of the Town:

 The government-wide financial statements
provide both long-term and short-term
information about the Town’s overall financial
status.

 The fund financial statements focus on
individual parts of Addison’s government,
reporting the Town’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements.

 The governmental funds statements
explain how general government services
such as public safety were financed in the
short-term, as well as what remains for
future spending.

 Proprietary fund statements offer
short-term and long-term financial
information about the activities the
government operates as business-like,
such as the airport.

Management’s
Discussion and

Analysis

Basic Financial
Statements

Required and 
Other

Supplementary
Information

Government-wide
Financial

Statements

Fund Financial
Statements

Notes to the
Financial
Statements

Summary Detail

Illustration A-1 Required Components of
Town of Addison’s Annual Financial Report

12

DRAFT



The financial statements also include notes, which elaborate on some of the information in the financial
statements, providing more detailed data. These financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
Illustration A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In
addition to these required elements, we have included other information such as the Town’s statistical section,
which, through the use of tables, presents comparative economic and financial data to give users of this report a
perspective of the Town’s financial performance over a number of years.

Illustration A-2 summarizes the major features of the Town’s financial statements. The remainder of this overview
section of the management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the
statements.

13

DRAFT



�����������	
���
����
�������������

��������������� !"�#$!�%�&!%'#(�%������(�)*��+�,-./�+�01�2*13-+��*�)+�*,�4-0��)�5*1)+�13�*3-�4�16�0����14/�16
7++-,1/8,�6-/)/9�,�-/�)�:)//�*�,-:-;)*�01�)�2*-3)0�<,�901*�5=,-/�,,>����,��,0)0�:�/0,�9)/�5��;19)0�+�1/�2).�,
?@<??�16�0�-,�+19=:�/0>

A ����(�%������#�$#���#B�(!�!���2*�,�/0,�-/61*:)0-1/�1/�);;�16�0����14/8,�),,�0,C�;-)5-;-0-�,C�)/+�+�6�**�+
-/6;14,�)/+�1=06;14,C�4-0��0���+-66�*�/9��*�21*0�+�),����#B�(!�!��>�D3�*�0-:�C�-/9*�),�,�1*�+�9*�),�,�-/�/�0
21,-0-1/���E-/+-9)0��0���-:2*13�:�/0�1*�+�0�*-1*)0-1/�16�0����14/8,�6-/)/9-);�21,-0-1/>

A ����(�%������#�$#%&�!�!�!�(�2*�,�/0,�-/61*:)0-1/�,�14-/.�0����14/8,�9�)/.��-/�/�0�21,-0-1/�+=*-/.�0��
91/9;=+�+�6-,9);�F�)*>�7;;�9�)/.�,�-/�/�0�21,-0-1/�)*��*�21*0�+�),�,11/�),�0���=/+�*;F-/.��3�/0�.-3-/.�*-,��01
0���9�)/.��199=*,C�*�.)*+;�,,�16�0���0-:-/.�16�*�;)0�+�9),��6;14,>

����.13�*/:�/0<4-+��6-/)/9-);�,0)0�:�/0,�16�0����14/�)*��+-3-+�+�-/01�041�9)0�.1*-�,G

A H���������%'#%&�!�!�!�(�I����,��)*��6=/90-1/,�,=9��),�6-*�C�21;-9�C�)/+�10��*�,�*3-9�,�0�)0�)*��2*-/9-2);;F
,=221*0�+�5F�0)J�,�)/+�-/0�*.13�*/:�/0);�*�3�/=�>

A KL(!��((��MB�#%&�!�!�!�(�I����,��6=/90-1/,�)*��-/0�/+�+�01�*�913�*�);;�1*�)�,-./-6-9)/0�21*0-1/�16�0��-*�91,0,
0�*1=.��=,�*�6��,�)/+�9�)*.�,>������14/8,�)-*21*0C�=0-;-0F�,F,0�:�)/+�,01*:�4)0�*�,F,0�:�6);;�4-0�-/�0�-,
9)0�.1*F>

N���
����
�������������

7�$L�"�-,�)�.*1=2-/.�16�*�;)0�+�)991=/0,�=,�+�01�:)-/0)-/�91/0*1;�13�*�*�,1=*9�,�4�-9���)3��5��/�,�.*�.)0�+�61*
,2�9-6-9�)90-3-0-�,�1*�15O�90-3�,>������14/�16�7++-,1/C�;-P��10��*�,0)0��)/+�;19);�.13�*/:�/0,C�=,�,�6=/+
)991=/0-/.�01��/,=*��)/+�+�:1/,0*)0��91:2;-)/9��4-0��6-/)/9�<*�;)0�+�;�.);�*�Q=-*�:�/0,>�7;;�16�0���6=/+,�16�0��
�14/�9)/�5��+-3-+�+�-/01�041�9)0�.1*-�,G�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,�)/+�2*12*-�0)*F�6=/+,>

H���������%'#RL�"(�I�S13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,�)*��=,�+�01�)991=/0�61*��,,�/0-);;F�0���,):��6=/90-1/,�*�21*0�+�),
����������%'#%&�!�!�!�(>�T14�3�*C�=/;-P��0���.13�*/:�/0<4-+��6-/)/9-);�,0)0�:�/0,C�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+�6-/)/9-);
,0)0�:�/0,�619=,�1/��U���������-/6;14,�)/+�1=06;14,�16�,2�/+)5;��*�,1=*9�,C�),�4�;;�),�1/�5);)/9�,�16
,2�/+)5;��*�,1=*9�,�)3)-;)5;��)0�0����/+�16�0���6-,9);�F�)*>�V=9��-/61*:)0-1/�:)F�5��=,�6=;�-/��3);=)0-/.�)
.13�*/:�/08,�,�1*0<0�*:�6-/)/9-/.�*�Q=-*�:�/0,>

����619=,�16�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,�-,�/)**14�*�0�)/�0�)0�16�0���.13�*/:�/0<4-+��6-/)/9-);�,0)0�:�/0,C�-0�-,�=,�6=;�01
91:2)*��0���-/61*:)0-1/�2*�,�/0�+�61*�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,�4-0��,-:-;)*�-/61*:)0-1/�2*�,�/0�+�61*�.13�*/:�/0);
)90-3-0-�,�-/�0���.13�*/:�/0<4-+��6-/)/9-);�,0)0�:�/0,>�WF�+1-/.�,1C�*�)+�*,�:)F�5�00�*�=/+�*,0)/+�0������X�����

�Y����16�0���.13�*/:�/08,��U���������Z
����
�X�+�9-,-1/,>�W10��0���.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+�5);)/9��,���0�)/+�0��
.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+�,0)0�:�/0�16�*�3�/=�,C��J2�/+-0=*�,C�)/+�9�)/.�,�-/�6=/+�5);)/9�,�2*13-+��)�*�91/9-;-)0-1/�01
6)9-;-0)0��0�-,�91:2)*-,1/�5�04��/�.13�*/:�/0);�$L�"(�)/+�.13�*/:�/0);�%&�!�!�!�(>

�����14/�16�7++-,1/�:)-/0)-/,�@[�-/+-3-+=);�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,>�\/61*:)0-1/�-,�2*�,�/0�+�,�2)*)0�;F�-/�0��
.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+�5);)/9��,���0�)/+�-/�0���.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+�,0)0�:�/0�16�*�3�/=�,C��J2�/+-0=*�,C�)/+
9�)/.�,�-/�6=/+�5);)/9�,�61*�);;�0��,��6=/+,C�4-0��0����J9�20-1/�16�0���]91/1:-9�̂�3�;12:�/0�_=/+C�̀=/-9-2);
a1=*0�_=/+C�b=5;-9�V)6�0F�_=/+C�7+3)/9�+�_=/+-/.�S*)/0�_=/+C�c�-:5=*,�:�/0�S*)/0�_=/+�)/+�b]S�_��,
_=/+C�4�-9��)*��91/,-+�*�+�/1/<:)O1*�6=/+,�)/+�)*��91:5-/�+�-/01�)�,-/.;�C�)..*�.)0�+�2*�,�/0)0-1/>�\/+-3-+=);
6=/+�+)0)�61*��)9��16�0��,��/1/<:)O1*�6=/+,�-,�2*13-+�+�-/�0���61*:�16�91:5-/-/.�,0)0�:�/0,��;,�4��*��-/�0�-,
*�21*0>

�����14/�)+120,�)/�)//=);�)22*12*-)0�+�5=+.�0�61*�);:1,0�);;�-0,�.13�*/:�/0);�6=/+,>�7�5=+.�0)*F�91:2)*-,1/
,0)0�:�/0�-,�2*13-+�+�61*��)9��6=/+�01�+�:1/,0*)0��91:2;-)/9��4-0��0�-,�5=+.�0��J9�20�61*�0���a)2-0);�b*1O�90,�
_=/+>

14

DRAFT



Proprietary Funds – Services for which the Town charges customers a fee are generally reported in the proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide statements, only in more
detail. The Town of Addison maintains two different types of proprietary funds.

 Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its general aviation
airport, storm water (drainage), and its utility (water and sewer) system.

 Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
Town’s various functions. The Town uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles, major
equipment, and its technological information systems. Both of these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions hence they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for Addison’s airport, utility system, and 
storm drainage system, all of which are considered to be major funds of the Town of Addison. Conversely, both 
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data presented in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 
35-71 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information concerning the Town of Addison’s funding of its obligations to provide pension benefits 
to Town employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and to provide other 
postemployment benefits to Town employees upon retirement.  

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds and internal 
service funds are presented on pages 77-88.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As of the close of the 2020 fiscal year, the Town’s net position (assets and deferred outflows exceeding liabilities 
and deferred inflows) totaled $251,573 (see Table A-1). Of this amount $190,501, or 76 percent, represents the 
Town’s investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related outstanding 
debt used to acquire those assets. The Town of Addison uses these capital assets to provide services to the 
community, these assets are not available for future spending. A portion of net position has been restricted for the 
Town’s long-term general obligation debt ($63), promotion of tourism and hotel industry ($3,239) and other 
restrictions ($711). The remaining amount of net position is labeled as unrestricted and totals $57,059. This 
amount is available to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

15

DRAFT



At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Addison is able to report positive balances in these three
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and
business-type activities.

Table A-1
Town of Addison's Net Position (000's)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 

Assets:
Current and Other Assets  $  90,354  $  60,424  $  39,273  $  44,785  $  129,627  $  105,209 
Capital Assets  171,956  176,504  93,013  81,653  264,969  258,157 

Total Assets  262,310  236,928  132,286  126,438  394,596  363,366 

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Charges on Refundings  1,137  1,372  340  369  1,477  1,741 
Deferred Outflows on Pensions  2,785  8,188  181  627  2,966  8,816 
Deferred Outflows on OPEB  508  259  44  22  552  281 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources  4,430  9,819  565  1,018  4,995  10,837 

Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding  100,149  79,034  33,423  35,911  133,572  114,945 
Other Liabilities  5,754  4,594  4,429  2,660  10,183  7,254 

Total Liabilities  105,903  83,628  37,852  38,571  143,755  122,199 

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Inflows on Pensions  3,856  84  224  6  4,080  90 
Deferred Inflows on OPEB  168  187  15  16  183  203 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources  4,024  271  239  22  4,263  293 

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets  121,008  125,522  69,493  63,425  190,501  188,947 
Restricted :

 Debt Service  63  84  - -  63  84 
 Tourism/Hotel  3,239  3,449  - -  3,239  3,449 
 Child Safety  111  91  - -  111  91 
 Justice Administration  57  53  - -  57  53 
 Court Technology  27  28  - -  27  28 
 Public Safety  124  101  - -  124  101 
 Court Security  33  37  - -  33  37 
 Other Purposes  359  303  - -  359  303 

 Unrestricted  31,792  33,180  25,267  25,438  57,059  58,618 
Total Net Position  $  156,813  $  162,848  $  94,760  $  88,863  $  251,573  $  251,711 

16

DRAFT



As reflected in Table A-2, the Town’s net position decreased $138 during the 2020 fiscal year.

Table A-2
Town of Addison's Change in Net Position (000's)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

 Charges for Services  $  3,714  $  5,362  $  20,533  $  20,811  $  24,247  $  26,173 
 Capital Grants & Contributions - 130  1,358  457  1,358  587 
 Operating Grants & Contributions  634 101  207  69  841  170 

General Revenues:
 Property Taxes  27,005  25,181  - -  27,005  25,181 
 Other Taxes  20,496  24,208  - -  20,496  24,208 
 Other  1,368  1,708  626  903  1,994  2,611 

Total Revenues  53,195  56,690  22,724  22,240  75,919  78,930 

Expenses:
 General Government  10,206  10,150  - -  10,206  10,150 
 Public Safety  20,337  19,855  - -  20,337  19,855 
 Development Services  3,321  3,138  - -  3,321  3,138 
 Streets  8,327  7,678  - -  8,327  7,678 
 Parks & Recreation  6,784  6,840  - -  6,784  6,840 
 Visitor Services  4,311  6,884  - -  4,311  6,884 
 Interest and Fiscal Charges 
   on Long-Term Debt  2,154  1,938  - -  2,154  1,938 
 Airport  - -  6,894  6,574  6,894  6,574 
 Storm water  - -  1,362  1,428  1,362  1,428 
 Water & Sewer Utility  - -  12,361  12,329  12,361  12,329 

Total Expenses  55,440  56,483  20,617  20,331  76,057  76,814 

Increase (decrease) in net 
   position (2,245)  207  2,107  1,909 (138) 2,115
Transfers (3,790)  500  3,790 (500) - - 
Change in Net Position (6,035)  707  5,897  1,409 (138) 2,116

 Change in Accounting Principle  - -  - - - -
 Net Position - Beginning of year  162,848  162,141  88,863  87,454  251,711  249,595 
 Net Position - End of year  $  156,813  $  162,848  $  94,760  $  88,863  $  251,573  $  251,711 

17

DRAFT



Governmental Activities

Governmental activities decreased the Town of Addison’s net position by $6,035 in fiscal year 2020 as compared
to a $707 increase in fiscal year 2019. The major changes from 2019 to 2020 are as follows:

1. A transfer in 2020 from the governmental activities to business-type activities of $3.8 million for completed
capital assets
2. Hotel tax revenue decreased by $2.2 million due to the Coronavirus pandemic
3. Sales tax revenue decreased by $1.2 million also due to the Coronavirus pandemic
4. Property tax revenue increased by $1.9 million due to the increased tax levy
5. Visitor Services revenue decreased by $1.6 million, and their expenses decreased by $3.3 million due to
the cancellation of special events during the pandemic

Business-Type Activities

The Town’s business-type activities experienced a $5,897 increase in net position with the Airport Fund recording
an increase of $39, due mostly to the slight increase in maintenance costs and decrease in rent, fuel flowage fees,
and investment income.  These were partially offset by the $1,224 capital grant for land purchase reimbursement. 
The Utility Fund posted an increase in net position of $3,446, due mainly to the contribution of capital assets
constructed the in governmental funds.  The Storm Water Fund posted an increase in net position of $2,029,
which is $1,486 more than the prior year increase in net position.  This is due mostly to the contribution of capital
assets constructed in the governmental funds.

Financial Analysis of the Government Funds

Governmental funds – The focus of the Town of Addison’s governmental funds is to provide information on
short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending following the end of the fiscal year.

As of September 30, 2020, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $75,501,
an increase of $29,051 compared to balances a year earlier. Of the ending balance, $20,053 or 26.6 percent is
unassigned and is available to the Town for future spending. Most of the remaining fund balance is restricted for
future capital projects ($39,200), promotion of tourism and hotel industry ($3,149), debt service ($6) or committed
for Economic Development ($1,969) and Capital Projects ($10,369). Components of the net increase of total fund
balance are:

 In the General Fund, expenditures and transfers out totaled $40,273 compared to revenues of $39,798.
Expenditures increased $509 from the 2019 fiscal year. This increase is primarily due to the increases in
public safety ($582), development services ($151), and streets expenditures ($22).  Revenues decreased
$441 from the previous year. The decrease was mainly due to a reduction in sales tax, service fees,
investment earnings during the pandemic.

 In the Hotel Fund, expenditures and transfers out to other funds totaled $4,007 compared to revenues of
$3,707. Fund revenues decreased $3,648 from the previous year, and expenditures decreased $3,690 from
fiscal year 2019 due in large part to COVID-19 restrictions and the cancellation of several of the Town's
special events.

 Capital project funds recorded a net increase in fund balance of $29,549, primarily due to the issuance of
additional general obligation debt and certificates of obligation during 2020. Included in these funds is the
Infrastructure Investment Fund with an ending fund balance of $5,243 as of September 30, 2020.  Other
balances included are for capital projects funded with bond proceeds such as the 2014 and 2020 G.O.
Bonds issued as well as savings from general operations transferred to the Self-Funded Project fund for
future capital projects.

Proprietary funds - The Town of Addison’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements. Unrestricted net position of the Airport Fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $4,718; the Utility Fund reported an unrestricted net position of $12,275, while the Stormwater Fund
reported an unrestricted net position of $7,716.

18

DRAFT



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Major differences between the original budget and the final amended budget are described below, not expressed
in thousands of dollars (000's):

 Building permit revenue was amended to recognize an increase in building permits.  Additionally, $100,000
was amended for costs associated with health insurance elections being higher than anticipated for the Fire
Department.  An additional allocation to provide emergency funding to Metrocrest Services for a Resident
Assistance Program as part of the CARES Act, as well as an allocation for the grant revenue were made that
did not result in a net change to appropriations.

The adjustments resulted in an increase to budgeted revenue of $100,000 and increased expenditures by
$100,000 or 0.2 percent. $451,500 was reduced from the transfer to the Self-Funded Project Fund.

The final actuals resulted in revenues of 1.6 percent higher than the revised budget, and expenditures 6.8 percent
lower than the revised budget. The savings in expenditures resulted from lower than expected salary expenses
due to vacancies, lower than expected expenses for computer software maintenance and licensing, and lower
than expected expenses for utilities, including residential trash disposal.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets – As detailed in Table A-3 below, the Town of Addison’s investment in capital assets for its
governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2020, totals $264,969 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This amount represents a $6,811 increase from the previous year and is attributed to the addition of
the completion of constructed assets less depreciation of existing assets. Some of the projects that are in
progress include the Vitruvian Public Infrastructure, Midway Road Rehabilitation, Airport Parkway Reconstruction,
Keller Springs Reconstruction, Kellway Lift Station Rehabilitation, Celestrial Ground Storage Tank, Basin I Sanitary
Sewer Reroute, Airport Facility Improvements, and Customs Facility Construction. More information related to the
Town’s capital assets can be found in Sections; I, D, 4 and III, D of the Notes to Financial Statements.

Table A-3
Town of Addison's Capital Assets

(Net of Depreciation) (000's)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 

Land  $  67,194  $  66,250  $  17,259  $  17,046  $  84,453  $  83,296 
Intangible Assets  858  672  - -  858  672 
Buildings  8,347  8,951  6,394  6,585  14,741  15,536 
Improvements other than Buildings  73,627  76,702  53,750  48,500  127,377  125,202 
Machinery and Equipment  10,890  10,030  2,423  1,815  13,313  11,846 
Construction in Progress  11,039  13,900  13,188  7,707  24,227  21,607 
Total Capital Assets  $  171,955  $  176,505  $  93,014  $  81,653  $  264,968  $  258,158 

19

DRAFT



Long-term debt – At the end of the 2020 fiscal year, the Town of Addison had total bonded debt outstanding of
$124,665 as detailed in Table A-4. The Town of Addison maintains an underlying bond rating of “AAA” from
Standard & Poor’s and “Aaa” from Moody’s. Several of the Town’s outstanding debt issuances are insured. More
information related to the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Section III, F of the Notes to Financial
Statements.

Table A-4
Town of Addison's Outstanding Bonded Debt (000's)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 

General Obligation Bonds  $  63,730  $  51,888  $  5,616  $  6,411  $  69,346  $  58,299 
Certificates of Obligation  28,223  11,605  27,096  28,121  55,319  39,726 
Total Debt Outstanding  $  91,953  $  63,493  $  32,712  $  34,532  $  124,665  $  98,025 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The development of the Town's budget is guided by several factors including the Town's strategic plan and
prevailing economic conditions. The fiscal year 2021 budget plan adopted by the City Council adheres to the
Town's financial policies and preserves the Town's strong financial position while providing excellent levels of
service. The annual budget is adopted within context of five-year financial plans for the General, Hotel, Airport, and
Utility funds. The long-term financial plans project major operating revenues and categories of expenses. Changes
in fund balances are monitored to ensure that the Town is in compliance with adopted fund balance policy. 

Major programs in the General Fund continue to focus on public safety, community development and parks to
ensure the high quality of life enjoyed by Addison citizens and visitors.

Revenue assumptions in the General Fund are expected to take into consideration current economic indicators.
Revenues, such as property tax revenue and sales tax revenue, are forecasted using both historical results and
current trends. Certified taxable property values in Addison totaled $4,925,943,024 for fiscal year 2021 which
represented a 2.2 percent increase from the previous year. The property tax rate increased to $0.608676 per $100
appraised value, from the previous fiscal year. Of the 2021 budget tax rate, $0.441109 was levied for
operation/maintenance and $0.167567 for debt service.

Sales tax collections for the Town were conservatively budgeted from the amount collected in 2020. Sales tax
collections were projected to decrease in fiscal year 2021 compared to the 2020 budget.

Hotel occupancy tax collections were budgeted to decrease by approximately 25.0 percent between fiscal year
2020 and fiscal year 2021.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the Town of Addison’s finances and to show the Town's accountability for the funds it
receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the following:

Town of Addison
Finance Department
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, TX 75001
Telephone:  (972) 450-7050
Email: sglickman@addisontx.gov

20

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

TOWN OF ADDISON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Total
ASSETS

Pooled Cash and Investments $ 84,907,620 $ 30,173,033 $ 115,080,653
Receivables, Net of Allowances for Uncollectibles 3,941,126 2,706,079 6,647,205
Prepaid Items 60,668 - 60,668
Inventories, at Cost 20,946 - 20,946
Due from Other Funds 615,000 - 615,000
Investment in Joint Venture 809,253 6,393,505 7,202,758
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Land 67,194,694 17,258,730 84,453,424
Intangible Assets 858,063 - 858,063
Buildings 8,346,871 6,394,226 14,741,097
Improvements other than Buildings 73,626,731 53,750,100 127,376,831
Machinery and Equipment 10,889,745 2,423,136 13,312,881
Construction in Progress 11,039,270 13,187,545 24,226,815

Total Assets 262,309,987 132,286,354 394,596,341

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charges on Refundings 1,137,575 339,315 1,476,890
Deferred Outflows on Pensions 2,784,828 181,366 2,966,194
Deferred Outflows on OPEB 507,970 44,140 552,110

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,430,373 564,821 4,995,194

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 5,289,960 2,384,711 7,674,671
Due to Other Funds - 615,000 615,000
Unearned Revenue 463,010 - 463,010
Customer Deposits 375 1,429,812 1,430,187
Long-Term Liabilities

Due within One Year 5,256,071 1,633,121 6,889,192
Due in More Than One Year 94,893,105 31,790,334 126,683,439

Total Liabilities 105,902,521 37,852,978 143,755,499

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows on Pensions 3,856,173 224,001 4,080,174
Deferred Inflows on OPEB 168,303 14,633 182,936

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,024,476 238,634 4,263,110

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 121,008,111 69,493,275 190,501,386
Restricted for:

Debt Service 63,194 - 63,194
Promotion of Tourism and Hotel Industry 3,239,356 - 3,239,356
Child Safety 110,712 - 110,712
Justice Administration 56,887 - 56,887
Court Technology 27,651 - 27,651
Court Security 32,841 - 32,841
Public Safety 123,730 - 123,730
Other Purposes 359,096 - 359,096

Unrestricted 31,791,785 25,266,288 57,058,073

Total Net Position $ 156,813,363 $ 94,759,563 $ 251,572,926
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 21

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

TOWN OF ADDISON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Program Revenues
Net (Expense)/Revenue and

Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital Grants
and

Contributions
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 10,206,304 $ 770,105 $ 431,455 $ 100 $ (9,004,644) $ - $ (9,004,644)
Public Safety 20,337,267 889,868 195,133 - (19,252,266) - (19,252,266)
Development Services 3,320,919 1,227,095 4,896 - (2,088,928) - (2,088,928)
Streets 8,326,816 505,545 - - (7,821,271) - (7,821,271)
Parks and Recreation 6,784,214 34,914 2,598 - (6,746,702) - (6,746,702)
Visitor Services 4,310,828 286,892 - - (4,023,936) - (4,023,936)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,153,845 - - - (2,153,845) - (2,153,845)

Total Governmental Activities 55,440,193 3,714,419 634,082 100 (51,091,592) - (51,091,592)
Business-Type Activities:

Airport 6,893,786 5,392,936 207,000 1,224,219 - (69,631) (69,631)
Utilities 12,361,224 12,818,071 - 107,991 - 564,838 564,838
Stormwater 1,361,880 2,322,350 - 26,015 - 986,485 986,485

Total Business-Type Activities 20,616,890 20,533,357 207,000 1,358,225 - 1,481,692 1,481,692

Total Primary Government $ 76,057,083 $ 24,247,776 $ 841,082 $ 1,358,325 (51,091,592) 1,481,692 (49,609,900)

General Revenues
Taxes

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes 27,005,415 - 27,005,415
Sales Taxes 15,036,200 - 15,036,200
Franchise Taxes 2,227,367 - 2,227,367
Hotel/Motel Taxes 3,232,320 - 3,232,320

Interest on Investments 1,116,915 569,513 1,686,428
Gain on Sale of Capital Assets 21,503 24,005 45,508
Miscellaneous 207,898 31,014 238,912

Transfers (3,790,232) 3,790,232 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 45,057,386 4,414,764 49,472,150

Change in Net Position (6,034,206) 5,896,456 (137,750)

NET POSITION, Beginning of Year 162,847,569 88,863,107 251,710,676

NET POSITION, End of Year $ 156,813,363 $ 94,759,563 $ 251,572,926

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

22

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

General Fund Hotel

General
Obligation Debt

Service
Capital Project

Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 21,321,781 $ 3,141,320 $ 31,518 $ 50,059,180 $ 3,296,694 $ 77,850,493
Receivables:

Ad Valorem Taxes, Including Interest and Penalties, Net 232,414 - 88,393 3,585 13,810 338,202
Non-Property Taxes 2,377,085 143,398 - - - 2,520,483
Franchise Fees 278,667 - - - - 278,667
Service Fees, Net 147,331 - - - - 147,331
Ambulance, Net 221,672 - - - - 221,672
Interest 32,605 4,705 34 61,997 4,967 104,308
Intergovernmental - - - 160,919 4,760 165,679
Other 44,458 62 - 109,577 - 154,097
Due from Other Funds - - - 615,000 - 615,000

Prepaid Items 60,668 - - - - 60,668
Inventories, At Cost 20,946 - - - - 20,946

Total Assets $ 24,737,627 $ 3,289,485 $ 119,945 $ 51,010,258 $ 3,320,231 $ 82,477,546

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
  AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 2,796,258 $ 139,851 $ 25,217 $ 1,438,328 $ 200,589 $ 4,600,243
Intergovernmental Payable 84,729 - - - - 84,729
Customer Deposits - 375 - - - 375
Unearned Revenue - - - - 463,010 463,010

Total Liabilities 2,880,987 140,226 25,217 1,438,328 663,599 5,148,357
Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Unavailable Resources 1,722,201 - 88,393 3,585 13,810 1,827,989
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,722,201 - 88,393 3,585 13,810 1,827,989

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable

Inventories 20,946 - - - - 20,946
Prepaid Items 60,668 - - - - 60,668

Restricted
Debt Service - - 6,335 - - 6,335
Promotion of Tourism and Hotel Industry - 3,149,259 - - - 3,149,259
Capital Projects - - - 39,199,567 - 39,199,567
Child Safety - - - - 110,712 110,712
Justice Administration - - - - 27,994 27,994
Court Technology - - - - 27,651 27,651
Court Security - - - - 32,841 32,841
Public Safety - - - - 115,696 115,696
Governmental Public Education - - - - 359,096 359,096

Committed
Capital  Projects - - - 10,368,778 - 10,368,778
Economic Development - - - - 1,968,832 1,968,832

Unassigned 20,052,825 - - - - 20,052,825
Total Fund Balance 20,134,439 3,149,259 6,335 49,568,345 2,642,822 75,501,200
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
 and Fund Balance $ 24,737,627 $ 3,289,485 $ 119,945 $ 51,010,258 $ 3,320,231 $ 82,477,546

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
23

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

TOWN OF ADDISON
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  $  75,501,200 

The Town uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities such as replacement of
capital assets and information technology to appropriate functions in other funds. A portion of the assets
and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the government-wide
statement of net position. The effect of this consolidation is to increase net position.  13,034,118 

Capital assets used in governmental activities, including infrastructure and developer contributions,
are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in fund financial statements. Capital assets
of $165,721,759, net of accumulated depreciation of $140,654,112, exclusive of the capital assets of
internal service funds with a net carrying value of $6,233,615, included above, increased net position in
the government-wide financial statements.  165,721,759 

Investment in Joint Venture is not financial resources and is not reported in the fund financial
statements.  Investment in Joint Venture increased net position in the government-wide financial statements.  809,253 

Deferred losses on refundings of debt have been reflected net of amortization in the government-wide
financial statements.  1,137,575 

Bonds payable, contractual obligations, and related premium and discount amounts have
not been included in the fund financial statements. (91,952,110)

Accrued liabilities for compensated absences have not been reflected in the fund financial statements. (1,198,904)

Total OPEB liability is not reflected in the fund financial statements. (4,177,274)

Deferred outflows on OPEB, net of amortization, are not reflected in fund financial statements  507,970 

Deferred inflows on OPEB, net of amortization, are not reflected in fund financial statements (168,303)

Deferred outflows on pension costs, net of amortization, are not reflected in fund financial statements  2,784,828 

Deferred inflows on pension costs, net of amortization, are not reflected in fund financial statements (3,856,173)

Net pension liability is not reflected in fund financial statements (2,820,886)

Interest payable on outstanding debt is accrued in the government-wide financial statements, whereas
in the fund financial statements an interest expenditure is reported when due. The effect of recording
accrued interest is to decrease net position. (337,679)

Revenue from property taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees, court bonds, ambulance billing, and
intergovernmental grants is a deferred inflow in the fund financial statements until it is considered 
available to finance current expenditures, but such revenues are recognized when assessed, net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts, in the government-wide statements.  1,827,989 

Net Position of Governmental Activities  $  156,813,363 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

24

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended September 30, 2020

General Fund Hotel

General
Obligation Debt

Service
Capital Project

Fund

Non-Major
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 18,617,246 $ - $ 6,881,533 $ 285,615 $ 1,092,347 $ 26,876,741
Non-Property Taxes 15,191,223 3,240,946 - - - 18,432,169
Franchise Fees 2,176,562 - - - 50,805 2,227,367
Licenses and Permits 1,183,285 - - - - 1,183,285
Intergovernmental - - - - 471,145 471,145
Service Fees 1,842,055 107,030 - 160,919 47,043 2,157,047
Fines and Forfeitures 227,997 - - - 35,149 263,146
Earnings on Investments 402,873 57,131 19,601 592,164 45,146 1,116,915
Rental Charges 9,252 260,749 - - - 270,001
Recycling Proceeds 162 - - - - 162
Other 147,260 41,287 - 109,577 8,023 306,147
Total Revenues 39,797,915 3,707,143 6,901,134 1,148,275 1,749,658 53,304,125

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government 8,784,547 - 7,152 - 154,602 8,946,301
Public Safety 19,170,964 - - - 44,946 19,215,910
Development Services 1,501,596 - - - - 1,501,596
Streets 1,799,513 - - - - 1,799,513
Parks and Recreation 5,407,703 - - - - 5,407,703
Visitor Services - 3,622,979 - - - 3,622,979
Municipal Court - - - - 19,400 19,400
Economic Development - - - - 1,647,246 1,647,246

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - 4,105,000 - - 4,105,000
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - 2,915,428 - - 2,915,428

Capital Projects:
Engineering and Contractual Services - - - 1,780,857 - 1,780,857
Construction and Equipment - - - 6,792,067 - 6,792,067

Total Expenditures 36,664,323 3,622,979 7,027,580 8,572,924 1,866,194 57,754,000

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 3,133,592 84,164 (126,446) (7,424,649) (116,536) (4,449,875)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Transfers In - - - 3,608,900 384,000 3,992,900
Transfers Out (3,608,900) (384,000) - - - (3,992,900)
Proceeds on Asset Sales 21,503 - - - - 21,503
Proceeds from Debt Issuance or Refunding - - 13,205,000 30,535,000 - 43,740,000
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent - - (13,090,212) - - (13,090,212)
Premium on Issuance - - - 2,829,802 - 2,829,802
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (3,587,397) (384,000) 114,788 36,973,702 384,000 33,501,093

Net Change in Fund Balance (453,805) (299,836) (11,658) 29,549,053 267,464 29,051,218

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 20,588,244 3,449,095 17,993 20,019,292 2,375,358 46,449,982

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 20,134,439 $ 3,149,259 $ 6,335 $ 49,568,345 $ 2,642,822 $ 75,501,200

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

25

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

TOWN OF ADDISON
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds  $  29,051,218 

The Town uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities such as replacement of
capital assets and information technology to appropriate functions in other funds. A portion of the
revenues and expenses of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
government-wide statement of activities. The effect of this consolidation is to increase net position.  508,485 

Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they are shown as
increases in capital assets in the government-wide financial statements. The effect of removing the capital
outlays is to increase net position.  6,925,278 

Capital asset donations are not recognized in fund financial statements.  100 

Losses on disposals of capital assets are not recognized in fund financial statements. (180,400)

Capital assets purchased with governmental bonds and contributed to enterprise funds are not recognized
in fund financial statements.  The government-wide statement of activities will reflect a transfer out. (3,790,232)

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not require the use
of current financial resources. The effect of recording the current year's depreciation is to decrease
net position.  This amount excludes $1,090,551 depreciation in the internal service funds. (8,036,170)

The Town's share of net loss from Investment in Joint Venture is not reflected in fund financials. (88,149)

The issuance of long term debt increases the current financial resources of governmental funds while
the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds, but both have no effect on net position. The amortization of prepaid insurance 
associated with the issuance of long-term debt, bond premiums, bond discounts, and deferred 
gain/loss on refunding of long term debts is reported in the statement of activities but does not require 
the use of current financial resources. Therefore the effect of the amortization of these various items are
not reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance. This amount 
represents the increase in net position of the following:

 Bond issuances (46,567,002)
Bond repayments  17,195,212 
Amortization  677,749 (28,694,041)

The change in compensated absences liability is not shown in the fund financial statements. The net
effect of the current year's increase in liability is to decrease net position. (280,342)

The current year increase in the total OPEB liability of $461,443, amortization of deferred inflows and
and outflows on OPEB of $268,417 are not shown in the fund financial statements.  The effect of recording 
these amounts is to decrease net position. (193,026)

Interest is accrued on outstanding debt in the government-wide financial statements, whereas in the
fund financial statements an interest expenditure is reported when due. The effect of recording the
increase in accrued interest is to decrease net position. (37,654)

Decrease in pension liability of $8,085,766 and amortization of deferred inflows and outflows on pensions
of ($9,175,530), decrease net position by increasing the pension expense in each function. (1,089,764)

Revenue from property taxes, sales taxes, hotel taxes, franchise fees, court bonds, ambulance billing,
alarm billing, and intergovernmental grants not recognized in fund financial statements on the modified
accrual basis is recognized on the accrual basis in the government-wide financial statements. (129,509)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities  $ (6,034,206)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

26

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES
Taxes:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Current $ 18,781,674 $ 18,781,674 $ 18,925,819 $ 144,145
Delinquent (70,000) (70,000) (356,413) (286,413)
Penalties and Interest 40,500 40,500 47,840 7,340

Total Ad Valorem 18,752,174 18,752,174 18,617,246 (134,928)

Non-Property Taxes:
Sales Tax 13,700,000 13,700,000 14,302,624 602,624
Alcoholic Beverage Tax 1,140,000 1,140,000 888,599 (251,401)

Total Non-Property Taxes 14,840,000 14,840,000 15,191,223 351,223
Total Taxes 33,592,174 33,592,174 33,808,469 216,295

Franchise Fees:
Electric Franchise 1,560,000 1,560,000 1,459,652 (100,348)
Gas Franchise 216,600 216,600 204,919 (11,681)
Telephone Franchise 400,000 400,000 316,471 (83,529)
Cable Franchise 150,000 150,000 196,520 46,520
Street Rental Franchise 5,500 5,500 (1,000) (6,500)
Total Franchise Fees 2,332,100 2,332,100 2,176,562 (155,538)

Licenses and Permits:
Business Licenses and Permits 165,700 165,700 110,964 (54,736)
Building and Construction Permits 574,500 674,500 1,072,321 397,821
Total Licenses and Permits 740,200 840,200 1,183,285 343,085

Service Fees:
General Government - - 20 20
Public Safety 1,003,400 1,003,400 892,713 (110,687)
Urban Development 300 300 1,950 1,650
Streets and Sanitation 376,100 376,100 395,968 19,868
Recreation 70,300 70,300 34,914 (35,386)
Interfund 516,490 516,490 516,490 -
Total Service Fees 1,966,590 1,966,590 1,842,055 (124,535)

Fines and Forfeitures 352,000 352,000 227,997 (124,003)

Earnings on Investments 100,000 100,000 402,873 302,873

Rental Charges 6,600 6,600 9,252 2,652

Recycling Proceeds 3,000 3,000 162 (2,838)

Other 1,000 1,000 147,260 146,260

Total Revenues $ 39,093,664 $ 39,193,664 $ 39,797,915 $ 604,251

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
27

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

EXPENDITURES
General Government:
City Secretary:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 122,583 122,583 118,991 3,592
Supplies 20,700 20,700 2,676 18,024
Contractual Services 64,500 64,500 51,391 13,109

Total City Secretary 207,783 207,783 173,058 34,725

City Manager's Office:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,061,103 1,061,103 1,093,193 (32,090)
Supplies 23,893 23,893 24,734 (841)
Maintenance and Materials 40,274 40,274 36,945 3,329
Contractual Services 110,333 110,333 79,056 31,277
Capital Replacement 11,396 11,396 11,396 -

Total City Manager's Office 1,246,999 1,246,999 1,245,324 1,675

Financial and Strategic Services:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,344,127 1,304,127 1,117,264 186,863
Supplies 18,289 18,289 28,426 (10,137)
Maintenance and Materials 37,100 37,100 29,907 7,193
Contractual Services 420,396 460,396 620,966 (160,570)
Capital Replacement 29,917 29,917 29,917 -

Total Financial and Strategic Services 1,849,829 1,849,829 1,826,480 23,349

General Services:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 509,478 509,478 483,227 26,251
Supplies 21,443 21,443 19,011 2,432
Maintenance and Materials 95,649 95,649 91,374 4,275
Contractual Services 114,643 114,643 63,520 51,123
Capital Replacement 24,982 24,982 24,982 -

Total General Services 766,195 766,195 682,114 84,081

Municipal Court:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 529,608 529,608 494,218 35,390
Supplies 12,088 12,088 7,116 4,972
Maintenance and Materials 74,322 74,322 38,523 35,799
Contractual Services 94,533 94,533 78,225 16,308
Capital Replacement 29,012 29,012 29,012 -

Total Municipal Court 739,563 739,563 647,094 92,469

Human Resources:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 504,112 504,112 499,045 5,067
Supplies 7,293 7,293 7,967 (674)
Maintenance and Materials 774 774 1,065 (291)
Contractual Services 191,747 191,747 124,030 67,717
Capital Replacement 9,281 9,281 9,281 -

Total Human Resources 713,207 713,207 641,388 71,819

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
28

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Information Technology:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,138,212 1,138,212 1,152,693 (14,481)
Supplies 34,293 34,293 42,806 (8,513)
Maintenance and Materials 887,000 887,000 608,943 278,057
Contractual Services 130,426 130,426 70,418 60,008
Capital Replacement 30,806 30,806 30,806 -

Total Information Technology 2,220,737 2,220,737 1,905,666 315,071

Combined Services:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 7,642 7,642 68,166 (60,524)
Supplies 47,000 47,000 30,060 16,940
CS Maintenance and Materials 3,040 3,040 - 3,040
Contractual Services 1,330,911 1,330,911 1,225,408 105,503

Total Combined Services 1,388,593 1,388,593 1,323,634 64,959

City Council Special Projects:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 29,483 29,483 27,487 1,996
Supplies 17,500 17,500 9,069 8,431
Contractual Services 301,991 301,991 300,396 1,595
Capital Replacement 2,837 2,837 2,837 -

Total City Council Special Projects 351,811 351,811 339,789 12,022
Total General Government 9,484,717 9,484,717 8,784,547 700,170

Public Safety:
Police:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 8,059,429 8,059,429 7,579,486 479,943
Supplies 330,781 330,781 171,170 159,611
Maintenance and Materials 250,775 250,775 313,669 (62,894)
Contractual Services 705,684 705,684 605,872 99,812
Capital Replacement 641,719 641,719 641,719 -
Capital Outlay - - 6,129 (6,129)

Total Police 9,988,388 9,988,388 9,318,045 670,343

Emergency Communications:
Maintenance and Materials 52,752 52,752 52,732 20
Contractual Services 1,379,436 1,379,436 1,307,731 71,705

Total Emergency Communications 1,432,188 1,432,188 1,360,463 71,725

Fire:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 7,071,957 7,171,957 7,332,360 (160,403)
Supplies 262,629 264,439 245,831 18,608
Maintenance and Materials 267,392 267,392 223,065 44,327
Contractual Services 368,472 366,662 299,635 67,027
Capital Replacement 391,565 391,565 391,565 -

Total Fire 8,362,015 8,462,015 8,492,456 (30,441)
Total Public Safety 19,782,591 19,882,591 19,170,964 711,627

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
29

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
Development Services:
Development Services:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,285,120 1,285,120 1,255,911 29,209
Supplies 36,599 36,599 43,784 (7,185)
Maintenance and Materials 13,807 13,807 30,593 (16,786)
Contractual Services 223,587 223,587 119,921 103,666
Capital Replacement 32,787 32,787 32,787 -
Capital Outlay 35,000 35,000 18,600 16,400

Total Development Services 1,626,900 1,626,900 1,501,596 125,304
Streets:
Streets:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 550,129 550,129 475,011 75,118
Supplies 43,615 43,615 35,619 7,996
Maintenance and Materials 784,942 784,942 558,856 226,086
Contractual Services 778,124 778,124 666,203 111,921
Capital Replacement 63,824 63,824 63,824 -

Total Streets 2,220,634 2,220,634 1,799,513 421,121
Parks and Recreation:
Parks:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,966,457 1,966,457 1,629,860 336,597
Supplies 346,303 346,303 284,140 62,163
Maintenance and Materials 736,913 736,913 713,891 23,022
Contractual Services 873,486 873,486 1,028,749 (155,263)
Capital Replacement 83,386 83,386 83,084 302
Capital Outlay 38,000 38,000 33,060 4,940

Total Parks 4,044,545 4,044,545 3,772,784 271,761

Recreation:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 1,028,870 1,028,870 936,311 92,559
Supplies 180,971 169,371 120,167 49,204
Maintenance and Materials 208,628 220,228 196,455 23,773
Contractual Services 421,679 421,679 294,002 127,677
Capital Replacement 59,161 59,161 59,161 -
Capital Outlay - - 28,823 (28,823)

Total Recreation 1,899,309 1,899,309 1,634,919 264,390
Total Parks and Recreation 5,943,854 5,943,854 5,407,703 536,151

Total Expenditures 39,058,696 39,158,696 36,664,323 2,494,373
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
 over expenditures 34,968 34,968 3,133,592 3,098,624

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Transfers Out (4,060,400) (4,060,400) (3,608,900) 451,500
Proceeds on Asset Sales - - 21,503 21,503

Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) (4,060,400) (4,060,400) (3,587,397) 473,003

Net Change in Fund Balance (4,025,432) (4,025,432) (453,805) 3,571,627

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 20,588,244 20,588,244 20,588,244 -

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 16,562,812 $ 16,562,812 $ 20,134,439 $ 3,571,627

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
30

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Hotel Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Hotel/Motel Occupancy Taxes $ 5,540,000 $ 5,540,000 $ 3,240,946 $ (2,299,054)
Proceeds from Special Events and Service Fees 1,297,500 1,297,500 107,030 (1,190,470)
Earnings on Investments 25,000 25,000 57,131 32,131
Rental Charges 627,000 627,000 260,749 (366,251)
Other 80,000 80,000 41,287 (38,713)
Total Revenues 7,569,500 7,569,500 3,707,143 (3,862,357)

EXPENDITURES:
Conference Centre 1,152,735 1,152,735 796,479 356,256
Marketing 1,134,939 1,134,939 618,006 516,933
Special Events 3,810,921 3,810,921 1,369,326 2,441,595
Performing Arts 926,938 960,628 783,340 177,288
General Hotel Operations 144,173 144,173 55,828 88,345
Total Expenditures 7,169,706 7,203,396 3,622,979 3,580,417

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
 over Expenditures 399,794 366,104 84,164 (281,940)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Transfer to Economic Development Fund (768,000) (768,000) (384,000) 384,000

Net Change in Fund Balance (368,206) (401,896) (299,836) 102,060

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,449,095 3,449,095 3,449,095 -

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 3,080,889 $ 3,047,199 $ 3,149,259 $ 102,060

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

31

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2020

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities
Airport Utility Stormwater Total Internal Service

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Pooled Cash and Investments $ 8,891,825 $ 12,259,250 $ 8,464,841 $ 29,615,916 $ 7,614,244
Interest Receivable 14,310 17,105 12,228 43,643 10,687
Accounts Receivable, Net 152,595 2,183,620 326,221 2,662,436 -

Total Current Assets 9,058,730 14,459,975 8,803,290 32,321,995 7,624,931

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:

Land 15,633,373 1,625,357 - 17,258,730 -
Construction in Progress 7,333,409 3,603,763 2,250,373 13,187,545 543,523
Buildings 2,600,302 6,923,788 - 9,524,090 -
Improvements other than Buildings 58,411,029 53,207,805 2,452,029 114,070,863 -
Machinery and Equipment 2,345,171 2,455,852 69,559 4,870,582 13,889,799
Accumulated Depreciation (33,846,604) (31,845,484) (205,985) (65,898,073) (8,199,707)

Total Capital Assets, Net of
 Accumulated Depreciation 52,476,680 35,971,081 4,565,976 93,013,737 6,233,615

Investment in Joint Venture - 6,393,505 - 6,393,505 -
Total Assets 61,535,410 56,824,561 13,369,266 131,729,237 13,858,546

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Charges on Refundings - 339,315 - 339,315 -
Deferred Outflows on Pensions - 181,366 - 181,366 -
Deferred Outflows on OPEB 7,727 32,964 3,449 44,140 -

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 7,727 553,645 3,449 564,821 -

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 1,259,467 $ 839,624 $ 128,941 $ 2,228,032 $ 267,311
Accrued Interest Payable 43,109 83,149 30,421 156,679 -
Current Compensated Absences Payable 5,835 19,994 - 25,829 -
Current Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities 432,292 870,000 305,000 1,607,292 -
Due to Other Funds 615,000 - - 615,000 -
Customer Deposits 313,443 1,116,369 - 1,429,812 -

Total Current Liabilities 2,669,146 2,929,136 464,362 6,062,644 267,311

Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities, Net of Current Portion 8,941,287 17,597,174 5,251,873 31,790,334 -

Total Liabilities 11,610,433 20,526,310 5,716,235 37,852,978 267,311

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred Inflows on Pensions - 224,001 - 224,001 -
Deferred Inflows on OPEB 2,560 10,973 1,100 14,633 -

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,560 234,974 1,100 238,634 -

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 45,212,538 24,341,637 (60,900) 69,493,275 6,233,615
Unrestricted 4,717,606 12,275,285 7,716,280 24,709,171 7,357,620

Total Net Position $ 49,930,144 $ 36,616,922 $ 7,655,380 $ 94,202,446 $ 13,591,235

Reconciliation to business-type activities:
 Some amounts reported for business-type activities in
 the Statement of Net Position are different because
 certain internal service balances are included
 with business-type activities. $ 557,117

Net Position of business type activities $ 94,759,563

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

32

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Year ended September 30, 2020

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities

Airport Utility Stormwater Total Internal Service

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water $ - $ 7,460,287 $ - $ 7,460,287 $ -
Sewer - 5,388,939 - 5,388,939 -
Drainage - - 2,320,434 2,320,434 -
Penalties - 36,448 - 36,448 -
Water and Sewer Taps and Other Fees - 13,292 1,916 15,208 -
Fuel Flowage Fees 867,778 - - 867,778 -
Customs Agent Fees 103,234 - - 103,234 -
Rental Charges 4,421,924 - - 4,421,924 -
Other Income 230,835 7,179 - 238,014 93,496
Department Contributions - - - - 2,044,863

Total Operating Revenues 5,623,771 12,906,145 2,322,350 20,852,266 2,138,359

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 356,383 1,957,108 275,450 2,588,941 -
Supplies 40,794 214,534 13,240 268,568 52,704
Maintenance and Materials 3,129,676 524,182 32,637 3,686,495 14,719
Contractual Services 893,316 904,231 720,472 2,518,019 23,073
Water Purchases - 3,529,753 - 3,529,753 -
Wastewater Purchases - 3,426,935 - 3,426,935 -
Total Operating Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 4,420,169 10,556,743 1,041,799 16,018,711 90,496
Depreciation 2,354,290 1,459,811 92,500 3,906,601 1,090,551

Total Operating Expenses 6,774,459 12,016,554 1,134,299 19,925,312 1,181,047

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (1,150,688) 889,591 1,188,051 926,954 957,312

NON-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES):
Investment Income 211,184 221,268 137,061 569,513 74
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 15,732 8,273 - 24,005 93,835
Gain/(Loss) on Joint Venture - (80,895) - (80,895) -
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges (335,010) (671,723) (227,581) (1,234,314) -

Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) (108,094) (523,077) (90,520) (721,691) 93,909

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
 AND CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS (1,258,782) 366,514 1,097,531 205,263 1,051,221

Capital Grants and Contributions 1,224,219 2,992,508 931,730 5,148,457 -
Transfers In 73,338 86,956 - 160,294 -
Transfers Out - - - - (160,294)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 38,775 3,445,978 2,029,261 5,514,014 890,927

Net Position at Beginning of Year 49,891,369 33,170,944 5,626,119 88,688,432 12,700,308

Net Position at End of Year $ 49,930,144 $ 36,616,922 $ 7,655,380 $ 94,202,446 $ 13,591,235

Reconciliation to business-type activities:
 Change in net position of enterprise funds $ 5,514,014

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in
the Statement of Net Position are different because
certain internal service balances are included with
business-type activities. 382,442

Change in net position of business type activities $ 5,896,456

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
33

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities
Airport Utility Stormwater Total Internal Service

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Customers  $  5,704,977  $  12,892,291  $  2,298,213  $  20,895,481  $  2,138,359 
Payments to Suppliers (4,124,294) (8,660,564) (977,691) (13,762,549) (87,044)
Payments to Employees for Services (350,692) (1,931,811) (274,190) (2,556,693)  - 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  1,229,991  2,299,916  1,046,332  4,576,239  2,051,315 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (7,751,233) (1,255,618) (689,288) (9,696,139) (1,764,497)
Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt (562,500) (840,000) (295,000) (1,697,500)  - 
Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid on Long-Term Debt (366,349) (773,416) (253,174) (1,392,939)  - 
Principal Paid on Interfund Loan for Capital Purchase (85,000)  - - (85,000)  - 
Proceeds from Interfund Loan for Capital Purchase  700,000  - -  700,000  - 
Proceeds from Capital Grant  1,224,219  - -  1,224,219  - 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets  15,732  8,740 - 24,472  93,835 
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related
 Financing Activities (6,825,131) (2,860,294) (1,237,462) (10,922,887) (1,670,662)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest on Cash and Investments  238,176  242,831  173,132  654,139  9,792 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities  238,176  242,831  173,132  654,139  9,792 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (5,356,964) (317,547) (17,998) (5,692,509)  390,445 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1  14,248,789  12,576,797  8,482,839  35,308,425  7,223,799 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30  $  8,891,825  $  12,259,250  $  8,464,841  $  29,615,916  $  7,614,244 

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss)
 to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss)  $ (1,150,688)  $  889,591  $  1,188,051  $  926,954  $  957,312 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss) to Net
 Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities:

 Depreciation  2,354,290  1,459,811  92,500  3,906,601  1,090,551 
 Change in Assets, Liabilities, and Deferred Items:

 (Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivables  97,880 (36,560) (24,137)  37,183  - 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Prepaid Items  - -  - -  - 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (57,754) (62,075) (211,342) (331,171)  3,452 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Customer Deposits (16,674)  22,706 - 6,032  - 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Outflows on Pensions - 446,132 - 446,132  - 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Outflows on OPEB (3,794) (16,261) (1,626) (21,681)  - 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows on Pensions - 217,508 - 217,508  - 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows on OPEB (291) (1,245) (123) (1,659)  - 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Net Pension Liability - (649,784) - (649,784)  - 
 Increase/(Decrease) in Total OPEB Liability  7,022  30,093  3,009  40,124  - 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  $  1,229,991  $  2,299,916  $  1,046,332  $  4,576,239  $  2,051,315 

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital Grants and Contributions  $ - $  2,992,508  $  931,730  $  3,924,238  $  - 
Capital Assets in Accounts Payable  960,402  728,386  88,129  1,776,917  262,041 
Transfers of Capital Assets  73,338  86,956 - 160,294 (160,294)
Gain/(Loss) of Joint Venture - (80,895) - (80,895)  - 
Net Noncash Items from Capital and Related
 Financing Activities  $  1,033,740  $  3,726,955  $  1,019,859  $  5,780,554  $  101,747 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

34

DRAFT



DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Addison, Texas (“Town”), relating to the funds included in the
accompanying financial statements, conform to the generally accepted accounting principles applicable to state
and local governments.  The following represent the more significant accounting and reporting policies and
practices used by the Town.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal corporation incorporated on June 15, 1953, under the Constitution of the State of Texas
(Home Rule Amendment).  The Town’s charter was last amended in November 2010.  The Town operates as a
Council-Manager form of government and provides such services as are authorized by its charter to advance the
welfare, health, comfort, safety, and convenience of the Town and its inhabitants.

The Town is a financial reporting entity as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity,” as
amended by GASB Statement No. 61 “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus: an amendment of GASB
Standards No. 14 and No. 34.”  As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the Town’s
financial statements include all required activities relating to the Town and its operations.  In accordance with the
standards, the Town does not have component units requiring inclusion.

B. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both government-wide financial statements (based on the Town as a
whole) and fund financial statements.  Both sets of financial statements classify activities as either governmental
activities, which are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, or business-type activities, which rely on
fees and charges for support.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are clearly identifiable with a specific function.  Program
revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds.  Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 
“Measurement focus” refers to what is being measured, and “basis of accounting” refers to the timing of revenue
and expenditure recognition in financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.  Revenues are reported when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year in which they
are levied.

The governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded
when susceptible to accrual (i.e., both measurable and available).  "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  

35

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within thirty (30) days after year-end.  Expenditures
are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, which are recorded when due, and compensated absences, which are recorded when payable
from currently available financial resources. 

Ad Valorem (property), sales, and hotel taxes, as well as franchise fees, recorded in the General Fund and Ad
Valorem tax revenues recorded in the Economic Development Fund, General Obligation Debt Service Fund and
Capital Project Fund are recognized under the susceptible to accrual concept.  Licenses and permits, charges for
services (except ambulance services), fines and forfeitures (except court warrants), and miscellaneous revenues
(except earnings on investments) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.  Ambulance services, court warrants and investment earnings are recorded as
earned since they are measurable and available.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Town’s airport and utility functions and
various other functions of the Town, and charges of the internal service funds to the Airport and Utility funds. 
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating expenses of the Town’s enterprise funds
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:  

General Fund – The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with
government which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund.  Revenues which are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to other funds are accounted for in
this fund.

Hotel Fund – The Hotel Fund is used to account for tax revenues received from local hotels.  Expenditures
must fall within the guidelines set forth in the Texas Hotel Occupancy Tax Act (Article 1269: Vernon’s Texas
Civil Statutes).

General Obligation Debt Service Fund – The General Obligation Debt Service Fund accounts for the
accumulation of resources to be used for the payment of principal and interest on the general obligation
bonded debt of the Town.

Capital Projects Fund – The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources related to the
acquisition, construction, or improvements of major capital assets.

36

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Municipal Court Fund – The Municipal Court Fund accounts for the Town’s court building security and
technology fees that are generated from court citation fines.  According to state law, the revenue generated
from these fees may only be spent on the municipal court function.

Public Safety Fund – The Public Safety Fund accounts for awards of monies or property by the courts relating
to cases that involve the Addison Police Department.  

Advanced Funding Grant Fund – The Advanced Funding Grant Fund accounts for grant monies that are
received prior to the related expenditure, and therefore the fund may carry a balance from year to year if the
Town does not expend the monies within the fiscal year.

Economic Development Fund – The Economic Development Fund accumulates resources to support efforts
that attract commercial enterprises to Addison and encourage existing businesses to remain in Addison.

Reimbursement Grant Fund – The Reimbursement Grant Fund accounts for expenditures for which the Town
expects to be reimbursed.  For any reimbursements not received prior to the fiscal year end, the Town will
record a receivable.  Amounts not received within 30 days of the fiscal year end are reported as deferred
revenue.

PEG Fees Fund - The PEG Fees Fund was created to collect state restricted public, educational, and
government access channels, or PEG, fees and account for their use.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Airport Fund – The Airport Fund accounts for all revenue generated by the Town’s general aviation airport. 
The Town is required to spend this revenue on airport functions.  The airport’s operating, maintenance, and
capital expenses are supported solely by airport income.

Utility Fund – The Utility Fund provides water and sewer services to the residents and businesses of the Town.
 All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to,
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing.

Stormwater Fund - The Town's Stormwater Fund accounts for maintenance and improvements to Town
stormwater infrastructure. It is financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises,
where costs of providing the services to the public are financed primarily through user charges. All operating,
maintenance, and capital expenses are supported solely by the approved user fees.

Additionally, the Town reports the following internal service funds: 

Capital Replacement Fund – The Capital Replacement Fund is used to accumulate sufficient resources to
replace existing capital equipment that have reached or exceeded their useful lives.  Resources are acquired
through charges to operating departments in the funds.  The charges are calculated using a straight-line
amortization of each piece of equipment based upon the item’s expected life.  The funds are used to finance
replacement equipment when needed.

Information Technology Replacement Fund – The Information Technology Replacement Fund is used to
accumulate sufficient resources to replace existing information technology systems.  Resources are acquired
through charges to operating departments in the funds.  The charges are calculated using a straight-line
amortization of each component of a system based upon the component’s expected life.  The funds are used
to finance replacement equipment when needed.

37

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources, and Net Position or Equity

1) Cash and Investments

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  To maximize investment
opportunities, all funds participate in a pooling of cash and investments.

Statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities;
obligations of the State of Texas and related agencies; obligations of state, agencies, counties, cities and other
political subdivisions of any state rated A or above by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or Moody’s Investors
Service; certificates of deposit issued by state or national banks and savings banks domiciled in Texas; fully
collateralized direct repurchase agreements; prime domestic banker’s acceptances (BA’s); commercial paper with
a stated maturity of 180 days or less and a rating of not less than A-1+ or its equivalent; and state or local
government investment pools. 

Investments in debt securities and money market mutual funds for the Town are reported at fair value. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to  transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The Town considers quoted market price at September 30, 2020 to
be the fair value of investments. Investments in nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are carried at cost. The
government investment pools, TexPool, TexSTAR, and LOGIC operate in accordance with state laws and
regulations. Investments in external pools are carried at either net asset value or amortized cost, as determined by
each pool's individual investment valuation method and whether there is a readily determinable fair value of the
pool as of the Town's fiscal year end. In instances where pools transact at amortized cost, such as TexPool, no
readily determinable fair value is deemed available.

2) Receivables and Payables

All receivables for the Town are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles.  The allowances are based on
historical collections data and evaluated periodically.  

The Town’s property tax lien is levied each October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all
real and business personal property located in the Town.  Values are assessed at 100% of the estimated market
value.  Taxes are due by January 31 following the October 1 levy date and are considered delinquent after
January 31 of each year.  Taxes unpaid as of February 1 are subject to penalty and interest as the City Council
provides by ordinance.

3) Inventories and Prepaid Items

In accordance with the consumption method of accounting, both inventories and prepaid items are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories are stated at cost.  Cost is determined for inventories of fuel using the moving-average method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The prepaid items of the Town consist primarily of prepaid
software maintenance agreements, the quarterly payment to Dallas Central Appraisal District for appraisal fees,
and postage.

38

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4) Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, equipment, and improvements.  Improvements include upgrading facilities
other than buildings such as streets or sewers and infrastructure, including pavement, storm sewers, and
right-of-way contributed by developers. Capital expenditures are defined as purchases that meet specific
guidelines as listed below:

 Expected useful life must be three years or more for equipment and ten years or more for improvements.

 Original unit cost of the equipment should be $5,000 or greater and includes all costs enabling the item
into operation, such as freight, installation, and accessories; capital improvements should be $25,000 or
greater.

 The item should not be consumed, unduly altered, or materially reduced in value immediately by use.

The Land and Improvements other than Buildings categories associated with governmental activities include
amounts for infrastructure.  Related accumulated depreciation of Improvements other than Buildings includes
amounts associated with infrastructure.  Subsequently, infrastructure is tracked and reported as a separate
component of general capital assets associated with governmental activities.

The internal service funds may record assets that have an original cost of $5,000 or less if assets are considered
part of an overall system.  Individual items may be retired and replaced as parts of the larger system.

Contributed assets are recorded at acquisition value as of the date donated.  Depreciation of property, plant, and
equipment by major classes is provided by the straight-line method based on the following estimated useful lives
by major class of depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings........................................................................................................................   50 years
Improvements other than Buildings………………………………………………..…….. 20-50 years
Equipment……………………………………………………………….…………………..   3-50 years

Depreciation of current year additions and retirements is computed at one-half the straight-line rate.

5) Compensated Absences

Vacation, holiday, and sick pay costs are charged to operations when taken by the employees of the Town.  In the
event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for all accumulated vacation and holiday days not exceeding two
years’ accumulation.  The amounts of such liabilities have been provided for in the government-wide financial
statements.  No reimbursements upon termination are made for accumulated sick leave; accordingly, no liability
for unused sick leave has been provided.  The liability is computed based on the reimbursable hours at the
employees' rate of pay as of September 30, 2020.  The Town’s liability for compensated absences increased
$281,952 for a total liability of $1,294,054.  

6) Grants and Contributions

Included in capital grants and contributions in the government-wide financial statements is capital developer
donations of $107,991 for Utilities,  $26,015 for Stormwater, and $100 for the General Government.  Capital grants
also includes a $1,224,219 grant to the airport reimbursing a purchase of land.  Operating grants and donations
included $431,455 for CARES grant funding, $195,133 of grant funding for public safety, a $2,598 donation to
Parks and Recreation for plaques, a $4,896 retail food regulatory grant, and $207,000 in grants for Airport
operations.  A total of $894,465 CARES grant was receiveed for general government, and $463,010 was received
in advance and unspent at year-end. This amount is reported as unearned revenue in the grant fund. 

39

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

7) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The Town has the following items that qualify for
reporting in this category.  

 Deferred charges on refundings – A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over
the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

 Pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) contributions after measurement date – These
contributions are deferred and recognized in the following fiscal year.

 Changes in pension and OPEB assumptions - These changes are deferred and recognized over the
estimated average remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions and OPEB
through the pension and OPEB plans  (active and inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of
the measurement period.

 Difference in expected versus actual experience - This difference is deferred and amortized over the
estimated average remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions and OPEB
though the pension and OPEB plans (active and inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of
the measurement period.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future reporting period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The Town has four types of items that qualify for reporting in
this category.  The difference due to changes in OPEB assumptions is deferred and recognized over the
estimated average remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with OPEB through the OPEB plans 
(active and inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.  The difference in
expected and actual pension and OPEB experience is deferred and recognized over the estimated average
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions and OPEB though the pension and OPEB
plans (active and inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.  The difference
between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan is deferred and amortized over the estimated
average remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions the pension plan (active and
inactive employees) determined as of the beginning of the measurement period. In the governmental funds,
unavailable resources are revenues that are earned and measurable but not yet available, and are reported as
deferred inflows of resources.  In the full accrual government-wide statements, the unavailable resources are
recognized as revenue and not deferred.

8) Fund Equity

The Town reports governmental fund balances per GASB 54 definitions as follows:

Nonspendable – Amounts that are not in spendable form or are required to be maintained intact, such as
inventory or prepaid amounts or that are legally or contractually required to remain intact. 

Restricted – Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by external parties, such as
grants, court technology fees, and court building security fees or that are imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed – Amounts whose use is constrained by specific limitations that the Town imposes itself, as
determined through an ordinance passed by the Town Council.  Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the
ordinance remains in place until another ordinance removes or revises the limitation. 

40

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

I.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assigned – Amounts intended to be used for specific purposes.  Intent may be expressed by the governing body
or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.  The City Council has delegated the
CFO or his designee as the official authorized to assign fund balance for a specific purpose as approved by the
fund balance policy.  

Unassigned – Amounts not contained in other classifications that can be used for any purpose.  Only the General
Fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance.  In governmental funds other than the general fund, if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that fund.

Governmental fund balances classified as restricted are balances with constraints placed on the use of resources
by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments. Fund balances classified as
committed can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by the City Council through an
ordinance or resolution. Assigned fund balances are constrained by intent to be used for specific purposes but are
neither restricted nor committed. Assignments are made by Town management based on Council direction.

The Town will utilize funds for expenditures from the most restrictive fund balance first when more than one fund
balance classification is available, with most restrictive being restricted, then committed, then assigned, and lastly 
unassigned.

9) Minimum Fund Balance Policy

It is the desire of the Town to maintain adequate fund balances to maintain liquidity and in anticipation of economic
downturns or natural disasters. The City Council has adopted a financial standard to maintain a General Fund
minimum fund balance of 30 percent of budgeted expenditures, and a minimum fund balance of 25 percent of
budgeted expenditures for all other operating funds.

10) Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources.  Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and the outstanding balances of any borrowing spent for the acquisition, construction or
improvements of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either though the enabling legislation adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

II.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Budget Policy – The City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budget reflected in the financial
statements:

1) Prior to August 1 each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal
year beginning on the following October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means to finance them.

2) Public hearings are conducted where all interested persons’ comments concerning the budget are heard.

3) The budget is legally enacted by the City Council through passage of an ordinance prior to the beginning
of the fiscal year. 

41

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

II.  STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

4) The department level is the legal level of control enacted by the Town Charter.  The Town has also
adopted a budget amendment policy delineating responsibility and authority for the amendment process. 
Transfers between expenditure accounts in one department may occur with the approval of the Chief
Financial Officer.  Transfers between operating departments may occur with the approval of the City
Manager and Chief Financial Officer provided a department’s total budget is not changed by more than
five percent.  Transfers between funds or transfers between departments that change a department’s total
budget by more than five percent must be accomplished by budget amendment approved by the City
Council.  Budget amendments calling for new fund appropriations must also be approved by the City
Council. 

Budgetary control is maintained at the individual expenditure account level by the review of all requisitions
of estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors.  

5) Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  However, the Reimbursement Grant Fund does not
have an adopted budget due to the uncertainty of revenues and expenditures, so no comparison of budget
to actual is presented in the financial statements.  Budgets for the Capital Project funds are normally
established pursuant to the terms of the related bond indentures, that is, project basis.  Accordingly, no
comparison of budget to actual is presented in the financial statements.

Budget Data – The budget amounts presented in the statements reflect original and amended budget amounts. 
The FY2020 budget was amended two times, and the amendments were approved by City Council on May 12,
2020 and September 22, 2020. The May 12th amendment was to allocate additional funds to the Police Property
Room Ventilation Repair project and to the Addison Circle Park Fountains project, as well as allocate funding for
projects approved as part of the 2019 bond program from the 2020 GO Bond Fund. Additionally, this amendment
was to allocate funds from the 2014 Utility Certificates of Obligation Bond Fund to use for the Basin I Sanitary
Sewer Reroute project.  The September 22nd budget amendment appropriated funds for actual employee benefit
elections and salaries in the Fire Department, and to reflect the receipt of bond proceeds and the refunding cost
associated with the 2020 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds. The amendment also added funding for
major projects including the Airport Customs and Border Protection Facility, Belt Line Utility Undergrounding
Project, Belt Line Road 1.5 Project, and Basin I Sewer Improvements.

Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations – For the year ended September 30, 2020, Fire department
expenditures in the General Fund exceeded appropriations by $30,441, mainly due to the employer contributions
for health insurance were underbudgeted and did not reflect actual employee elections. Additionally, the excess of
appropriations for expenditures in other departments in the General Fund were more than enough to cover these
overages, so fund balance was not impacted.  In the General Obligation Debt Service Fund, expenditures
exceeded appropriations by $51,642 due to unbudgeted issuance costs for debt refunding.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds, but all operating encumbrances are liquidated at
year-end.  Only encumbrances for capital project contracts roll forward to the next fiscal year to increase following
year capital budgets.

42

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash and Investments

The Town has six bank accounts: the Operating Account, Controlled Disbursement Account, Payroll Account,
ACH/Wire Account, Benefits Account, and the Addison Airport Account. The Controlled Disbursements and
Payroll accounts are zero-balance accounts.  The ACH/Wire Account is used for all receipts and expenditures
made by ACH or wire transfer.  The Town uses the Operating Account as an operating pool available for all funds. 
Each fund type’s portion of this pool is reported as “Pooled Cash and Investments.”  The other demand accounts
are reported in the same manner. The Addison Airport account is a checking account used by the management
companies at the Airport to cover operational expenses.

The investment policies of the Town are governed by state statutes and an Investment Policy Ordinance adopted
by the City Council. Major provisions of the Town’s investment policy include: responsibility for investments,
authorized investments, bank and security dealer selection and qualifying procedures, safekeeping and custodial
procedures, statement of investment objectives, and investment reporting procedures.

Cash

State statutes require that all deposits in financial institutions be fully collateralized by U.S. Government obligations
or its agencies and instrumentalities or direct obligations of Texas or its agencies or instrumentalities that have a
market value of not less than the principal amount of the deposits. The Town’s deposits were fully insured or
collateralized as required by the state statutes at September 30, 2020. Included in Pooled Cash and Investments
is $5,250 of petty cash. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Town’s deposits, including certificates of deposit,
was a debit balance of $19,285,504. The respective bank balance totaled $19,923,959. In addition, collateral with
a market value of $4,564,376 and unused letters of credit in the amount of $15,543,200 were held by the pledging
financial institution’s account at the Federal Reserve Bank in the Town’s name.

In order to maximize interest earnings, the Town utilizes a controlled disbursement account that allows the Town
to deposit only as much money needed to fund checks presented for payment each day. The amount required is
withdrawn from the operating pool.

External Investment Pools

The Town’s pool investments as of September 30, 2020 were invested in LOGIC, TexPool and TexSTAR (Texas
Short Term Asset Reserve program).

Federated Investors is the full service provider for the TexPool program. As the provider, the responsibilities
include managing the assets, providing participant services, and arranging for all custody and other functions in
support of the operations under a contract with the State Comptroller of Public Accounts. Hilltop Securities, Inc.
(HTS) and JPMorgan Investment Management, Inc. (JPMIM) serve as co-administrators for LOGIC and TexSTAR
under an agreement with its Board of Trustees and Board of Directors, respectively. HTS provides distribution,
administrative, participant support and marketing services. JPMIM provides investment management, custody and
fund accounting services. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. serves as custodian for LOGIC and TexSTAR. 

LOGIC, TexPool and TexSTAR are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as
investment companies. LOGIC, TexPool and TexSTAR are investment pools that have been organized in
conformity with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds
Investment Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code.

The government investment pool TexPool is carried at amortized cost. TexSTAR and LOGIC are carried at net
asset value.

43

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Investments

As of September 30, 2020, the Town held the following investments:

Average
Maturity

Carrying Value (Days)

Certificates of Deposit  $  15,427,940  279 
Commercial Paper  5,997,039  108 
Agency Securities  53,049,461  980 
Total Investment in Securities  74,474,440  773 

LOGIC  28,658,101  1 
TexPool  4,883,234  1 
TexStar  3,202,064  1 
Total Investment in Pools  36,743,399  1 

Total Investments  $  111,217,839  397 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application,” the Town records
investments at fair value. However, for participating interest-earning investment contracts with maturities of one
year or less at time of purchase, the Town reports these investments at amortized cost.  Investments in debt
securities are carried at fair value. Fair value for debt securities is determined using a multi-dimensional relational
model using standard inputs including TRACE reported trades.  Investments in nonnegotiable certificates of
deposits are carried at cost.

Interest Rate Risk – In accordance with its investment policy, the Town manages its exposure to declines in fair
market values by limiting the weighted average days to maturity of its investment portfolio to 24 months (730
days). This means investing operating funds primarily in short-term securities, money market mutual funds or
similar investment pools.

Credit Risk – The reported investments meet the criteria specified in the Town’s investment policy related to the
specific types of instruments presented.

1. Debt obligations with a maturity not to exceed five years from the date of purchase issued by, guaranteed by,
or for which the credit of any of the following Federal Agencies and Instrumentalities is pledged for payment:
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB), Federal Farm Credit Bank
(FFCB), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). The Town’s investments in bonds of U.S.
Agencies were rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service and AAA by Standard and Poor’s. Mortgage-backed
securities may be held as collateral although principal-only and interest-only mortgage-backed securities as
well as all types of collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO) and real estate mortgage investment conduits
(REMICs) are expressly prohibited.

2. Time Certificates of Deposit with a maturity not to exceed three years from the date of purchase, insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or its successor, in depository institutions that have a main
office or a branch in the state of Texas which have been approved by the Town in accordance with its
Investment Policy.  In addition, separate CDs issued by depositories wherever located, bundled together into a
single investment with the full amount of principal and interest of each CD federally insured may be purchased
through a selected depository institution with its main office or branch office in Texas. This depository shall act
as the custodian for the various certificates on behalf of the Town.

44

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

3. Prime commercial paper with an original maturity of one hundred (180) days or less which, at the time of
purchase, is rated at least A-1 by Standard and Poor's, P-1 by Moodys or F1 by Fitch.
 At the time of the purchase, the commercial paper must be rated by at least two of the above stated

ratings agencies at the above stated minimum credit rating.
 If more than two of the above rated agencies rates an issuer, all the rating agencies must rate the

issuer in accordance with the above stated minimum credit criteria.
 If the commercial paper issuer has senior debt* outstanding, the senior debt must be rated by each

service that publishes a rating of the issue at least: A-1 by Moodys, A+ by Standard and Poor's, and
A+ by Fitch.  (*Senior Debt is defined as the most senior secured or unsecured debt of an issuer with
an original maturity exceeding one year)

 If the commercial paper issuer is given a “plus (+) rating”, the maximum maturity of two hundred
seventy days or less will be allowed.

4. State and Local Investment Pools organized under the Interlocal Cooperation Act that meet the requirements
of Chapter 2256 Texas Government Code and have been specifically approved by the CFO and authorized by
the City Council. LOGIC, TexPool and TexSTAR are both currently rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s.

Concentration of Credit Risk – It is the Town’s policy to avoid a concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a
specific issue, or a specific class of securities. The applicable limits on the Town’s investments as of September
30, 2020, are Instrumentality Securities (70%) of which the Town’s portfolio is currently at 47.5%, Certificates of
Deposit (50%) of which the Town’s portfolio is currently at 14%, Commercial Paper (30%) of which the Town's
portfolio is currently at 5.5%, and Local Government Investment Pools (40%) of which the Town’s portfolio is
currently at 33%.  

Fair Value of Assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of inputs that
may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities;
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3 Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of
the assets or liabilities

45

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Recurring Measurements

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying financial
statements measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair hierarchy in which the fair value
measurements fall at September 30, 2020:

Fair Value

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Observable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Investments by fair value level
  Commercial Paper  $  5,997,039  $  -  $  5,997,039  $  - 
  U.S. Agency Securities  53,049,461  -  53,049,461  - 
Total Investment by fair value level  59,046,500  $  -  $  59,046,500  $  - 

Investments measured at net asset value - TexSTAR  3,202,064 
Investments measured at amortized cost - TexPool  4,883,234 
Investments measured at net asset value - LOGIC  28,658,101 
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit  15,427,940 
Total Investments  $  111,217,839 

Certain investments that are measured using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient
have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts included above approximate net asset
value for all related external investment pool balances.

Investments

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the
valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using quoted prices
of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and pricing models, the inputs of
which are market-based or independently sourced market parameters, including, but not limited to, yield curves,
interest rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss projections and cash flows. Such securities are
classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available,
securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy. At September 30, 2020, no investments are held by the
Town meeting the Level 3 hierarchy classification.

Investment in State Investment Pools

During the year, the Town invested in multiple public fund investment pools, including TexSTAR, TexPool and
LOGIC. The fair value of the position of TexSTAR and LOGiC are measured at net asset value, and the fair value
of the position of TexPool is measured at amortized cost. Each pool's governing body is comprised of individuals
who are employees, officers, or elected officials of participants in the funds or who do not have a business
relationship with the fund and are qualified to advise. Investment objective and strategies of the pools are to seek
preservation of principal, liquidity and current income through investment in a diversified portfolio of short-term
marketable securities. Pools offer same day access to investment funds.  The Town can liquidate funds daily
without penalty, and there is no unfunded commitment.

B. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The Town’s property tax is levied on the
assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and business personal property located in the Town.
Assessed values are established by Dallas Central Appraisal District at 100% of the estimated market value and
certified by the Appraisal Review Board. The assessed taxable value for the roll of January 1, 2019, upon which
the fiscal year 2020 levy is based, was $4,819,907,442.

46

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

The Town is permitted by Article XI, Section 5 of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to $2.50 per $100
of assessed valuation for general governmental services including the payment of principal and interest on general
obligation long-term debt. The tax rate for the year ended September 30, 2020 was $.5835 per $100, of which 
$.434117 was allocated for general government and $.149383 was allocated for the payment of principal and
interest on general obligation and certificates of obligation long-term debt. 

Taxes are due by January 31 following the October 1 levy date and are considered delinquent after January 31 of
each year. Taxes unpaid as of February 1 are subject to penalty and interest as the City Council provides by
ordinance. Current tax collections for the year ended September 30, 2020, were 95.31% of the original tax levy. In
Texas, countywide central appraisal districts are required to assess all property within the appraisal district on the
basis of 100% of its appraised value and are prohibited from applying any assessment ratios. The value of
property within the appraisal district must be reviewed every three years; however, the Town may, at its own
expense, require annual reviews of appraised values. The Town may challenge appraised values established by
the appraisal district through various appeals and, if necessary, legal action. Under this arrangement, the Town
continues to set tax rates on Town property.

However, if the effective tax rate, excluding tax rates for retirement of bonds and other contractual obligations,
adjusted for new improvements, exceeds the rate for the previous year by more than 8%, qualified voters of the
Town may petition for an election to determine whether to limit the tax rate to no more than 8% above the tax rate
of the previous year. This legislation also provides that, if approved by the qualified voters in the Town, both the
appraisal and collection functions may be placed with the appraisal district.

In the governmental funds financial statements, taxes are recognized as revenue beginning on the date of levy
when they become available. “Available” means collected within the current period or expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay current liabilities. Taxes not expected to be collected within thirty (30)
days of the fiscal year ending are recorded as deferred inflows of resources and recognized as they become
available. Taxes collected prior to the levy date to which they apply are recorded as unearned revenues and
recognized as revenue of the period to which they apply. 

An allowance for uncollectible taxes is provided based on an analysis of historical trends. The allowance for
uncollectible taxes at September 30, 2020, was $509,074.

C. Receivables

As of September 30, 2020, receivables for the Town’s individual major governmental funds, non-major
governmental funds, and internal service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowance for
uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

General Hotel
Debt

Service
Capital
Projects

Non-Major
Funds

Internal
Service
Funds Total

Taxes:
     Ad Valorem  $  556,580  $  -  $  248,218  $  8,393  $  34,085  $  -  $  847,276 
     Non-Property  2,377,085  143,398  -  -  -  -  2,520,483 
Franchise Fees  278,667  -  -  -  -  -  278,667 
Service Fees  990,754  -  -  -  -  -  990,754 
Ambulance  671,734  -  -  -  -  -  671,734 
Interest  32,605  4,705  34  61,997  4,967  10,687  114,995 
Other  44,458  62  -  270,496  4,760  -  319,776 
Due from Other Funds  -  -  -  615,000  -  -  615,000 
Gross Receivables  $  4,951,883  $  148,165  $  248,252  $  955,886  $  43,812  $  10,687  $  6,358,685 
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles  1,617,651  -  159,825  4,808  20,275  -  1,802,559 
Net Receivables  $  3,334,232  $  148,165  $  88,427  $  951,078  $  23,537  $  10,687  $  4,556,126 

The above allowance for uncollectible accounts represents reserves for ambulance ($450,062), court warrants
($787,086), alarm ($56,337), and property taxes ($509,074).

47

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

In the proprietary funds at September 30, 2020 the Airport fund has $102,595 rent receivable and $50,000 grant
receivable with no associated allowance accounts. The Utility fund has $2,233,034 in water and sewer sales
receivable, net of an allowance of $49,414. The Stormwater fund has stormwater fees receivable of $343,111 net
of an allowance of $16,890.

D. Capital Assets 

Capital Asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020 was as follows:

Beginning  
Balance Increases Decreases Transfers Ending Balance

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, not Depreciable:
    Land  $  66,249,935  $  944,759  $  -  $  -  $  67,194,694 
    Intangible Assets  672,076  -  -  185,987  858,063 
    Construction in Progress  13,899,390  5,783,551  - (8,643,671)  11,039,270 
Total Capital Assets, not Depreciable  80,821,401  6,728,310  - (8,457,684)  79,092,027 

Capital Assets, Depreciable:
    Buildings  23,297,688  -  -  -  23,297,688 
    Improvements other than Buildings  194,563,671  164,469 (1,774,119)  3,642,029  196,596,050 
    Machinery and Equipment  23,424,970  1,655,630 (4,282,596)  1,025,424  21,823,428 
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable  241,286,329  1,820,099 (6,056,715)  4,667,453  241,717,166 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
    Buildings (14,346,909) (603,908)  -  - (14,950,817)
    Improvements other than Buildings (117,862,034) (6,702,320)  1,595,035  - (122,969,319)
    Machinery and Equipment (13,394,472) (1,820,493)  4,281,282  - (10,933,683)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (145,603,415) (9,126,721)  5,876,317  - (148,853,819)
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, net  95,682,914 (7,306,622) (180,398)  4,667,453  92,863,347 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net  $  176,504,315  $ (578,312)  $ (180,398)  $ (3,790,231)  $  171,955,374 

Business-type Activities:

Capital Assets, not Depreciable:
    Land  $  17,046,407  $  212,323  $  -  $  -  $  17,258,730 
    Construction in Progress  7,706,752  10,186,310  - (4,705,517)  13,187,545 
Total Capital Assets, not Depreciable  24,753,159  10,398,633  - (4,705,517)  30,446,275 

Capital Assets, Depreciable:
    Buildings  9,524,090  -  -  -  9,524,090 
    Improvements other than Buildings  105,417,641  158,291 (817)  8,495,748  114,070,863 
    Machinery and Equipment  4,595,196  920,592 (645,206)  -  4,870,582 
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable  119,536,927  1,078,883 (646,023)  8,495,748  128,465,535 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
    Buildings (2,939,377) (190,487)  -  - (3,129,864)
    Improvements other than Buildings (56,917,611) (3,403,502)  350  - (60,320,763)
    Machinery and Equipment (2,780,040) (312,612)  645,206  - (2,447,446)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (62,637,028) (3,906,601)  645,556  - (65,898,073)
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, net  56,899,899 (2,827,718) (467)  8,495,748  62,567,462 

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, net  $  81,653,058  $  7,570,915  $ (467)  $  3,790,231  $  93,013,737 

48

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to departments of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General Government  $  326,849  $  - 
Public Safety  509,243  - 
Development Services  3,824  - 
Streets  5,828,845  - 
Parks and Recreation  846,394  - 
Visitor Services  521,015  - 
IT Replacement  368,847  - 
Capital Replacement  721,704  - 
Airport Fund  -  2,354,290 
Utility Fund  -  1,459,811 
Stormwater Fund  -  92,500 

 $  9,126,721  $  3,906,601 

The following tabulation presents the estimated significant commitments under unfinished capital construction and
equipment contracts that are fully funded as of September 30, 2020:

Project
Estimated

Commitments

Less
Expenditures

to Date

Total
Commitment
Remaining

Governmental Activities

Vitruvian Public Infrastructure  $  10,021,107  $  9,959,232  $  61,875 

Midway Road Rehabilitation  28,845,828  3,852,630  24,993,198 

Belt Line Beautification  3,153,000  1,791,929  1,361,071 

Airport Parkway Reconstruction  9,400,000  344,144  9,055,856 

Keller Springs Reconstruction  12,900,000  466,722  12,433,278 
 $  64,319,935  $  16,414,657  $  47,905,278 

Business Type Activities

Customs Facility Construction  $  11,162,733  $  7,101,661  $  4,061,072 

Airport Facility Improvements  1,544,000  585,766  958,234 

Water Line Replacement  3,941,798  1,029,518  2,912,280 

Kellway Lift Station Rehabilitation & Repair  1,587,984  419,537  1,168,447 

Celestial Ground Storage Tank  3,680,000  82,376  3,597,624 

Chlorine Booster Station  2,299,000  196,143  2,102,857 

Basin I Sanitary Sewer Reroute  3,151,000  2,025,538  1,125,462 

Sherlock Basin Improvements  1,868,191  1,642,244  225,947 

Storm Water Assessment Basin Improv  4,168,809  608,129  3,560,680 
 $  33,403,515  $  13,690,913  $  19,712,602 

In addition, the Town had the following outstanding encubmrances related to capital projects at September 30,
2020.  The Airport fund had $1,672,241 related to the construction of the customs facility, the Utility fund had
$97,812 for pump station and sewer line improvements, and the Capital Project fund had $1,300,820 for various
streets, facilities, and parks projects. 

49

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

E. Interlocal Sanitary Sewer Interceptor Agreement

The Town is party to an interlocal agreement, which established a non-profit water supply corporation (North
Dallas County Water Supply Corporation) for the purpose of constructing, maintaining, and operating a joint
sanitary sewer interceptor with the City of Farmers Branch.  The non-profit water supply corporation is governed by
a six-member board composed of three appointees from each entity.  The Town was obligated for construction
costs of the project in proportion to its percentage of allocated flows for each specific portion of the project as set 
forth in the agreement. The Town is also obligated to pay 55% of all general overhead costs.  Operating and
maintenance costs since the project became operational shall be paid in accordance with respective percentages
of allocated flows as set forth in the agreement.

The Town’s net investment and its share of general overhead expenses are reported in the Town’s Utility Fund (an
enterprise fund).  The Town’s equity interest in the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation of $6,393,505,
net of related debt, is included in Unrestricted Net Position.  This joint venture provides audited financial
statements bi-annually.  The most recent audit report available is for the year ended September 30, 2019.
Complete financial statements for the North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation can be obtained from
Charles Cox, Secretary/Treasurer, North Dallas County Water Supply Corporation, 13000 William Dodson
Parkway, Farmers Branch, Texas.

F. Long-Term Debt

The long-term debt of the Town consisted of the following as of September 30, 2020:

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series of 2012

A series of 2,967 bonds at $5,000 each dated August 15, 2012.  The
bonds were issued for the purpose of (i) acquiring and installing radio
and telecommunication equipment for Town public safety operations, (ii)
designing, acquiring, improving, constructing, and renovating water,
wastewater and street infrastructure improvements, including drainage
infrastructure, within the Vitruvian Park area of the Town; and (iii) paying
professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other
professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the
certificates.  The bonds mature serially through 2032 with interest rates
ranging from 1.5% to 4%.  The bonds are callable at par value plus
accrued interest on or after February 15, 2022 in whole or in part in
principal amounts of $5,000.  Bonds and interest are payable from a
combination of Ad Valorem taxes and a limited pledge (not to exceed
$1,000) of surplus net revenues of the Town’s Utility Fund.  $  10,965,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

50

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

General Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds
Series of 2012

A series of 4,518 bonds at $5,000 each dated August 15, 2012.  The
bonds were issued to fund various public improvement projects up to
$19,830,000 to include construction, engineering, and other professional
services; refund the Town’s outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2004, and General Obligation Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2005; and pay the costs of issuance associated with the
sale of the bonds.  The bonds mature serially through 2032 with interest
rates ranging from 2% to 5%.  The bonds are callable at par plus
accrued interest on or after February 15, 2022 in whole or in part in
principal amounts of $5,000.  Bonds and interest are payable from Ad
Valorem taxes.  $  1,795,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"; AMBAC Insured

General Obligation Bonds, Tax-Exempt 
Series of 2013

A series of 933 bonds at $5,000 each dated July 15, 2013.  The bonds
were issued to provide funds to (i) engineer, construct, improve, repair,
develop, extend and expand streets, thoroughfares, bridges,
interchanges, intersections, grade separations, sidewalks and other
public ways of the Town, including related streetscape improvements,
public utility improvements, storm drainage facilities and improvements,
signalization and other traffic controls, street lighting and the acquisition
of land therefore; (ii) acquire and improve land and interest in land to
provide improvements, additions and access to the Addison Municipal
Airport, and (iii) pay the costs of issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds. The
bonds mature serially through 2033 with interest rates ranging from 2%
to 5%.  The bonds are callable at par plus accrued interest on or after
February 15, 2023 in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000.  $  3,485,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

General Obligation Bonds
Series 2013A (AMT)

A series of 375 bonds at $5,000 each dated July 15, 2013.  The bonds
were issued to provide funds to: (i) acquire and improve of land and
interests in land to provide improvements, additions and access to the
Addison Municipal Airport, and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the AMT
bonds.  The bonds mature serially through 2018 with interest rates
ranging from 2% to 2.25%. The bonds are not callable.  $  1,385,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

51

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

General Obligation Bonds
Taxable Series of 2013B

A series of 250 bonds at $5,000 each dated July 15, 2013. The bonds,
used together with other available Town funds, were issued to provide
funds to: (i) acquire and improve land and interests in land to provide
improvements, additions and access to the Addison Municipal Airport,
and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the Taxable Bonds. The bonds mature
serially through 2033 with interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5%. The
bonds are callable at par plus accrued interest on or after February 15,
2023 in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000.  $  170,000  $  - 
   Ratings: Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series of 2013

A series of 2,037 bonds at $5,000 each dated July 15, 2013. The
Certificates were issued for (i) (a) designing, acquiring, improving,
constructing and renovating facilities and infrastructure at the Addison
Municipal Airport and the acquisition and improvement of land and
interests in land to provide improvements, additions and access to the
airport, (b) designing, acquiring, improving, constructing, and renovating
City drainage and stormwater infrastructure and facilities ((a) and (b)
together, the "Project") and (ii) paying professional services of attorneys,
financial advisors and other professionals in connection with the Project
and the issuance of the Certificates. The bonds mature serially through
2033 with interest rates ranging from 2% to 5%. The bonds are callable
at par plus accrued interest on or after February 15, 2023 in whole or in
part in principal amounts of $5,000.  $  -  $  7,510,000 
   Ratings: Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

General Obligation Bonds, Tax-Exempt
Series 2014

A series of 2,400 bonds at $5,000 each dated February 15, 2014. The
bonds were issued to provide funds for: (i) engineering, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, repairing, developing, extending and
expanding streets, thoroughfares, bridges, interchanges, intersections,
grade separations, sidewalks and other public ways of the Town,
including related streetscape improvements, public utility improvements,
storm drainage facilities and improvements, signalization and other
traffic controls, street lighting, and the acquisition of land therefor;
relocating utilities currently located in or adjacent to the Belt Line Road
right-of-way and acquiring, constructing, and developing Belt Line Road
roadway and streetscape improvements and the acquisition of land
therefor; and (iii) for the payment of the costs of issuing the Tax-Exempt
Bonds. The bonds mature serially through 2032 with interest rates
ranging from 3% to 3.625%. The bonds are callable at par plus accrued
interest on or after February 15, 2024 in whole or in part in principal
amounts of $5,000.  $  9,785,000  $  - 
   Ratings: Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

52

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Certificates of Obligation
Series 2014

A series of 1,513 bonds at $5,000 each dated February 15, 2014.  The
Certificates were issued for (i) designing, constructing, installing,
acquiring and equipping additions, extensions and improvements to the
Town’s water and wastewater system, and the acquisition of land and
interests in land for such projects, (the "Project") and (ii) paying
professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other
professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the
Certificates.  The bonds mature serially through 2034 with interest rates
ranging from 1% to 4%. The bonds are callable at par plus accrued
interest on or after February 15, 2024 in whole or in part in principal
amounts of $5,000.  $  -  $  6,005,000 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Series 2016

A series of 4,712 bonds at $5,000 each dated May 13, 2016. The bonds
were issued to refund a portion of the Town's outstanding debt for debt
service savings and to pay the costs associated with the issuance of the
bonds. The bonds mature serially through 2033 with interest rates
ranging from 3% to 5%. The bonds are callable at par plus accrued
interest on or after February 15, 2026 in whole or in part in principal
amounts of $5,000.  $  16,040,000  $  4,965,000 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aa1"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series 2018

A series of 2,623 bonds at $5,000 each dated December 11, 2018.  The
bonds were issued for the purpose of (i) designing, constructing,
installing, acquiring and equipping additions, extensions and
improvements to the Town's water and wastewater system, and the
acquisition of land and interests in land for such projects, (ii) designing,
acquiring, improving, constructing, and renovating facilities and
infrastructure at the Addison Municipal Airport related to constructing and
equipping a new customs and airport administration facility, and (iii) to pay
for professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and other
professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the
certificates.  The bonds mature serially through 2039 with interest rates
ranging from 3% to 5%.  The bonds are callable at par value plus accrued
interest on or after February 15, 2028 in whole or in part in principal
amounts of $5,000.  Bonds and interest are payable from a combination of
Ad Valorem taxes and a limited pledge (not to exceed $1,000) of surplus
net revenues of the Town’s Utility Fund.  $  -  $  12,900,000 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aaa"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

53

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series 2019

A series of 3,380 bonds at $5,000 each dated September 10, 2019. The
bonds were issued for the purpose of (i) engineering, constructing,
reconstructing, improving, repairing, developing, extending and
expanding streets, thoroughfares, bridges, interchanges, intersections,
grade separations, sidewalks and other public ways of the Town,
including related streetscape improvements, public utility improvements,
storm drainage facilities and improvements, signalization and other
traffic controls, street lighting, and the acquisition of land therefor, (ii)
improvements to a groundwater well to supply water to the Town's
Vitruvian Park, and (iii) to pay for professional services of attorneys,
financial advisors and other professionals in connection with the Project
and the issuance of the certificates. The bonds mature serially through
2039 with interest rates ranging from 3% to 4%. The bonds are callable
at par value plus accrued interest on or after February 15, 2028 in whole
or in part in principal amounts of $5,000.  $  16,220,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aaa"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

General Obligation Bonds
Series 2020

A series of 2,727 bonds at $5,000 each dated August 11, 2020. The
bonds were issued for the purpose of (i) constructing and improving
Keller Springs Road and Airport Parkway, including sidewalks, bridges,
landscaping, streetlighting, right-of-way protection, and related storm
drainage improvements and aquiring rights-of-way in connection
therewith, (ii) acquiring, developing, renovating and improving parks,
park facilities, including the Addison Athletic Club, and open spaces for
park and recreation purposes in and for the Town, including the
acquisitio of land therefor, (iii) renovating, repairing, improving, and
equipping existing Town service, public safety, conference and
administrative facilities, including repair, replacement, and improvement
of roofs, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, air conditioning, heating and
ventalation equipment and systems, facade improvements, and
improvements required by the Americans with Disabilites Act and other
applicable laws, (iv) improving, aquiring and equipping advanced traffic
control systems and facilities, and (v) paying of the costs of issuance of
the Bonds. The bonds mature serially through 2040 with interest rates
ranging from 2% to 5%. The bonds are callable at par value plus
accrued interest on or after August 15, 2029 in whole or in part in
principal amounts of $5,000.  $  13,635,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aaa"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

54

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Taxable Series 2020

A series of 2,641 bonds at $5,000 each dated August 11, 2020. The
bonds were issued for the purpose of (i) refund the Refunded Bonds,
and (ii) pay of the costs of issuance of the Bonds. The bonds mature
serially through 2032 with interest rates ranging from 0.2% to 2%. The
bonds are callable at par value plus accrued interest on or after August
15, 2029 in whole or in part in principal amounts of $5,000.  $  13,205,000  $  - 
   Ratings:  Moody's "Aaa"; Standard & Poor's "AAA"

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT OUTSTANDING  $  86,685,000  $  31,380,000 

55

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

A summary of long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2020 was as follows (in thousands of
dollars):

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Retirements Balance One Year

Governmental Activities:
         General Obligation Bonds  $  47,605  $  26,840  $ (14,945)  $  59,500  $  3,635 
             Premium on General Obligation Bonds  4,323  1,608 (1,694)  4,237  - 
             Discount on General Obligation Bonds (40) (3)  36 (7)  - 
         Certificates of Obligation  11,685  16,900 (1,400)  27,185  1,350 
             Premium on Certificates of Obligation  -  1,221 (108)  1,113  - 
             Discount on Certificates of Obligation (80)  -  5 (75)  - 
         Net Pension Liability  10,906  12,311 (20,397)  2,820  - 
         Compensated Absences  918  451 (170)  1,199  139 
         Total OPEB Liability  3,716  604 (143)  4,177  132 
Long-Term Liabilities – Governmental Activities  $  79,033  $  59,932  $ (38,816)  $  100,149  $  5,256 

Business-type Activities:
         General Obligation Refunding Bonds  $  5,655  $  -  $ (690)  $  4,965  $  320 
            (Payable from airport and utility system revenues)
             Premium on General Obligation Refunding Bonds  755  - (104)  651  - 
         Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation  9,065  - (120)  8,945  375 
            (Payable from airport revenues)
             Premium on Combination Tax and Revenue C.O.  323  - (32)  291  - 
         Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation  12,635  - (530)  12,105  550 
            (Payable from utility system revenues)
             Premium on Combination Tax and Revenue C.O.  248  - (21)  227  - 
         Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation  5,660  - (295)  5,365  305 
            (Payable from storm water system revenues)
             Premium on Combination Tax and Revenue C.O.  188  - (25)  163  - 
         Note Payable  119  - (62)  57  57 
         Net Pension Liability  847  989 (1,639)  197  - 
         Compensated Absences  94  42 (41)  95  26 
         Total OPEB Liability  323  52 (12)  363  - 
Long-Term Liabilities – Business-type Activities  $  35,912  $  1,083  $ (3,571)  $  33,424  $  1,633 

During the current fiscal year, the Town refunded $12,240,000 of governmental GO's with a $1,012,871
unamortized premium, $31,691 unamortized discount, and $153,728 unamortized deferred loss on refunding, in a
taxable refunding issuance entitled GO Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020. No additional proceeds were
received, and the Town paid $111,987 in issuance costs and underwriter discounts from the General Obligation
Debt Service Fund.  The new issuance resulted in $13,205,000 governmental GO refunding bonds with a discount
of $2,801. As a result of the taxable refunding, the Town reduced its total debt service requirements by
$2,022,740, which resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $1,866,360.

The Town intends to retire all of its general obligation bonds (other than those recorded in the enterprise funds),
plus interest, from future Ad Valorem tax levies, interest income, and transfers from other funds.  The Town is
required by ordinance to create from such tax revenues a sinking fund sufficient to pay the current interest due
thereon and each installment of principal as it becomes due.  There is $6,335 available in the General Obligation
Debt Service Fund to service the general obligation bonds.

56

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Proprietary fund-type debt is to be repaid from net revenues of the enterprise funds and is, accordingly, recorded
as enterprise fund debt.  The Note Payable referenced above in the Business-type Activities was created in July
2015 as part of a ground lease early termination agreement at the Addison Airport.  The Town of Addison will pay
$375,000 in 72 equal payments of $5,208 each month, accruing no interest, beginning August 1, 2015.  This
creates a remaining annual principal only payment of $57,000 in 2021.

Bonded debt is direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government for both governmental and
business-type activities.  There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various general
obligations, certificates of obligation, and revenue bond indentures.  The Town is in compliance with all significant
limitations and restrictions at September 30, 2020.

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated in the General Fund, Economic
Development Fund and Hotel Fund.  Also for governmental activites, the net pension liability and total OPEB
liability is generally liquidated from the General Fund.

The debt service requirements on the aforementioned bonded debt are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest

General Obligation Bonds:
2021  $  3,635,000  $  1,806,515  $  320,000  $  224,250 
2022  3,660,000  1,713,798  340,000  211,050 
2023  3,780,000  1,597,315  355,000  197,150 
2024  3,880,000  1,493,541  365,000  182,750 
2025  4,010,000  1,379,935  380,000  167,850 

2026-2030  21,530,000  4,794,302  1,980,000  547,250 
2031-2035  14,995,000  1,284,616  1,225,000  93,875 
2036-2040  4,010,000  203,800  -  - 

 $  59,500,000  $  14,273,822  $  4,965,000  $  1,624,175 

Certificates of Obligation:
2021  $  1,350,000  $  852,138  $  1,230,000  $  1,002,182 
2022  1,390,000  811,538  1,280,000  957,683 
2023  1,445,000  758,613  1,335,000  909,057 
2024  1,505,000  699,612  1,385,000  858,658 
2025  1,560,000  642,512  1,440,000  806,232 

2026-2030  7,180,000  2,476,812  8,235,000  3,061,468 
2031-2035  7,310,000  1,419,616  7,985,000  1,263,383 
2036-2039  5,445,000  300,553  3,525,000  254,187 

 $  27,185,000  $  7,961,394  $  26,415,000  $  9,112,850 

At September 30, 2020, the Town had $81,845,000 authorized but unissued general obligation bonds.

57

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

III.  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

G. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

A summary of interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2020 is as follows:

Interfund
Receivables

Interfund
Payables

Capital Project Fund  $  615,000  $  - 
Airport Fund  -  615,000 Loan for AFRR, reimbursement expected in subsequent year
Total  $  615,000  $  615,000 

Transfers between funds during the year ended September 30, 2020 were comprised of the following:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out Purpose of Transfer
General Fund  $  -  $  45,000 For capital projects
General Fund  -  3,563,900 For capital projects
Capital Project Fund  45,000  - For capital projects
Capital Project Fund  3,563,900  - For capital projects
Hotel Fund  -  384,000 For economic development
Economic Development Fund  384,000  - For economic development
Internal Service Fund  -  55,418 For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Internal Service Fund  -  17,920 For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Internal Service Fund  -  42,873 For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Internal Service Fund  -  44,083 For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Airport Fund  55,418  - For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Airport Fund  17,920  - For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Utility Fund  42,873  - For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
Utility Fund  44,083  - For purchase of assets in Internal Svc Fund
  Total Transfers  $  4,153,194  $  4,153,194 

58

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV.  OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2020, the Town maintained workers
compensation, general liability and property coverage through the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk
Pool (TMLIRP). The Town pays an annual premium to TMLIRP for such coverage. TMLIRP purchases
reinsurance and the Town does not retain risks of loss exceeding deductibles. The Town’s general liability
coverage is $5,000,000 and $10,000,000 in the aggregate. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage
in each of the past five years.

For the period of October 2019 to September 2020, the Town offered health benefits through one of two plans
operated by Blue Cross Blue Shield. Employees were able to choose either an HSA (health savings account) plan
or a PPO (preferred provider organization) plan. The Town also offers a dental plan through Delta Dental and a
vision plan through Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas Vision.  The HSA, PPO, and dental plans are funded by joint
contributions from the employees and the Town and are accounted for in the respective operating funds. The
vision plan is solely from employee contributions.

Blue Cross and Delta Dental plans are fully insured contracts. Monthly premiums paid to Blue Cross and Delta
Dental were based upon fixed employee and dependent rates that are established each year.

B. Employee’s Retirement System

1) Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, pension related deferred outflows and inflows of resources,
and pension expense, Town specific information about its fiduciary net position in the Texas Municipal Retirement
System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from the Town’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that
compensation is reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.  Information regarding the Town’s net pension liability is obtained from TMRS through a report prepared
for the Town by TMRS consulting actuary, Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company, in compliance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.

Plan Description

The Town provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a nontraditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), one of over 888
administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system.  Each of the
municipalities has an annual individual actuarial valuation performed.  TMRS is an agency created by the State of
Texas and administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the
TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas.  The
TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of
Trustees.  Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not
fiscally dependent on the State of Texas.  TMRS' defined benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section
401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

59

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

TMRS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a copy of which may be obtained by
writing to P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas 78714-9153.  The report is also available on the System’s web site at:
http://www.tmrs.com/publications.php.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body of
the Town, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS. 

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employee’s contributions to the plan and the Town-financed monetary
credits, with interest.  At the date the plan began, the Town granted monetary credits for services rendered before
the plan began based on an amount equal to two times what would have been contributed by the employee plus
interest.  Monetary credits for service since the plan began are 200 percent of the employee’s accumulated
contributions.  Beginning in 1994, the Town adopted an annually repeating type of monetary credit referred to as
an updated service credit which when added to the employee’s accumulated contributions and the monetary
credits for service since the plan began would be the total monetary credits and employee contributions
accumulated with interest, if the current employee contribution rate and Town matching percent had always been
in existence.   The calculation included a three-year exponential average of the actual salaries paid during the prior
fiscal years.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions with interest and
the employer-financed monetary credits plus interest were used to purchase an annuity.  Also, in 1994, the Town
adopted annually repeating annuity increases for its retirees equal to 70% of the change in the consumer price
index. The Town discontinued the annual increases in January 2009 and began doing ad hoc increases through
2014, still at 70%.  The Town has not adopted an ad hoc COLA since 2014.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the Town, within the options available in the state
statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes.  Members can retire at certain
ages, based on the years of service with the Town.  The service retirement eligibilities for the Town are: 
5 years/age 60, 20 years/any age.  Plan provisions for the Town are as follows:

Deposit Rate: 7%
Matching Ratio (Town to Employee): 2 to 1
A member is vested after: 5 years

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2019 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the
benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 216
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 233
Active employees 270
Total 719

60

DRAFT

http://www.tmrs.org/publications.php


Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Contributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings, and the
Town matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the governing body of the
Town.  Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for the Town is determined annually by the
actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method.  The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Since the Town needs to know its contribution rates in
advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis
for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect.  

Employees for the Town were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year. The
Town elected to contribute at the full rates for calendar year 2019 of 10.86%.  Accordingly, contributions to TMRS
for the year ended September 30, 2020 were $2,259,912 and were equal to the required contribution.

Net Pension Liability

The Town's Net Pension Liability was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL)
used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial assumptions

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:  

Inflation                                   2.5% per year
Overall payroll growth             3.5% to 11.5% including inflation
Investment rate of return        6.75% net of pension plan investment expense including inflation

Salary increases were based on service-related tables.  Mortality rates for active members and retirees were
multiplied by 107.5% for both males and females.  The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale
BB to account for future mortality improvements.  For disabled annuitants, the same table as healthy retirees is
used, with slight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019, valuation were based on the actuarial investigation of
experience of TMRS.  This investigation was for the period December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2018.  

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%.  The pension plan's policy in regard
to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of Trustees.  Plan
assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the
production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

61

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected Real

Asset Target Rate of Return
Class Location (Arithmetic)

Total Equity 30.0% 5.30%
Core Fixed Income 10.0% 1.25%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.0% 4.14%
Real Return 10.0% 3.85%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.00%
Absolute Return 10.0% 3.48%
Private Equity 10.0% 7.75%
Total 100.0%

Single Discount Rate

Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present values using a single discount
rate that reflects (1) a long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that the plan's
fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits) and (2) tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on
an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement date (to the
extent that the plan's projected fiduciary net position is not sufficient to pay benefits).  

For the purpose of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 6.75%.  A single
discount rate of 6.75% was used to measure the total pension liability as of December 31, 2019.  This single
discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 6.75%.  Based on the
stated assumptions and the projection of cash flows, the Town's fiduciary net position and future contributions
were sufficient to finance the future benefit payments of the current plan members for all projection years. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of the
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Town.  The projection of cash flows used
to determine the single discount rate for the Town assumed that the funding policy adopted by the TMRS Board
will remain in effect for all future years. Under this funding policy, the Town will finance the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability over the years remaining for the closed period existing for each base in addition to the employer
portion of all future benefit accruals (i.e. the employer normal cost).

62

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV.  OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension

Liability 
(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b)

Net Pension 
Liability
(a) - (b) 

Balance at 10/1/2019  $  130,237,725  $  118,484,627  $  11,753,098 
Changes for the year:
     Service cost  3,261,975  -  3,261,975 
     Interest  8,672,125  -  8,672,125 
     Difference between expected and actual experience  857,318  -  857,318 
     Changes of assumptions  402,607  -  402,607 
     Contributions - employer  -  2,259,912 (2,259,912)
     Contributions - employee  -  1,480,167 (1,480,167)
     Net investment income  -  18,296,106 (18,296,106)
     Benefit payments, including refunds of 
         employee contributions (6,785,567) (6,785,567)  - 
     Administrative expense  - (103,502)  103,502 
     Other  - (3,109)  3,109 
          Net changes  6,408,458  15,144,007 (8,735,549)
Balance at 9/30/2020  $  136,646,183  $  133,628,634  $  3,017,549 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as well as
what the Town's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:  

1% Decrease 
5.75%

Current Discount Rate
6.75%

1% Increase
7.75%

Town's net pension liability  $  20,869,639  $  3,017,549  $ (11,752,583)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued TMRS
financial report. That report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $3,370,643. At September 30,
2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

63

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources

  Differences between expected & actual economic experience  $  945,834  $ (2,375)

  Contributions subsequent to the measurement date  1,716,190  - 

  Change of assumptions  304,170  - 

  Difference between projected and actual investment earnings  - (4,077,799)
  Total  $  2,966,194  $ (4,080,174)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement
date but before the end of the Town's reporting period of $1,716,190 will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability for the year ending September 30, 2021.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended 
September 30

Net deferred
outflows (inflows) 

of resources
2021  $ (664,796)
2022 (847,600)
2023  714,179 
2024 (2,031,953)
Total  $ (2,830,170)

Allocation of Pension Items

The City allocates pension items between governmental activities and business-type activities on the basis of
employee payroll.

2) Other Postemployment Benefits

A summary of OPEB related items as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, is presented below.

Deferred Deferred
Total OPEB Outflows of Inflows of OPEB

Plan Liability Resources Resources Expense

 Retiree Health Care Plan
Governmental Activities  $  3,160,225  $  329,877  $ (105,012)  $  262,050 
Business-Type Activities  274,526  28,662 (9,130)  22,787 

Supplemental Death Benefits
Governmental Activities  1,017,049  178,093 (63,291)  78,581 
Business-Type Activities  88,350  15,478 (5,503)  6,833 

Total  $  4,540,150  $  552,110  $ (182,936)  $  370,251 

64

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Retiree Health Care Plan Description

In addition to the pension benefits described above, as required by state law and defined by Town Policy, the
Town makes available health care benefits to all employees who retire from the Town and who are receiving
benefits from a Town-sponsored retirement program (Texas Municipal Retirement System and/or a Section 457
Deferred Compensation Plan) through a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan. This healthcare plan
provides lifetime insurance, or until age 65 if eligible for Medicare, to eligible retirees, their spouses and
dependents through the Town's group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Benefits Provided

Current retirees in the health plan and active employees with 20 years or more of service or at age 60 or more with
five years or more of service at retirement are eligible to remain in the health plan at the total blended contribution
rate for active and retiree participants.  Since an irrevocable trust has not been established, the plan is not
accounted for as a trust fund.  The plan does not issue a separate financial report.  Benefit provisions for retirees
are not mandated by any form of employment agreement.  The continued provision of these benefits is based
entirely on the discretion of the Town of Addison City Council.

A measurement date of December 31, 2019 was used for the September 30, 2020 liability and expense.  The
information that follows was determined as of a valuation date of December 31, 2019.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2019 measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Retirees and Beneficiaries    44
Active Members  262
Total  306

Contributions

Before age 65, the Town will pay a $150 monthly stipend toward the retiree’s healthcare premium if the retiring
employee meets the eligibility criteria at the time of termination and elects coverage in the health plan.  For
members who retire after 65 or were eligible for the $150 stipend before age 65, the Town will pay a $75 monthly
stipend directly to the retiree.  Current retirees contribute to the health plan the total blended premium for active
and retired participants, less the $150 stipend provided by the Town.  The Town contribution to the health plan
consists of total premiums in excess of retiree contributions.  

Retirees receiving medical benefits during fiscal year 2020 contribute $499 to $1,600 per month depending on
coverage levels selected.  In fiscal year 2020, total retiree contributions were $140,437.  

Total OPEB Liability for Retiree Health Care Plan

The Town of Addison utilized the actuarial services of Gabriel, Roeder, Smith & Company (GRS), a company who
has been providing actuarial consulting services since 1938, under the shared services arrangement provided by
GRS and North Central Texas Council of Governments.  The Town's total OPEB liability for healthcare benefits of
$3,434,751 was measured as of December 31, 2019.

65

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Actuarial assumptions

The Town's total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement date, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth3.50% to 11.50%, including inflation
Discount rate2.75%  (3.71% in prior year)
Healthcare cost trend rates7.2% for 2020, declining to 4.25% after 15 years
Participation rates50% of employees who retire before age 65 and 100% of employees who retire at

age 65 or older

For plans that do not have a formal trust that meets the GASB's requirements, the discount rate is equal to the
tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on a 20-year general obligation AA bond rating as of the measurement
date. The rate of 2.75 percent is based on the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement date using
the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal G.O. AA Index.

Mortality rates were based on the gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables and projected
on a fully generational basis using the ultimate mortality improvement rates in the MP tables to account for future
mortality improvements.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for Retiree Health Care Plan

Total OPEB
Liability

Balance as of 10/1/19  $  3,160,157 
Changes for the year:
       Service cost  151,275 
  Interest on OPEB Liability  117,504 

Effect of difference in expected & actual experience (1,268)
Effect of assumptions (change in discount rate)  144,221 
Benefit payments (137,138)

  Change in total OPEB Liability  274,594 

Balance as of 9/30/20  $  3,434,751 

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan's total OPEB liability of the Town, calculated using a discount rate of 2.75% as well
as what the plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (1.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.75% 2.75% 3.75%

Total OPEB liability  $  3,791,305  $  3,434,751  $  3,120,717 

66

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the plan's total OPEB liability of the Town, calculated using the assumed trend rates as well
as what the plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rates that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current Health Care 

1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability  $  3,145,471  $  3,434,751  $  3,784,038 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $284,837. At September 30,
2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected & actual economic experience  $  -  $ (39,586)

Change of assumptions  233,071 (74,556)

Benefit payments made subsequent to measurement date  125,468  - 

Total  $  358,539  $ (114,142)

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from benefit payments subsequent to the measurement
date but before the end of the Town's reporting period of $125,468 will be recognized as a decrease to the total
OPEB liability during the year ended September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net deferred
Year ended outflows (inflows)

September 30 of resources
2021  $  16,058 
2022  16,058 
2023  16,058 
2024  16,058 
2025  16,058 

Thereafter  38,639 
Total  $  118,929 

67

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Supplemental Death Benefits Fund Description

Texas Municipal Retirement System (“TMRS”) administers an agent multiple-employer defined benefit group-term
life insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (“SDBF”). This is a voluntary program in
which participating member cities may elect, by ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their
active members, including or not including retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum
payment approximately equal to the employee’s annual salary (calculated based on the employee’s actual
earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is considered an
other postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As the SDBF covers both active and
retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to be an unfunded OPEB plan. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

Benefits Provided

The Town contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial valuation.
The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the SDBF program is
to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for the upcoming year. The
intent is not to pre-fund retiree term life insurance during employees’ entire careers.

A measurement date of December 31, 2019 was used for the September 30, 2020 liability and expense.  The
information that follows was determined as of a valuation date of December 31, 2019.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the December 31, 2019 measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:
Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 159
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits   63
Active employees 270
Total 492

Contributions

Due to the SDBF being considered an unfunded OPEB plan, benefit payments are treated as being equal to the
employer's yearly contribution for retirees.  The Town's Supplemental Death Benefit Plan contributions for 2020
were $6,342.

Total OPEB Liability for Supplemental Death Benefits

The Town's total OPEB liability for supplemental death benefits of $1,105,399 was measured as of December 31,
2019.

Actuarial assumptions

The Total OPEB Liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement date, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation2.50% per year
Overall payroll growth3.50% to 11.50%, including inflation
Discount rate2.75% (3.71% in prior year)

68

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For plans that do not have a formal trust that meets the GASB's requirements, the discount rate is equal to the
tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on a 20-year general obligation AA bond rating as of the measurement
date. The rate of 2.75 percent is based on the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement date using
the Fidelity 20-Year Municipal G.O. AA Index.

Mortality rates were based on the 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas Mortality Tables and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale UMP.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2018.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability for supplemental death benefits

Total OPEB
Liability

Balances as of 10/1/19  $  878,424 
Changes for the year:

Service cost  25,369 
Interest on OPEB Liability  32,942 
Effect of difference in expected & actual experience (10,521)
Effect of assumptions (change in discount rate)  185,527 
Benefit payments (6,342)
Change in OPEB Liability  226,975 

Balances as of 9/30/20  $  1,105,399 

Sensitivity of Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the plan's total OPEB liability of the Town, calculated using a discount rate of 2.75% as well
as what the plan's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (1.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (3.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.75% 2.75% 3.75%

Total OPEB liability  $  1,354,536  $  1,105,399  $  914,893 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $85,414. At September 30,
2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from
the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $  -  $ (23,165)
Change of assumptions  193,571 (45,629)
Total  $  193,571  $ (68,794)

69

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net deferred
Year ended outflows (inflows) of

September 30 resources

2021  $  27,103 
2022  27,103 
2023  26,707 
2024  14,453 
2025  29,119 

Thereafter  292 
Total  $  124,777 

C. Contingencies

The Town is party to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which is believed by
the Town’s management to have a material impact on the financial condition of the Town. Accordingly, no
provision for losses has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

The Town of Addison has a $5,000,000 loan from the North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG)
for Addison's future contribution to Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) for the Cotton Belt. The loan is to be repaid
over 10 years at 1.8% interest, starting after the completion of the Cotton Belt. The Town of Addison is not
responsible for any repayment of the loan unless and until the Cotton Belt is finished. If the Cotton Belt fails to
materialize, the Town has no obligation to repay the loan.

D. Tax Incentive Rebates

The Town of Addison has two active Commercial Development and Job Related Incentive Rebates that develop or
redevelop a particular property attracting businesses that generate incremental tax revenues.   In addition to
GASB 77, the agreements are subject to Chapter 380 of the Texas Local Government Code that promotes local
economic development, commercial activity and business stimulation.  City Council approves the agreements via
resolution.  As part of the agreements, the Town agrees to rebate a portion of the ad valorem or sales tax after
confirmation of payment.  If the businesses do not meet the obligations as set forth in the agreements in a
particular year, the businesses forego the rebates in that year.

The agreement with one entity, executed March 4, 2016, provides a rebate for 50% of business personal property
(ad valorem) tax for ten years and a total amount of $50,000 for waiver of permit fees.  The entity did not meet the
eligibility criteria to receive the incentive in the year ended September 30, 2020, and the amount forgone was
$17,375.  Over the life of the contract, the entity has forgone 119,498.

The agreement with the other entity provides a rebate for 75% of sales tax over a threshold amount, of which the
calculation is outlined in the contract.  The Town paid $384,869 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020,
and has paid $1,357,612 over the life of the contract.  Also, the contract allows for the Town of Addison to 
commission an independent traffic study regarding an area specified in the contract, and if warranted, the Town
will pay for capital expenses related to potential signalization or other needed improvements in the specified area.  

No traffic study has been warranted or commissioned as of September 30, 2020.  Also, the contract requires a
tree mitigation amount of $424,385 to be paid in five installments starting the 10th anniversary of the contract
execution date, which was in August 2012.

70

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Basic Financial Statements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2020

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. New Accounting Pronouncements

The GASB has issued the following statements which will become effective in a future year.

Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities – This statement improves guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary
activities for financial and accounting reporting purposes and how these activities should be reported.  This
statement will be effective for the Town in  fiscal year 2021.  The Town will evaluate the potential impact on the
Town's net position.

Statement No. 87, Leases – This statement establishes a single approach to accounting for and reporting leases
by state and local governments.  This statement will be effective for the Town in fiscal year 2022.  The Town will
evaluate the potential impact on the Town's net position.

Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – This statement aims to improve the consistency and comparability
of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance
of financial statement information for certain component units. This statement will be effective for the Town in
fiscal year 2021.  The Town will evaluate the potential impact on the Town's net position.

Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations – This statement provides a single method of reporting conduit debt
and clarifies that these obligations are not government liabilities.  This statement will be effective for the Town in
fiscal year 2023.  The Town will evaluate the potential impact on the Town's net position.

71

DRAFT



Required Supplementary Information

DRAFT



DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Required Supplementary Information

 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Texas Municipal Retirement System

Schedule of the Town's Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios (Unaudited)
Last Six Measurement Years (Previous years are not available)

Measurement Year Measurement Year Measurement Year
 2014  2015  2016 

Total pension liability:
           Service cost  $  2,819,937  $  3,120,695  $  2,740,122 
           Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)  8,660,470  9,031,058  7,721,380 
           Changes in benefit terms including substantively
               automatic status  -  - (20,027,692)
           Difference between expected and actual experience (987,858) (1,253,581) (37,547)
           Change in assumptions  -  467,077  - 
           Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
               contributions (5,193,445) (5,504,175) (6,038,979)
Net change in total pension liability  5,299,104  5,861,074 (15,642,716)
Total pension liability - beginning  124,907,757  130,206,861  136,067,935 
Total pension liability - ending (a)  130,206,861  136,067,935  120,425,219 
Plan fiduciary net position:
           Contributions - employer  1,789,255  1,824,122  1,743,443 
           Contributions - employee  1,224,976  1,257,382  1,266,899 
           Net investment income  6,157,338  164,587  7,376,667 
           Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
               contributions (5,193,445) (5,504,175) (6,038,979)
           Administrative expense (64,289) (100,255) (83,336)
           Other (5,286) (4,952) (4,490)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position  3,908,549 (2,363,291)  4,260,204 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning  107,639,477  111,548,026  109,184,735 
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)  111,548,026  109,184,735  113,444,939 
Net pension liability/(asset) - ending (a) - (b)  $  18,658,835  $  26,883,200  $  6,980,280 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
           of total pension liability 85.67% 80.24% 94.20%
Covered payroll  $  17,479,153  $  17,945,341  $  18,098,559 
Net pension liability/(asset) as a percentage
           of covered payroll 106.75% 149.81% 38.57%

Changes in assumptions: In the 2015 valuation the investment rate of return decreased from 7.0% to 6.75%; the inflation rate was lowered from 3.0% to 2.5%;
the experience study for retirement age was updated. 

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31) of the Town's net pension liability/(asset) and is intended to
show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, only periods of which such
information is available are presented.

72

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Required Supplementary Information

 REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Texas Municipal Retirement System

Schedule of the Town's Changes in Net Pension Liability/(Asset) and Related Ratios, Continued (Unaudited)
Last Six Measurement Years (Previous years are not available)

Measurement Year Measurement Year Measurement Year
 2017  2018  2019 

Total pension liability:
           Service cost  $  2,862,674  $  3,028,227  $  3,261,975 
           Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)  8,023,052  8,365,372  8,672,125 
           Changes in benefit terms including substantively
               automatic status  -  -  - 
           Difference between expected and actual experience  827,177  154,569  857,318 
           Change in assumptions  -  -  402,607 
           Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
               contributions (5,993,041) (7,455,524) (6,785,567)
Net change in total pension liability  5,719,862  4,092,644  6,408,458 
Total pension liability - beginning  120,425,219  126,145,081  130,237,725 
Total pension liability - ending (a)  126,145,081  130,237,725  136,646,183 
Plan fiduciary net position:
           Contributions - employer  1,942,088  2,066,662  2,259,912 
           Contributions - employee  1,323,808  1,382,710  1,480,167 
           Net investment income  15,717,180 (3,781,614)  18,296,106 
           Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
               contributions (5,993,041) (7,455,524) (6,785,567)
           Administrative expense (81,484) (73,147) (103,502)
           Other (4,130) (3,822) (3,109)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position  12,904,421 (7,864,734)  15,144,007 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning  113,444,939  126,349,361  118,484,627 
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)  126,349,360  118,484,627  133,628,634 
Net pension liability/(asset) - ending (a) - (b)  $ (204,279)  $  11,753,098  $  3,017,549 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
           of total pension liability 100.16% 90.98% 97.79%
Covered payroll  $  18,895,541  $  19,727,861  $  21,140,471 
Net pension liability/(asset) as a percentage
           of covered payroll -1.08% 59.58% 14.27%

Changes in assumptions: In the 2015 valuation the investment rate of return decreased from 7.0% to 6.75%; the inflation rate was lowered from 3.0% to 2.5%;
the experience study for retirement age was updated. 

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31) of the Town's net pension liability/(asset) and is intended to
show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, only periods of which such
information is available are presented.

73

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Texas Municipal Retirement System

Schedule of Town Contributions (Unaudited)
September 30, 2020

(1) (2) (3) = (2) - (1) (4) (5) = (1) / (4) (6) = (2) / (4)

Contribution Actuarially
in relation to determined

the contributions as Contributions as
Actuarially actuarially Contribution a percentage a percentage

Fiscal determined determined excess Covered of covered of covered
Year contribution contribution (deficiency) payroll payroll payroll

2015  1,874,383  1,874,383  -  18,804,927 9.97% 9.97%
2016  1,786,827  1,786,827  -  18,465,892 9.68% 9.68%
2017  1,893,931  1,893,931  -  18,796,558 10.08% 10.08%
2018  2,136,195  2,136,195  -  19,933,808 10.72% 10.72%
2019  2,172,375  2,172,375  -  21,064,448 10.31% 10.31%
2020  2,259,912  2,259,912  -  21,140,471 10.69% 10.69%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date:
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become effective in January 13 months
later.
Methods and Assumption Used to Determine Contribution Rate for 2020:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 26 years
Asset Valuation Method 10 year smoothed market; 12% soft corridor
Inflation 2.5%
Salary Increases 3.5% to 11.5% including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%
Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the City's plan of 

benefits. Last updated for the 2019 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2014 - 2018

Mortality Post-retirement: 2019 Municipal Retirees of Texas mortality tables.  The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.
Pre-retirement: Pub(10) mortality tables, with the Public Safety table
used for males and the General Employee table used for females. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis with scale UMP.

Other Information:
Notes There were no benefit changes during the year.

The information in this schedule has been determined as of the Town's fiscal year-end and is intended to show information
for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in accordance with the provisions of GASB 68, only periods for
which such information is available are presented.

74

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Retiree Healthcare Plan

Schedule of Changes in the Town's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Unaudited)
Last Three Measurement Years (Previous years are not available)

Total OPEB liability: Measurement Year 2017 Measurement Year 2018 Measurement Year 2019
Total OPEB liability - beginning  $  2,881,200  $  3,152,539  $  3,160,157 
         Service cost  135,826  176,485  151,275 
         Interest on the total OPEB liability  110,017  105,055  117,504 
         Difference between expected and actual
            experience of the total OPEB liability (4,477) (45,102) (1,268)
         Changes of assumptions  153,032 (94,984)  144,221 
         Benefit payments (123,059) (133,836) (137,138)
Net change in total OPEB liability  271,339  7,618  274,594 
Total OPEB liability - ending  $  3,152,539  $  3,160,157  $  3,434,751 

Covered-employee payroll  $  18,897,760  $  20,042,555  $  21,353,599 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
   of covered-employee payroll 16.68% 15.77% 16.09%

Changes of assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.71% as of December 31, 2018 to 2.75% as of
December 31, 2019, and updates to the demographic and salary increase assumptions.

The information in the schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31) of the Town's total
OPEB liability and is intended to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in
accordance with the provisions of GASB 75, only periods of which such information is available are presented.

75

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Required Supplementary Information
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
TMRS Supplemental Death Benefits Fund (SDBF)

Schedule of Changes in the Town's Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Unaudited)
Last Three Measurement Years (Previous years are not available)

Total OPEB liability: Measurement Year 2017 Measurement Year 2018 Measurement Year 2019
Total OPEB liability - beginning  $  794,578  $  918,237  $  878,424 
         Service cost  20,785  25,646  25,369 
         Interest on the total OPEB liability  30,321  30,720  32,942 
         Differences between expected and actual
              experience  - (21,647) (10,521)
         Changes of assumptions  78,222 (68,614)  185,527 
         Benefit payments (5,669) (5,918) (6,342)
Net change in total OPEB liability  123,659 (39,813)  226,975 
Total OPEB liability - ending  $  918,237  $  878,424  $  1,105,399 

Covered-employee payroll  $  18,895,541  $  19,727,861  $  21,140,471 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage
   of covered-employee payroll 4.86% 4.45% 5.23%

Changes of assumptions reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.71% as of December 31, 2018 to 2.75% as of
December 31, 2019.

The information in the schedule has been determined as of the measurement date (December 31) of the Town's total
OPEB liability and is intended to show information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled in
accordance with the provisions of GASB 75, only periods of which such information is available are presented.

76

DRAFT



DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The General Obligation Debt Service Fund accounts for the
accumulation of resources to be used for payment of principal and
interest on the general obligation bonded debt of the Town. 

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Major Governmental Funds - General Obligation Debt Service

General Obligation Debt Service 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Current Property Taxes $ 6,966,638 $ 6,966,638 $ 6,995,406 $ 28,768
Delinquent Property Taxes - - (132,443) (132,443)
Penalties and Interest 46,600 46,600 18,570 (28,030)
Earnings on Investments 16,000 16,000 19,601 3,601
Total Revenues 7,029,238 7,029,238 6,901,134 (128,104)

EXPENDITURES:
Contractual Services 3,800 3,800 7,152 (3,352)
Principal Retirement 4,172,020 4,172,020 4,105,000 67,020
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,800,118 2,800,118 2,915,428 (115,310)
Total Expenditures 6,975,938 6,975,938 7,027,580 (51,642)

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
  over Expenditures 53,300 53,300 (126,446) (179,746)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Proceeds from Debt Issuance or Refunding - 13,205,000 13,205,000 -
Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent - (13,205,000) (13,090,212) 114,788

Net Change in Fund Balance 53,300 53,300 (11,658) (64,958)

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 17,993 17,993 17,993 -

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 71,293 $ 71,293 $ 6,335 $ (64,958)

77

DRAFT



DRAFT



NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
The Municipal Court Fund accounts for the Town's court building
security and technology fees that are generated from court citation
fines.  According to state law, the revenue generated from these fees
may only be spent on the municipal court. 

The Public Safety Fund accounts for awards of monies or property by
the courts relating to cases that involve the Addison Police Department. 

The Advanced Funding Grant Fund was created during fiscal year
2010. The fund accounts for grant monies that are received prior to the
related expenditure, and therefore, the fund may carry a balance from
year to year if the Town does not expend the monies within the fiscal
year. 

The Economic Development Fund accumulates resources to support
efforts that attract commercial enterprises to Addison and encourage
existing businesses to remain in Addison.

The Reimbursement Grant Fund accounts for expenditures for which
the Town expects to be reimbursed.

The PEG Fees Fund accounts for state restricted fees collected and
the expenditures using these monies.

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet

September 30, 2020

Municipal Court
Fund

Public Safety
Fund

Advanced
Funding Grant

Fund

Economic
Development

Fund
Reimbursement

Grant Fund
PEG Fees

Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

ASSETS:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 214,755 $ 63,157 $ 44,829 $ 2,036,670 $ 578,710 $ 358,573 $ 3,296,694
Receivables:

Ad Valorem Taxes, Including Interest and Penalties, Net - - - 13,810 - - 13,810
Interest 308 92 66 3,056 922 523 4,967
Intergovernmental - 4,760 - - - - 4,760

Total Assets $ 215,063 $ 68,009 $ 44,895 $ 2,053,536 $ 579,632 $ 359,096 $ 3,320,231

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
  AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 15,865 $ 1,564 $ - $ 70,894 $ 112,266 $ - $ 200,589
Unearned Revenue - - - - 463,010 - 463,010

Total Liabilities 15,865 1,564 - 70,894 575,276 - 663,599

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Resources - - - 13,810 - - 13,810

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 13,810 - - 13,810

Fund Balances:
Restricted

Child Safety 110,712 - - - - - 110,712
Justice Administration 27,994 - - - - - 27,994
Court Technology 27,651 - - - - - 27,651
Court Security 32,841 - - - - - 32,841
Public Safety - 66,445 44,895 - 4,356 - 115,696
Governmental Public Education - - - - - 359,096 359,096

Committed:
Economic Development - - - 1,968,832 - - 1,968,832

Total Fund Balance 199,198 66,445 44,895 1,968,832 4,356 359,096 2,642,822

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
  and Fund Balance $ 215,063 $ 68,009 $ 44,895 $ 2,053,536 $ 579,632 $ 359,096 $ 3,320,231

78

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Non-Major Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Municipal Court
Fund

Public Safety
Fund

Advanced
Funding Grant

Fund

Economic
Development

Fund
Reimbursement

Grant Fund PEG Fees Fund

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 1,092,347 $ - $ - $ 1,092,347
Franchise Fees - - - - - 50,805 50,805
Intergovernmental - 8,603 16,381 - 446,161 - 471,145
Service Fees - - - 47,043 - - 47,043
Fines and Forfeitures 35,149 - - - - - 35,149
Earnings on Investments 3,576 955 623 34,160 688 5,144 45,146
Other - - 3,600 - 4,423 - 8,023
Total Revenues 38,725 9,558 20,604 1,173,550 451,272 55,949 1,749,658

EXPENDITURES:
General Government - - 602 - 154,000 - 154,602
Public Safety - - 10,024 - 34,922 - 44,946
Municipal Court 19,400 - - - - - 19,400
Economic Development - - - 1,385,737 261,509 - 1,647,246
Total Expenditures 19,400 - 10,626 1,385,737 450,431 - 1,866,194

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
  over Expenditures 19,325 9,558 9,978 (212,187) 841 55,949 (116,536)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Transfers In - - - 384,000 - - 384,000
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses) - - - 384,000 - - 384,000

Net Change in Fund Balance 19,325 9,558 9,978 171,813 841 55,949 267,464

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 179,873 56,887 34,917 1,797,019 3,515 303,147 2,375,358

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 199,198 $ 66,445 $ 44,895 $ 1,968,832 $ 4,356 $ 359,096 $ 2,642,822

79

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Municipal Court Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Fines and Forfeitures $ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 35,149 $ 5,149
Earnings on Investments 2,600 2,600 3,576 976
Total Revenues 32,600 32,600 38,725 6,125

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 23,163 23,163 11,588 11,575
Supplies 49,000 49,000 7,812 41,188
Maintenance and Materials 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Total Expenditures 73,163 73,163 19,400 53,763

Net Change in Fund Balance (40,563) (40,563) 19,325 59,888

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 179,873 179,873 179,873 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 139,310 $ 139,310 $ 199,198 $ 59,888

80

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Public Safety Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 8,603 $ 8,603
Earnings on Investments 400 400 955 555
Total Revenues 400 400 9,558 9,158

Net Change in Fund Balance 400 400 9,558 9,158

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 56,887 56,887 56,887 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 57,287 $ 57,287 $ 66,445 $ 9,158

81

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Advanced Funding Grant Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 8,100 $ 12,996 $ 16,381 $ 3,385
Earnings on Investments 400 400 623 223
Other - - 3,600 3,600
Total Revenues 8,500 13,396 20,604 7,208

EXPENDITURES:
Supplies - 1,896 8,549 (6,653)
Contractual Services 13,700 16,700 2,077 14,623
Total Expenditures 13,700 18,596 10,626 7,970

Net Change in Fund Balance (5,200) (5,200) 9,978 15,178

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 34,917 34,917 34,917 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 29,717 $ 29,717 $ 44,895 $ 15,178

82

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Economic Development Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 1,105,981 $ 1,105,981 $ 1,092,347 $ (13,634)
Service Fees 50,500 50,500 47,043 (3,457)
Earnings on Investments 30,000 30,000 34,160 4,160
Total Revenues 1,186,481 1,186,481 1,173,550 (12,931)

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits 479,272 479,272 479,214 58
Supplies 23,645 23,645 8,510 15,135
Maintenance and Materials 23,237 23,237 19,393 3,844
Contractual Services 1,327,180 1,327,180 861,623 465,557
Capital Replacement 16,997 16,997 16,997 -
Total Expenditures 1,870,331 1,870,331 1,385,737 484,594

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over/(Under) Expenditures (683,850) (683,850) (212,187) 471,663

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers In 768,000 768,000 384,000 (384,000)
Total other financing sources
(uses) 768,000 768,000 384,000 (384,000)

Net Change in Fund Balance 84,150 84,150 171,813 87,663

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,797,019 1,797,019 1,797,019 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 1,881,169 $ 1,881,169 $ 1,968,832 $ 87,663

83

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Reimbursement Grant Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ - $ 894,465 $ 446,161 $ (448,304)
Earnings on Investments - - 688 688
Other - - 4,423 4,423
Total Revenues - 894,465 451,272 (443,193)

EXPENDITURES:
Salaries and Fringe Benefits - - 4,689 (4,689)
Supplies - - 95,154 (95,154)
Contractual Services - 894,465 350,588 543,877
Total Expenditures - 894,465 450,431 444,034

Net Change in Fund Balance - - 841 841

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 3,515 3,515 3,515 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 3,515 $ 3,515 $ 4,356 $ 841

84

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Non-Major Governmental Funds

PEG Fees Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Year Ended September 30, 2020

2020

Budget Actual GAAP

Variance With
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Basis (Negative)

REVENUES:
Franchise Fees $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 50,805 $ 805
Earnings on Investments 1,500 1,500 5,144 3,644
Total Revenues 51,500 51,500 55,949 4,449

Net Change in Fund Balance 51,500 51,500 55,949 4,449

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 303,147 303,147 303,147 -

Fund Balance at End of Year $ 354,647 $ 354,647 $ 359,096 $ 4,449

85

DRAFT



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Internal Service Funds: 
Internal Service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or
agencies of the government and to other government units on a cost
reimbursement basis. 

The Capital Replacement Fund is used to account for financial resources
set aside annually to replace equipment as its useful life is consumed. 

The Information Technology Replacement Fund is used to account for
financial resources set aside annually to replace technology as its useful
life is consumed.

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2020

Capital
Replacement

Information
Technology

Replacement Total
ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 3,981,570 $ 3,632,674 $ 7,614,244
Interest Receivable 5,522 5,165 10,687

Total Current Assets 3,987,092 3,637,839 7,624,931

Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress 122,400 421,123 543,523
Machinery and Equipment 8,210,278 5,679,521 13,889,799
Accumulated Depreciation (4,010,333) (4,189,374) (8,199,707)

Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation 4,322,345 1,911,270 6,233,615

Total Assets 8,309,437 5,549,109 13,858,546

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 227,623 39,688 267,311

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,322,345 1,911,270 6,233,615
Unrestricted 3,759,469 3,598,151 7,357,620

Total Net Position $ 8,081,814 $ 5,509,421 $ 13,591,235

86

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Capital
Replacement

Information
Technology

Replacement
Total Internal
Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES:
Other Income $ 93,196 $ 300 $ 93,496
Department Contributions 1,288,000 756,863 2,044,863
Total Operating Revenues 1,381,196 757,163 2,138,359

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Supplies - 52,704 52,704
Maintenance and Materials - 14,719 14,719
Contractual Services 4,764 18,309 23,073
Total Operating Expenses (Excluding Depreciation) 4,764 85,732 90,496
Depreciation 721,704 368,847 1,090,551
Total Operating Expenses 726,468 454,579 1,181,047

OPERATING INCOME 654,728 302,584 957,312

NON-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES):
Investment Income 16 58 74
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Assets 93,835 - 93,835
Total Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 93,851 58 93,909

NET INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS
  AND CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 748,579 302,642 1,051,221

Transfers Out (98,291) (62,003) (160,294)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 650,288 240,639 890,927

Net Position at Beginning of Year 7,431,526 5,268,782 12,700,308

Net Position at End of Year $ 8,081,814 $ 5,509,421 $ 13,591,235

87

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Proprietary Funds - Internal Service Funds
 

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2020

Capital
Replacement

Information
Technology

Replacement
Total Internal
Service Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Department Contributions  $  1,381,196  $  757,163  $  2,138,359 
Payments to Suppliers (4,536) (82,508) (87,044)

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities  1,376,660  674,655  2,051,315 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
  FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,038,651) (725,846) (1,764,497)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets  93,835  -  93,835 
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Capital and Related
  Financing Activities (944,816) (725,846) (1,670,662)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest on Cash and Investments  4,630  5,162  9,792 

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Investing Activities  4,630  5,162  9,792 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  436,474 (46,029)  390,445 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, October 1  3,545,096  3,678,703  7,223,799 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 30  $  3,981,570  $  3,632,674  $  7,614,244 

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss)
  to Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss)  $  654,728  $  302,584  $  957,312 
Adjustments to Reconcile Income/(Loss) from Operations
  to Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities:
    Depreciation  721,704  368,847  1,090,551 
    Change in Assets and Liabilities:
      Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable  228  3,224  3,452 
Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities  $  1,376,660  $  674,655  $  2,051,315 

NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Capital Assets in Accounts Payable  $  226,345  $  35,696  $  262,041 
Transfers of Capital Assets (98,291) (62,003) (160,294)
Net Non-Cash Items from Capital and Related
  Financing Activities  128,054  $ (26,307)  $  101,747 

88

DRAFT



STATISTICAL SECTION

(Unaudited)

The Statistical Section presents detailed information to assist in
understanding the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information. It includes five categories of
information:

Financial Trends (tables 1-6) – contain trend information to help the
reader understand how the government’s financial position has changed
over time. 

Revenue Capacity (tables 7-10) – contain information to help the reader
assess the government’s ability to generate its own revenues.

Debt Capacity (tables 11-15) – present information to help the reader
assess the affordability of the government’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information (tables 16-18) – offer
demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
socioeconomic environment within which the government’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information (tables 19-21) – contain employee and capital
asset data to help the reader understand how the information in the
government’s financial report relates to the services the government
provides and the activities it performs.

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 1

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Governmental Activities
 Net Investment in Capital Assets  $  129,261,976  $  129,471,095  $  135,260,723  $  120,034,622  $  121,444,364  $  122,079,968  $  124,922,785  $  125,983,819  $  125,521,642  $  121,008,111 
 Restricted for:
   Debt Service  1,007,330  1,698,555  904,422  606,471  555,279  660,955  500,094  310,619  83,524  63,194 
   Promotion of Tourism and Hotel Industry  -  1,993,040  1,942,378  1,682,165  2,529,271  3,869,581  4,334,037  4,167,549  3,449,095  3,239,356 
   Child Safety  -  30,635  30,635  101,664  190,635  98,540  86,906  84,284  90,718  110,712 
   Justice Administration  -  93,472  93,472  31,898  63,638  30,952  21,851  23,222  52,722  56,887 
   Court Technology  -  77,179  74,895  79,591  91,942  86,147  74,667  33,370  27,831  27,651 
   Building Security  -  66,716  64,742  65,782  176,512  63,655  53,584  -  -  - 
   Court Security  -  -  -  19,185  19,190  28,125  46,900  46,844  37,495  32,841 
   Public Safety  -  -  -  -  -  -  33,238  84,870  101,240  123,730 
   Other purposes  -  32,449  22,235  -  25,484  33,694  191,575  242,042  303,147  359,096 
 Unrestricted  21,729,168  20,945,903  13,969,454  25,658,883  7,051,958  7,031,223  29,561,964  31,164,711  33,180,155  31,791,785 

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities  $  151,998,474  $  154,409,044  $  152,362,956  $  148,280,261  $  132,148,273  $  133,982,840  $  159,827,601  $  162,141,330  $  162,847,569  $  156,813,363 

Business-type Activities
 Net Investment in Capital Assets  $  51,113,892  $  49,639,925  $  57,425,620  $  69,948,582  $  63,308,088  $  62,547,252  $  65,363,662  $  64,971,096  $  63,424,919  $  69,493,275 
 Unrestricted  9,834,613  14,194,945  17,372,627  16,460,850  23,121,874  24,910,364  22,218,951  22,483,060  25,438,188  25,266,288 

 $  60,948,505  $  63,834,870  $  74,798,247  $  86,409,432  $  86,429,962  $  87,457,616  $  87,582,613  $  87,454,156  $  88,863,107  $  94,759,563 

Primary Government
 Net Investment in Capital Assets  $  180,375,868  $  179,111,020  $  192,686,343  $  189,983,204  $  184,752,452  $  184,627,220  $  190,286,447  $  190,954,915  $  188,946,561  $  190,501,386 
 Restricted for: 
   Debt Service  1,007,330  1,698,555  904,422  606,471  555,279  660,955  500,094  310,619  83,524  63,194 
   Promotion of Tourism and Hotel Industry  -  1,993,040  1,942,378  1,682,165  2,529,271  3,869,581  4,334,037  4,167,549  3,449,095  3,239,356 
   Child Safety  -  30,635  30,635  101,664  190,635  98,540  86,906  84,284  90,718  110,712 
   Justice Administration  -  93,472  93,472  31,898  63,638  30,952  21,851  23,222  52,722  56,887 
   Court Technology  -  77,179  74,895  79,591  91,942  86,147  74,667  33,370  27,831  27,651 
   Building Security  -  66,716  64,742  65,782  176,512  63,655  53,584  -  -  - 
   Court Security  -  -  -  19,185  19,190  28,125  46,900  46,844  37,495  32,841 
   Public Safety  -  -  -  -  -  -  33,238  84,870  101,240  123,730 
   Other Purposes  -  32,449  22,235  -  25,484  33,694  191,575  242,042  303,147  359,096 
 Unrestricted  31,563,781  35,140,848  31,342,081  42,119,733  30,173,832  31,941,587  51,780,915  53,647,771  58,618,343  57,058,073 

Total Net Position - Primary Government  $  212,946,979  $  218,243,914  $  227,161,203  $  234,689,693  $  218,578,235  $  221,440,456  $  247,410,214  $  249,595,486  $  251,710,676  $  251,572,926 

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

Note: 2015 and prior Public Safety included in Other Purposes. Starting in 2017, Public Safety is separate from Other Purposes.

89

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

2011 2012 2013 2014
Expenses
    Governmental Activities:
        General Government  $  6,709,095  $  6,485,716  $  7,021,312  $  7,938,875 
        Public Safety  14,914,759  15,130,157  15,229,474  15,765,099 
        Development Services  866,023  879,253  925,830  932,247 
        Streets  4,913,524  5,028,071  8,387,857  6,450,628 
        Parks and Recreation  4,742,946  4,963,327  5,062,784  5,597,254 
        Visitor Services  6,431,136  6,852,198  7,239,033  7,358,141 
        Interest on Long-Term Debt  2,261,571  2,548,945  3,054,940  3,037,574 
Total Governmental Activities  40,839,054  41,887,667  46,921,230  47,079,818 

Business-type Activities:
    Airport  4,387,384  4,526,398  5,188,321  6,027,300 
    Utilities  8,633,217  9,178,844  9,459,791  10,317,160 
    Storm Water  -  -  234,257  768,016 
Total Business-type Activities  13,020,601  13,705,242  14,882,369  17,112,476 

Total Expenses - Primary Government  $  53,859,655  $  55,592,909  $  61,803,599  $  64,192,294 

Program Revenues
    Governmental Activities:
        Charges for Services:
            General Government  $  143,529  $  208,734  $  225,731  $  235,233 
            Public Safety  1,899,711  2,225,165  1,611,320  1,506,770 
            Development Services  1,213,741  956,089  888,908  904,895 
            Streets  2,299,731  378,982  384,303  390,453 
            Parks and Recreation  107,387  114,164  114,866  102,288 
            Visitor Services  2,007,821  2,429,686  2,379,812  2,195,803 
        Operating Grants and Contributions  223,792  164,749  73,578  19,093 
        Capital Grants and Contributions  3,429,804  568,285  -  - 
Total Governmental Activities  11,325,516  7,045,854  5,678,518  5,354,535 

    Business-type Activities:
        Charges for Services:
            Airport  4,526,593  4,255,547  4,505,430  4,857,759 
            Utilities  10,740,568  11,128,700  10,802,692  9,953,099 
            Storm Water  -  -  1,307,573  1,640,615 
        Operating Grants and Contributions  -  -  -  - 
        Capital Grants and Contributions  9,668,165  1,258,798  9,331,840  7,660,647 
Total Business-type Activities  24,935,326  16,643,045  25,947,535  24,112,120 

Total Program Revenues - Primary Government  $  36,260,842  $  23,688,899  $  31,626,053  $  29,466,655 

Net (Expense)/Revenue
    Governmental Activities  $ (29,513,538)  $ (34,841,813)  $ (41,242,712)  $ (41,725,283)
    Business-Type Activities  11,914,725  2,937,803  11,065,166  6,999,644 
Total Net Expense - Primary Government  $ (17,598,813)  $ (31,904,010)  $ (30,177,546)  $ (34,725,639)

General Revenues
    Taxes:
        Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes  $  15,772,858  $  17,400,696  $  17,975,149  $  19,484,538 
        Sales Taxes  10,604,803  11,988,116  13,029,712  14,222,194 
        Franchise Taxes  2,792,601  2,699,520  3,021,899  2,806,656 
        Hotel/Motel Taxes  4,000,786  4,295,149  4,575,083  5,011,671 
    Interest on Investments  148,966  99,065  133,140  130,419 
    Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets  -  -  -  - 
    Miscellaneous  772,276  769,837  461,641  613,432 
 Transfers  -  -  - (4,626,322)
Total General Revenues and Transfers  34,092,290  37,252,383  39,196,624  37,642,588 

Business-type Activities
    Interest on Investments (16,178) (51,843) (71,264) (22,013)
    Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets  -  -  -  - 
    Miscellaneous  10,145  405 (30,525)  7,232 
    Transfers  -  -  -  4,626,322 
Total Business-type Activities (6,033) (51,438) (101,789)  4,611,541 

Change in Net Position
    Governmental Activities  4,578,752  2,410,570 (2,046,088) (4,082,695)
    Business-type Activities  11,908,692  2,886,365  10,963,377  11,611,185 
Total Change in Net Position - Primary Government  $  16,487,444  $  5,296,935  $  8,917,289  $  7,528,490 

SOURCE:  Town o f Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

90

DRAFT



Table 2

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

 $  8,730,944  $  10,015,214  $  7,184,325  $  10,218,620  $  10,149,540  $  10,206,304 
 16,820,899  17,528,619  7,021,636  17,814,777  19,855,190  20,337,267 
 1,032,105  1,278,232  100,924  1,379,071  3,137,715  3,320,919 
 8,105,373  6,567,732  6,660,591  7,249,140  7,677,651  8,326,816 
 5,517,049  5,796,136  4,259,992  6,068,682  6,840,345  6,784,214 
 6,106,103  7,537,477  6,839,484  7,118,492  6,884,597  4,310,828 
 3,018,672  2,417,435  1,713,819  2,038,203  1,938,010  2,153,845 

 49,331,145  51,140,845  33,780,771  51,886,985  56,483,048  55,440,193 

 5,893,611  6,454,693  6,509,127  6,996,377  6,574,351  6,893,786 
 10,748,886  10,821,202  10,081,401  12,708,842  12,329,112  12,361,224 

 848,354  2,092,187  1,408,133  820,337  1,427,551  1,361,880 
 17,490,851  19,368,082  17,998,661  20,525,556  20,331,014  20,616,890 

 $  66,821,996  $  70,508,927  $  51,779,432  $  72,412,541  $  76,814,062  $  76,057,083 

 $  688,005  $  753,062  $  961,336  $  407,531  $  763,244  $  770,105 
 945,217  1,070,517  947,071  848,523  916,430  889,868 

 1,015,053  774,364  1,242,223  1,414,425  1,379,721  1,227,095 
 400,561  375,564  391,126  414,493  403,676  505,545 
 82,681  74,719  86,595  82,122  64,453  34,914 

 1,890,522  3,532,634  3,249,506  2,206,293  1,834,700  286,892 
 25,806  27,472  51,063  106,322  100,904  634,082 

 158,253  148,518  -  121,578  130,000  100 
 5,206,098  6,756,850  6,928,920  5,601,287  5,593,128  4,348,601 

 5,138,479  5,387,660  5,479,786  6,197,849  6,725,125  5,392,936 
 9,877,262  10,576,707  10,983,136  12,178,231  11,847,562  12,818,071 
 1,726,526  1,883,841  2,034,484  2,140,112  2,237,953  2,322,350 

 -  129,093  50,000  121,226  69,241  207,000 
 1,025,835  2,130,601  148,158  395,372  457,426  1,358,225 

 17,768,102  20,107,902  18,695,564  21,032,790  21,337,307  22,098,582 

 $  22,974,200  $  26,864,752  $  25,624,484  $  26,634,077  $  26,930,435  $  26,447,183 

 $ (44,125,047)  $ (44,383,995)  $ (26,851,851)  $ (46,285,698)  $ (50,889,920)  $ (51,091,592)
 277,251  739,820  696,903  507,234  1,006,293  1,481,692 

 $ (43,847,796)  $ (43,644,175)  $ (26,154,948)  $ (45,778,464)  $ (49,883,627)  $ (49,609,900)

 $  20,385,225  $  22,593,188  $  23,572,225  $  23,600,531  $  25,180,507  $  27,005,415 
 14,104,584  13,847,507  15,126,354  17,734,689  16,258,669  15,036,200 
 2,828,420  3,074,519  2,664,422  2,624,458  2,513,414  2,227,367 
 5,510,406  6,132,432  5,996,924  5,507,072  5,436,211  3,232,320 

 181,811  316,288  472,896  831,714  1,365,659  1,116,915 
 -  -  -  27,311  12,935  21,503 

 590,619  581,628  3,736,791  292,272  328,764  207,898 
 -  -  800,000  500,000  500,000 (3,790,232)

 43,601,065  46,545,562  52,369,612  51,118,047  51,596,159  45,057,386 

 100,928  151,937  185,046  335,367  833,703  569,513 
 -  -  - (242,744)  -  24,005 

 512,888  135,897  43,048  22,102  68,955  31,014 
 -  - (800,000) (500,000) (500,000)  3,790,232 

 613,816  287,834 (571,906) (385,275)  402,658  4,414,764 

(523,982)  2,161,567  25,517,761  4,832,349  706,239 (6,034,206)
 891,067  1,027,654  124,997  121,959  1,408,951  5,896,456 

 $  367,085  $  3,189,221  $  25,642,758  $  4,954,308  $  2,115,190  $ (137,750)

91

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 3

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

 2011  2012  2013  2014  2015  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020 

General Fund
   Reserved  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  -  $  - 
   Nonspendable:
      Inventories  87,835  114,733  44,486  66,933  63,176  41,001  39,550  54,843  34,155  20,946 
      Prepaid Items  67,135  57,054  291,424  272,713  267,357  84,681  449,442  442,875  470,103  60,668 
   Assigned for Other Purposes  61,193  23,061  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
   Unassigned  10,150,531  12,178,216  13,643,488  15,166,365  11,271,328  12,765,117  15,879,046  20,465,238  20,083,986  20,052,825 
Total General Fund  10,366,694  12,373,064  13,979,398  15,506,011  11,601,861  12,890,799  16,368,038  20,962,956  20,588,244  20,134,439 

All Other Governmental Funds
   Reserved  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
   Unreserved, Reported in:
      Special Revenue Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
      Capital Project Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
      Debt Service Funds  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
      Hotel Fund  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
   Nonspendable:
      Prepaid Items  -  36,974  -  -  -  50,836  38,669  -  -  - 
   Restricted for:
      Debt Service  1,945,104  1,840,901  1,234,727  1,020,159  831,366  541,074  370,527  168,535  17,993  6,335 
      Promotion of Tourism & Hotel Industry  -  1,993,040  1,942,378  1,682,165  2,529,271  3,861,008  4,331,245  4,122,537  3,449,095  3,149,259 
      Capital Projects  9,851,762  39,654,624  41,716,425  45,239,484  40,901,630  33,162,293  21,834,283  13,687,452  11,067,329  39,199,567 
      Child Safety  -  -  93,472  101,664  88,479  98,540  86,906  84,284  90,718  110,712 
      Justice Administration  -  -  30,635  31,898  28,893  30,952  21,851  23,222  23,829  27,994 
      Court Technology  83,827  201,286  74,895  79,591  77,831  86,147  74,667  33,370  27,831  27,651 
      Building Security  72,462  66,716  64,742  65,782  63,789  63,655  53,584  -  -  - 
      Court Security  -  -  -  19,185  19,190  28,125  46,900  46,844  37,495  32,841 
      Public Safety  -  -  -  -  -  30,521  31,059  82,691  95,319  115,696 
      Other Purposes  45,500  36,793  22,235  -  25,484  327,000  191,575  242,042  303,147  359,096 
   Committed for:
      Capital Projects  -  -  -  -  -  -  7,688,169  8,120,427  8,951,963  10,368,778 
      Economic Development  358,676  516,823  664,401  477,233  752,819  968,178  1,257,093  1,437,025  1,797,019  1,968,832 
   Assigned for:
      Other Purposes  27,603  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
   Unassigned  115,223 (3,883) (6,364)  3,115  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total All Other Governmental Funds  12,500,157  44,343,274  45,837,546  48,720,276  45,318,752  39,248,329  36,026,528  28,048,429  25,861,738  55,366,761 

Total Governmental Funds  $  22,866,851  $  56,716,338  $  59,816,944  $  64,226,287  $  56,920,613  $  52,139,128  $  52,394,566  $  49,011,385  $  46,449,982  $  75,501,200 

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

Notes: The Town implemented GASB Statement No. 54 "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions" in fiscal year 2011.

2015 and prior Public Safety included in Other Purposes. Starting in 2016, Public Safety is separate from Other Purposes.

92

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section
Changes in Fund Balances,
Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)
(Unaudited)

 2011  2012  2013 2014

REVENUES:
Ad Valorem Taxes  $  15,803,400  $  17,471,642  $  18,047,998  $  19,274,720 
Non-Property Taxes  14,564,185  16,183,779  17,604,795  19,444,668 
Franchise Fees  2,760,188  2,727,370  2,695,073  2,818,869 
Licenses and Permits  1,210,058  953,709  886,423  901,645 
Intergovernmental  3,543,357  2,676,792  73,578  19,093 
Service Fees  2,840,317  3,104,592  2,939,606  2,758,458 
Fines and Forfeitures  1,104,477  1,208,773  1,082,115  988,574 
Earnings on Investments  122,128  75,972  122,169  143,299 
Rental Charges  733,957  931,619  1,119,737  1,119,551 
Recycling Proceeds  22,608  26,414  25,539  13,295 
Other  531,149  483,009  105,803  206,157 
Total Revenues  43,235,824  45,843,671  44,702,836  47,688,329 

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
    General Government  6,353,784  6,135,191  6,371,055  6,646,587 
    Public Safety  14,857,023  15,075,757  14,945,841  15,876,424 
    Development Services  885,218  886,705  927,684  962,584 
    Streets  1,612,011  1,612,699  1,750,500  1,727,403 
    Parks and Recreation  4,061,666  4,269,381  4,316,689  4,874,394 
    Visitor Services  7,655,939  6,171,479  7,116,334  6,730,501 
    Municipal Court  -  54,370  53,112  30,878 
    Economic Development  342,200  469,679  624,014  1,029,585 
Debt Service:
    Principal Retirement  3,873,610  4,738,040  4,701,161  5,086,153 
    Interest and Fiscal Charges  2,284,774  1,918,640  2,747,654  3,110,704 
    Debt Issuance Costs  -  141,666  -  - 
Capital Projects:
    Salaries and Fringe Benefits  -  -  -  - 
    Supplies  -  17,635  80,660  - 
    Maintenance and Materials  9,870  -  3,946  12,459 
    Other  -  -  138,236  - 
    Engineering and Contractual Services  1,846,919  796,958  2,165,061  422,982 
    Construction and Equipment  14,375,210  3,038,501  3,742,776  8,241,546 
Total Expenditures  58,158,224  45,326,701  49,684,723  54,752,200 

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues
over Expenditures (14,922,400)  516,970 (4,981,887) (7,063,871)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES):
Proceeds from Refunding Bonds Issued  -  46,315,000  -  - 
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent  - (14,834,842)  -  - 
Issuance of Debt  -  -  7,790,000  12,000,000 
Discount on issuance of bonds  - (632,482)  -  - 
Bond Issuance Costs  -  -  -  - 
Premium on Issuance of Bonds  -  4,133,956  292,493  97,299 
Transfers In  1,384,156  1,258,263  578,501  570,000 
Transfers Out (1,384,156) (3,074,679) (578,501) (570,000)
Proceeds on Asset Sales  -  -  -  - 
Total Other Financing Sources/(Uses)  -  33,165,216  8,082,493  12,097,299 

Net Change in Fund Balance  $ (14,922,400)  $  33,682,186  $  3,100,606  $  5,033,428 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 
Non-Capital Expenditures 15.40% 16.32% 17.27% 16.11%

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports

93

DRAFT



Table 4

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

 $  20,560,124  $  22,559,004  $  23,521,642  $  23,783,670  $  25,196,771  $  26,876,741 
 19,728,511  20,181,697  21,217,028  23,148,710  21,595,724  18,432,169 
 2,828,420  3,074,519  2,664,422  2,624,458  2,513,414  2,227,367 
 1,011,223  768,964  1,225,373  1,404,035  1,366,941  1,183,285 

 180,612  160,619  15,565  16,228  193,904  471,145 
 2,543,707  4,463,789  4,520,358  3,620,748  2,997,653  2,157,047 

 764,144  603,282  468,734  358,737  415,721  263,146 
 277,680  372,088  472,896  831,714  1,365,659  1,116,915 

 1,201,389  949,956  704,701  635,165  566,257  270,001 
 10,403  2,426  3,258  11,407  616  162 

 199,880  377,608  391,883  324,961  254,100  306,147 
 49,306,093  53,513,952  55,205,860  56,759,833  56,466,760  53,304,125 

 7,657,465  7,598,584  8,057,632  8,381,216  8,923,060  8,946,301 
 16,699,726  16,301,539  16,945,126  17,919,259  18,708,501  19,215,910 
 1,090,973  1,207,871  1,158,967  1,374,246  1,350,598  1,501,596 
 1,803,139  1,791,257  1,942,584  1,895,171  1,777,128  1,799,513 
 4,755,341  4,912,455  5,020,975  5,054,566  5,520,903  5,407,703 
 5,454,910  7,077,371  7,595,136  6,780,909  7,313,226  3,622,979 

 60,426  17,610  66,616  75,904  53,096  19,400 
 1,281,649  1,349,920  1,747,750  1,475,201  1,553,813  1,647,246 

 5,473,152  5,800,151  5,618,331  4,909,148  4,280,000  4,105,000 
 3,417,820  3,089,643  2,810,607  2,631,422  2,475,279  2,915,428 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  - 

 5,076,254  62,647  416,179  758,687  1,469,752  1,780,857 
 3,840,912  9,086,389  7,583,129  9,414,596  6,115,742  6,792,067 

 56,611,767  58,295,437  58,963,032  60,670,325  59,541,098  57,754,000 

(7,305,674) (4,781,485) (3,757,172) (3,910,492) (3,074,338) (4,449,875)

 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  - (13,090,212)
 -  -  -  -  -  43,740,000 
 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  - 
 -  -  -  -  -  2,829,802 

 5,226,082  2,349,124  7,624,205  3,618,152  5,686,504  3,992,900 
(5,226,082) (2,349,124) (6,824,205) (3,118,152) (5,186,504) (3,992,900)

 -  -  3,212,610  27,311  12,935  21,503 
 -  -  4,012,610  527,311  512,935  33,501,093 

 $ (7,305,674)  $ (4,781,485)  $  255,438  $ (3,383,181)  $ (2,561,403)  $  29,051,218 

18.38% 18.07% 16.41% 14.71% 12.98% 13.81%

94

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 5

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
BY SELECTED SOURCES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Licenses
Fiscal Franchise and Inter- Service Fines and Rental
Year Taxes Fees Permits governmental Fees Forfeitures    Interest Charges   Other (1) Total 

2011  30,367,585  2,760,188  1,210,058  3,543,357  2,840,317  1,104,477  122,128  733,957  22,608  42,704,675 

2012  33,655,421  2,727,370  953,709  2,676,792  3,104,592  1,208,773  75,972  931,619  26,414  45,360,662 

2013  35,652,793  2,695,073  886,423  73,578  2,939,606  1,082,115  122,169  1,119,737  25,539  44,597,033 

2014  38,719,388  2,818,869  901,645  19,093  2,758,458  988,574  143,299  1,119,551  13,295  47,482,172 

2015  40,288,635  2,828,420  1,011,223  180,612  2,543,707  764,144  277,680  1,201,389  10,403  49,106,213 

2016  42,740,701  3,074,519  768,964  160,619  4,463,789  603,282  372,088  949,956  2,426  53,136,344 

2017  44,738,670  2,664,422  1,225,373  15,565  4,520,358  468,734  472,896  704,701  3,258  54,813,977 

2018  46,932,380  2,624,458  1,404,035  16,228  3,620,748  358,737  831,714  635,165  336,368  56,759,833 

2019  46,792,495  2,513,414  1,366,941  193,904  2,997,653  415,721  1,365,659  566,257  254,716  56,466,760 

2020  45,308,910  2,227,367  1,183,285  471,145  2,157,047  263,146  1,116,915  270,001  306,309  53,304,125 

Table includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Project, and Debt Service Funds 

Notes: (1)    Includes recycling fees and contributions.

95

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 6

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal General   Public Development Parks and Visitor Economic Debt
Year Government3    Safety Services Streets    Recreation1    Services2 Development Service Total 

2011  6,353,784  14,857,023  885,218  1,612,011  4,061,666  7,655,939  342,200  6,158,384  41,926,225 

2012  6,135,191  15,130,127  886,705  1,612,699  4,269,381  6,171,479  469,679  6,798,346  41,473,607 

2013  6,371,055  14,998,953  927,684  1,750,500  4,316,689  7,116,334  624,014  7,448,815  43,554,044 

2014  6,646,587  15,907,302  962,584  1,727,403  4,874,394  6,730,501  1,029,585  8,196,857  46,075,213 

2015  7,657,465  16,760,152  1,090,973  1,803,139  4,755,341  5,454,910  1,281,649  8,890,972  47,694,601 

2016  7,598,584  16,319,149  1,207,871  1,791,257  4,912,455  7,077,371  1,349,920  8,889,794  49,146,401 

2017  8,057,632  17,011,742  1,158,967  1,942,584  5,020,975  7,595,136  1,747,750  8,428,938  50,963,724 

2018  8,457,120  17,919,259  1,374,246  1,895,171  5,054,566  6,780,909  1,475,201  7,540,570  50,497,042 

2019  8,976,156  18,708,501  1,350,598  1,777,128  5,520,903  7,313,226  1,553,813  6,755,279  51,955,604 

2020  8,965,701  19,215,910  1,501,596  1,799,513  5,407,703  3,622,979  1,647,246  7,020,428  49,181,076 

Table includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service funds.

Notes:

(1) The Arbor Fund was created in fiscal year 1996 to account for the activities of the Addison Parks Foundation, a Texas non-profit corporation, and is included in
 the Parks and Recreation category through fiscal year 2009.  As of October 1, 2009, the bylaws of the foundation were amended to remove the direct
 involvement of the Town in the foundation's affairs.

(2) Hotel Fund.

         (3)     Includes Municipal Court

96

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 7

SUMMARY OF TAX REVENUES AND FRANCHISE FEES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Mixed Hotel
Fiscal Property 1% Town Beverage Franchise Occupancy
Year Taxes1 Sales Tax Taxes Fees Tax Total

2011  15,803,400  9,632,640  930,759  2,760,188  4,000,786  33,127,773 

2012  17,471,642  11,089,866  798,764  2,727,370  4,295,149  36,382,791 

2013  18,047,998  12,217,439  812,273  2,695,073  4,575,083  38,347,866 

2014  19,274,720  13,440,938  994,609  2,818,869  5,009,121  41,538,257 

2015  20,560,124  13,038,912  1,176,643  2,828,420  5,512,956  43,117,055 

2016  22,559,004  12,831,723  1,211,761  3,074,519  6,138,213  45,815,220 

2017  23,521,642  14,032,616  1,229,708  2,664,422  5,954,703  47,403,091 

2018  23,783,670  16,449,993  1,146,633  2,624,458  5,552,084  49,556,838 

2019  25,196,771  15,017,082  1,151,057  2,513,414  5,427,585  49,305,909 

2020  26,876,741  14,302,624  888,599  2,227,367  3,240,946  47,536,277 

Table includes General, Special Revenue, Capital Project, and Debt Service funds.

Notes:
   (1) Includes penalty and interest.

97

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 8

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED
MARKET VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Less
Personal Tax-Exempt Total

Actual Real Property Property Property Direct
Fiscal Levy Assessed Assessed Assessed Total Tax
Year Year Value1 Value Value Taxable Value Rate2

2011 2010  2,872,659,100  601,788,640 (415,674,023)  3,058,773,717  0.4960 

2012 2011  2,864,186,430  586,674,080 (422,817,942)  3,028,042,568  0.5300 

2013 2012  2,955,211,640  580,038,950 (400,355,712)  3,134,894,878  0.5800 

2014 2013  3,270,235,970  621,418,790 (401,647,062)  3,490,007,698  0.5800 

2015 2014  3,538,702,310  685,963,840 (419,085,309)  3,805,580,841  0.5718 

2016 2015  3,742,314,940  722,808,570 (428,399,743)  4,036,723,767  0.5618 

2017 2016  3,996,508,870  757,661,770 (453,899,085)  4,300,271,555  0.5792 

2018 2017  4,179,274,260  730,791,690 (459,532,446)  4,450,533,504  0.5605 

2019 2018  4,477,513,780  729,708,210 (481,462,821)  4,725,759,169  0.5500 

2020 2019  4,557,534,840  759,254,790 (496,882,188)  4,819,907,442  0.5835 

SOURCE: Dallas Central Appraisal District

Notes:
(1) Assessed value is 100% of estimated market value.
(2) Per $100 of valuation.

98

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 9

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
(PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City Direct Rates1 Overlapping Rates2

General Total Dallas
Operating Obligation Direct Community Carrollton/ County Total

Fiscal General Debt Ad Valorem Dallas College Dallas Farmers Hospital Ad Valorem
Year Rates Service Rate County District ISD Branch ISD District Rate

2011  0.3479  0.1821  0.5300  0.2531  0.0992  1.2378  1.3469  0.2710  2.3911 

2012  0.3819  0.1981  0.5800  0.2531  0.0997  1.2903  1.3568  0.2710  2.4941 

2013  0.3593  0.2207  0.5800  0.2530  0.1194  1.2903  1.3306  0.2710  2.5137 

2014  0.3588  0.2130  0.5718  0.2531  0.1247  1.2820  1.3235  0.2760  2.5076 

2015  0.3437  0.2181  0.5618  0.2531  0.1248  1.2820  1.3033  0.2860  2.5077 

2016  0.3767  0.2024  0.5791  0.2531  0.1237  1.2821  1.2817  0.2860  2.5240 

2017  0.3812  0.1793  0.5606  0.2524  0.1229  1.2821  1.3917  0.2794  2.4974 

2018  0.3970  0.1530  0.5500  0.2531  0.1242  1.2821  1.3810  0.2794  2.4888 

2019  0.4073  0.1427  0.5500  0.2531  0.1240  1.4120  1.3700  0.2794  2.6185 

2020  0.4341  0.1494  0.5835  0.2431  0.1240  1.3104  1.2684  0.2695  2.5305 

SOURCE: Dallas County Tax Office

Notes:
(1) The Town's operating tax rate may be increased only by a majority vote of the City Council up to the limit prescribed by   

                   State law, after which the Town's residents may petition for a vote.  Rates for debt service are set based on each year's
     requirements.

(2) Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the Town of Addison.  
                  The Carrollton/Farmers Branch ISD tax rate is excluded from the total Ad Valorem rate because most of the property           
                  owners in Addison are within the Dallas ISD geographic boundaries.

99

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 10

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collections Within
Actual Taxes Levied the Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date

Fiscal Levy for the Current Tax Percentage in Subsequent Total Tax Percentage
Year Year Fiscal Year Collections of Levy Years (1) Collections of Levy

2011 2010  16,249,988  15,678,212 96.5%  52,882  15,731,094 96.8%

2012 2011  17,612,952  17,280,758 98.1%  119,185  17,399,943 98.8%

2013 2012  18,227,706  17,940,483 98.4%  32,002  17,972,485 98.6%

2014 2013  20,000,565  19,246,998 96.2% (11,276)  19,235,722 96.2%

2015 2014  21,430,622  20,641,789 96.3% (125,202)  20,516,587 95.7%

2016 2015  23,445,994  22,584,093 96.3% (77,086)  22,507,007 96.0%

2017 2016  24,175,503  23,458,172 97.0% (6,535)  23,451,637 97.0%

2018 2017  24,531,963  23,833,997 97.2% (115,949)  23,718,048 96.7%

2019 2018  26,050,652  25,281,036 97.0% (152,247)  25,128,789 96.5%

2020 2019  28,199,326  27,322,025 96.9% (515,237)  26,806,788 95.1%

SOURCE: Dallas County Tax Office
Notes:

(1) Negative amounts represent refunds of taxes to property owners who appealed their values for the current 
                  year (or previous years) to the Dallas Central Appraisal District and received lower valuations as a result of the

   appeal.

100

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 11

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

General Certificates General Certificates Total Percentage
Fiscal Obligation of Obligation of Primary of Personal Per
Year Bonds Obligation Bonds Obligation Government Income (%) Capita

2011  19,575,000  32,443,770  5,245,003  9,176,230  66,440,003  11.14  5,087 
2012  40,587,307  40,779,773  2,656,792  10,580,639  94,604,511  15.50  6,916 
2013  44,865,727  39,564,153  -  20,668,963  105,098,843  16.11  7,594 
2014  52,868,244  38,578,326  2,145,000  25,322,281  118,913,851  15.71  7,834 
2015  48,157,452  37,513,716  1,805,000  24,545,293  112,021,461  14.93  7,213 
2016  65,165,138  15,642,986  8,122,465  17,312,599  106,243,188  14.10  6,810 
2017  59,974,766  14,009,287  7,663,243  16,305,591  97,952,887  12.89  6,227 
2018  56,085,819  12,309,771  7,186,019  15,274,984  90,856,593  10.65  5,765 
2019  51,888,184  11,604,403  6,410,005  28,118,950  98,021,542  11.31  6,123 
2020  63,729,611  28,222,499  5,615,515  27,095,962  124,663,587  15.55  7,895 

SOURCE: Town of Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.
See Table 16 for personal income and population data.

101

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 12

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage
General Certificates Less: Amounts Total of Actual

Fiscal Obligation of Available in Debt Outstanding Taxable Per
Year Bonds1 Obligation1 Service Fund 2 Debt Value (%) Capita

 2011  24,820,003  41,620,000  1,127,831  65,312,172  2.14  5,000.93 
 2012  43,244,099  51,360,412  1,079,254  93,525,257  3.09  6,836.64 
 2013  44,865,727  60,233,116  1,234,727  103,864,116  3.31  7,504.63 
 2014  55,013,244  63,900,607  1,020,159  117,893,692  3.38  7,766.38 
 2015  49,962,452  62,059,009  831,367  111,190,094  2.92  7,159.70 
 2016  73,287,603  32,955,585  541,075  105,702,113  2.62  6,775.78 
 2017  67,638,009  30,314,878  370,527  97,582,360  2.27  6,203.58 
 2018  63,271,838  27,584,755  168,535  90,688,058  2.04  5,754.32 
 2019  57,654,198  39,023,647  17,993  96,659,852  2.05  6,121.59 
 2020  69,345,126  55,318,461  6,333  124,657,254  2.59  7,894.70 

 
NOTES: (1) The schedule of general bonded debt includes general obligation debt of both governmental activities and

business-type activities.
(2) This is the amount restricted for debt service principal payments at the fund level.

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports
See Table 8 for taxable values and Table 16 for population data.

102

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 13

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
Year Ended September 30, 2020

Estimated
Percent Share of

Taxing Jurisdiction Bonded Debt Applicable1 Overlapping Debt

Carrollton-Farmers Branch ISD  $  230,980,000 1.34%  $  3,095,132 
Dallas County  151,495,000 1.60%  2,423,920 
Dallas County Community College District  182,800,000 1.60%  2,924,800 
Dallas County Hospital District  600,919,900 1.60%  9,614,718 
Dallas County Schools  37,306,896 1.60%  596,910 
Dallas ISD  2,527,526,161 3.20%  80,880,837 

Total Overlapping Debt  99,536,317 

Town of Addison (Direct Debt)  $  91,952,110 (2) 100%  91,952,110 

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt  $  191,488,427 

Ratio of Overlapping Bonded Debt to 2018 Taxable Assessed Valuation 3.97%

Per Capita Overlapping Bonded Debt  $  12,127 

 SOURCE:  Municipal Advisory Council of Texas
                  See Table 8 for taxable values and Table 16 for population data.

Notes:
     (1)The percentage of overlapping debt is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable 

percentages were estimated by determining the assessed valuation of taxable property within both the
overlapping taxing body and the Town's boundaries and dividing that shared value by the total taxable   
assessed value within the overlapping taxing body.

     (2)Total bonded debt shown for the Town of Addison excludes self-supporting debt and amount available for
repayment in the Debt Service funds.  It includes all bonded debt that is secured by ad valorem taxes.

103

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 14

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER AND SEWER FUND

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service Debt Service Requirements2

Revenue
Fiscal Gross Net Bond
Year Revenue Expense1 Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage3

2011  10,726,977  7,024,544  3,702,433  -  -  - N/A

2012  11,068,924  7,529,490  3,539,434  -  -  - N/A

2013  10,743,714  8,052,963  2,690,751  -  -  - N/A

2014  9,894,247  8,449,185  1,445,062  -  -  - N/A

2015  10,241,191  9,017,932  1,223,259  -  -  - N/A

2016  10,688,878  9,116,360  1,572,518  -  -  - N/A

2017  11,087,788  8,988,724  2,099,064  -  -  - N/A

2018  12,211,566  11,121,149  1,090,417  -  -  - N/A

2019  11,939,132  10,729,825  1,209,307  -  -  - N/A

2020  12,906,145  10,637,638  2,268,507  -  -  - N/A

Notes:
(1) Includes "operating expenses excluding depreciation" and "non-operating expenses excluding interest expense".
(2) Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only. It does not include the general obligation bonds

reported in the enterprise fund.
(3) Revenue bond coverage is equal to net revenue available for debt service divided by total principal and interest.

Revenue bonds were retired in fiscal year 2002.  Current year debt associated with the Town's Utility (Water
and Sewer) Fund is limited to general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation.  This debt is secured by
the Town's property taxes but is supported by Utility Fund revenues.

104

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 15

SCHEDULE OF COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION COVERAGE
HOTEL FUND

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Net Revenue Available for Debt Service Debt Service Requirements

Fiscal Gross Net Bond
Year Revenue Expenditure1 Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage2

2011  6,026,377  1,007,162  5,019,215  555,000  164,988  719,988  7.0 

2012  6,740,112  1,080,980  5,659,132  620,000  108,143  728,143  7.8 

2013  6,970,189  1,626,644  5,343,545  600,000  104,623  704,623  7.6 

2014  7,181,306  1,063,116  6,118,190  625,000  86,650  711,650  8.6 

2015  7,512,047  959,140  6,552,907  640,000  70,800  710,800  9.2 

2016  9,680,180  1,156,760  8,523,420  660,001  52,050  712,051  12.0 

2017  9,307,410  1,211,193  8,096,217  680,000  31,200  711,200  11.4 

2018  7,889,706  1,027,977  6,861,729  700,000  10,500  710,500  9.7 

2019  7,354,784  956,507  6,398,277  -  -  - N/A

2020  3,707,143  796,479  2,910,664  -  -  - N/A

Notes:
       (1) Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation bond covenants require only Conference Centre

expenditures be considered when calculating bond coverage.

       (2) Bond coverage is equal to net revenue available for debt service divided by total principal and interest.

105

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 16

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal Per Capita
Fiscal Estimated Assessed Income Personal Labor Unemployment
Year Population1 Valuations2 (Thousands) Income3 Force4 Rate5

2011  13,060  3,058,773,717  596,254  45,655  3,374,414 7.6%

2012  13,680  3,028,042,568  610,333  44,615  3,420,186 6.4%

2013  13,840  3,134,894,878  652,418  47,140  3,474,226 5.9%

2014  15,180  3,490,007,698  756,981  49,867  3,539,326 4.8%

2015  15,530  3,805,580,841  750,379  48,318  3,585,279 3.9%

2016  15,600  4,036,723,767  753,761  48,318  3,703,339 3.9%

2017  15,730  4,300,271,555  760,042  48,318  3,810,780 3.3%

2018  15,760  4,450,533,504  852,821  54,113  3,900,458 3.4%

2019  15,790  4,725,759,169  854,444  54,113  3,971,633 3.2%

2020  15,790  4,819,907,442  801,927  50,787  4,044,158 6.1%

SOURCES:

             (1) North Central Texas Council of Governments estimates

             (2) Dallas Central Appraisal District

             (3) United States Census American Community Survey; figures are based on the most current data available.

             (4) Texas Workforce Commission - Effective January 2005, data for cities of less than 25,000 was no longer 
provided.  The information presented represents the Dallas, Plano, Irving Metro Area.

             (5) Texas Workforce Commission - Effective January 2005, data for cities of less than 25,000 was no longer 
provided.  The information presented represents the City of Farmer's Branch, a neighboring city.

106

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 17

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020 2011

Percent Percent
of Total of Total

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property Valuation Rank Valuation Valuation Rank Valuation

FPG Colonnade LP Land, Office Buildings  $  220,385,240  1 4.57%
Post Addison Circle Mixed Development  206,500,000  2 4.28%  111,250,000  1 3.64%
SAVOYE2 LLC Apartments  128,200,000  3 2.66%
5100 Belt Line Investors LLC Insurance  95,000,000  4 1.97%
COP Spectrum Center LLC Office Buildings  84,598,250  5 1.76%
Fiori LLC Land, Hotel  82,450,000  6 1.71%
Woodbranch 14555 LLC Office Buildings  79,398,010  7 1.65%
Mary Kay Inc Office Buildings  79,015,000  8 1.64%
GS Addison Circle LLC Office Buildings  77,100,000  9 1.60%
Gaedeke Holdings IX LLC Office Buildings  72,470,000  10 1.50%
SP Millenium Center, LP Land, Office Buildings  105,185,040  2 3.44%
Richmont Properties Ltd Land, Office Buildings  61,454,040  3 2.01%
DCO Savoye LLC Apartments  46,500,000  4 1.52%
MHSS-Addison LP Land, Office Buildings  45,867,160  5 1.50%
MBNA Texas Properties Land, Office Buildings  44,742,720  6 1.46%
Behringer Harvard Addison Circle Land, Office Buildings  43,119,330  7 1.41%
Spectrum Center Partners Office Buildings  42,098,250  8 1.38%
G&I V VOP LP Land, Office Buildings  41,550,000  9 1.36%
Fairfield Addison Circle Apartments  37,300,000  10 1.22%

 $  1,125,116,500 23.34%  $  579,066,540 18.94%

SOURCE: Dallas County Tax Office (2020); Town of Addison CAFR (2011)

107

DRAFT



 
Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 18

MAJOR EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020 2011
Estimated Percent Estimated Percent
Number of of Total Number of of Total

Company Type of Business Employees Employees Employees   Employees

Mary Kay Cosmetics Cosmetics  1,200 1.80%  1,070 2.59%
Bank of America Finance  1,200 1.80%  3,400 1.83%
Homeward Residential Inc Finance  750 1.13% N/A N/A
Regus Texas Real Estate  590 0.89% N/A N/A
Barrett Daffin Frappier Turner Attorney Firm  550 0.83%  566 1.24%
Expense Reduction Analysts Consulting Service  501 0.75% N/A N/A
Maxim Integrated Products Manufacturing  500 0.75% N/A N/A
Intercontinental Hotel Dallas Hospitality  450 0.68%  250 0.55%
National Bankruptcy Services Bankruptcy Service  450 0.68% N/A N/A
Zurich American Insurance Co. Insurance  400 0.60% N/A N/A

Rexel
Industrial Electric
Supplies N/A  500 1.10%

United Surgical Partners Medical N/A  360 0.79%
Hilton International Hospitality N/A  319 0.70%
Glazers Wholesale Beer, Wine and Spirits N/A  280 0.61%

Greenhill School
Elementary & High
School N/A  256 0.56%

Behringer Harvard Real Estate/Finance N/A  230 0.50%

SOURCE:  North Central Texas Council of Governments (2020); Town of Addison CAFR (2011)

108

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas

Statistical Section
Table

19

BUDGETED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY
FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program  2011  2012  2013  2014  2015  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020 

General Government
  City Manager's Office  8.0  7.5  6.0  7.0  8.0  7.5  6.5  6.5  7.5  6.9 
  Financial and Strategic Services  8.0  8.0  8.0  7.5  9.7  13.0  13.0  13.0  13.0  11.8 
  Municipal Court  5.4  5.4  5.4  5.7  5.7  5.8  5.8  5.8  5.0  5.0 
  General Services  9.0  8.0  5.0  5.0  5.0  5.0  4.8  4.8  5.5  5.5 
  Human Resources  4.2  5.2  4.2  4.2  3.5  4.0  4.0  4.0  4.0  3.4 
  Information Technology  6.0  6.0  7.0  7.0  7.0  7.0  7.0  7.0  7.0  7.0 
Total General Government  40.6  40.1  35.6  36.4  38.9  42.3  41.1  41.1  42.0  39.6 

Public Safety
  Police  72.3  73.8  73.8  75.3  79.8  79.8  71.0  71.0  72.0  74.0 
  Emergency Communications  13.5  13.5  13.5  13.5  13.5  14.5  -  -  -  - 
  Fire  53.0  52.0  52.0  55.3  55.3  55.3  56.0  57.0  57.0  58.0 
Total Public Safety  138.8  139.3  139.3  144.1  148.6  149.6  127.0  128.0  129.0  132.0 

Development Services  7.0  7.2  7.2  7.2  7.2  7.2  11.0  11.0  12.0  13.1 

Economic Development  -  1.0  2.0  3.0  4.0  4.0  4.0  4.0  4.0  4.0 

Public Works 
  Streets  7.0  5.0  5.0  5.0  5.4  5.4  6.4  6.4  7.4  7.4 
  Stormwater  1.4  1.7  1.7  2.0  2.0  4.0  4.0 
  Utilities  17.0  16.0  18.0  18.3  16.6  17.6  19.2  19.2  22.2  27.4 
Total Public Works  24.0  21.0  23.0  24.7  23.7  24.7  27.6  27.6  33.6  38.8 

Parks and Recreation
  Parks  20.0  20.0  21.0  21.0  21.0  22.0  22.0  22.0  21.0  25.0 
  Recreation  15.6  14.6  14.6  14.6  15.1  15.1  15.7  15.7  15.7  15.7 
Total Parks and Recreation  35.6  34.6  35.6  35.6  36.1  37.1  37.7  37.7  36.7  40.7 

Visitor Services
  Visitor Services  3.0  3.0  3.0  3.0  -  -  -  -  -  - 
  Conference Centre  7.5  8.0  7.0  8.7  8.5  9.5  9.5  9.5  9.5  1.5 
  Special Events  3.0  3.0  3.5  4.0  4.3  4.3  4.2  4.2  4.5  4.5 
  Marketing  -  1.0  1.0  1.0  1.0  1.0  2.0  2.0  2.0  2.0 
  General Hotel Operations  -  -  -  -  1.0  1.0  1.0  1.0  1.0  1.0 
  Performing Arts  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Total Visitor Services  13.5  15.0  14.5  16.7  14.8  15.8  16.7  16.7  17.0  9.0 

Airport Fund  2.0  3.0  3.0  3.0  3.0  3.0  3.4  3.4  4.4  19.6 

Capital Improvements Program  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  3.0 

TOTAL  261.5  261.2  260.2  270.7  276.3  283.7  268.5  269.5  278.7  299.8 

SOURCE: Town of Addison Finance Department

109

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 20

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Police
 Crimes Against Property (1)  1,056  933  942  768  728  835  804  866  846  1,278 
 Crimes Against Persons (1)  388  435  393  358  55  97  106  61  91  414 
 Arrests  2,876  2,924  2,548  2,006  1,712  1,679  1,702  1,706  1,567  1,060 
 Calls for Service  17,989  17,390  16,463  16,624  17,181  20,700  17,163  17,092  17,298  16,190 

Fire
 Number of Fires  51  45  61  63  51  39  42  60  45  35 
 Dollar Loss  $  3,027,173  $  2,484,545  $  1,166,345  $  1,268,010  $  608,900  $  686,920  $  1,394,390  $  3,324,215  $  3,422,870  $  277,360 
 Calls for Service - Fire  866  837  896  989  996  865  652  823  802  1,132 
 Calls for Service - EMS  1,463  1,676  1,696  1,598  1,730  1,765  1,683  1,608  1,726  2,181 

Streets
 Tons of Recycling Collected  330  334  360  387  323  390  419  463  418  429 

Parks 
   Acres Maintained  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163 

Recreation (2)
 Recreation Event Participants  14,874  22,496  22,632  21,392  21,392  22,462  26,401  24,640  26,561  9,962 
 Number of Users  123,794  131,730  128,722  122,656  122,656  122,111  126,287  123,961  126,228  76,016 
 Active Athletic Club Members  3,428  3,637  3,669  3,942  3,942  3,665  3,815  3,949  4,135  3,517 

Utilities
 Water Usage - Peak1  9,402  8,871  8,979  10,042  11,093  8,846  7,652  8,803  8,073  8,983 
 Water Usage - Average1  5,014  5,021  4,829  4,577  4,682  4,628  4,672  4,895  4,478  4,477 
 Service Line Breaks  7  10  11  16  8  4  10  12  6  3 
 Water Main Breaks  1  2  5  7  4  2  7  4  4  1 

(1) Reporting structure changed in FY2020
(2) Decrease due to partial closure of the athletic facility as a result of COVID-19

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Department Data

Notes:
(1) In thousands of gallons

110

DRAFT



Town of Addison, Texas
Statistical Section Table 21

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Public Safety
Police Stations  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1 
Fire Stations  2  2  2  2  2  2  2  2  2  2 

Public Works
Streets - Paved (miles)  41  41  41  41  41  43  43  43  43  43 
Lane Miles  164  164  164  164  164  167  167  167  167  167 
Traffic Signals  36  36  36  36  36  36  36  37  37  37 

Parks and Recreation
Acres Maintained  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163  163 
Parks  15  15  15  15  15  14  14  14  14  14 
Playgrounds  5  5  5  5  5  3  3  3  3  3 
Soccer/Football Fields  1  1  1  1  1  -  -  -  -  - 
Community Centers  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1  1 

Water
Water Mains (Miles)  80  80  80  80  80  80  96  96  96  96 
Fire Hydrants  1,052  1,052  1,038  1,038  1,038  1,052  1,052  1,052  1,076  1,090 

Wastewater
Miles of Sanitary Sewers  66  66  66  66  66  66  75  75  72  72 
Miles of Storm Sewers  57  57  60  60  60  76  76  76  76  76 

SOURCE:  Town of Addison Department Data

111

DRAFT


	Agenda
	AI_3792_Park and Trail Naming Discussion
	    Presentation - Park and Trail Facilities Naming Discussion
	Naming Standards for Parks and Trail Facilities
	Background
	Purpose
	Park Naming Standards
	Park Naming Standards
	Park Naming Standards
	Park Naming Standards
	Park Naming Standards
	Naming of Connected Trail Systems
	Slide Number 10
	Next Steps

	AI_3813_Public Nuisance Concerns Along the White Rock Creek Park Trail
	    Presentation - White Rock Creek Park Trail Public Nuisance Concern Discussion
	White Rock Creek  Park Trail
	Council Direction
	Safety & Visibility Concerns
	Staff Efforts Since June
	Staff Efforts Since June
	Other Ongoing Efforts
	Increased Visibility Option
	   Concrete Rip Rap Deterrent
	Elevation Differences
	Flood Zone

	AI_3853_Proclamation - Gary Thomas
	    Proclamation - Gary C. Thomas
	AI_3860_Minutes - January 26, 2021
	    Minutes - January 26, 2021
	AI_3844_Annual Street Light Pole Purchase
	    Bid Tabulation for Solicitation 21-37
	ADP4090.tmp
	Table 1


	AI_3845_Celestial Ground Storage Tank Rehabilitation Construction Contract Award
	    Resolution - DN Tanks, LLC for Celestial Ground Storage Tank Project
	RESOLUTION NO.
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    DN Tank Submittal
	00 -Cover Page Template
	Slide Number 1

	1.0 - Tab Divider
	1.1 - Proposal Forms
	1.2 - Bid Schedule
	1.3 - Tab divider
	1.4 - Bid Bond
	1.6 - Tab Divider
	1.7 - Addendum No.1 Acknowledgement
	Addendum No.1 Drawing
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-C2.0 Proposed Site Plan
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-C5.0 EROSION  AND SEDIMENT
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-C6.0 Roof Plans
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-C10.0 Civil Details IV
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-C11.0 PHOTOGRAPHS
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-S2.0 UNDERSIDE OF ROOF PLAN
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-S3.0 ROOF PLAN
	Town of Addison_Celestial GST_CONFIRMED DRAWING SET-S4.0 EXISTING SITE REFERENCE PHOTOGRAPHS

	Appedix A - Inspection Report

	1.8 - Addendum No.2 Acknowledgement
	1.9 - Tab Divider
	1.10 - CompanyBackground_January2021
	1.11 - Bidders Qualification Statement
	1.12 - Instruction Form
	1.13 - Insurance Form
	1.14 - Authority to Sign (Officers and Directors) - DN Tanks, LLC 08-20-20
	2.0 - Tab Divider
	2.1 - DN Tanks - Rehab Statement of Experience
	2.2 - Rehab SOE using FlexDeck by Euclid Chemical Co.
	{9394e65a-476c-e411-802b-005056

	3.0 - Resumes
	Olson, Eric.pdf
	1/13-8/20 Safety Director – Management of the Safety Department and all personnel, creating and managing Safety Department budget, strategic planning and goal setting, as well as complete responsibility for all safety, health, and related activities t...
	3/10-12/12 Assistant Safety Director – Management of field safety operations for 34 offices across all 50 states.  Managing regional safety inspectors, inspecting jobsites, safety policy development and implementation, budget management and public pro...

	Domek, Adrian.pdf
	2006 - 2015  Project Engineer - Provides office support to project managers. Evaluates and issues request for quotes and purchase orders. Prepares concrete mix design submittals; checks DN Tanks material purchase orders; prepares shoring drawings and ...


	4.1 - DN Tanks Equipment List
	4.2 - Schedule Statement
	Adam Blaser

	4.3 - QC & Methodology
	4.4 - Euclid Trained Applicator Letter
	5.1 - Bonding Reference - 11-23-2020
	5.2 - Citizens Bank Reference Letter - Nov 2020 - DN Tank LLC
	5.3 - Sample COI
	COI For Bidding Purposes - Town of Addison, TX.pdf
	Job 1: Town of Addison


	5.4 - Warranty Statement
	Adam Blaser

	5.5 - Financial Statement Place holder

	    Recommendation Letter
	    Contractor Qualifications and Experience Requirements
	RFP 21-42 Documents 262
	RFP 21-42 Documents 263
	RFP 21-42 Documents 264

	    2014 5 Year CIP Report
	    2104 Celestial Assessment
	AI_3858_Resolution to Approve Public Art Location for Untitled Sculpture by Russ Connell
	    Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art _Untitled_
	AI_3857_Resolution to Approve Public Art Location for Rocko
	    Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art _Rocko_
	AI_3859_Resolution to Approve Public Art Location for Aikido by Artist David B Hickman
	    Resolution - Approving Location for Public Art _Aikido_
	AI_3837_Contract for the installation of an electronic sign over the Belt Line Rd.
	    Resolution - Agreement with Casteel and Associates, Inc. for the Belt Line Road Digital Street Signs Project
	AI_3854_Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Compensation Market Study Results and Recommendations.
	    Presentation - Compensation Discussion
	Market Study &  Pay Plan Update
	Slide Number 2
	Adopted Compensation Philosophy
	Comparison Cities
	High Level Overview of Findings
	High Level Overview of Findings
	Recommendations
	Costing (Fully Loaded) – “1% Above Market”
	Slide Number 9

	AI_3855_CARES Update
	    Dallas County Letter - Coronavirus Relief Fund Extension
	AI_3847_ Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).    
	    Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Fiscal Year 2020

